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September 5, 2025
To, To,
Listing Operation Department Listing Compliance Department
BSE Limited National Stock Exchange of India Limited
20% Floor, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400001 Bandra (East), Mumbai— 400051
Scrip Code: 544432 NSE Symbol: IGCL
Dear Sirs / Madam,

Subject: Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 of Indogulf Cropsciences Limited

This is to inform you that the 33™ Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of Indogulf Cropsciences Limited (‘Company’)
is scheduled to be held on Monday, September 29, 2025 at 1:00 P.M. (IST).

The AGM is being held via two-way Video Conferencing/Other Audio-Visual Means only. This is in compliance with
the General Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020 and
subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being circular dated September 19, 2024 (collectively referred to as
‘MCA Circulars”).

Please find enclosed herewith Annexure-1 to the Annual Report of the Company for the FY2024-25 along with the
Notice of the 33¥ AGM of the Company.

The Annual Report is available on the website of the Company at:
https://investor.groupindogulf.com/?c=Annual%20Return

The Annual Report is being sent only through electronic mode, to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered
with the Company/Registrar and Transfer Agent/Depository Participant/Depositories. Further, a letter is being sent by
the Company providing the web-link, including the exact path where complete details of the Integrated Report are
available, to those shareholder(s) who have not registered their e-mail address with the Company/Registrar and Transfer
Agent/ Depositories/Depository Participants. A copy of the said letter is enclosed herewith as Annexure-2. These are
in compliance with the Circulars issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India dated May 12, 2020, January 15,
2021, May 13, 2022, January 5, 2023, October 6, 2023, October 7, 2023 and October 3, 2024 read with MCA circulars
and Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing
Obligations’).

This disclosure is being submitted pursuant to Regulation(s) 30, 34(1), and other applicable provisions of the SEBI
Listing Regulations.

This is for your information and appropriate dissemination.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,

For Indogulf Cropsciences Limited

SAKSHI  Sastian

JAIN 161952 10550

Sakshi Jain

(Company Secretary and Compliance officer)
M. No: A67325

Adress: 501, Gopal Heights, Netaji Subhash Place,
Delhi — 110034 (India)

Encl.: As above.
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MANUFACTURING

COUNTRIES
GLOBAL

PRESENCE

At Indogulf we are committed to improving the quality of life of the
communities we serve. We do this by striving for leadership and
global competitiveness in the business sectors in which we operate.

To improve the quality of life for the world's pepulation by supplying
products that help farmers to protect crop, increase yields and quality
of crops to satisfy the global demand for food, fibre & energy.

Our core values demonstrate who we are, why we are, and what we do.
One will experience the core values in our behaviour, as they become a
part of Crop Science or collaborate with us. We use our real ambition to
constantly dive into best-in-industry results and a world-class team.
Eco-friendly, and cost-friendly express our long-term commitments to our
farmers. We are focussed on establishing long-term relationships.
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i= changed to INDOGULF manufacturing cutstanding recognition as a ‘One Star & Knshi Mitra. Hom'ble Union Minister board of the stock the era having presence
CROPSCIENCES LTD. quality products from the Export House' from the i Commerce & Industry & exchanges. for more than 20 years- Received a statement of compliance
=\ INDOGULF Ministry of Micro, Small & Miniztry of Commerce and NAEL Accredition 1o ghri Mayab Singh Saini, medium scale” from the from Ecocert India Private Limited
ERDPECENGEE LT hedium Enterprises, Industry, Government of RED Lab. Hon'ble Chief Minister, Pesticides Manufacturers acknowledging our products mentioned
Government of India india ST Haryana at Agriculture Today & Formulators Association therein to be in complisnce for usein
'u@:l 16th Leadership Conclave of india "PMFAI") at arganic production
\_::G}' 2025 PRMFAISML Annual
i AGCHEM Awards.
H&aBL
Cenified R&D Lal
L] L [ ] ] L ] -] L ]
2018 2018 2019 2020 2021 2021 2022 2023

Recelved 'Shaurya
Sammaan’ , an initiative
by India Mews, Harvana.

Incorporated Indogulf
Cropsciences Australia
Pty Ltd ., the subsidiary
situated in Australia.

T
INDOGULF

LRGN AL, M FTT TR

Feceived ‘207 B Overseas Market

Incorporated AGPL -

Expansicn Award' at GAGC 2019 Abhiprakash Globus
Pvt. Ld
hil SIS o Received the ‘Company
e ot of the Year award issued

EAL

by Industry Cutlook:

Feceived a cenificate of
recognition as & Two Star
Export House' issued by the
Ministry of Commerce and
Indusiry, Government of India.

7
G .
£4 :
ik A7

':'-|.1|.= .!ﬁ“fﬂ

L

Started fourth manufacturing
unit &t Barwasm, Harvana

Certified as an Authorised
Economic Cperator (importer
and Exporter) by the Ministry
of Finance, Government of
India

&G/ nea.

Beceived |30 acocreditation
far general requirements for
the competence of testing
and calibraticn laboratonies
for its facilities at Sonipat,

Haryana in the field of testing.

Obtained process patent of WD
Sulphur Noodle.

Obtained product patent for weed
controf in paddy.

Received |50 accreditation for
‘Oualty Management System’




Top 10 Products (Domestic)

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
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Product Portfolio
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We operate under three distinct segments which are -
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Plant nutrients are aimed at enhancing the soil fertility, stimulate root development and boost P ™\
crop yields. We manufacture various types of speciality fertilizers, deficiency corrector, and — '
micronutrients under this vertical. These products are designed to strengthen the plants and '.

enhance theiryields. qf;f

Plant Kranti 4G Bound Off Spine 505
Nutrition & 246.34 3.98% 194.34 3.40%

Supplements

FY 2024-25 =% of Total

(m millions) Revenue
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It refers to the various practices, technigues, and strategies employed to safeguard crops from
pests, diseases, weeds, and other threats, thereby ensuring their healihy growth, development, T - II O : d - : 4 s
and productivity. it aims to mimimize yield losses and maintain crop quality while minimizing 0p Pro UCts (Export)

negative environmental impacts. Under this vertical, we manufacture and offer a varisty of

insecticides, fungicides, herbicides and plant growth regulators. Crop protection products also

include technical synthesis and special formulations. ~ Lambda Cyhalothrin 5% EC Metalaxyl aﬁamﬂ%wp
FY 2023-24 -{'.‘]' '--FF_ ermethrin 25% EC S 'F. er Pottassiam Hisnate
: Clodinafop-Propargyl 15 % WP Fipronil 5% SC
Pmlt:ec‘linn .1 B Propiconazole 15% + Difenoconazole 15% EC Emamectin Benzoate 5% SG
. = —Spy | Azoxystrobin 20% + Difenoconazole 12.56% SC |  Profenofos 40% EC + Cypermethrin 4% EC
Biologicals empower farmers with a comprehensive approach to crop management, offering ; -
novel solutions fo combat pests and diseases, build resilience against abiotic stress, and unfock
improved nutrient use efficiency. It also mitigate the impact of environmental stresses, and ( 3 T )
i iy =T R e Top 10 Products (Institutional
_‘.-'.--'-.'---';-.'---. e
!
- e % of Tolal Sl . Azoxystrobin Tech Clodinafop Tech
Peaticulors 2 nitoe) H; H:.E e cs) oxystrobin Tec inafop Tec
Dinotefuran Tech Chlorantraniliprole Tech
Biologicals 383.95 6.20% 289.02 Pymetrozine Tech B.PM.C Tech
0 Thiamethoxam Tech Tembotrione Tech
Spiromesifen Tech Quizalofop Ethyl Tech
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Sales & Distribution Reach We maintain a comprehensive sales and dealer nefwork, ensuring deep market paenetration and customer
engagement. Our presence spans across 22 states and 3 Union Territories within India; supported by a dedicated sales and product
development team that drives customer support and marketing cutreach.

Our domestic distribution
infrastructure comprised:

Export Business

Our products are exporied to over 34 countries across Asia, Africa, Europe, and the United States of America. Our overseas

; team plays a pivotal role in generating overseas business orders and understanding the evolving needs of our global
WAY FORWARD i oerars

Our international operations are supporied by our subsidiary - Indogulf Cropsciences Australia Pty Lid, based in Sydney,

Moving ahead, our strategic focus which facilitatesregistrations in OECD - compliant markets, which enables expansion into new domestic and international
remains centred on expanding

research-led innovation, enhancing

territories, drives growth, and fosters healthy competition through optimal resource utilization.

Together, these assets enable efficient last-mile
delivery and consistent service across

diverse geographies our manufacturing efficiency, and We proudly offer a diverse porifolio of 161 crop protection products (both formulations and technical) dedicated
’ strengthening our national and exclusively to overseas markets. In addition, 150 of our products are already registered across varnous international
international distribution footprint. markets, reinforcing our strong global presence and driving a robust export strategy
We have a subsidiary named Abhiprakash Globus Private Limited located With a NABL-accredited RRD facility
in Delhi, India. Abhiprakash Globus Private Limited facilitates to expand o B af Soniad sasaticls
our market reach, drive growth, and open new avenues for business ami - = = .
agronomisis, we aim to continue @ . g - aET i
development in domestic markets while optimizing resource use and ing hic e il Sty .gmwﬂ.'- SHM BEHIES Oty md'_"g MPI]' chain t:ﬂpﬂ]ﬂr[le_ﬁ i E‘p"“ markets
fostering healthy competition. dE"EhP . ﬂ‘mmuu; - - . tirough a strengthened sales and mﬂ‘dlshﬂ:utmri netwll':::d and increasing product
ucts flect ero-de istrations in high-volume regions such as Mexico, Brazi Spain.
We have received registrations for 78 plant nutnients, 19 biologicals, and and zero-impact philosophy. By WAY FORWARD | ™2 ' =
732 crop protection products, comprising 483 crop protection formulations leveraging our ISO-certified
fordomestic manufacturing and sales. infrastructure and robust distnbutor
Commitment to Execellence Our manufacturing, distribution, and innovation m across 22 states, 3 Union

frameworks reflect our ongoing commitment to excellence, responsibility, e

and forward-thinking growth.




Verticals

Institutional
Business

T T T PR

Domestic
Business

R T T T TR

Percentage of Total

Export
Business

T R T R T T

Percentage of Total

Tr T

Percentage of Total

Revenue Revenue Revenue
52.26% 36.73% 10.81%
FY 202425 (in milkions) FY 2024-25 (in millions) FY 2024-25 (in millions)

3237.67 227531 669.62

Institutional
Business

We offer customized contract manufacturing services designed fo meet the specific formulation and performance
requirements of our clients. Our flexible capabilities allow us to deliver tailored solutions across a wide range of
agrochemical and specialty products. With over three decades of experience in the industry, we have consistently
demonstrated the ability to adapt to changing business environments, technological developments, and evolving
customer needs.

This resilience and customer-centric approach have enabled us to build long-standing relationships with both domestic
and international clients, including some of the most prominent players in the agriculture sector. Through collaborative
engagement, we co-develop products, optimize quality, and maintain consistency indelivery.

Supporting our manufactunng operations i1s a well-established and reliable network of suppliers who provide high-quality
raw materials and essential components. These supplier relationships span national and global markets, contributing to
the stability and efficiency of our procurement processes and production timelines.

Further, our leadership position in key product categories
offers significant strategic advantages. We benefit from
cost efficiency through economies of scale, allowing us
io offer competitive product pricing without
compromising guality. Our ability to scale operations
rapidly, retain customer loyalty, and expand our product
pipeline into diverse end-uses positions us strongly for Looking ahead, we aim to deepen our value propasition by
sustainable growth. strengthening customer and supplier parinerships. Our
leadership in key product categories empowers us to scale
Together, these capabilities reinforce our commitment to operations efficiently, maintain competitive pricing. We
delivering value, building operational excellence, and remmin committed to leveraging our adaptive capabilities,
dnving innovation across the agricultural supply chain. trusted relationships, and quality-driven approach to meet
evolving customer needs and drive sustainable growth
across domestic and international markets.




Chairman
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Om Prakash
Aggarwal

As we reflect on the fiscal year 2024-25, it 1s evident that the agricultural landscape
continues to evolve amid a fast-shifting interplay of challenges and opportunities.
Globally and nationally, the secter has to navigate climate disruptions, changing market
dynamics, shifting consumer expectations, and a heightened focus on sustainable
practices.

The effects of global climate fluctuations have become increasingly visible, impacting crop cycles, soil productivity, and
water availability. Erratic weather patterns - noetably unpredictable monzoons - have disrupted sowing and harvesting
windows, straining traditional farming schedules and reducing yields in several regions. These climate irregularities have
intensified concerns about long-term soil health, pest outbreaks, and the need for more resilient farming practices.

i the same time, there is growing awareness across the agricultural value chain of the urgency to transition toward mare
sustainable and responsible approaches. The emphasis is now not only on increasing productivity but also on ensuring
ecological balance. Concepts like regenerative agriculture, climate-smart inputs, and biodiversity protection are gaining
traction, pushing both private and public sectors to rethink how we grow, protect, and distnibute food

In India, the government’s proactive policy steps in FY 2024 - 25 have been instrumental in steerning this
change. Significant emphasis has been placed on promoting precision agriculture, digitization, and green
farming initiatives. Schemes to support drone-based crop spraying, nano-based fertilizers, and faster
regulatory approvals for new agrochemical molecules have encouraged innovation at the farm level
Additionally, the push for digital platforms that enable farmers to access advisory, weather aleris, and
market pricing inreal time have helped modernize decision-making across geographies =

-

Despite these positive strides, the sector continues to face formidable challenges. Rising resistance to conventional
agrochemicals has pressured companies and research institutions to discover safer, more targeted solutions. Fertilizer
pricing volatility, supply-chain disruptions, and fluctuating export-impert trends have added complexity to the business
environment. Moreover, farmers are under mounting pressure to increase productivity without compromising
sustainability, which requires tools, education, and a supportive ecosystem

The agrochemical industry, therefore, finds itself at a pivotal moment—expected not only to dnve innovation but also to
enable safer, greener solutions that align with long-term food security and environmental stewardship. Industry players
are increasingly investing in biclogicals, micronutrients, and eco-friendly formulations to cater to a market that's
progressively more guality- and sustainability-conscious. Concurrently, the sector has witnessed the rise of startup-driven
platformsthat leverage Al, zatelliteimaging, and scil analytics to deliver precision crop solutions at scale

Ultimately, the fiscal year 2024-25 has underlined a fundamental shift in how agriculture is perceived and practiced.
Success is no longer measured solely by yield or volume; it is increasingly defined by adaptability, environmental
responsibility, and the ability to stay ahead of disruptions. As India continues to balance tradition with transformation, the
agrochemical sector will remain a key drniver—empowered by science, anchored in sustainability, and fueled by the shared
goal of securing food for generations to come.

ogulf has been steadfast in its pursuit of excellence by deliverning high-guality, innovative produets and

ishing itself a5 a pior he agrochemical industry for over three decades., As we continue this journey of

growih and transformation, | wish to extend my deepest grati ir dedicated employees, valued pariners,
and esteemed stakeholders. Your unwavenng trust, relentiess efforts, and shared vision have been the driving
force behind our success. Together, we have not only navigated challenges but also set new benchmarks in
innovation and sustainability. With your continued support, we remain committed to ng farmers,
advancing sustainable agriculture, and building a resilient future for generations to come
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The financial year 202425 will be remembered as a defining moment in the journey of Indogulf Cropsciences Lid —a
penod where we not only embraced change but actively shaped the future of Indian agriculture. This was not justa yearof
milestones and achievements; it was a year of transformation where resilience met innovation, and bold decisions
propelled usintoa new era of sustainable growth

At Indogulf, our guiding philosophy has always been simple yet powerful: "Grow Together with Indogulf” Over the years,
this vision has served as more than just a motto—it has been the foundation of every decision we make, every partnership
we forge, and every solution we deliver to farmers across the country. This year, we took significant strides in translating
this vision into reality, impacting lives on the ground while strengthening our position as a leading force in the

agrochemical industry ’

The global agricultural landscape continued to face volatility in FY 2024—25, with unpredictable weather patterns, changing
market dynamics, and fluctuating input cosis. Despite these challenges, Indogulf delivered strong operational and financial
performance. We achieved revenue from operations of 5,923 million, surpassing last year's figures and demonstrating our
ability to adapt and thrive in uncertain conditions.

Our EBITDA margin improved to 12%, amounting to 697 million, which reflects the success of our strategic initiatives and
operational efficiency. These results were not achieved by chance—they are the outcome of our deliberate focus on
innovation, robust sk management; and our commitment to delivering value to farmers and stakeholders alike.

At the heart of our success lies a strong emphasis on product innovation and market responsiveness. This year witnessed the
nationwide launch of several high-performance products across Crop Protection, Plant Nutrition, and Biologicals, designedio
address the evolving needs of farmers. Our field force, spread across India, played a pivotal role in bringing these solutions to
the fields through demonstrations, training sessions, and workshops, ensuring farmers undersiood the application methods
and the long-term benefits of adopting ourtechnologies.

To further strengthen our domestic market presence, we established a wholly owned subsidiary, Abhiprakash Globus Pyt
Ltd., focused on product marketing and driving domestic sales to new heights. This move has enabled us to optimize our
marketing efforts, reach more farmers directly, and better serve our dealer and distributor networks.

Ourgrowth story extends beyond India. We have suceessfully expanded our presence to over 34 countries across Asia, Africa,
Europe, and the United States, enabling us to bring Indian agricultural expertise to the global stage. Ourmarketing teams have
played a crucial role in securing overseas business, adapting to diverse market needs, and strengthening our relationships
with international pariners.

The formation of Indogulf Cropsciences Australia Pty Ltd. has further enhanced our capabilities, allowing us to access OECD-
compliant markets and accelerate registretions in advanced economies. This expansion is not just about numbers—it
reflects our aspiration to be a globally respected, innovation-driven agrochemical company that contributes to sustainable
agriculture worldwide,

 People and Partnerships — The Core of Our Progress

Our success is built on the strength of our people and the trust of our partners. From our dedicated employees to our network
of distributors and dealers, every individual plays a vital rele in driving cur mission forward. Our field teams waorl tirelessly at
the grassroots level, engaging directly with farmers, understanding their challenges, and co-creating solutions that improve
productivity and profitability.

We firmly believe that true growth happens only when it is shared. Through capacity-building programs, on-ground farmer
education initiatives, and collaborative partnerships, we are not just selling products—we are empowernng communities,
nurturing knowledge, and fostering resilience in agriculture

Aswe look tothe future, sustainability will remain central to everything we do. Agricultureis the backbone of food secunty and
economic stability, and we recognize our responsibility to drive innovations that are not only effective but alzo
environmentally conscious. From introducing biological alternatives to promoting precision application techniques, we are
aligning our business with the globalimperative of sustainable farming practices

Looking ahead, our priorities are clear:

Expand product innovation Strengthen global alliances Maintain operational
to offer holistic crop to access new markets excellence while building
solutions:: and technologies: resiience agamst external

uncertainties.

With the unwavering dedication of our teams, the trust of cur farmers, and the support of our stakeholders, we are confident
of building not just a suceessful company but a stronger, more resilient agricultural ecosystem for India and beyond.

I take this opportunity to extend my heartfelt appreciation to every member of the Indogulf family—our employees, farmers,
distnbutors, dealers, pariners, and shareholders. Your belief in our vision and your relentless support have made this
transformational journey possible

&g we stepinto the next phase of our growth, let us continue to work together to redefine agricultural excellence, create lasting
impact, and ensure that every step we take contributesto a sustainable and prosperous future.

Together, we will continue to "Grow Together with Indogulfy” turmning challenges into opportunities and aspirations into
achievements.



peratione
la cellen

Manufacturlng
Capabilities

Indogulf Cropsciences Limited continues to uphold its commitment to guality, innovation, and adaptability through a
robust manufacturing and R&D ecosystem. Presently, the Company operates four manufacturing facilities located in
Samba, Jammu and Kashmir; Mathupur - |, Haryana; Nathupur - Il, Haryana; and Barwasni, Haryana, collectively spread
across approximately twenty acres. These facilities include formulation, technical, and fertilizer plants, and are |S0
9001:2015 and SO 14001:2015 certified for guality management and environmental management systems,
respectively The Company is also recognized as a Two Star Export House under the Ministry of Commerce scheme,
reflecting its contnbution to international trade and quality standards.

In addition to its core operations, Indogulf Cropsciences
has expanded its global and domestic footprint through

its two subsidiaries:

registration in countries
requiring OECD-compliant
products.

Abhiprakash Globus Private
Limited, based in Delhi, which
supports expansion across
domestic and overseas markets,
enhances growth strategies, and

opens new avenues for business

development while optimizing
promating healthy
ompetitie

Research & Development and

Product Innovation

RE&D remains central to the Company’s vision for long-term
competitiveness and sustainability. Indogulf's strateqgic
emphasis on innovation allows it to address evolving
consumer trends, regulatory changes, and industry
developments. A MABL-certified laboratory located at
Mathupur, Haryana serves as the hub for advanced
experimentation, product efficacy enhancement,
environmental management, and process optimization.

The RED team comprises skilled scientists, agronomisis,
chemists, and biologists who continually explore new
methodologies to improve operational and product
standards. As of April 30, 2025, the team included eight
dedicated professionals. Since Fiscal 2019, their efforts
have resulted in the grant of six product patents,
demonstrating the impact of innovation on the Company's
product patents value proposition.

Way Forward: We are actively
formulating our finished products
containing vanous active ingredients
at our manufactunng units situated
al Samba, Jammu and Kashmir and
Mathupur - |, Haryana. We are
manufacturing some of these active
ingredients at our technical plant

situated at Nathupur - I, Haryana.
Additionally, we are producing the
maw matenals neaded for the active
mgredient bifenthernin, Cloguintocet
safener for the Clodinafop,
Lambdachloride. This backward

miegration is significantly reducing
our costs and decreasing our reliance
on extemal suppliers, allowing us to
maintain greater control over our

production processes.

ﬁw

WAY FORW

Product Development

Short-term focus: Prioritizing the
registration of existing products in
the marketplace under the
Insecticide Act 1968.

Mid-term focus: Collaborating with
partners to acquire and develop new
products through technology
transfer.

Long-term focus: Discovering new
molecules and investing in R&D for
innovative product development by
identifying potential collaborations
with research institutions,
universities, or other industry
players 1o develop and distribute
new molecules.

Quality and Sustainability
Adhering to ISO 14001:2015
standards for environmental
sustainability.

Investing in green itechnology and
waste reduction measures.
Continucusly improving guality
through certifications like 1S0
9001:2015 and NABL accreditation.

Our R&D mitiatives are strategically aligned to drive product innovation and enhance
market compelitiveness. Our Company’s approach involves a three-pronged strategy:

Strategic Partnerships
Collzborating with universities, research
centers, and CROs for in-depth studies.
Partnering with government institutions

for regutatory suppaort.

Indogulf employs 3 comprehensive gap
analysis model to evzluate market
needs versus product offerings, allowing
it fo channel R&D efforts across short,
medium, and long-term horizons. The
Company had 138 products in the
registration pipeline for both domestic
and overseas markets, with 17 products

under active manufacturing.
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Mr. Om Prakash Aggarwal

Chairman and Whole-time Director

Mr. Om Prakash Aogarwal is the Chairman
and Whole-time Director {Executive) and ong
of the Promoters of the Company, He holds a
bachelors degree in commerce from SRCC,
University of Delhi, Delhi. He has over3 years
of experience in the agrochemical industry.
He has been associated with the Company
since1993.

Mr. Pushap Kumar
Mon-Executive Non-independent
Director

Mr Pushap Kumar is 3 Non-Executive MNon-
Independent Directar of the Company. He
has been associated with our Company since
June 1, 2003 He holds a bechelor's degreein
science from the Chaudhary Charan Singh
University, Meerut. He iz also the head of
marketing operation and marketing
strategies of the Company. He has over 21
vears of experience in the agrochemical
indusiry.

Mr. Sandeep Bhutani
Mon-Executive Independent
Director

Wi Sandeep Bhutani aged 51 vears; is a Mon-
Executive Independent Director of the
Company. He holds a bachelor's degree in
commerce from the University of Delhi. He
has over 20 vears of experience in business
adminiztration. He is currently a pariner &t
Cotour Mate Digital.

Mr. Sanjay Aggarwal

Managing Director

Mr. Sanjay Agogarwal is Managing Director
gnd one of the Promoters of the Company,
He holds a bachelors degres in commence
from SACC, University of Delhiand a mastar's
degree in businezss administration
(marketing and finance} from IBM Institute
of Business Management, Maharashira. He
has also gualified the intermediate
examination held by the Institute of Costand
YWork Accountants of India. He has over 30
years of experience in the agrochemical
industry. He has been associated with the
Company in the capacity of a directar since
Incorporation of the Company and as a
Managing Directorsince 2021.

Ms. Uma Verma
Mon-Executive Independent
Director

M3 Uma Verma aged 48 wears, iz a Nom
Executive Independent Director of the
Company. She has gualified the final vear
examination of bachelor's degree in
commerce pursued from University of Delhi,
Delhi and bachelors in law pursued from Br.
Bhimrao Ambedikar University, Aora. Sheisan
Associate Member of Instinte of Company
Becretaries of India, Registered Independent
Director in 1IC&A. Prior to joining the Company,
shewas associated with Fibrex Constructions
Chemicals for over 10 years and her last
designation was "Senior Manager — Finance’.
Further; prior to joining our Company, she was
practising as a company secretary since
2009

Ms. Anshu Aggarwal
Mon-Executive Non-Independent
Director

M= Anshu Aoogarwal is 3 Non-Executive Mon-
[ndependent Director and oneof the PFromoters
of the Company. 3he holds a bachelor's degree
in arts from the Unjversity of Delhi and a
diploma in imterior design from South Delhi
Polytechnic for Women, Vocation Education
Society Mew Delhi. She has over 6 yvears of
exparience in the agrochemical industry. She
has been associated with the Company in the
capacity of Hon-Executive Director since 2018,

Mr. Rahul Gupta

Mon-Executive Independent
Director

Mr. Bahul Gupta iz 8 Nen-Executive
[ndependent Director of the Company. He holds
& bachelor's degree in technology (computer
science and engineering) from the Maharshi
Dayanand University. Fohtak. He has over 10
years of experience in business
administration. He is currently & partner at
Everest Sanitation India

Ms. Snehal Kashyap
Additional Director (Independent)

Wz, Snehal Kashyap aged 34 years, is an
Additional Director (Independent) of the
Company. 3he holds a certificate of practice
a5 & company secretary from the Institute of
Companies Secretaries of India since
September 7, 2017, 8heis a fellow member of
the Institute of Company Secretanies of india
with-effect from July 17, 2023. Prior to'joining
the Company, she was practising as a
company secretary since 2020,



Mr. Sanjay Chaudhary
Vice President — Strategic
and Corporate Affairs

Mr. Bhupender Kaushik
President — Production

Mr. Surinder Kumar

Vice President —
Sales & Marketing

Senior Management

Mr. Vijay Vir Singh
Vice President —
Sales & Marketing

Mr. Ashish Goel
Vice President — Commercial and
Corporate Business

Mr. Anand Singh Negi
Vice President — Sales & Marketing

Mr. Manoj Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Sakshi Jain
Company Secretary
and Compliance Officer
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Mr. Bhupender Kaushik is the President -
Production of our Company. He has been
asgociated with our Company since August 2,
1994, and i= responsible for leading &l
manufacturing units of cur Company. He
holds & bachelor's degree in arts from
Kurukshetra University, Haryana: He has over
30 years of experience in the agrochemical

industry.
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Mr Vijay Vir Singh is the Vice President -
Sales & Marketing of our Company. He has
been associated with our Company since
February 1, 2025, and is responsible for
pverseeing brand business operations,
developing marketing strategies, managing
product life cycles and planning product
launches. He hoids & bachelor's degres in
srience (agriculture and animal husbandry)
and a masters degree in science (agriculturs)
from Govind Ballabh Pant University of
Agriculture & Technology. He has also
qualified the executive masters in
international business from the Indian
Institute of Foreion Trade Prior to joining our
Company, he was associated with DuPomt
india Limited, Mational Croanic Chemical
Industries Limited, GSP Crop Science Private
Limited and Weghmani Organics Private

Lirnited:

@

Mr. Ashish Geel is the Vice President -
Commercial and Corporate Business of our
Company. He has been associated with our
Company since April 1, 2014, and is
responsibie for procurement and institutionsl
business domestically and overseas. He
hold=s a bachelor's degree in commerce frem
the University of Delhi. He has over 10 vears of

experience in the agrochemical industry.

©

Mr. Anand Singh Megi is the Vice President —

Sales & Marketing (West & Central Zong) of
our Company. He has been associated with
our Company since Aprl 1, 2002, and is
responsible for marketing, product
development and sales strategizing in the
west and central zone of India. He holds a
bachelors degree in commerce from the
University of Delhi and & postgraduate
diploma in business administration from the
Symbicsiz Centre for Distance Learning,
Fune. He has over 22 yeara of experience in

the agrochemical industry.
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Wir. Mancj Gupta is the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company since January 1, 2021. Hehas
been associated with our Company since
Cctober 10, 2017, and is responsible for mter
alis, maintaining internal control systems,
arranging long-term and shortfund funds and
maintenance of dayic-day sccounta of the
Company. He holds & bachelor's degree in
commerce from the Kurukshetra University,
Haryana. He is a chartered accountant
registered with the Institute of Chartered
Accountamts of India. He has over 7 years of
experience in the field of corporate finance
and accounts in the Company. Prior to joining
the Company, he was associated with
Agrimas Chemicals Limited in the capacity of
Deputy General Manager — Finance &

Accounts
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Mr. Surinder Kumar is the Vice President —
Bates & Marketing (Morth & South Zone) of our
Company. He has been associeted with our
Company since August 18, 2022 and is
responsible for marketing, product
development and sales strategizing in the
north and south zone of India. He holds &
bachelors and & masters degree in science
(agriculture) from Guru Manak Dev University
Amritsar. Prior to joining our Company, he was

associated with Gujarat Pesticide Company.
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Ir. 2anjay Chaudhary is the Vice President —
SBtrategic ‘and Corporate Affairs of our
Company He has been associated with our
Company since August 16, 2022 and is
responsible for product portfolio
development, strategic planning and
workforce management. He holds &
bachelor's degree in science {agriculture and
animal husbandry} from Govind Ballabh Pant
University of Agrculture & Technology,
Pantnagar, and a masters degree in science
(2griculture) in soil science from Chaudhany
Charan Singh Hanvana Agricultural University
Prior to joining our Company, he was CGountry
Director at Sinochem India Company Privaie

Limited

Ms. Sakshi Jain = the Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer of the Company and is
responsibie for secretarial and compliance-related
matiers of the Company. She haolds bachslor's
degres in commearce and pursuing bachelor's in
faw from the Mahstma lyotibs Phuls Rohilikhand
Univarsity, Uttar Pradesh. She i= 3n associate
member of the institute of Company Secretarias of
Indiz. She has gver three years of experiencs in

COfpaTaie EDVernance
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Management Discussion & Analysis

i

i

Despite posting a surprisingly robust 3.3 % global GDP gain in 2024 against a backdrop of escalating geopolitical tension,
erratic trade flows and shifting monetary regimes, the IMF's April 2025 World Economic Outlook now projects a slowdown
tojust 2.8 % in 2025—an unwelcome downgrade that underscores the urgent need for stronger multilateral coordination
and coherent policy alignment.

This downward revision is pnmarily driven by shifting trade policies, most notably the reintroduction of tanffs by the USA,
which have intensified pressure on global supply chains and pricing structures. In this evolving environment, agile policy
coordination and sound fiscal stewardship will be critical to cushioning glebal markets from deeper disruptions.

On theinflation front, global disinflationary trends are expected to continue, with inflation easing to 4.3% in 2025 and 3.6%
by 2026. However, upward revisions ininflation expectations forthe US (from 3.3% to 4.3%) and the UK (from 3.2% t0 3.9%)
reflect enduning price pressuresin services, a resurgence in core goods inflation, and the impact of newly imposed tariffs.
Global inflation is set to ease, reaching 4.3% in 2025 and 3.6% in 2026, with advanced economies progressing faster than
emerging markets. This downward trend is supported by cooling labour markets and lower energy prices. However,
gecpolitical conflicts like the Russia-Ukraine and Israel-Gaza wars may cause localised inflation spikes, particularly in
energy and food. Divergent monetary policies across regions are also expected to influence capital flows, investments,
and exchangerates, adding complexity to the globaleconomic environment.

Glohal trade, while moderated by recent tariff hikes and geopolitical complexities, is expected to grow at amodest 1.7% in
2025. Yet, global supply chains continue to evolve, displaying resilience through diversification, digital transformation,
and forward-looking trade agreements. These trends signal a global marketplace that, while challenged, is steadily

®
India continues tolead among emerging markets, with the IMF projecting strong GDP growth of 6.5% in FY2025, driven by
robust domestic demand, infrastructure investments, and stable fundamentals. China's growth 15 expected to ease to
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4.0% amid structural adjustments and softer external demand.

In terms of individual economies, the USA is expected to grow at 1 8% in 2025, following a strong 2.8% expansion in 2024
The European economy is projected to experience a gradual recovery, with eurc area GDP growth forecasied to
accelerateto 0.8% in CY 2025 and 1.2% in CY 2026, following a modest 0.9% expansion in CY 2024, This recovery is
expected to be supported by monetary policy easing, continued implementation of Next-Generation EU spending, and a
gradual recovery in external demand. China's growth is projected to decline to 4.6% in 2026 and 4.5% in 2026, reflecting
weak consumer confidence, a sluggish labour market and persistent challenges in the real estate sector. India continues
to be a bright spot, with growth projected at 6.2% in 2025 and 6.3% in 2026, propelled by robust private consumption,
particularly in rural sectors.

%
H

In today's rapidly evolving global landscape, businesses face a complex mix of moderating growth, shifting policy
priorities, and widening ecornomic divergence. While global expansion shows signs of slowing, certain
economies—especially in Asia—continue to demonsirate resilience and offer focused, high-potential opportunities Atthe
same time, nising protectionism, irade disruptions, and geepaolitical tensions are iIncreasing costsand transforming global
supply chains. To navigate this uncertainty, businesses and policymakers alike will need clear strategic direction,
strengthened regional collaboration, and agile, forward-leoking approaches to ensure stability and long-term sustainable

growth |

Evenin FY25, the Indian economy continued to emerge as of the fastest growing economies in the world, but at a sluggish
pace compared to the previous years. Tepid growth in the first half of the fiscal (6%) led the REI to revise the annual
projection to 6.6% (down from an earlier projection of 75%). However, according to the second advance estimates, India's
real GDPis expected to have grown at 6.5% in FY25 and nominal GDP tripling from "106.57 lakh crore (2014-15) 10 "331.03
lakh crore (2024-25)2. This growth forecast is underpinned by sustained government spending, steady private sector
capital investment, and growing domestic consumption. Additionally, moderating inflation and the possibility of interest
rate cuts are expected to further stimulate economic activity, reinforcing india's posiiion as cne of the fastest-growing
Major economies.

Amid the broader economic upswing, rural consumption has taken centre stage as a key growth engine—driven by
stronger agricultural performance and rising rural incomes. The agriculture sector recorded a healthy 4.6% growth in
2024-25, buoyed by favourable monseon conditions that set the stage for beth essential and diseretionary spending to
rise. A promising kharif harvest, improved rabi sowing, and robust festive season demand have further fuelled this positive
momentum. Together, these factors point to a sustained rise in domestic consumption, reinforcing the rural economy’s
growing role in shaping India's growth story

“

India's economic outlook remains optimistic, buoyed by strong domestic demand, accelerating technological innovation,
and the momentum of structural reforms. A young and growing workforee, coupled with rising income levels, lays a firm
foundation for long-term growth. Strategic policy initiatives are making India more competitive on the global stage,
drawing in investment and fostering an environment where businesses can thrive. As the nation continues to evolve inte a
global economie force, the synergy between rising consumption, robust manufacturing, expanding services, and rapid
digital transformation is set to power its next chapter of progress, one marked by inclusive prosperity and sustainable
development.

adapting— fuelled by innovation, strategic collaboration, and a shared commitment to long-term growth. ﬂ
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Wakhana Board will be established in the siate of Bihar fe improve production,
processing, value addition, and marketing of makhana.
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Government will bring in an enabling frameworl for sustainable harnessing of fishenes

from Indian Exclusive Economic Zone and High Seas
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- i
Launch of "Mission for Cotton Productivity’ a 5-year mission to facilitate significant
improvements in productivity and sustainability of cotton farming in India
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Facilitation of credit through Kisan Credit Cards (KCC), Medified Interest Subvention

Scheme and support to HCDC
. S

r 3
hew Fund of Funds for startups, with expanded scope and a fresh contribution of INR
100 Million expected to boost Agritech ecosystem.

\, J/

Other Key Announcements

As a global agricultural powerhouse, the Indian agriculture industry is the livelihood of 55% of India’s population and
contributes approximately 16% to the nation's GDP The Indian agriculture leads in the cultivation of wheat, nee, and
cotton. It 15 the top producer of milk, pulses, and spices, and ranks second in the production of fruits, vegetables, tea,
farmed fish, sugarcane, and more. With the second-largest area of arable land in the world, India’s agriculture sector not
only feeds its people but also employs nearly half of the nation's workforce

In recent years, India's agricultural sector has shown remarkable resilience and consistent growth, bolstered by
proactive government policies aimed at boosting productivity, encouraging crop diversification, and enhancing farmers'
incomes.

The adoption of modern farming technigues, such as precision agriculture, has significantly boosted both productivity
and sustainability on the ground. Complementing these advances, flagship government programmes like the Pradhan
Mantri Krishi Sinchai Yojana (PMKSY) and the Digital India Land Records Modemization Programme (DILRMP) have
made meaningful sirides in enhancing irrigation infrastructure and streamlining land record management, empowering

The government, in partnership with states, has launched the 'Prime Minister Dhan-Dhaanya Krishi Yaojana' to support

100 underperforming districts by integrating existing schemes with targeted interventions. : :
farmers with greater efficiency, transparency, and accesstoresources.
The scheme targets five key objectives: boosting agnicultural productivity, promoting crop diversification, encouraging

sustainable farming, and strengthening post-harvest storage-at the panchayat'and block levels to reduce losses and As per government estimates, India's agriculture industry is poised for steady growth, expected toreach "31 lakh crore by

. FY25 and further expand to "38 lakh crore by FY30, growing at an annual rate of around 4% .3 This growth trajectory is
improve market access : : j ; _
being shaped by evolving consumer preferences, the adoption of modern farming practices, and the increasing
integration of technology into agriculture, all contributing to a more efficient, responsive, and future-ready agri-sector.

The scheme aims to enhance irrigation In partnership with states, the 'Rural Prospenty and Resilience’
i ' ' i 3 ' E ! ' i ] The Indian agriculture sector grew by 3.8% in FY 25, driven by recerd Kharif production and strong rural demand

infrastructure and improve access to both short-  initiative will drive rural development through technology, investment,
and long-termloans, benefiting approximately 1.7 and skillbuilding. By strengthening the rural economy and addressing
crore farmers by boosting productivity and  underemployment in agriculture, it aims to make migration a choice,
financial stability, notanecessity.

Best practices from glebal and domestic sources
will be adopted, with support from multilateral
development banks. Phase 1 will cover 100




Strong performance of allied sectors

Livestock and fisheries: These sub-
sectors have emerged as significant
growth engines within agriculture,
driven by the increasing consumer
demand for protein-rich foods. The
livestock sector, including dairy,
meat, and eggs, and the fisheries
sector have shown impressive
growthrates.

Horticulture: The demand for fruits
and vegetables has led o a boom in
the horticulture sector, which has
been outpacing the growth of
traditional field crops like cereals.

Strong performancae of allied sectors

Industrial demand for agricultural
raw matenals: The agriculture
sector supplies essential raw
materials to various industries,
including textiles (cotton), sugar
(sugarcane), and increasingly, the
biofuel industry (e.g.. ethanol
praduction from sugarcane, maize
and sorgham), thereby ereating
consistent demand.

Key Demand Drivers for the Indian Agriculture Sector

Growing population and rising income

Population growth: India’s continuously growing
population fundamentally drives the demand for food
grains and other agricultural commodities to ensure food

security.

Changing consumer preferences and

dietary habits

Urbanization and lifestyle changes: As the population
urbanizes and lifestyles evolve, there's a noticeable shift
in dietary patterns. Consumers are increasingly seeking
protein- rich foods such as meat, dary products, eggs,

and fish,
Rising incomes: Increased disposable incomes, both in
urban and rural areas, and an expanding middle class are
leading to higher overall food consumption and a shift
towards more diverse and higher-value food products.

Various government schemes aimed at enhaneing agricultural productivity, promoting crop diversification (e.g., towards

horticulture and millets like "Shree Anna'), improving irrigation facilities (e.q., '‘Per Drop More Crop’), and increasing
farmers’ incomes play arole in shaping demand.
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Health and wellness consciousness: A growing awareness of health and nutrition is boosting the demand for fruits,
vegetables, and, increasingly, organic and sustainably produced agricultural products.

Demand for processed and convenience foods: The demand for processed and packaged food items is onthe nse due to
changing lifestyles and the need for convenience

Government initiatives and policy support : Various government schemes aimed at enhancing agricultural productivity,
promoting crop diversification (e.g., towards horticulture and millets like 'Shree Anna’), improving irrigation facilities
{e.g., 'Per Drop More Crop’), and increasing farmers' incomes play a role in shaping demand, Support for allied sectors
like livestock, fisheries, and horticulture, which are often more demand-driven and market-oriented, is also a key factor
Investment in agricultural infrastructure, including storage, cold chains, and market connectivity (like e-MAM), helps in
better realization of demand.

While adoption is still evolving, the increasing use of technelogy in agriculture {agnitech), including digital platforms for
markef access, precision farming technigues, and befter irrigation methods, can enhance efficiency and connectivity,
indirectly influencing how demand 15 met and percejved. In essence, the demand for Indian agricultural products is
shaped by a complex interplay of demographic shifts, economic growth, changing consumer tastes, global market
dynamics, and supporiive government policies, with a notable trend towards diversification into higher-value and
processed agriculiural goods.

o

From targeted irigation to precise use of fertilisers and pesticides, these innovations are enhancing productivity,

reducing waste, and promoting sustainable praclices. In India, tools like GPS-guided eguipment and soil sensors are

Y

helping farmers boost yields while mimmizing environmental impact.

Here are a few innovations to drive change in the Indian agriculture industry

Smart farming for a sustainable future: Precision farmingis revolutionizing agriculture by enabling farmers to make real-

time, data-driven decisions using technologies like satellite imagery, loT sensors, and drones. From targeted irrigation to
precize use of fertilizers and pesticides, these innovations are enhancing productivity, reducing waste, and promoting
sustainable practices. In India, tools like GP5-guided equipment and soil sensors are helping farmers boost yields while
minimizing environmental impact.

Vertical farming gaining popularity: With land becoming an increasingly limited resource—especially in India's bustling
urban landscapes—innovative solutions are no longer optional, they are essential. Vertical farming has emerged as a
game- changer in this context By growing crops in stacked layers within controlled indoor environments, this modern
farming techmigue makes efficient use of space while drastically reducing water consumption compared to traditional
methods. In Indian cities like Bengaluru and Delhi, startups are already cultivating fresh produce closer to consumers,
reducing reliance on rural farms and cutting the carbon footprint of food transport. Vertical farming offers a promising
path toward food security inour rapidly growing urban centers.

Increased usage of modern technologies: Drones are rapidly transforming agnculture, becoming vital tools for modemn
farmers. From capturing high-resolution crop images to monitoring plant health, irrigation, and pest infestations, they
enable precise, data-driven decisions. In India, drones are being used across crops like rice, wheat, and sugarcane to
enhance yields and prevent diseases. Al-powered drones can even identify specific field areas needing nutrients or pest
control. Addifionally, drone-based spraying improves efficiency while reducing water and labour needs.



Increased usage of biopesticides and biofertilizers: With growing environmental awareness, the demand for organic and
sustainable farming is on the rise. Biopesticides and biofertilizers offer natural altermatives to chemicals, protecting
crops, improving soil health, and reducing ecological harm. Biopesticides target pests without affecting pollinators,
while biofertilizers boost soil fertility by supporting beneficial microbes. Together, they can work on plant & soil healih,
promoting greener, more responsible agriculture, incidence of disease & pests can be reduce on healthy crops using
technologies.

Increased usage of artificial intelligence (Al) and machine learning in agriculture: iImagine knowing the best time to
plant, spotting diseases early, and using water efficiently, even before sowing begins. Thanks to Al and machine learning,
this is now possible. By analyzing data from weather patierns, satellite imagery, and soil sensors, Al empowers Indian
farmers with precise, real-time insights. These smart solutions help boost yields, improve crop health, and adapt to
climate change, paving the way for a more resilient and sustainable agricultural future. It helps the companies to access
the occurance of pests incidence in advance to plan therr sirategy

In India, 2 significant portion of potential crop production is lost due to pests, weeds, and diseases. To address thisissue,
there 15 a growing emphasis on improving crop productivity through effective pest management and weed control

practices.

Indian Agrochemicals Industry

Agrochemicals, commonly known as crop pretection products or pesticides, play a vital rele in safeguarding crops
against insects, diseases, and invasive weeds. India's agrochemicals industry is on a growth path, driven by the
country's expanding population, rising incomes, and a growing shift towards healthier and more diverse food choices.
As demand for higher agricultural productivity intensifies, the sector is fast becoming a cornerstone of India's journey
toward food security and sustainable farming. The push for higher agricultural productivity i1s ne longer just about
feeding a growing nation—it's about ensuring food security and nutritional well-being for all

in India, a significant portion of potential crop yieldis lost each yearto pests, weeds, and plant diseases, posing a serious
challenge to the nation's food security. As a result, there is a growing focus on enhancing agricultural productivity
through smarter, more effective pest and weed control solutions. Farmers today increasingly recognise the value of
agrochemicals in protecting their crops and ensuring better harvests. This shift in awareness, coupled with the rising
adoption of modern farming technigues, is fuelling robust growth in the crop protection market.

At the same time, the industry is navigating critical concerns— ranging from envirenmental impact and regulatory
scrutiny to the evolving threat of resistant pests. Yet, innovation continues to pave the way forward. With cutting-edge
technologies, government support, and the introduction of next-generation, eco-friendly solutions, the sector is well-
positionad for sustainable growth—empowernng farmers to grow more, waste less, and secure a better future.

The Indian agrochemical industry is on a steady growth trajectory, with its market size projected to reach USD 8.53
billion by the end of 2025. Looking ahead, it is expecied to expand furtherto USD 10.38 hillion by 2030, growingat a CAGR
of 4%. India stands as the fourth-largest producer of agrochemicals in the world, backed by a vast and expanding
domestic market,

Insecticides dominate the segment, accounting for nearly 60% of iotal agrochemical consumption, followed by
fungicides and herbicides. Despite being a net exporter, India’s per-hectare usage of agrochemicals remains
significantly lower than that of developed nations, highlighting substantial room for growth and wider adoption within
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The agrochemical industry in India 1= broad and well-distnbuted, comprising around 125 techmcal-grade manufacturers,
800 formulators, and over 2.25 lac dealers outlets/ retailers dealing in agri inputs including pesticides and 35,000
distnibutors in the country However, a major share of the raw materials required for technical-grade production
continues to be imported, primarily from China, leading to elevated production costs and tighter margins. While the
government’s “Make in India” initiative aims to reduce this dependency and strengthen domestic manufacturing, the
pathtotrue self-reliance in the sector is still evelving and demands sustained focus and investment.

Key Growth Drivers for the Indian Agrochemical Industry

India's prospects for the agrochemical industry in the future
seem quite encouraging.

Growing demand for food security, The availability of arable land per capita in India has been steadily declining in recent
years, largely due to rapid urbanization, and this trend i1s expected to continue. Atthe same time, a growing population is
placing increasing pressure on food production, In this context, pesiicides are poised to play a vital role in enhancing
crop yields per hectare, helping farmers make the most of limited land resources.

Rising technology adeption: With increasing digital penetration across the agricultural landscape, more companies are
leveraging technology to raise awareness and engage farmers, ultimately driving demand for agrochemicals. The
growing promaotion of pay-per-use technology solutions is also expected fo accelerate tech adoption, making advanced
tools more accessible iosmall and marginal farmers. '

Growing consumer awareness. Efforis by both public and private sectors to educaie farmers on the secientific and
responsible use of agrochemicals are beginning to yield results. As awareness of the benefits, such asincreased yields,
crop protection, and long-term soilhealth, continues to rise, a coresponding boostin agrochemical sales is expected.

®

With increasing digital penetrafion across the agricultural landscape, more companies are leveraging technology loraise
awareness and engage farmers, ultimately driving demand for agrochemieals.

Agrochemical trade reforms: The introduction of a single- window clearance system for approvals related to
manufactunng, marketing, and exportsisexpected to streamline operations and support industry growth. Simplification
of the export registration process and compliance reguirements will further aid Indian exporters. Additionally, a re-
evaluation of banned and restricted molecules specifically for export manufacturing could open new international
markets

India as a global manufacturing hub: india’s push for seli- reliance (Atmanirbhar Bharat) and reduced dependence on
imports, particularly from China, has created a favourable environment for domestic players. The Production Linked
Incentive (PLI) scheme for the agrochemical sectar is awaited. With numerous agrochemical products going off-patent,
Indian manufacturers are well-positioned to emerge as a global leader.

Strengthening R&D capabilities: Public-Private Partnership (PPP) models are increasingly being used to drive research
and innovation. Promoting collaborative R&D investments, especially among small and regional players, can foster
innovation at scale.

Enabling policy environment: Supportive policies are encouraging the optimal use of safer, export-comphant
molecules, in line with international food safety standards. Enhanced MRL (Maximum Residue Limit) testing
infrastructure is improving accessibility and lowering testing costs._ Additional poliey incentives focused on capacity
expansion, export- oriented manufacturing, and MEME growth are strengthening thie sector. Improvements in R&D
infrastructure and a more efficient licensing and registration regime further reinforce a positive outlook for the
industry.

Growing export opportunities: India’s agrochemical exports have gone up in recent years, andthe country is in a good
position to witness the greater demand for crop protection chemicals in the world. With correct investment in research
and development, it could become one of the key players worldwide.

Focus on sustainability: Looking at agrochemicals and sustainability in agriculture, responsible use of these products
is gaining impertance. There s a growing concem about the production of products that are effective in pest control
while causing the least harm to the environment. This is not at odds with the worldwide trend toward eco-friendly and
sustainable farming practices.

Modern Farming Practices

The growing adoption of mechanisation and precision agriculture is transforming weed management practices across
india. Herbicides, once arelatively underutilized input, are now emerging as one of the fastest-growing segmentsinthe
Indian agrochemical space. While the industry was traditionally led by insecticides, a notable shiff is underway as
farmers increasingly turn to herbicides in response to rising labour shortages, escalating wage costs, and the need for
more efficient, timely weed control

This shiftis particularly evident in crops like rice, maize, cotton, and soybean, where effective weed management plays
a critical role in protecting yields and improving profitability. Greater awareness among farmers, improved access to
crop- specific and selective herbicides, and the growing cultivation of high-value commercial crops are all contributing
tothisnsing demand.

With continued innovation in herbicide formulations and the steady move toward modern, mechanised farming,
herbicides are becoming an indispensable part of India's agricultural evolution, helping farmers boost productivity
while sustainably managing theirfields.

Key challenges faced by the Indian agnculture mdustry

Slow registration process: The lengthy and costly registration process for new agrochemical molecules hinders
nnovation and delays the introduction of advanced crop protection solutions. Streamliining approvals would benefit both
manufacturers and farmers.

Volatility in raw material prices: India's agrochemical industry relies heavily on raw material imports from China, making it
vulnerable to global price and currency fluctuations. Increasing domestic production can reduce this dependence, lower
costs, and improve profitability formanufacturers.

Environmental and health issues: Concerns around agrochemical use stem from health and environmental risks caused
by improper handling, storage, and application. Reducing these risks requires proper education and training for farmers.
Resistance to agrochemicals: Continuous and MNon-judicious use of agrochemicals can lead to pestresistance, reducing
their effectiveness. Integrated Pest Management (IPM) and ongoing agrochemical research are key to addressing this
challenge. Mew molecules are seeing their pathway in India ata good speed.

®
India holds immense promise as a growing force in the global agrochemicals industry. Yet, to unlock its full potential,

several challenges must be addressed. By prioritising sustamability, fostenng product innovation, and boosting demestic
manufactunng, Indian agrochemical companies can play a pivotal role in securing the future of Indian agnculture

Collaboration between the government and industry stakehaolders is essential to resolve key issues such as requlatory
delays, supply chain constraints, and empvironmental concems. With a growing focus on sustainable practices and
forward-looking solutions, the outleolk for India's agrochemical sector remains optimistic and full of opportunity.




Company Overview

ndoguif Cropsciences Lid. is engaged in the business of

manufacturing crop protection products, plant nutrients,

and biologicals in India. The Company manufactures
Spiromesifen technical with a minimum purity of 96.5% since
2019. Itis also one of the first few indigenous manufacturers
of Pyrazosulfuron Ethyl technical, with a minimum purity of
07%, and commenced indigenous praductionin 20718,

Indogulf Cropsciences Ltd. is a growing exporter of crop
protection, plant nutrients, and biclogical products, having
exported to over 34 countries. The Company has been
recognized as a "Two Star Export House" by the Government
ofindia.

Commencing operations in 1993, Indogulf Cropsciences Lid.
primarily operates under three business verticals—crop
protection, plant nutrients, and biclogicals—serving both
retail and institutional customers focused on improving crop
yield. The Company manufactures and markets an extensive
range of products in various formulations, including water
dispersible granules (WDG), suspension concentrate {SC),
capsulesuspension (CS), ultra-low volume (ULV), emulsion in
weater (EW), soluble granule (SG), and flowable suspension
(FS), available in powder, granule, and liguid forms.

With a diverse product portfolio, Indogulf Cropsciences Lid,
caters to a broad spectrum of crops such as cereals, pulses
and oilseeds, fibre crops, plantations, and fruits and
vegetables. Its products are designed to enhance crop yield
while promoting sustainable agriculture and environmental
stewardship.

Due to its widespread dealer network, the company is able to
supply crop protection, plant nutrients, and biological
praducis to customers within the required timeframe, which
is critical given the seasonal nature of the agricultural
business. The Company follows a structured process for
dealer identification, based on a well-defined assessment

system, to ensure maximum geographical coverage.

Indogulf Cropsciences Lid has been recognized as a "Two
Star Export House” under the Ministry of Commerce scheme.
Supported by a dedicated marketing team, the Company
effectively generates business orders and addresses the
requiremeants of international customers. Indogulf
Cropsciences Lid. exports its products to over 34 countries
across Asia, Africa, Europe, and the United States of America.

Human Resources

ur people are at the core of our operations, and their

contributions play a vital role in driving

organizational growth and performance. We are
supported by a committed workforce that includes both
permanent employees and contract labour, engaged through
third-party personnel agencies based on operaticnal
requirements. Our human resource practices are designed to
attract skilled talent, foster continuous learning, and promaote
a collaborative work culture. Regular training workshops and
team-building modules are conducted to develop diverse skill
sets, enhance employee engagement, and support personal
and professional growth. The HR department remains
focused on creating an enabling environment through
proactive grievance handling, motivation programs, and
alignmentwith our strategic objectives.

Our employees and contract labourers contribute
significantly to our business operations. In addition, we have
entered into arrangements with third party personnel
companies for the supply of contract labour. The number of
contract labourers varies from time to time based on the
nature and extent of work contracted to independent
contractors. We conduct training workshops for our
employees o develop a variety of skill seis and organize
modules at reqular intervals to promote teamwork and
personal growth of employees. Qur human resource
department focuses on employee engagement and
mativation, which further helps in achieving the strategic
objectives of the organization. Our human resource practices
are aimed at recruiting talented individuals, ensuring
continuous development and addressing their grievances, if
any,in atimely manner,

Employee composition
of the Company



| MANAGEMENT |/

Financial risks involve uncertainties that
can impact the financial stability and
performance of the company. These risks
include:

Liguidity Risk: Possibility of inadequate
financial solvency or inefficient cash
management affecting the ability to meet
obligations.

1.Implementing detailed financial planning
through annual business plans, budgets with
variance analysis, and daily/monthly cash
flow monitoring.

2. Utilizing bank cash management services,
strict internal checks, and approval
mechanisms to ensure effective fund
uiilization.

3. Conducting thorough creditworthiness

(7)) Credit Bisk: Risks related to delayed or non- assessments of customers, setting
e ﬁ settlement of dues by dealers/customers, controlled credit limits, secunng payments
. L potentially leading tobad debts. through cheques, and having active recovery
E Foreign Exchange Risl: Exposure to management with legal suppert.
E fluctuations in global foreign currency | 4. Maintaining an optimized Forex
Q exchange rates affecting intermational sales Management Policy to manage currency
5 andpurchases exposure
.E Financial Reporting Risk: Uncertainty 5. Ensuring compliance with evolving
LL arising from evolving accounting laws, accounting standards through expert
regulations, and compliance requirements consultations and adherence to high
A thorough risk-management framework allows us to pre- emotively monitor risks emanating from the intemal and Corporate Accounting Fraud Risk: Potential | regulatory standards.
external environment. As a result, we have been able to consistently create value for all our stakeholders, despite misuse or misstatement of funds and | 6. Preventing accounting fraud through risk
industry cycles and economic headwinds financial records leading to fraudulent | assessments, strictenforcement of codes of
practices conduct, internal control mechanisms, multi-
level transaction authorizations, and
independent internal audits by Big Fours to
For managing Risk more efficiently the company would need to identify the risks that it faces in trying to achieve the :jdrz::;?ry.and St e s
objectives of the Company. Once these risks are identified, the Company would need to evaluate these risks to see which
of them will have critical impact on the Company and which of them are not significant enough to deserve further
Sl Other risks include potential challenges 1.Assigning the right individuals to
related to human resources, environmental appropriate roles, supperted by a structured
responsibilities, legal compliance, and recruitment policy, regular appraisals, and
system reliability that can affect the performance-based compensation
company's smooth operations and revisions.
Business operational .r]sl{s encompass | 1 -GP?fﬂFinﬂ under a "'*fH"dEﬂ”Ed reputation. These risks comprise: 2 Promoting employee engagement through
E chalier.tges. that may disrupt the smooth quamz.atmnai structure '.~.'.|th clear_ role welfare activities, training, open
v functioning of the company’s core allocations to ensure efficient decision- Human Resource Risk: Risks arising from | communication channels, and relationship-
o aperations. These risks include: making and accountability labour turnover, training gaps, skill | buildinginitiatives to maintain harmony.
o - _ E-FW]E'F‘tE"Ti“Q proper inventory systems for E shortages, and potential unrest due to | 3 Ensuring environmental protection
e Organisation and Management Risks: | raw materials, consumables, key spares, and ”n strikes or lockouts. through installation of effluent and sewage
,E Potential inefficiencies or issues in | tools to support uninterrupted planned o Environmental Risk: Exposure to | treatment plants, tree plantation drives, and
}E leadership and internal management production. E environmental liabilities due to discharge of efficient operation of environmental safety
E structures. 3.lmplementing robust technology - pollutants or non-compliance with systems.
= Production, Process, and Productivity selection, process standardization, regular 5 environmental protection norms. 4. Managing legal risks with professional
o Risks: Unforeseen challenges impacting | training programs, and effective asset Legal Risk: Risks of legal actions arising | advisors, robust compliance management
% PF'}dUCtiW processes, efficiency, and overall maiptenance to enhance operational from non-compliance with various laws and | systems, quarterly compliance reviews, and
) productivity. efficiency requlations governing the company's | preactive adherence to contractual and
.E Business Interruption Risks: Internal or | 4.Encouraging workforce development operations requlatory requirements.
g external factors such as eguipment through structured trair.ling. development System Risk: Risks related to system 5. Strengthening system reliability through
om breakdowns, supply chain disruptions, or | programs, and an effective incentives and capability, reliability, and data integrity that | continuous upgrades by skilled EDP teams,

unforeseen operational halis

reweards system for employees at all levels.

may disrupt business processes.

strict access controls for data security, and
regular, methodical data backups to
safeguard information integrity.



& internal control system and adequacy

The Company has an adequate intemnal coidrol system commeansurate with its size and nature of s business
IManagement hias overall responsibility for the Company’s internal control system to safeguard the assets and to ensure
reliability of inanoal Frecords.

The Company has a detailed budgetary control sysiem and the actual performance is reviewed penodically and decision
takenaceordingly,

internal audit programme covers all areas of activities and periodical reports are submitted to the Management. Audit
Commyitiee reviews all financial statements and ensures adequacy of intemal control systems. The Company hasa well-
defined organization structure, althority levels and intemal rules and quidelines for tonducting business fransactions

Indogulf Cropsciences Ltd. is committed o ensuning a safe and healthy workplace for its employees while mimimizing
potential environmental impacts. The Company has implemented comprehensive safety measures to maintain a secure
working envirenment, including defined guidelines for health and safety at its manufacturing facilities, systematic
accident reporting protocols, mandatory use of safety equipment, and maintaining clean and well-organized
workspaces. Upholding its commitment to operational excellence, the Company strives for zero defects and zero
environmental impact practices. A dedicated safety commitiee has been established to foster a strong safety culture
across both workers and management.

In line with its sustainability objectives, Indogulf Cropsciences Ltd has adopted a zero-discharge approach across its
facilities, whereby plant effluents are collected, treated, and reused. Additicnally, regular internal and extemnal training
programs are conducted to raise awareness on environmental stewardship, sustainability, health, and workplace safety
measures.

Financial Performance Overview

The Company delivered a resilient financial performance in FY23 despite facing significant external and macroeconomic
challenges impacting the agrochemical industry.

Revenue Growth:

in FY25, the Company achieved its highest-ever Revenue from Operations, reaching 5,904 million, as compared fo 5,522
million in FY24 — reflecting a solid year-on-year growth of 7%. This growth was driven by multiple strategic initiatives
undertaken during the year The continued expansion and diversifieation of our product porifolio played a key role in
strengthening our market presence. We successfully introduced new and innovative products, particularly in the high-
growth segments of biologicals and plant nutntion, which further enhanced our value proposition to customers. In
addition, deeper market penetration, particularly in under-served regions, and the enhancement of our distribution
network contributed significantly to the revenue increase. The Company also focused on building stronger relationships
with channel pariners, expanding its sales force, and leveraging digital tools for more efficient customer engagement.

These collective efforts underscore the strength and

resilience of our business model, enabling us to deliver § 2 & Ui )
consistent growth despite evolving market dynamics. Our E ' n % - % = = ed
sustained performance is largely attnbutable to the depth = E, £ < g = %_ g g
and diversity of our product portfolio, which has been a key - o | B = —
driver of growth. Each segment within the portfolio has = B ; = = _ = &= = E )
demonstrated steady and healthy expansion over the past :Z_ ;;_ g E E-'r ; g E E :Z_ ;;_ g
four years, reflecting our strategic focus on innovation, e B2 & 5 E 2 E E g __Tg _;
market relevance, and customer-centric product Sl Sl (9| 8 el o ) 22
development. 2025 2024 2023 2022

While domestic operations showed stable and encouraging

fig. in Millions ’
. (Ba. ) growth, export performance experienced some
= = - - &
e ol o : fluctuations. These were primarnly due to external faciors
5 g = ::
i E g = 3 ;g § such as currency volatility, disruptions in global shipping
—_ e - + -
i g i = = S 5 routes—particularly in the Bed Sea region—and broader
= 2= e == oo e £ (i & . =]} :
e B g < EEF Ei? BB i E =8 3 gecpoliical uncertainties. Despite these headwinds, our
E | i i N I B IS o B = B export business remained resilient, and we continue to
ellEEEEE B E = Ea == B s =] = =
@ o g J:E mos 2 wo g 2 mol 2 strengthen our presence in international markets through
od| = Rl T Td | x e e e e S 7 = .
Cowg Touwd @mpud @acunld product registration, sirategic partnerships, and market
2025 2024 2023 2022 diversification.

While revenue growth remained strong, profitability improved at a higher rate than sales. EBITDA increased from 592.97
million in FYZ4 to 69685 million in FY25, reflecting a growth in EBITDA margin from 10.74% to 11.04%. This improvement is
primarily attributed to a favorable product mix, with an increased share of higher-margin products such as biologicals and
plant nutntion. Additionally, operating expenses did not rise in preportion to revenue, contributing further to margin expansion.
Met Profit:

Met Profit also witnessed a healthy increase, rising from 282 million in FY24ts 314.71 millionin F¥25. As a percentage of
revenue, Met Profit improved from 5.11% to 5.833%. This growth reflects better cost management, strategic focus on high-
margin product segments, and operational efficiencies. Although employee costs increased during the year, this was a
deliberate investment in strengthening the organization for future growth. We have expanded our team by onboarding
experienced professionals at both senior and mid-management levels, laying a strong foundation for long-term

scalability and performance.

é

As we enter FY26, we expect improved performance through contributions from newly entered markels and organie
growth scross existing geographies. With these developments, we aim to rationalize costs and enhance operational

efficiency, which shouldiead to improved profitability going forward

9




Production Capabilities

Indogulf's manufacturing framework also leverages backward integration to optimize cost structures and reduce
reliance on external suppliers. The Company sources primary raw materials from both domestic and global vendors,
maintaining long-standing relationships to ensure timely delivery and supply reliability. At its technical plant in Nathupur
- I, Haryana, the Company manufactures active ingredients such as Bifentherin, Cloguintocet safener for Clodinafop,

and Lambdachloride, enabling greater control over production and cost efficiencies.

Finished products containing vanous active ingredients are formulated at Samba, Jammu and Kashmir and Nathupur -1,
Haryana, while active ingredient manufacturing is conducted at Nathupur - Il. This integrated approach has proven
effective, with 29.53%, 16.00%, 17.00%, 37.00%, and 26.00% of total production in recent fiscal periods allocated for
captive consumption within formulation manufacturing. The facility at Mathupur — Il commenced backward integration
production on December 30, 2013, marking a significant milestone in operational self-reliance.

Moreover, the manufacturing units are multi-purpose facilities capable of handling diversified production requirements
across crop protection, plant nutrients, and biologicals. Their inherent flexibility supports the customization of product
lines to meet shifting customer demands and market conditions.

Industry Barriers and Competitive Strength

Indogulf Cropsciences Limited holds a distinct competitive edge in the agrochemical industry, this advantage is
amplified by the high regulatory barriers for entry into this sector. These include complex statutory compliances under
the preview of central and state government agencies which are both time taking and require investmenis.

Further to it, the long product development eycles, significant RED investments, and the challenge of building lasting
customer trust—each requinng stretegic foresight and sustained commitment.

Indogulfhas consistently turned these chalienges into opportunities. Through certified manufacturing practices, robust
in-house innovation, and sirategically positioned subsidianes, the company is eguipped to meet regulatory
reguirements while scaling responsibly. This foundation enables Indogulf to deliver high-guality crop protection and
plant supplement solutions that are aligned with global standards and local needs.

Our ability to navigate regulatory complexity, maintain product integrity, and foster long-term relationships with farmers
and partners reflect a business built not just on performance—but on purpose. With a clear focus on sustainability,
compliance, and growth, Indogulf continues to create enduring value across markets.

E Mathupur - |, Haryana, India

n Samba, Jammu & Kashmir, India

INDOGULF CROPSCIENCES LT
== "',_
" .l.l g -

ﬂ Barwasni, Haryana, India

B Nathupur - I, Haryana, India




To the Members,

Your directors are pleasure in submitting the 33" Annual Report of the Company together with the
Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2025,

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated on 22/01/1993. The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and
trading activities of Agro Chemicals viz. Micro Nutrients, Pesticides, Fertilizers etc for agriculture
purposes. The Company caters to both domestic and international market.

2. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company's financial performance for the year along with previous year's figures are given
hereunder:

i) Standalone State of Company Affairs: (Rs. in Millions, except otherwise stated)

Particulars For the Year | Particulars For the Year
ended 31.03.2025 ended 31.03.2024

Revenue From Qperations 592376 5.522.34
Other Income 43.00 35.83
Total Income 5,966.76 5,558.17
Expenditure Including 552684 516017
Depreciation & Amortization
Profii/ (Loss) before 439,02 398.00
excepilonal and exiraordinary
iiems and tax
Exceptional ltems 13.49 {36.65)
((Loss)/ profit on sale of asset
(net))
Profii/ (Loss) before 453,41 361.34
exiraordinary fiems and iax
Extraordinary liems 5
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax 453.41 361.34
Current Tax 134.50 108,11
Taxes of earlier years (net) 0.37 (17.89)
Deferred Tax (2.39) {13.61)
Profit/(Loss) after Tax 320.85 284.73
Eamings per share in Rs. (Dasic) 6.58 12.11
Earnings per Share in Rs. 7.6 12.04
(Diluted)




ii) Consolidates State of Company Affairs:

(Rs. in Millions, except otherwise stated)

Particulars For the Particulars For the
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Revenue From Qperations 5,904.21 5,522.34
Other Income 40.54 35.53
Total Income 5944.75 h,557.87
Expenditure Including 5,912.54 5,160.81
Depreciation & Amortization
Profit/ (Loss) before 432,21 397.06
excepilonal and exiraordinary
items and fax
Exceptional ltems 13.49 {36.65)
{{Loss)/ profit on sale of assel
(net))
Profii/ (Loss) befora 445,70 360.41
exiraordinary iiems and iax
Extraordinary llems - -
Profii/ (Loss) before Tax 445.70 360.41
Current Tax 134.58 108.71
Taxes of earlier years (net) 0.37 (17.89)
Deferred Tax (3.97) {12.14)
Profit/(Loss) afier Tax 3472 202.33
Earnings per share in Rs. (Basic) 6.45 12.01
Earnings per Share in Rs. 7.02 11.94
(Diluted)

3. RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

During the year, the Company has earned net profits of Rs. 320.85 million as compared to profits of
Rs. 284.73 million earned during previous year. Your directors are looking for different avenues for
earning more profits in near future,

4. DIVIDEND

Mo Dividend is being recommended for the current financial year due to plough back profits in the
business.

5. TRANSFER TO RESERVE
The Company has not transferred any amount to reserves,
6. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

Company was not required to transfer any amount to Investor Education and Protection Fund as there
were no amounts which are due for transfer under Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

7. COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS/KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNELS (KMP)

The Board of Directors/Key Managerial Personnels (KMP) consists of as hereunder:




Name Designation | DIN/PAN Date of Date of
Om Prakash Aggarwal | Whole-time 00732440 22/01/1993 -
director
Sanjay Aggarwal Managing 00763635 22/01/1993
Director
Anshu Aggarwal Director 00732690 07/07/2018 =
Pushap Kumar Director 07864033 29/06/20017 -
Rahul Gupta Independent 09192630 31/07/2021 .
Director
Sandeep Bhutani Independent 09463909 1170172022 -
—— Director —
Sunlil Datt Independent 10592337 20/05/2024 14/08/2024
Director
Uma Verma Independent 10197376 03/09/2024 -
Director
Pankaj Vats Independent NOBAZB5E 14709/2024 02/12/2024
Director
Snehal Kashyap* Additional 09761774 02/12/2024 :
Director
R (Independent) | |
Manoj Gupta Chief Financial | AGPPM1BBE&M 01/01/2021 =
Officer
Sakshi Jain Company BAWPJ5952M 11/03/2024 -
Secretary

*To be reguiarised in the ensuing Annual General Meeting

During the financial year, Mr, Sunil Dutt and Mr. Pankaj Vats were appointed as Independent Directors
of the company but later resigned dated 14/08/2024 and 02/12/2024 respectively. Mrs. Uma Verma
was appointed as Independent Directors dated 03/09/2024. Mrs. Snehal Kashyap was appointed as
an Additional Director in Independent Category dated 02/12/2024 till the conclusion of the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

8. NUMEBEER OF BOARD MEETINGS/COMMITTEE MEETINGS/ GENERAL MEETIMGS COMDUCTED
DURING THE YEAR

A. MEMBERS MEETINGS

Type of Meeting Date of Total Numbers Attendance
Meeting of Members —
entitled to Numbers hﬁm
M . of Shareholding
_ ‘attended .
Annual General Meeting 03/09/2024 | 23 18 96,98
Extra Ordinary General 16/04/2024 | 23 18 05.98
Meeting
Extra Ordinary General 29/04/2024 | 23 18 95,98
Meeating
Extra Ordinary General 20/05/2024 | 23 18 96,98
Meeting
Extra Ordinary General 19/09/2024 | 23 18 096.98
Meeting

B. BOARD MEETINGS

The Company had 18 (Eighteen) Board meetings during the financial year.




5. No. | Date of meeting Total No. of Directors on the Attendance
Date of Meeting No. of % of
1 02/04/2024 & 3 50.00%
2 25/04/2024 6 ] 100.00%
3 07/05/2024 ] 3 50.00%
4 2B/05/2024 7 4 57.14%
5 06/06/2024 7 4 57.14%
] | 29/06/2024 7y 4 57.14%
7 03/07/2024 7 4 57.14%
8 14/08/2024 ) R 100.00%
9 18/09/2024 7 7 100.00%
10 20/09/2024 8 5 62.50%
11 | 25/09/2024 B aq 50.00%
12 | 28/09/2024 B 4 50.00%
13 | 29/10/2024 B 4 50.00%
14 | 0271272024 B 4 50.00%
15 | 31/12/2024 B 4 50.00%
16 | 13/01/2025 g 4 50.00%
17 | 13/02/2025 B 4 50.00%
18 | 31/03/2025 B g 100,00%
ATTENDAMNCE OF DIRECTORS
s, Name of the Directors Board Meeiings
No. ‘Number of Meetings which No. of % of
director was entitled to attend | Meetings | Attendance
1 Om Prakash Aggarwal 18 18 100%
2 Sanjay Aggarwal 18 168 100%
3 Anshu Aggarwal 18 18 100%
4 Pushap Kumar 18 16 £88.809%
5 Rahul Gupta 18 5 27.78%
& Sandeep Bhutani 18 4 22.22%
& Sunil Datt 5 1 20.00%
g Urna Verma 10 2 20.00%
g Pankaj Vats 6 = =
10 Snehal Kashyap 4 1 25.00%
C. COMMITTEE MEETINGS
1. AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS
The Company had 4 (Four) Committee meetings during the financial year,
S. | Date of meeting Total No. of Directors on the Attendance
No. Date of Meeting No. of % of
Directors Attendance
1 18/04/2024 3 3 100
2 14/08/2024 3 3 100
3 18/09/2024 3 3 100
4 25/00/2024 3 3 100




ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS

S. No. | Name of the Directors MAudii Commitiee Meeiings

“Number of ~No. of % of
Meetings which | Meetings Attendance
director was attended
entitled to attend

1 Rahul Gupta 4 4 100

2 Sanjay Aggarwal* 3 3 100

a Sandeep Bhutan 4 4 100

a4 Om Prakash 1 1 100

Aggarwal®

*Ceased w.e.f 20.09.2024
#appointed w.e f 20.00.2024

2. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company had 3 (Three} Committee meeting during the financial year.

s, Date of meeting Total No. of Directors on the Atiendance
MNo. : Date of Meeting No. of % of
Directors Attendance
attended
1 18/04/2024 3 3 100
2. 03/07/2024 3 3 100
3 02/12/2024 3 3 100
ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS
S.No. | Name of the Directors | Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee Meetings
Number of No. of % of
Meetings which Meetings | Attendance
director was attended
‘entitled to -
“attend
1 | Anshu Aggarwal 3 3 100
pi | Rahul Gupta 3 3 100
3 | Sandeep Bhutani* 2 2 100
i | Uma Verma® 1 1 100
*Ceased w.e.f 20.09.2024
#Appointed w.e.f 20,00,2024
3. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
The Company had 5 (Five) Committee meeting during the financial year,
S. | Date of | Total No. of Directors on the Aiiendance
No. | meeting Date of Meeting No. of % of
Directors Attendance
attended
1 07/05/2024 3 3 100
2 13/08/2024 3 3 100
3 18/09/2024 2 3 100
q 31/12/2024 3 a3 100
5 11/03/2025 3 3 100




ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS

S. No. | Mame of the Directors Corporaie Social Responsibility Commitiee Meetings
Number of No. of % of
Meetings which | Meetings Attendance
director was attended
entitled to
attend
1 Om Prakash Aggarwal 5 5 | 100
2 Sandeep Bhutani* 2 2 | 100
3 Rahul Gupta 5 5 | 100
4 Sanjay Aggarwal® 3 3 | 100
*Ceased w.e.f 20.09.2024
#appointed w.ef 20.09.2024
4, RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
The Company had 2 (Two) Committee meeting during the financial year.
S, Date of | Total No. of Directors on the Aliendance
No. | meeting Date of Meeting No. of % of
Directors Attendance
attended
1 21/11/2024 3 3 100
2 31/03/2024 3 3 100

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS

S. No. | Name of the Directars Risk Management Commities Meeiings
Number of No. of % of
Meetings which Meetings Attendance
director was attended
entitled to
attend
1 Sandeep Bhutani 2 2 | 100
2 Om Prakash Aggarwal 2 2 | TO0
3 Snehal Kashyap® 1 1 100
4. Pankaj \Vats* 1 1 | 100
*Ceased w.e.f 02,72 2024
#Appointed w.e 02122024
5. STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
The Company had 1 (One) Committee meeting during the financial year,
s, Date of | Total No. of Directors on the Atiendance
No. | meeting Date of Meeting No. of % of
Directors Attendance
attended
1 31/03/2024 3 3 100




ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS

5. No. | Name of the Directors Siakeholders' Relationship Commiiies Meeiings

Number of No. of % of
Meetings which = Meetings Attendance
director was attended
‘entitled to
attend

1 Anshu Aggarwal 1 1 100

2 Om Prakash Aggarwal 1 1 | 100

3 Snehal Kashyap' 1 1 100

#Appointed wef 02122024
9. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Your Company’s Board comprises of the following Independent Directors: -

S, MName Designation DIN Date of Date of
No. Appointment | Resignation
1 Rahul Gupta Independent 09192630 31/07/2021 -
Director
2, Sandeep Bhutani | Independent 09463909 11/07/2022 E
Director
3. Uma Verma Independent 10197376 03/09/2024 -
Director
4. Snehal Kashyap | Independent 09761774 02/12/2024
Director

The meeting of Independent Directors held once during the year 2024-2025 as required under the
Section 149(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the Schedule IV on 31/03/2025,

10. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

The Company has received necessary declaration from each Independent Directors under Secticn
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that he/she fulfills all the requirements as stipulated in Section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

11. EVALUATION OF DIRECTORS, BOARD AND COMMITTEES

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act, the Board has carried out an Annual Evaluation of its
own performance, parformance of the Directors and the working of its committees, based on the
evaluation criteria defined by Momination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) for performance
evaluation process of the Board, its Committees and Directors.

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directors
on the basis of criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of board
processes, information and functioning, etc,

The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the
Committee Members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of
Commitiee meatings, etc.

The performance assessment of Mon-Independent Directors, Board as a whole and the Chairman
were evaluated al separate meeting of Independent Directors. The same was also discussed in the
meetings of NRC and the Board,

Performance evaluation of Independent Directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the
Independent Director being evaluated.




12. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

The information perlaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange
earnings and outgo as required under Section 134 (3){m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
B(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished in ‘Annexure 1' and is attached to this
repor,

13. PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE, GUARANTEES GIVEN AND SECURITIES
PROVIDED UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPARNIES ACT, 2013

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements,

14. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into with Related Parties during the Financial Year
were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. There were no Materially
Related Party Transactions i.e. transactions exceeding 10% of the annual consolidated turnover as
per the last audited financial statements. All related party transactions are placed before the Audit
Committee far review and approval.

All refated party transactions entered during the Financlal Year were in ordinary course of the
business and on arm's length basis under Section 188(1) of the Act and Listing Regulations and
hence a disclosure in Form AOC-2 in terms of clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act
and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not required.

However, the Details of other related party transactions are mentioned under related party disclosure
in Mote No. 45 of Notes on Accounts.

15. EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE REMARKS
OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY IN
THEIR REPORTS

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report.

There are no qualifications/adverse remarks of secretarial auditors in their Secretarial Audit Report
for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025 except as mentioned below;

During the period under review, the Company obtained an auto loan for TATA LPT 710, However, the
Company is yet to file form CHG-1 and form MGT-14 for borrowing powers with the Registrar of
Companies in this regard.

The Secretarial Report forms part of this Board Report as Annexure 5.

Board's Response to the Secretarial Auditor's Qualification Regarding Non-filing of form MGT-14
and CHG-1 for borrowing powers

The Board has taken note of the abservation regarding non-filing of Form CHG-1 in respect of the auto
loan obtained for TATA LPT 710 and Forrm MGT-14 relating to borrowing powers In this regard. The
delay was Inadvertent and arose due to procedural oversight.

The Board sincerely regrets the non-compliance and assures that there was no intent to contravens
any statutory provisions and the Board is in process to take immediate corrective actions, Including
fillng of MGT-14 and CHG-1 forms with the Registrar of Companies (ROC) through the appropriate
condonation of delay application, if applicable and decided to avold any recurrence of such non-
compliance in the future,

The Board assures all stakeholders that compliance with statutory requirements is a top priority and
that appropriate corrective and preventive measures have been taken to ensure full compliance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, going forward.




We value the Secretarial Auditor's observations and remain committed to maintaining the highest
standards of corporate governance,

16. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 134(3) (a)

The Annual Return as on March 31, 2025 in the prescribed Form No. MGT-7, pursuant to Section 92 of
the Act is available on the website of the Company at www groupindogulf com

17. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby
submit its responsibility Statement:

{a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

{b) the directars had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period,

{c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records In accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

{d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

{e) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such internal
financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and

{f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

18. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any joint venture and Associate Company and no Companies have
become or ceased 1o be its Subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies during the year.

During the year under review, the Company has following Wholly Owned Subsidiary Companies as per
the details given herein below:

8. Name of Subsidiary Business Country of % voting power
No. ' Incorporation held as at March
L . 31,2024

1. Indogulf Cropsciences | Agro Chemicals viz,

Australia Pty Limited Micro Nutrients, Australla 100%
| - Pesticides, Fertilizers
2, Abhiprakash Globus Agro Chemicals viz. Micro

Private Limited Mutrients, Pesticides, India 100%

Fertilizers

Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies {Accounts)
Rules, 2014, the statement containing salient features of the financial statements of the Company's
Subsidiaries (Form AOC-1) iz attached as Annexure 2.

19. REPORT ON THE HIGHLIGHTS OF PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURE COMPANIES AND THEIR CONTRIBUTION TO THE OVERALL PERFORMANCE OF THE
COMPANY DURING THE PERIOD UNDER REPORT




Subsidiary M/s Indogulf Cropsciences Australia Pty Limited was incorporated in Australia. The
Subsidiary is engaged in the business of Agro Chemicals viz. Micro Nutrients, Pesticides, Fertilizers.
During the period under review, the Subsidiary's has earned NIL revenue. The management of the
Subsidiary is confident to achieve profitability In near future.

Subsidiary M/s Abhiprakash Globus Private Limited was incorporated on 08/12/2020 in India under
Companies Act, 2013. The Company is engaged in the business of Agro Chemicals viz. Micro
Mutrients, Pesticides, Fertilizers. During the year under review, the company commenced its
operational activities with the revenue of Rs. 105.70 million and had incurred loss of Rs. 6.25 million
{Previous year loss incurred was of Rs. 0.36 million). The management of the Subsidiary is confident
to achieve profitability in near future.

Impact of their contribution to the overall performance of the company during the period under report
is mentioned in Consclidated Results financial summary as mentioned hereinabove,

20. DEPOSITS

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year covered under Chapter
W of the Act. During the year the Company has taken and repaid an unsecured loan of Rs. 1,96,60,000
from Mrs. Anshu Aggarwal, of Rs. 85,00,000 from Mr. Om Prakash Aggarwal and of Rs, 1,71,00,000
from Mr. Sanjay Aggarwal, Directors of the Company.

21, STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Devesh Parekh & Co., Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 73338N) were appointed as Statutory
Auditors for a period of 5 years in the Annual General Meeting held on 29/09/2022 ta hold office till
the conclusion of Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2027,

22. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made there
under Mr. Deepak Rawat, Practising Company Secretary was appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the
Company to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 in the duly
convened Board Meeting held on 28/05/2024.

Further, it is hereby noted that as per the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Amendment Rules, 2024, notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on 12th
December 2024, the appointment of Secretarial Auditors shall, with effect from Financial Year 2025~
26, be made for a term of five {5) consecutive years, and such Secretarial Auditor shall be eligible for
reappolntment for one more term of five years only, Le., a maximum of two terms of five consecutive
years sach. Pursuant to the same, the Board of Directars recommend the appointment Mr. Deepak
Rawat, Practising Company Secretary to be appointed as the Secretarial Auditors for a term of §
cansecutive years.

23, COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The board In its meeting vide resolution dated September 20, 2024 and December 2, 2024 re-
constituted the committees of the board. The Company has the following Committees constituted in
accordance with the Companies Act, 2013

(i) Audit Committee

Composition of Audit Committee:

5. No. | Name of Directors Designation in Company Designation in

: S S Committee

1 Mr. Sandeep Bhutan| Independent Director Chairperson

2 Mr. Rahul Gupta Independent Director Mermber

3 Mr. Om Prakash Aggarwal Chairman and Whaole Time | Member
Director




Functions of the Audit Committee: -

(a)

(b)

The Audit Committes shall have powers, which should include the following:

i)
(i}
(i1

(v

(v)

To investigate any activily within its terms of reference;
To seek information from any employee of the Company;
To obtain outside legal or other professional advice;

To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise if it considers
necessary, and

Such powers as may be prescribed under the Companigs Act and SEBI
Listing Regulations.

The role of the Audit Committee shall include the following:

i)

(i}

(i)

(v

v

(v}

Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process, examination of the
financial statements and the auditors’ report thereon and the disclosure of its
financial information to ensure that the financial statements are correct,
sufficient and credible;

Recommendation to the board of directors for appointment, re-appointment
and replacement, removal, remuneration and terms of appeintment of
auditors, including the internal auditor, cost auditor and statutory auditor, or
any other external auditor, of the Company and the fixation of audit fees and
approval for payment for any other services,

Approval of payments to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by
the statutory auditors of the Company;

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and
auditor's report thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with
particular reference to:

(a) Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility
Statement to be included in the Board's report in terms of clause | of
sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act;

(b) Changes, If any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for
the same;

{c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise
of judgment by the management of the Company;

(d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out
of audit findings;
{e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to

financial statements;
(fy Disclosure of any related party transactions; and
[{+1] Qualifications / modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report,

Reviewing, with the management, the gquarterly, half yearly and annual
financial statements before submission to the board for approval;

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/application of funds
raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the
statement of funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring




{wih

(viii)

(%)

(X}

ix1)

i xii)

{xiii)

(x1v)

(XV)

(awi)

ixviil

(xvill)

(®ix)

(xx)

(xxi)

(i)

(xmI)

agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights lssue or
preferential issue or qualified institutions placement, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

Reviewlng and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;

Formulating a policy on related party transactions, which shall include
materiality of related party transactions;

Approval or any subsequent maodification of transactions of the Company
with related parties and omnibus approval for related parly transactions
proposed to be entered into by the Company subject to such conditions as
may be prescribed;

Review, at least on a guarterly basis, the details of related party transactions
entered into by the Company pursuant to each of the omnibus approvals
given;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
Valuation of undertakings or assetls of the company, wherever it is necessary,
Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal
auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;

Reviewing the adeguacy of internal audit function, if any, including the
structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official
heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of
internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up
there on;

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors
into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of
internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the
Board;

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the
nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any
area of concearm;

Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the
depositors, debenture holders, shareholders {in case of non-payment of
declared dividends) and creditors;

Reviewing the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

Approval of the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer of the Company
("CFO") (1.e., the whole-time finance director or any other person heading the
finance function or discharging that function and who will be designated as
the CFO of the Company) after assessing the qualifications, experience and
background, etc., of the candidate;

Carrying out any other functiohs as provided under or required to be
performed by the audit committee under the provisions of the Companies
Act, the SEBI Listing Regulations and other applicable laws;

To formulate, review and make recommendations to the Board to amend the
Audit Committee charter from fime to time;




{xxiv) Establishing a vigil mechaniam for directors and employees to report their
ganuine CONcermns or grievances,

{xxv) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of
the Audit Committes

{xxvi) Reviewing the utilization of loans and/or advances from/ investment by the
holding company in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the
asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans/
advances/ investments existing as per the SEBI Listing Regulations;

(xxviiy Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes
Involving merger, demerger, amalgamation efc., on the listed entity and its
shareholders; and

{xxviit) Such roles as may be prescribed under the Companies Act and SEBI Listing

Regulations.
{c) The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:
(1) Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of
operations;
{1} Management letters/letters of intemnal control weaknesses issued by the

statutory auditors of the Company;
{1ii) Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;

{iv) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal
guditor shall be subject to review by the Audit Committee;

(%) Statemeant of deviations:

I guarterly staterment of deviation(s) including report of monitoring
agency, if applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of
Regulation 32(1) of the SEBI Listing Reguiations; and

. annual statement of funds utilised for purposes other than those
stated in the issue document/prospectus/notice in terms of
Regulation 32(7) of the SEBI Listing Regulations; and

{vi) Review the financial statements, in particular, the investments made by any
unlisted subsidiary.

(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

5. No. | Name of Directors Designation in Company | Designation in
1 Rahul Gupta Independent Director Chairperson
2 Anshu Aggarwal Director Member

3 Uma Verma Independent Director Member

Functions of Momination and Remuneration Committee:

(a) Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
Independence of & director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, while formulating the above palicy,
should ensure that:




(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)

()

(g

(h}

{0

)

(k)

(1}

(i} the level and composition of remuneration be reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate directors of the guality required to run our
Company successfully,

(it} relationship of remuneration to peformance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks; and

(i} remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management
involves a balance between fixed and Incentive pay reflecting short- and long-
term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and
Its goals,

For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the
Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and
capabilities required of an independent director. The person recommended to the
Board for appointmenl as an independent directar shall have the capabilities
Identified In such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the
Momination and Remuneration Committes may:

{i) use the services of any external agencies, if required;
{ii) consider candidates from a wide range of backagrounds, having due regard to
diversity; and

(i} consider the time commitments of the candidates,

Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and
the Board;

Devising a policy on Board diversity;

|dentifying persons who are qualified to become directors of the Company and who
may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down
and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal. The Company shall
disclose the remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria In its annual report;

Analysing, monitoring and reviewing various human resource and compensation
matters;

Determining the Company's policy on specific remuneration packages for executive
directors including penslon rights and any compensation payment, and determining
rermuneration packages of such directors;

Recommending to the Board the remuneration, in whatever form, payable to the
senior management personnel and other staff (as deemed necessary),

Reviewing and approving compensation strategy from time to time in the context of
the then current Indian market in accordance with applicable laws;

Determining whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the
independent director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of
independent directors;

Parform such functions as are required to be performed by the compensation
committee under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, as amended,

Construing and interpreting the employee stock option scheme/plan approved by the
EBpard and sharcholders of the Company in accordance with the terms of such
scheme/plan ("ESOP Scheme’) and any agreements defining the rights and
obligations of the Company and eligible employees under the ESOP Scheme, and
prescribing, amending and/or rescinding rules and regulations relating to the
administration of the ESOP Scheme;




()

(n)

s)]

Framing suitable policies, procedures and systems to ensure that there is no violation
of securities laws, as amended from time to time, including:

a. the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Reqgulations, 2015, as amended; and

b. the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Fraudulent and
Unfair Trade Practices Relating lo Securities Market) Regulations, 2003, as
amended, by the Company and its employees, as applicable;

Performing such other activities as may be delegated by the Board of Directors
and/or are statutorily prescribed under any law to be attended to by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee.

Such terms of referance as may be prescribed under the Companies Act and SEBI
Listing Regulations.

(lii) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

S. No. | Name of Directors Designation in Company | Designation in
1 Rahul Gupta Independent Director Chairperson

2 Sandeep Bhutani Independent Director Member

3 Om Prakash Aggarwal Whole-time director Member

Functions of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

{a)

(b)

(€)

(d}
(e)

{n

(g)

To formulate and recommend to the board, a corporate social responsibility policy
which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified In
Schedule VIl of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder and make any
revisions therein as and when decided by the Board,

To identify corporate social responsibility policy pariners and corporate social
responsibility policy programmes;

To recommend the amoum of expenditure to be incurred for the corporate soclal
responsibility activities and the distribution of the same to various corporate social
responsibility programmes undertaken by the Company,

To formulate the annual action plan of the Company,;

To delegate responsibilities to the corporate social responsibility team and supervise
proper execution of all delegated responsibilities;

To review and monitor the implementation of corporate social responsibility
programmes and issuing necessary directions as required for proper implementation
and timely completion of corporate social respons|bility programmes; and

To perform such other duties and functions as the Board may require the corporate
social responsibility committee to undertake to promote the corporate social
responsibility activities of the Company and exercise such other powers as may be
conferred upon the CSR Commitlee in terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, as amended,

{iv) Risk Management Committee

Composition of Risk Management Committee:




Naime of Direcior Position in the Commitiee Pesignation
Sandeep Bhutani Chairperson Independent Director
Om Prakash Aggarwal Member Whole Time Diractor
Snehal Kashyap Member Independent Director
Functions of the Risk Management Committee:
(a) To formulate a detailed risk management policy, which shall include:

i A framewaork for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced
by the listed entity, in particular including financial, operational, sectoral,
sustainability (particularly, ESG related risks), information, cyber security
risks or any other risk as may be determined by the Commitiee;

i Measures for risk mitigation Including systems and processes for internal
control of identified risks; and

il Business continuity plan.

(b} To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to
maonitor and evaluate risks associated with the business of the Company;

() To monitor and oversee Implementation of the risk management policy, Including
evaluating the adeguacy of risk management systems,

{d) To pericdically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years,
including by considering the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity;

(&) To keep the board of directors informed asbout the nature and content of its
dizcussions, recommendations and actions to be taken;

fy The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any)
shall be subject to review by the Risk Management Committee.

{v) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

Composition of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

Name of Director Position in the Commiiiee Designation
Anshu Aggarwal Chairperson Director
Snehal Kashyap Member Indepandent Director
Om Prakash Aggarwal Member Whole Time Director

Functions of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

{a) Redressal of all security holders' and investors’ grievances including complaints
refated to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of share certificates and
review of cazes for refusal of transfer/transmission of shares and debentures, non-
receipt of declared dividends, non-receipt of annual reports, issue of new/duplicate
certificates, etc,, and assisting with guarterly reporting of such complaints;

(b} Reviewing of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders;

{c) Investigating complaints relating to allotment of shares, approval of transfer or
transmissien of shares, debentures or any other securities;

{d) Giving effect to all transfer/transmission of shares and debentures, dematerialisation
of shares and re-materialisation of shares, split and issue of duplicate/consolidated
share certificates, compliance with all the requirements related to shares, debentures
and other securities from time to time;




(g) Reviewing the measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the
guantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend
warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the Company;

(f) Reviewing the adherence to the service standards by the Company with respect to
various services rendered by the registrar and transfer agent of the Company and to
recommend measures for overall improvement in the quality of investor services; and

{a) Carrying out such other functions as miay be specified by the Board from time 1o time
or specified/pravided under the Companles Act or SEBI Listing Regulations, or by any
other regulatory authority.

24, COMPANY'S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION
AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

In compliance of the provisions of Section 178(1), the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has
been re-constituted by the Board during the year under review and the current composition of
Momination and Remuneration Committee constitutes Mr. Rahul Gupta, the Chairperson and Mrs.
Anshu Aggarwal & Mrs. Uma Verma, as Members, The Company has devised a policy relating to
appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors gualifications, positive
attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters as provided under Section 178(3) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and placed the same on its website at www.groupindogulf.com,

25, DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

The Company wanted to spend the amount on the projects, programs or activities as specified in
Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013,

We are bound by our commitment towards the society and shall keep pursing our endeavour of
contributing to the society at large in future,

During Financial Year 2024-25, the Company has spent an amount of INR 69,071,000 towards the CSR
activities.

The Annual Report on CSR activities by the Company is annexed herewith as “Annexure-3".
26, COMPOSITION OF VIGIL MECHANISM

Audit committee shall oversee the vigil mechanism as per the pravisions of Section 177(9) & (10) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

27. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

As per Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel}) Rules, 2074, a statement showing the names and other particulars of the employees
drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said rules, is provided in the Annexure-4.

28, CHANGES IM AUTHORIZED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

During the financial year, the Company by passing ordinary resoclution in Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on 16.04.2024, has increased the Authorised Share capital of the company to Rs.
70,15,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy Crore and Fifteen Lacs only) consisting of Equity Share Capital of Rs.
70,00,00,000/- {Rupees Seventy Crore only) divided inta 7,00,00,000 {Seven Crore) Equity Shares of
Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each and Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Share Capital of Rs,
15,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Lacs only) divided into 1,50,000 (One Lac Fifty Thousand) Preference
Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

During the financial year the following changes were made in the paid-up capital of the company-




The Company in its Board meeting held on 25.04.2024 has made allotment of 1,25000 (One Lakh
Twenty-Five Thousand) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up on account of conversion of
1,25,000 (One Lakh Twenty-Five Thousand) non-cumulative convertible preference shares of Rs. 10
each lully paid up inte 1,25,000 (One Lakh Twenty-Five Thousand) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully
paid up in the terms and conditions of issue at the ratic of 1:1 decided at that time.

The Company In its Board meeting held on 28.05.2024 has made allatment by way of bonus lssue of
2,36,43,728 equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each in the ratio of 1:1 ie. 1 (One) fully paid-up
equity shares for every 1 (One) equity share held to the members whose names appear in the Register
of Members of the Company on date of allatment in pursuance of the approval received through
special resolution passed in the extra ordinary general meeting held on 20.05.2024.

The Company In its Board meeting held on 06.06.2024 has allotted 1500000 (Fifteen Lakh) Equity
Shares of Face Value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each at a premium of Rs, 70/- (Rupees Seventy
only) per Equity Share aggregating to Rs. 12,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve crores Only) on private
placement basis in pursuance of the approval received through special resolution passed in the extra
ordinary general meeting held on 20.05.2024,

All mew equity shares allotted after closure of the year rank pari-passu with the existing equity shares
of the company,

after the closure of the year under review, your Company made a strong stock market debut and
completed the Initial Public Offering (IPO) of 18,077,476 Equity Shares of Face Value of F10 each,
aggregating to ¥ 2,000.00 Millions.

The IPO comprised an offer for sale of 3,603,603 Equity Shares aggregating to ¥ 400.00 Millions by
1,540,960 Equity Shares by Om Prakash Aggarwal HUF and 2,062,643 Equity Shares by Sanjay
Aggarwal HUF (Collectively, The "Selling Shareholders”) (The "Offer For Sale” and Together With The
Fresh Issue, The "Offer”),

Pursuant to the Offer and in campliance with Securities and Exchange Board of India {lssue of Capital
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended, 1,80,40,144 Equity Shares at an Offer
Price of ¥ 111 per Equity Share, be and are hereby approved to be aliotied to the respective applicants
in various categories, such as 62,35900 Equity Shares to retail individual investors, 26,772,529 Equity
Shares to nondnstitutional investors, 223,200 Equity Shares to Employees and B9,08425 Equity
Shares to qualified institutional buyers, in terms of the basiz of allotment approved by way of its
resolution dated July 01, 2025, in consultation with the book running lead manager appointed in
respect of the Offer and the BSE Limited (the "Designated Stock Exchange").

29, DEBENTURE
The Company has not issued any debentures.
30. INTERNAL AUDITORS

M/s PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS Services LLP (LLF Regn Mo. AAI-BE8S5), Chartered Accountants
was appointed to act as an Internal Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 in the
duly convened Board Meeting held on May 07, 2024 and their reports reviewed by the Audit
Committee time to time.

31. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

There is an adeguate internal financial control. The Board has adopted the policies and procedures
far ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of business, including adherence to the Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial
disclosures

32. STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICY OF THE COMPANY




The Company has a Risk Management Policy in place, and with minimal existential risks identified,
adequate measures have been adopted to mitigate potential threats.

33, MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINAMCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

During the financial year the company has fited the Draft Red Herring Prospectus with respect to the
Offer (the "DRHP") with the Securities and Exchange Eoard of India (“SEBI™), BSE Limited and Wational
Stock Exchange of India Limited (collectively, the *Stock Exchanges”) dated September 25, 2024 in
accordance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended ("SEBI ICDR Regulations”) and
subsequently after the closure of the year under review, the company filed (i) Red Herring Prospectus
with SEBI, the Stock Exchanges and the Registrar of Companies, Delhi at New Delhi ("Registrar of
Companies” and such Red Herring Prospectus, the "RHP"), (i) Prospectus with SEBI the Stock
Exchanges and the Registrar of Companies (the "Prospectus”), and (jii) any other documents or
materials to be issued in relation to the Offer (collectively with the DRHP, RHP and Prospectus, the
"Offer Documents"),

Through the offer, the company intends to raise funds and use the proceeds for day to day activities
and expansion of business as explained in the DRHP, The Offer Documents is avallable on the

website of the company www groupindogulf com-

During the financial year 2025-26, 1,80 40,144 Equity Shares al an Offer Price of ¥ 1717 per Equity
Share, be and are hereby approved to be allotted to the respective applicants in various categories,
such as 6235900 Equity Shares to retail individual investors, 26,72,529 Equity Shares to non-
institutional investors, 2,23,290 Equity Shares to Employees and 89,08 425 Equity Shares to qualified
institutional buyers, in terms of the basis of allotment approved by way of its resolution dated July 01,
2025,

34. POLLUTION CONTROL

The Company has taken various initiatives to keep the environment free from pollution. It has already
installed various devices in the factories to control the pollution

35. INSURANCE

The Company has taken the required insurance coverage for its assets against the possible risks like
fire, flood, public liability, marine, etc.

36. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-SECTION (12) OF
SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

During the year no frauds were reported,

37. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) is duly constituted under the provisions of Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, The Company has zero
tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a policy on prevention,
prohibition and redressal of sexuval harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules
thereunder,

During the year ending March 31, 2025, the Company has not received any complaints of sexual
harassment of women at workplace.




38. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT

The Company has made and maintained cost records as specified by the Central Government under
sub-Section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

39, COMPLIANCE OF APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS- 55-1 & §5-2
The Company has compliad with the applicable Secretarial Standards as the case may be.

40. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY
AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS
AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

There is no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insalvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 during the year and hence said provisions are not applicable,

47, DETAILS OF DIFFEREMCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DOME AT THE TIME OF ONE
TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DOME WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF.

There are no such transactions during the year and hence said provisions are not applicable,
42. SECURITIES IN DEMATERIALIZATION

All securities of the Company have been dematerialized and the Company has complied all
compliances under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

43. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The relationship with the workmen and staff remained cordial and harmanicus during the year and
management received full co-operation from Employees.

44, CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, Corporate Governance
Beport and Secretarial Auditor's Certificate regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance forms part of this report as Annexure 6. All the Board Members and Senior Management
Personnel of the Company had affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for Board and Senior
Management Personnel. A Declaration to this effect duly signed by the Managing Director is enclosed
as a part of the Corporate Governance Report.

45. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under
Regulation 34 read with Schedule ¥V of the Listing Regulations is presented in a separate Section
forming part of this Annual Report.

46, GENERAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 134 (3) (q) READ WITH RULE 8 (5) OF
COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

Your Directors state that excepl as stated above no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of
the following items as there were no transactions on thesge iterns during the year:

1. The change In the nature of business, If any

2. lssue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise,

3. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators ar Courts or Tribunals which
impact the going concern status and Company's operations in future,




47. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates, consultants, and
various Government Authorities for their continued support extended to your Companies activities
during the year, Your directors also acknowledge gratefully the shareholders for their support and
confidence reposed on your Company.

For and on behalf of the board of directors
INDOGULF CROPSCIENCES LIMITED

Sd/- Sd/-
Om Prakash Aggarwal Sanjay Aggarwal
Whole-time Director Managing Director
Date: 29/08/2025 DIN: DO732440 DIN: 00763635
Place: Delhi Address: 20 A, Road No 78, Address: 20 A, Ground Floaor,
Punjabi Bagh West, New Delhi- Road Mo 78, Punjabi Bagh West,
110026 Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi-
110026




ANMNEXURE =1

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTIONM, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND
OUTGO ETC:

Information on conservation of Energy, Technology absorption, Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo
required to be disclosed under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 20013 read with Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided hereunder:

(&) | Conservation of Energy: |
(i) | The steps taken or impact on conservation of The Company is a manufacturing and

energy. trading company and the Company is
(i) | The steps taken by the company for utilizing making more efforts for finding suitable

alternate sources af energy. alternate sources for the energy
(i} | The capital investment on energy conservation | conservation initiative.

equipments.

(i) | Total energy consumption and energy | As per Form — A
consumption per unit of production
(B) | Technology absorpiion: |
(i) |the efforts made towards technology | The company hags nol absorbed any
absorption technology.

(i) | the benefits derived like product improvement, | Not Applicable

cost reduction, product development or import
substitution,

(iil) | incase of imported technology (imported during | Not Applicable
the last three years reckoned from the beginning
of the financial year)

{a) the details of technology imported

(b) the year of import;

{c) whether the technology been fully absorbed
{d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption
has not taken place, and the reasons thereof,
{iv) | the expenditure incurred on Research and | 194752756/-
Development,

(C) Foreign currency (exchange) earnings and Qutgo:

The Foreign Currency (exchange) earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign
Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual outflows-

Particulars Amountin INR

Foreign Currency (exchange) earmed 524623 653/-

Foreign Currency (exchange) used 1,59.44 87.3587/-




Form for disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of Energy

Particulars 202425 202324
A. Power Consumption

1 Electricity Consumption

(a) Purchase

Units 4195586 42,12.431
Total Amount (INR) 32480433 3,34,40,086
Rate/Unit INR 774 7.94
{b) Own Generation through Diesel Generator

Units 107,253 93,000
Total Amount {(INR) 9361710 83,07,650
Cost/Unit INR 87.29 8923

2. Coal (Specify Quality and Used) MIL MIL

3. Others/Internal Generations (PMNG) 106.07 107,441
B. Consumption per unit of

Production in (MT) 15328 14,302
Electricity (INR/MT) 2119.02 233819




Form AOC-1

Annexure-2

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3} of Section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate
companies or joint ventures

Part "A": Subsidiaries

{Infarmation in respect of each subsidiary 1o be presented with Amount in Rs.)

Sl. | Particulars Details
_Na.
1 Mame of the subsidiary Abhiprakash Globus Indogulf Cropsciences
Private Limited Australia Pty Limited
2 | The date since when subsidiary was 8" December, 2020 s August, 2019
| acquired . — R
3 | Reporting period for the subsidiary 31% March, 2025 31% March, 2025
concerned, If different from the
holding company's reporting period
4 Reporting currency and Exchange Indian Rupees Indian Rupeas*
rate as on the last date of the
relevant Financial year in the case of
foreign subsidiaries
5 | Share capital (In Rs. Hundred) 2000 57.98
& Reserves & surplus {In Rs. Hundred) 6787672 2823818
7 | Total assets (In As. Hundred) 1745450.66 65,584.16
a Total Liahilities {In Rs. Hundred) 1811327.38 6558416
g Investments (In Rs. Hundrad) MNIL NIL
10 | Tumover (In Rs. Hundred) 1045153.15 MIL
11 | Profit before taxation (In Rs. -6480410 -7.257 .40
Hundred)
12 | Provision for taxation (in Rs. MIL MIL
Hundred)
13 | Profit after taxation (In Rs, Hundred) -62937.19 -7.297.40
{1866.9 is considered as
DTA)
14 | Proposed Dividend MIL NIL
15 | Extent of shareholding (in 100% 100%
percentage) {2 shares in the name of
MNominee Directors)

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations- Indogulf Cropsciences Australia Pty

Limited

2. Mames of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sald during the year-N/A

* Average AUSS for financial year 24-25 @ INR 56.06




Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies
and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates or Joint Ventures -

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date -
2. Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was -
associated or acquired

3. Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by the -
Company on the year end
M.

Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint Venture -
Extend of Helding (in percentage) -

4. Description of how there is significant influence
5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not -
consolidated

6. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest
audited Balance Sheet

7. Profit/Loss for the vear
i. Considered in Consolidation

ii. Mot Considered in Consolidation .

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: N/A
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: N/A

For Devesh Parekh & Co. For and on behalf of the board of directors

Chartered Accountants INDOGULF CROPSCIENCES LIMITED

Firm registration number:

013338N

Sd/- Sdf- Sd/- Sd/- Sds-

Devesh Parekh Om Prakash Sanjay Aggarwal Manoj Gupta Sakshi Jain
Aggarwal

Partner Whole-time Managing CFO Company
Director Director Secretary

M.Mo.: 092160 DIM:00732440 DIN: 00763635 FCA-513136 ACS - 67325

Place; Mew Delhi  Address: 20 A, Address: 20 A, Address: 501, Address: 501,

Date: 79/08/2025 Road No 78, Ground Floor, Gopal Heights, Gopal Heights,
Punjabi Bagh Road Mo 78, Metaji Subhash MNetaji Subhash
West New Celhi- Punjabi Bagh Place, Delhi- Place, Delhi-
110026 West New Delhi- 110034 110034

110026




Annexure- 3
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 & Rules made thereunder]

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The Board of Directors has adopted a CSR policy to enable the Company to carry out CSR activitles in all the activities
that are mentioned in the Schedule VIl to the Companies Act, 2013, The CSR initiatives of the Company is mainly
focused on activities relating to Education & Skill development, Healih & Wellness and extending support in relief and
developmental activities, The Company will act as a good corporate citizen and aims at supplementing the role of
Government In enhancing the welfare measures of the society within the framewaork of its policy. The Corporate Sccial

Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company, as approved by the Board of Directors is available on the Company's
website.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. | Name of Directors | Designationin  Nature of Number of Meetings | Number of meetings
No. Committee Directorship of CSR Committee | of CSR Committee
held during the Year | attended during the
vear
1 Mr. Om Prakash Chairman Chairman & 5 5
Aggarwal Whaole time
Director |
2 Mr. Sandeep Member (w.e.f Independent 5 | 2
Bhutani® 20.09.2024) Director
3 Mr. Rahul Gupta Member Independent ] | 5
—___ _ | Director , _
4. Mr, Sanjay Aggarwal | Member* Managing 5 3
Director

*Cogsed w.e.f20.09.2024
#Appointed w.e.f 20.09.2024

3. Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the
board are disclosed on the website of the company.:

www grotpindogulf.com

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.:

Mot Applicable as the Company does not have an average CSR obligation of 10 Crores rupees or more In the three
immediately preceding financial years

5. {a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135; Rs. 34.42.82,209/-
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135 Rs. 68,85,644/-

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: 0.00




(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: 0.00

{e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(bi+{c)-(d)]; Rs. 68,85, 644/

6. {a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): Rs. 69,01,000/-

(b) Amount spent in Administrative overheads: 0.00

{¢) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, il applicable: 0.00

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]; Rs. §9,01,000/-

(e} CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount Amount Unspeni (in Rs.)
Spent for the Total Amount transferred to Unspent | Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Financial Year. CSR Account as per sub-section (6) | Schedule VIl as per second proviso to sub-section (5) of
{in Rs.) of section 135. section 135,
Amount. Date of transfer. | Name of the Amount. Date of transfer,
Fund
Rs. 69,01,000 - - - - -
(f} Excess amount for set-off, if any:
Sl No. | Particular Amount (in Rs.)
(1) (2) (3)
() Twa percent of average net profit of the company as per sub- 68,85,644
section (5) of section 135
{ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 69,01,000
ity Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(3)] 15,356
{iv) Surplus anslng out of the CSR prn}ecls ar programmes or -
activities of the previous Finanelal Years, if any
() Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-
(i)l
7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years:
1 2 3 4 5 | B 7 g
Sl. No. | Preceding = Amount Balance Amount  Amounttransferred | Amount Deficiency,
Financlal | transferred | Amountin | Spentin | to aFund as specified | remaining  if any
Year(s) to Unspent | Unspent the under Schedule Vil as | to be spent
' CSR CSR Financial | per second provisoto | in
Account Account Year (in sub-section (5) of ‘succeeding
under sub- | undersub- | Rs) section 135, if any Financial
section (6) | section (6) : Years (in
of section | of section Rs)
135(inRs.) | 135 (in Rs.)
Amount Date of
| | {in Rs) Transfer
1 FY-1 E :
2 FY-2 - - =
3 FY-3 - - - -

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in

the Financial Year: No

If ¥es, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired:




Furnish the details relating to such asset{s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount
spent in the Financial Year:

Sl Short particulars of the | Pincode of the | Date of Amount of Details of entity/ Authority/
No. | property or asset(s) property or creation | CSRamount | beneficiary of the registered owner
lincluding complete asset(s) spent
address and location of
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)
CSR Name | Registered
Registration address
Number, if
applicable

(Al the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal Office/Municipal
Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable property as well as boundaries)

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per sub-section
(5) of section 135, -NA

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
INDOGULF CROPSCIENCES LIMITED

Sd/- Sd/-
Om Prakash Aggarwal Sanjay Aggarwal
Whaole-time Director Managing Director
Date: 29/03/2025 DIN: 00732440 DIN: 00763635
Place: Delhi Address: 20 A4, Road Mo 78, Punjabi Address: 20 A, Ground Floor, Road No
Bagh West, Mew Delhi-110026 78, Punjabi Bagh West, Mew Delhi-
110026




Details of Implementing Agency and CSR made during FY 2024-25:

Name of Address Email Id Purpose Amount
Implementing
ney
Shubhakshika A-5B8/184, Paschim shubhakshika@gmail, | Promotion of 4,00,000/-
Educational Vihar, Mew Delhi - com Education
Society 110063
Bharat Lok Shiksha | A-131/3 Group administration{@blspin | Elimination of | 11,00,000/-
Parishad Industrial Area, dia.org lliteracy
Wazirpur, New Delhi -
110052
Jeewan Deep Sewa | Jeewan Deep yogivati@gmail.com Frotection of 11,00,000/-
Myas Ashram, Nandvihar, Mational
Rorkee-247667, haritage
Uttrakhand
Surabhi Shodh 1428, Maliwara, Shrikrishangaushala®5 | Protection of 5,00,000/-
Sansthan Chandni Chowk, @gmall.com flora and fauna
Delhi-1710006
Kamdhenu Mangal | 7, East Punjabi Bagh, | gaujagat@gmial.com | Contribution 51,000/-
Parivar Mew Delhi-110026 towards health
benefits
Swachh Plat No.7, Kh Mo, swachhparyavarntrust | promotion of 26,00,000/
Paryavaran Trust 31/B, Dabri Ext, New | 1990@gmail.com environment
Delhi-110045
Vilasshinde's A1/204, Nandanvan Yashoganaga.esc@gm | empowerment | 4,50,000/-
Yashoganga Homes Parsiknagar, | ail.com of women and
Educational & Kharegao, Kalwa children
Social Council West, Thane,
Maharashtra, India,
400605
Shri Godham Vedlakshan Gomatah | nyas@godhampathme | Protection of 7,00,000/-
Mahateerth Bhawan, 1 Koral da.org flora and fauna
Pathmeda Lok bunglow, 5.F Ring
Punyarth Myas Road, Mana Chiloda,
Ahemdabad, 382330
TOTAL CSR EXPENDITURE 69,01,000/-

Date: 20/08/2025
Place; Delhi

For and on behalf of the board of directors
INDOGULF CROPSCIENCES LIMITED

Sd/-

Om Prakash Aggarwal
Whole-time Director

DIN: 00732440

Address: 20 4, Road No 78,
Punjabi Bagh West, New Delhi-

110026




Corporate Social Responsibility Statement:

The implementation and monitoring of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy, is in compliance
with C5SR chjectives and policy of the Company.

Date: 29/08/2025
Place: Delhi

For and on behalf of the board of directors
INDOGULF CROPSCIENCES LIMITED

sd/-

Om Prakash Aggarwal
Whole-time Director

DIN; 00732440

Address: 20 A, Road Mo 78,
Funjabl Bagh West, New Delhi-
110026

sd/-

Sanjay Aggarwal

Managing Director

DIN: 00763635

Address: 20 A, Ground Floor,
Road Mo 78, Punjabi Bagh West,
New Delhi-110026




Date: 25/08/2025
The Board of Director,
Indogulf Cropsciences Limited
5071, Gopal Heights,
Plot No 09, Netaji Subhash Place,
Delhi- 1710034

Sub: Certificate under Rule 4 of CSR Rules, 2014

Dear Sir(s),

This is to certify that funds of INR 69,01,000/- (Indian Rupees Sixty Nine Lakh One Thousand only) so
disbursed for Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activity for financial year 2024-25 has been
utilized for the purpose and in the manner as per the CSR Policy approved by the Board as per the
rules 4 of Companies (CSR) Rules, 2014 and Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013,

Details of CSR expenditure are as follows:

Amount Qutlay (Budgeted) 68,85,644/-

Amount spent on the projects 69,01,000/-

Amount unspent -

Excess amount spent 15356
Thanking You,

Yours' Sincerely

Sd/-

(MANCJ GUPTA)
Chief Financial Officer




ANNEXURE: 4

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF RULE 5(2) OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

a) Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of
your Company for the financial year 2024-25;

Mote: Independent Directors have received only sitting fee during the year.

Table 1-
5 No. MName of Director Designation Ratio to Employee
i Om Prakash Aggarwal Chairman and Whole Time Director 43.82:1
2. Sanjay Aggarwal Managing Director 43821
3. Anshu Aggarwal Director ML
4. Pushap Kumar Director 2.591
Table 2-
S No. Name of Director g Ratio to Employee
1. Sandeep Bhutani Independent Director 0.08:1
2. Rahul Gupta Independent Directar 0.08:1
3. Snehal Kashyap Independent Director 0.021
4. Uma Yerma Independent Director 0.04:1
5. Panka) Vats Independent Director -
6. Sunil Dutt Independent Director 0.02:1

b} The percentage increase/{decrease) in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary in the financial year 2024-25;

8 Name of Directorand KMP | Designation % increase in
No. ' -remuneration
T. Om Prakash Aggarwal Chairmian and Whole Time Director 0.00%

2 Sanjay Aggarwal Managing Director 0.00%

3. Pushap Kumar Director 0.00%

4. Mano] Gupta Chief Financial Officar 8.1%

5. Sakshi Jain Company Secretary 0.00%

¢) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of the employees for the financial year
is 4.26%. The median remuneration of the employee of the company for the financial year

were 4.39 Lakhs (Per Annum)

d) Total number of employvees of the Company for the Financial Year was 717. The Company
has maintained peaceful and harmonious relaticns with all its employees.

) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile




increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are
any exceptional clreumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

- Average percentile increases in the salaries of employees other than managerial
personal was 7.9%

« Average increase In remuneration of Managerial personnel (MD and ED of the Company)
was 1.8%

Increase in the remuneration of managerial personnel ig in line with the industry practice
and within the normal range.

f) The company affirms that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration policy of the

Company.
For and on behalf of the board of directors
INDOGULF CROPSCIENCES LIMITED
Sd/- Sd/-
Om Prakash Aggarwal Sanjay Aggarwal
Whole-time Director Managing Director
Date: 29/08/2025 DIM: 00732440 DIM: 00763635
Place: Delhi Address: 20 A, Road Mo 78, Address: 20 &, Ground Floor,
Punjabi Bagh West, New Delhi-  Road Na 78, Punjabi Bagh West,
110026 Mew Delhi-110026




ANNEXURE: 5

Deepak Rawat C-77, Gali No. 8, Prem Vihar, Karawal Nagar, Delhi-110094
Company Secretaries  Mobile: 9953679140

Email ID: deepakrawat1988@gmail.com

PAN: BDBPRSOBGE

Form Mo. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 3137 MARCH, 2025

[Pursuani to Seciion 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Parsonnel) Rules, 2014}

Ta,

The Members,

INDOGULF CROPSCIENCES LIMITED
501, Gopal Heights, Plot No - D-5,
Metaji Subhash Place,

Mew Delhi-110034

| have conducted ihe secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate praclices by INDOGULF CROPSCIENCES
LIMITED (CIN: L74899DL1993PLC051854) (hereinafter called "the Company”).
Secretarial Audil was conducted In a manner thal provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/staiutory compliances and expressing my opinion
thereon.

Dased on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and
returng filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the infarmation
provided by the Company, ifs officers, agents and avthorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my epinion, the Company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 371% March, 2025, generally
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter;

| have examined the books, papers, minuie books, forms and reiurns filed and other
records made available io me and mainiained by INDOGULF CROPSCIENCES LIMITED
{"the Company") for the financial year ended on 31% March, 2025 according to the
provisions including amendments of the following laws Lo the extent these are
analicable:

() The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder,

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made
thereunder; Not Applicable to the Company during audii period

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder,
(v} Foreign Exchange Managemeni &ct, 1999 and the rules and regulations made

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Bomowings;




(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Beard of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act’): -

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acguisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, Not Applicable to the Company during audit period

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; Mot Applicable to the Company during audit period

) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; Not Applicable to the Company during audit period

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefils)
Regulations, 2014 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable to the Company
during audit period

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {lssue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable to the Company during audit period

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with cllent; Not
Applicable to the Company during audit period

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2027; Not Applicable to the Company during audit period

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2018; Not Applicable to the Company during audit period

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015; Not Applicable to the Company during audit period

(vi) Other laws, as Informed by the management of the Company which are applicable
specifically to the Company during the audit period:

a) The Insecticides Act, 1968,

b} The Fertilizer (Inorganic, Organic or Mixed) (Control) Order, 1985,
¢) Ferliliser (Movemnent Control) Order, 1973

d) The Factories Act, 1948,

e) The Patents Act, 1970,

f) The Trade Marks Act, 1999,

g} The Capyright Act, 1957

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(I} Secretarial Standards with regard to Meeting of Board of Directors (55-1) and General
Meetings {55-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following
ohservations:

During the period under review, the Company cbtained an auto foan for TATA LPT 710,
However, the Company is yet to fite form CHG-1 and form MGT-14 for borrowing powers
with the Registrar of Companies in this regard.

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Women Director.
The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors including Key Manaaerial
Personnel that took place during the period under review were carrled out in compliance
with the provisions of the Act.

Adeguate notice is given to all directors 1o schedule the Board and its Committee
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent well in advance for meetings




other than those held at shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried thraugh while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

| further report that there are adeguate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period,

i} The Company in its Board meeting held on 25.04.2024 has made allotment of 1,25,000
(One Lakh Twenty-Five Thousand) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up on account
of conversion of 1,25000 (One Lakh Twenty-Five Thousand) non-cumulative convertible
preference sharez of Rs. 10 each fully paid up into 1,25000 (One Lakh Twenly-Five
Thousand) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up in the terms and conditions of issue
at the ratio of 1.7 decided at that time.

i} The Company in its Board meeting held on 28.05.2024 has made allotment by way of
bonus Issue of 2,36,43,728 equity shares of Rs, 10/- (Rupees Ten) each In the ratio of 111
l.e. 1 {One) fully paid-up equity share for every 1 (One) equity share held to the members
whose names appear in the Register of Members of the Company on date of allatment in
pursuance of the approval received through special resolution passed in the extra
ordinary general meeting held on 20.05.2024.

i} The Company in its Board meeting held on 06.06.2024 has allotted 15,00,000 (Fifteen
Lakh) Equity Shares of Face Value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each at a premium of Rs.
70/- (Rupees Seventy only) per Equity Share aggregating to Rs. 12,00,00.000/- (Rupees
Twelve Crores only) on private placement basis in pursuance of the approval received
through special resolution passed in the extra ordinary general meeting held on
20.05.2024,

iv) the Company has obtained shareholders” approval in an extra ordinary general
meeting held on 19.09.2024 for issue of equity share by way of Initial Public Offer ("IFO")
on the main beard in accordance with the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 2018.

*After closure of the financial year, the Company's equity shares were listed on both NSE
and BSE on 03/07/2025.

Sd/-

Deepak Rawat

Practicing Company Secretary
M. No.: A33210

CP No.: 12241

Peer Review No.: 5364/2023
UDIN: AD33210G007048004

Date: 21/08/2025
Place: Delhi

This report is 1o be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-l and
forms an integral part of this report.




Deepak Rawat C-77, Gali No. 8, Prem Vihar, Karawal Magar,
Company Secretaries Delhi-110094
Mobile: 9953679140
Email ID: deepakrawat1988@gmail.com
PAN: BDBPRS086E

ANNEXURE-

To,

The Members,

INDOGULF CROPSCIENCES LIMITED
507, Gopal Heights, Plot No - B9,
Metaji Subhash Place,

New Delhi-110034

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarnal record is the responsibility of the management of the
company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on my audit.

2. | have followed the audit praciices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correciness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secreiarial records. | believe thai the processes and practices, | followed provide a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. | have not verified the correciness and appropriateness of financial records and Dooks
of Accounts of the company and for which | relied on the report of stalulory auditor.

4. Wheie ever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events ete.

5 The compliance of the provisions af Corporale and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards are the responsibility of management, My examination was limited
1o the verification of procedures on test basis,

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viabllity of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the company.

7. The maximum liability of mine under the secretarial audit in respect of the aggregaie
of all claims shall not exceed the fee charged by me.

Sd/-

Degpak Rawai

Practicing Company Secretary
M. No.: 433210

CP No.: 12247

Peer Review No.: 53564/2023
LIDIN: AD33210G007045004

Date: 21/06/2025
Place: Dalhi




Annxure-6

Deepak Rawat C-77, Gali No. B, Prem Vihar, Karawal Magar,
Company Secretaries Delhi-110094
Mobile: 9953679140
Email ID: deepakrawat1988@gmail.com
PAN: BDEPRS0BGE

Corporaie Governance Compliance Ceriificaie
[For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 pursuant to Schedule V — Part E of SEDI
(Listing Dbligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 201 5]

To,
The Membears
Indogull Cropsciences Limited

We have examined the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance by Indogulf
Cropsciences Limited for the financial vear ended March 31, 2025 ("review period”), with reference to
ihe applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations").

During the review period, the Company was an unlisted public company. Accordingly, the provisions of
the SEBI Listing Regulations, including those pertaining to Corporate Governance, were not applicable
io the Company.

Sd/-

Deepak Rawat

Practicing Company Sacretary
Membership No.: A33210

CP No.: 12247

Peer Review No.: 5364/2023
UDIN: 20332710G0010681567

Daie; 23/08/2025
Place: Delhi




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Company's Philosophy on Code of Governance

Corporate Governance at Indogulf Cropsciences Limited (“the Company” or "IGCL") forms the
foundation of its core business processes, guiding the way the Company is directed and controlled to
enhance its wealth-generating capacity. IGCL is committed to conducting its business with
responsibility, integrity, fairness, and transparency. The Company respects the rights of all
stakeholders and is dedicated to creating long-term value for each of them,

The Corporate Governance framework ensures timely disclosure and shares accurate information
regarding the Company’s financials and performance as well as its leadership and governance:

The Company is committed to good Corpeorate Governance and its adherence to best practice at all
times and its philosophy is based on elements namely, Board's accountability, value creation, strategic-
guldance, transparency and equitable treatment to all the stakeholders.

Board of Directors

Indogulf Cropsciences Limited recognizes and values the importance of a diverse, well-informed
Board in maintaining high standards of Corporate Governance. At IGCL, the Board is central to our
governance practices. The Board of Directors, together with its committees, plays a vital role in
upholding and promoting the principles of sound governance within the Company. Alongside the
necessary professional expertise, and relevant management and leadership experience, Board
members bring ‘@ broad spectrum of knowledge, experience, and educational and professional
backgrounds.

The Board sets the overall corporate objectives and provides necessary guidance and
independence to the Management. The Board operates within a well- defined framework, which
enables it to discharge its responsibilities and duties of safeguarding the interests of the Company
thereby enhancing stakeholder value. The Board has identified certain core skills and competencies
which are required in the context of the business understanding, corporate governance, regulatory,
fiduciary and ethical requirements including integrity, credibility, trustworthiness, strong interpersonal
skills and willingness to address issues proactively.

. Composition of Board

As on March 31, 2025, the Company has eight Directors. Qut of eight directors, four (i.e, 50%) are
Independent Directors. The profiles of Directors can be found on
https://groupindogulf comfBoard_of _Directors_Promotors.aspx. The composition of the Board is in

conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (SEBI 'Listing Regulations’) read with Section 14% of the Companies Act, 2013 (the
‘Act').




Mone of the Directors on the Board hold directorships in more than ten public companies including
Listed Companies. Further, none of them is a member of more than ten committees or chairman of
maore than five committees across all the public companies in which he/she is a director. Necessary
disclosures regarding Committee positions in other public companies as on March 31, 2025 have
been made by the Directors. Mone of the Directors are related to each other except Mr. Om Prakash
Aggarwal, Mr. Sanjay Aggarwal and Mr. Anshu Aggarwal.

All Independent Directors are Non-Executive Directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the
SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, The maximum tenure
of Independent Directors is in compliance with the Act. All Independent Directors have confirmed
that they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Act. Based on the disclosures received from the
Independent Directors and in the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the
conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations and are Independent of
the management. During the period under review, the Company was an unlisted public company;
therefore, Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to the Company.

Board Meetings

Eighteen (18) Board Meetings were held during the year and the gap between two meetings were
according to the Companies Act, 2013 and rules and Reguliations made thereunder. The dates on
which the said meetings were held: April 2, 2024; April 25, 2024; May 7, 2024; May 28, 2024; June 6,
2024, June 29, 2024, July 3, 2024, August 14, 2024; September 18, 2024, September 20, 2024,
September 25, 2024; Septemnber 28, 2024; October 29, 2024; December 02, 2024; December 31, 2024,
January 13, 2025, February 13, 2025; March 317, 2025. The necessary quorum was present for all the
meetings.

, The details relating 1o Composition & Category of Directors, directorships held by them in other
companies and their membership and chairmanship on various Commitiees of Board of other
companies as on March 31, 2025 is as follows:

Hur:,he
r
meeting | Whether | Directo | Committee shareholdin
Cﬁ'ﬁ:?ﬂ attended iﬂ!ﬂ:’d rships | positions held ga'f,f i
Name of the Director of during lastAGM | in | inother ares)?
£

Mr. Om Prakash Whole 18 Yes 1 - 2 1054234
Aggarwal Time o
(DIN: 00732440) Director




Mr. Sanjay Managin 18 Yes 2 1,27.97,62
Aggarwal g 0
(DIN: 00763635) Director
Mrs. Anshu Directar 18 Yes ] 84.67.488
Aggarwal
{DIN: 00732690)
Mr. Pushap Kumar Director 16 Yes W] 1,000
(DIN: 07864033)
Mr. Rahul Gupta Independe 5 Yes 0 -
(DIN:; 09192630) nt Director
Mr. Sandeep Independe 4 Yas 0 = =
Bhutani nt Director
(DIN: 09463909)
Mr. Sunil Datt Independe 1 Yes -
(DIN: 10592337) nt Director
Mrs, Uma Verma Independe 2 Yes Z -
(DIN: 10197376) nt Director
Mr, Pankaj Vats Independe Mo c = =
(DIN: 00842858) nt Director
Ms. Snehal Additional 1 Na 2 z H
Kashyap* Director
(DIN: 09761774) (Independen

1)

*To be regularized in the ensuing Annual General Meeting
#Shareholding as on March 31, 2025

During the financial year, Mr. Sunil Dutt and Mr. Pankaj Vats were appointed as Independent Directors of the
Company. However, Mr, Sunil Dutt resigned on August 14, 2024, as he no longer met the criteria of
independence as specified under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Mr, Pankaj Vats resigned on
December 02, 2024, due to preoccupations in other matters, both before the expiry of their respective tenures.
Subsequently, Mrs. Uma Verma was appointed as an Independent Director on September 03, 2024.
Additionally, Mrs. Snehal Kashyap was appointed as an Additional Director in the Independent category on
December 02, 2024, to hold office until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Names of the other listed entities where the Directors of the Company are Directors and the category of
directorships as on March 31, 2025, are as follows:

Name of Director Name of Listed Company and Category of Directorship
Mr. Om Prakash Aggarwal | NA

Mr. Sanjay Aggarwal MA

Mrs. Anshu Aggarwal WA

Mr. Pushap Kumar MA

Mr. Rahul Gupta WA

Mr. Sandeep Bhutani NA

Mrs. Uma Verma MNA

Ms. Snehal Kashyap Blue Coast Hotels Limited, Independent Director




ii. Relationship among the Directors

Sr

H‘; Name of Director Relationship with other Disclosures
1 Mr. Om Prakash Father of Mr. Sanjay Aggarwal and father-in-law of Mrzs. Anshu
Aggarwal Aggarwal
. Son of Mr, Om Prakash Aggarwal and Spouse of Mrs. Anshu
2 Mr. Sanjay Aggarwal Aggarwal
Daughter-inlaw of Mr. Om Prakash Aggarwal and Spouse of Mr.
3 Mrs. Anshu Aggarwal Sanjay Aggarwal

v, The details of the familiarization prograrmme of the Independent Directors and terms and conditions
of appointment of the Independent Directors are disclosed on the website of the Company at:

https://investor.groupindogulf com/viewile=1756537629122-Familarizationprogramforindependent
Directors. pdf

v.  Matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the board of directors

The board skill matrix provides a guide as to the core skills, expertise, competencies and other criteria
(collectively referred to as 'skill sets’) considered appropriate by the board of the Company in the context
of its business and sector(s) for it to function effectively and those actually available with the Board. The
skill sets will keep on changing as the organization evalves and hence the board may review the matrix
from time to time to ensure that the composition of the skill sets remains aligned to the Company's
strategic direction,

The skill sets identified by the board along with its availability assessment collectively for the board and
individually for each Director are as under;

giencet. | 2 Prakash | Sanjay | Anshu | p | | Sandee | ;" | Uma | Pank | Snehal
ﬂ ioica with Aggarw | Aggarw | Aggarw | L Gup | P patt | Verm | aj Kashya
current | al al al ta | Bhutani | 77 | a Vats* | p
board
Industry Skills |
(a) Agro o v v "3 z I
Chemical Aovailable = W v
Industry
(b) Creating
value through !
Intellectual Available v p 7 i . . = . , v
Property Rights 5 . . .
v v v v
(c) Eo:ard Available v v
Expenence
(d) Global : v v = - - | . -
Beerations Available v o E v
I:E} Value W v " v v v v o v
suppaorting .
inorganic Available
_growth




Technical
ce

v v v W W W v v v
E}afr:ﬁ‘;g“: available v

(b) Risk and v ¥ v - v 7 v
compliance Available - - =
oversight

(c) Marketing | Available v v : v v v v ] ” -

{d} Pnhcﬁr i % W W ' v W ' W v v
Deve |megnt Available

(8} Accounting, v v v v v v v v v v
tax, audit & Available
Finance . .
{f) Legal Available v ¥ . 2 . v v v . 2

(g) sales Available = = _

W W W ' at o - s :
E:Egb;ﬂ:;:n Available :

(i) liasoning Available i v ¥ ¥ 4 W v v v v

Behavioural
Competencies

(a) Integrity & o W ¥ v ¥ ¥ v ¥ v v

athical Available
standards

§ v i o W o o W W 4 W
gﬁnmzm""g Available

(e} W v W v ¥ v v v v v

Interpersonal Avallable
Relations

* Mr. Sunil Dutt and Mr, Pankaj Vats were appointed as Independent Directors of the company but later
resigned dated 14/08/2024 and 02/12/2024 respectively

vi. Scheduling and selection of agenda items for Board and Committee meetings - The Board annually
holds at least four pre-scheduled meetings. Additional Board meeting may be convened to address
the Company's specific needs. In case of business exigencies or urgency, resolutions are passed by
circulation,

vii. During the year 2024-2025, one meeting of the Independent Directors were held on March 31, 2025.
The Independent Directors, inter-alia, reviewed the performance of non-independent directors, and the
Board as a whole,

vii.In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified under the
Companies Act, 2013, and are independent of the management. Although the SEBI Listing Regulation
were not applicable to the company during period under review as it was an unlisted public company.

lll. Committee of the Board
The Board Committees play a vital role in the Company’s governance framework and are constituted to
address specific areas or activities requiring focused oversight, These Committees are established with
formal approval of the Board to perform well-defined functions that align with good governance
practices and are best handled by Board members. The Board retains overall responsibility and




supervises the functioning of its committees. it ensures that their activities are in line with the

Company's objectives. Minutes of all Committee meetings are regularly placed before the Board for its
information, consideration, and review,

The Board has currently established the following five (5) statutory and one non-statutory Committees:

1. Audit Committee

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committes
3. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee

4 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
5 Risk Management Committee

1. Audit Committee

The power, role and terms of reference of the Audit Committee covers the areas as contemplated
under Section 177 of the Act, and Regulation 18 of Listing Regulations, as applicable, besides other
terms as referred by the Board of Directors,

During the year under review, four (4) Audit Committee Meetings were held on April 18, 2024; August
14, 2024, September 18, 2024; September 25, 2024. The maximum time-gap between any two
consecutive meetings did not exceed 120 days.

The compaosition of the Audit Committee and attendance of members at the meetings of the Audit
Committee held during the period are as follows-:

§.No. | Name of the Directors Audit Committee Meetings
- Number of Meetings which No. of
director was entitled to attend Meetings
1 Rahul Gupta 4 4
2 Sanjay Aggarwal* 3 3
3 Sandeep Bhutani 4 4
4 Om Prakash Aggarwal® 1 1

*Ceased w.e.f 20.09.2024
#Appointed w.e.f 20.09.2024

Terms of Reference

a) Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
infarmation.

b} Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
Company.

¢l Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by them.

d) Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before
submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to.
. Matters required to be included in the Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in the

Board's Report.




g)

h)

n)

o)

P

+  Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

« Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

= Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.

«  Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.

»  Disclosure of any related party transactions.

= Qualifications in the draft audit report.
Reviewing with the management the quarterly financial statements before submission to board for

approval.

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other
than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the
monitoring agency monitaring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue or preferential
issue or qualified institutions placement, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to
take up steps in this matter;

Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process,

Formulating a policy on related party transactions, which shall include materiality of related party
transactions;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties and
omnibus approval for related party transactions proposed to be entered into by the Company subject
to such conditions as may be prescribed

Review, at least on a quarterly basis, the details of related party transactions entered inta by the
Company pursuant to each of the omnibus approvals given;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments
Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary,
Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the
internal control systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there
is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and
reporting the matter to the Board,

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit




u)

y)

aa)

bb)

as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

Reviewing the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

Approval of the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer of the Company ("CFQ") (i.e., the whole-
time finance director or any other person heading the finance function or discharging that function
and who will be designated as the CFQ of the Company) after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc., of the candidate;

Carrying out any other functions as provided under or reguired to be performed by the audit
committee under the provisions of the Companies Act, the SEBI Listing Regulations and other
applicable laws;

To formulate, review and make recommendations to the Board to amend the Audit Commiltee
charter from time to time

Establishing a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report their genuine concerns or
grievances;

Reviewing the utilization of loans and/or advances from/ investment by the holding company in the
subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower
including existing loans/ advances/ investments existing as per the SEBI Listing Regulations;

Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger,
demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders; and

Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger,
demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders;

The Audit Cormmittee shall mandatorily review the following information:

. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;
ii.  Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors of
the Company;
i, Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses
iv.  The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be
subject to review by the Audit Committes;
v. Statement of deviations:
(i}  quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable,
submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) of the SEBI| Listing
Regulations; and

(i) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the issue
document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7) of the SEBI Listing Regulations;




2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Momination and Remuneration Commitiee is constituted in line with Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with the provisions of Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing Regulations.

During the year, three (3) Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings were held on April 18,
2024; July 03,2024, and December 02, 2024. The necessary guorum was present for all the meetings.
The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and attendance of members at
the meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee held during the period are as follows:

S.No. | Name of the Directors Nomination and Remuneraiion Commiiiee Meeiings |
' Number of Meetings which No. of
director was entitled to attend Meetings
attended
1 Anshu Aggarwal 3 3
2 Rahul Gupta 3 3
3 Sandeep Bhutani* P 2
4 | Uma Verma* 1 1

*Ceased w.e.f 20.09.2024
#Appointed w.e.f 20.09.2024

Terms of Reference

a) Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommend ito the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees;

The Momination and Remuneration Committee, while formulating the above policy, should ensure that:

{iy the level and composition of remuneration be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate directors of the quality required to run our Company successfully;

(i) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

{iii) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short- and leng-term performance objectives appropriate
to the working of the Company and its goals.

b) For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall
evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such
evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of an independent director. The
person recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent director shall have the
capabilities identified in such description, For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the
Mominatien and Remuneration Committee may:

(i) use the services of any external agencies, if required;
(i) consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and
{iii) considerthe time commitments of the candidates,

c) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the Board;




d) Devising a policy on Board diversity,

e) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors of the Company and whao may be appointed
in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their
appointment and removal. The Company shall disclose the remuneration policy and the evaluation
criteria in its annual report;

fi Analysing, monitoring and reviewing various human resource and compensation matters;

g) Determining the Company's policy on specific remuneration packages for executive directors including
pension rights and any compensation payment, and determining remuneration packages of such
directors;

h) Recommending to the Board the remuneration, in whatever form, payable to the senior management
personnel and other staff (as deemed necessary);

i) Reviewing and approving compensation strategy from time to time in the context of the then current
Indian market in accordance with applicable laws;

il Determining whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the
basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors;

k) Perform such functions as are required to be performed by the compensation committee under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations,
2021, as amended;

I} Construing and interpreting the employee stock option scheme/plan approved by the Board and
shareholders of the Company in accordance with the terms of such scheme/plan ("ESOP Scheme") and
any agreements defining the rights and obligations of the Company and eligible employees under the
ESOP Scheme, and prescribing, amending and/or rescinding rules and regulations relating to the
administration of the ESOP Scheme;

m}Framing suitable policies, procedures and systems to ensure that there s no violation of securities
laws, as amended from time to time, including;
(i} the Securities and Exchange Board of India {Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as
amended; and
tii) the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibiticn of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices
Relating to Securities Market) Regulations, 2003, as amended, by the Company and its employees, as
applicable;

n) Performing such other activities as may be delegated by the Board of Directors and/or are statutorily
prescribed under any law to be attended to by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act, the Board has carried out an Annual Evaluation of its




own performance, performance of the Directors and the working of its committees, based on the
evaluation criteria defined by Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) for performance
evaluation process of the Board, its Committees and Directors.

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directers on
the basis of criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes,
information and functioning, etc.

The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the
Committee Members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, effectivenass of
Committee meetings, etc.

The performance assessment of Non-Independent Directors, Board as a whole and the Chairman were
evaluated at separate meeting of Independent Directors. The same was also discussed in the meetings
of NRC and the Board.

Performance evaluation of Independent Directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the
Independent Director being evaluated.

. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is constituted In line with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the provisions of Regulation 20 of SEBI Listing Regulations,

§.No. | Name of the Directors Siakeholders' Relationship Commitiee Meetings
Number of Meetings which No. of
director was entitled to attend Meetings
attended
1 Anshu Aggarwal 1 1
2 Om Prakash Aggarwal 1 1
3 Snehal Kashyap® 1 1

+*Appointed w.e.f 20.09,2024

Other Particulars-
| Mame of non-executive Director heading the Mrs. Anshu Aggarwal
committes
| Name and designation of the compliance Ms. Sakshi Jain

. Officer

Number of Shareholders complaints received during | njL
the Financial Year 2024-25.

| Number of complaints nol solved 1o the satisTaclion | niL
| of shareholders

"Number of pending complaints NIL




Terms of Reference

(a) Redressal of all security holders’ and investors’ grievances including complaints related to
transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of share certificates and review of cases for refusal of
transfer/transmission of shares and debentures, non-receipt of declared dividends, non-receipt of
annual reports, issue of new/duplicate certificates, etc., and assisting with quarterly reporting of such
complaints.

{b) Reviewing of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders;

(c) Investigating complaints relating to allotment of shares, approval of transfer or transmission of
shares, debentures or any other securities;

(d) Giving effect to all transfer/transmission of shares and debentures, dematerialization of shares and
re-materialization of shares, split and issue of duplicate/consolidated share certificates, compliance
with all the requirements related to shares, debentures and other securities from time to time;

(e} Reviewing the measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the
shareholders of the Company;

{f) Reviewing the adherence to the service standards by the Company with respect to various services
rendered by the registrar and transfer agent of the Company and to recommend measures for overall
improvement in the quality of investor services; and

{g) Carrying out such other functions as may be specified by the Board from time to time or
specified/provided under the Companies Act or SEBI Listing Regulations, or by any ather regulatory
authority,

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee is constituted in line with the provisions of Section
135 of the Act.

During the year, five (5} meetings of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee were held on May
07, 2024; August 13, 2024; September 18, 2024; and December 31, 2024, March 11, 2025. The
necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. The cemposition of Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee meeting and number of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meetings attended by
the Members during the year is given below:




S. No. Name of the Directors Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Meetings
Number of No. of
Meetings which Meetings
director was attended
entitled to
attend
1 Om Prakash Aggarwal 5 5
2 Sandeep Bhutanis# 2 =
3 Rahul Gupta 5 5
4 Sanjay Aggarwal* 3 3

*Ceased w.e.f 20.09.2024
HtAppointed w.ef 20.09.2024

Terms of Reference

The Terms of reference of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee include:

(a)

To formulate and recommend to the board, a corporaie social responsibility policy which shall
indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule VIl of the
Companies Act and the rules made thereunder and make any revisions therein as and when
decided by the Board;

(b) Te identify corporate sccial responsibility policy partners and corperate social responsibility

(c)

policy programmes;

To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred for the corporate social responsibility
activities and the distribution of the same to various corporate social responsibility programmes
undertaken by the Company;

(d) To formulate the annual action plan of the Company;

(e)

()

(9)

To delegate responsibilities to the corporate social responsibility team and supervise proper
execution of all delegated responsibilities;

To review and monitor the implementation of corporate social responsibility programmes and
issuing necessary directions as required for proper implementation and timely completion of
corporate social responsibility programmes; and

To perform such other duties and functions as the Board may require the corporate social
responsibility committee to undertake to promote the corporate social responsibility activities of
the Company and exercise such other powers as may be conferred upon the CSR Committee in
terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, as amended.




5. Risk Management Committee
Risk Management Committee has been constituted as per the requirement of Regulation 21 of the

Listing Regulations.

The composition of the Risk Management Committee and attendance of members at the meetings of
the Risk Management Committee held during the period are as follows-|

S. No. Name of the Directors Risk Management Commitiee Meeiings

~ Number of ~ No. of

Meetings which Meetings

entitled to
: attend

1 Sandeep Bhutani 2 2 |
2 Om Prakash Aggarwal 2 2 |
3 Snehal Kashyap# 1 1
4. Pankaj Vais* 1 1

*Ceased w.e.f 02.12.2024
#Appointed w.ef02.12.2024

Term of Reference

{a) To formulate a detailed risk management policy, which shall include;

(i) A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the listed
entity, in particular including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly, ESG
related risks), information, cyber security risks or any other rizk as may be determined by the
Committes;

(1i) Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of identified
risks; and

(ii1) Business continuity plan,

{b) To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and
evaluate risks associated with the business of the Company;

{c) To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the
adeguacy of risk management systems;

(d) To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by
considering the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity;

() To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its discussions,
recommendations and actions to be taken;

(f) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be
subject to review by the Risk Management Committee.




IV, Senior Management
a. Particulars of the Senior Management during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025:

z; MName Designation 'Mﬁﬁmﬁm'l' Experience | Date of Joining
Mr. Manoj | Chief Financial
7 Gupta Officer B.com, CA 15 Years 10/10/27
Ms. CS&
2 Sakshi Compliance B.com, CS§, 3 Years 11/03/2024
Jain officer
Mr. Anand | VP - Sales &
3 Singh Neg Marketing B.com, PGDBA 22 Years 01/04/2002
Mr. :
VP - Sales & B.Sc-Agriculture,
4 Surinder Marketing MSc-Agricutture 10-15 Years 18/08/2022
Kumar
VP -
Mr. Ashish commercial
5 Goel and corporate B.com 10-15 Years 071/04/2074
business
; Se-Agri
5| MrSaiay :rfd_c?fra;fgtl: E Sﬂ?"d gar"'?"';g?m 10-15 Years 16/08/2022
Chaudhary - ﬁa[i:rs husbandry, MSc-
Agriculture
M. President -
7 | Bhupender % B.A. 30 Years 02/08/1954
. Production
Kaushik
B.Sc-Agriculture
] and animal
o || Nl | Y rf::ﬁf & | husbandry,MSc- | 10-15 Years 01/02/2025
g 9 Agriculture,
EPGDIB

b. During the period, the changes in the Senior Management (SMP) or Key Management Personnel
(KMP) of the Company are as follows:

5. Designation/ Nature : Date of Date of
No | N™Me | of Duty © | Qualifieation | o ointment | Resignation
B.5c-
Agriculture
and animal
1 m:;gg: mrk;ﬂ? . husbandry, 01/02/2025
MSe-
Agriculture,
EPGDIB
Mr. AVP — operations &
2 | Devesh cempliahien B.Sc - 28/02/2025
Sengar




V. Remuneration of Directors:

1.  Non-Executive Directors:

(DIN: 09761774)

: Sitting Fees
Name PR -
' (in Millions)
Mr. Rahul Gupta
- 0.03
(DIN: 09192630) 2
Mr. Sandeep Bhutani
0.035
(DIN; 09463509)
Mr. Sunil Datt # 0.01
(DIN: 10592337) :
Mrs. Uma Verma *
0.02
(DIN: 10197376)
Mr. Pankaj Vats #
(DIN: 00842858)
*
Ms. Snehal Kashyap 0.01

# Mr. Sunil Dutt resigned on August 14, 2024 and Mr. Pankaj Vats resigned on December 02, 2024

*Mrs. Uma Verma was appointed as an Independent Director on September 03, 2024, Additionally, Mrs
Kashyap was appointed as an Additional Director in the Independent category on December 02, 2024,

2. Chairman, Managing Director and Executive Director

. Snehal

Latuy DBonus/Per pa i
& et Siock |Period & | Performan
Deciges Allowances | *515¢ | Contributi | options Tenuxre | o verance | ce Criterla
: on to PF Pay

Mr. Om Whole Ti - As per
Prakash Dir;:g'“"'e 1600000 1800 NA 5 years fi :
Agoiarwal greemen
Mr. Sanjay ; -

Managing - As per
Aggarwal Diractor 1600000 1800 MNA 5 years Agreement
Mrs, Anshu
Aggarwal | Director -
Mr. Pushap
Kumar Director apas0 975 1800 MA - - -

Mote:- The above salary distribution is on monthly basis.

The remuneration to Non-Executive Directors is based on the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the
Company. The detail of the policy is available on the website of the Company with the following link
https://investor groupindogulf com/view?file=1756537652994-NRPOLICYINDOGUL E pdf

Mone of the Non-Executive Directors has any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company and its

associates,



VI. General Body Meetings

a)  Annual General Meetings: Venue, Date & Time of last 3 (Three) Annual General Meetings:

AGM | Financial Year | Date Time Venue
501, Gopal Heights,
September 3, - Plot No. D-9, Netaji
32nd | 2024-2025 2024 1:00 PM Subhash
Place, Delhi- 110034
501, Gopal Heights,
. September 30, : Plot No. D-9, Netaji
315t 2023-2024 2023 1:00 PM Subhash
Place, Delhi- 110034
501, Gopal Heights,
Plot Mo, D-9, Netaji
30th | 2022-2023 g;g‘;’"b“ 291 100 PMm Subhash
Place; Delhi- 110034

b}  Special Resolution(s) passed in the previous 3 (Three) Annual General Meetings

Appointment of Mrs, UMA VERMA (DIN: 10797376)
32nd | as an Independent Women Director w.e.f September September 3, 2024

03, 2024,
31st MA September 30, 2023
30th | NA September 29, 2022

t}]  Special Resolution passed through Circular by Resolution

During the year under review, no special resolution has been passed through the exercise of postal ballot.
Further, no special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot as on date,

Vil. Means of Communication

There was no means of communication as company was an unlisted public company, during the period
under review.

Vill. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
1. 33rd Annual General Meeting:

Date September 29, 2025
Time 1:00 PM
Venue 501, Gopal Heights, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, Delhi-110034




2. Financial Calendar
Financial Year:  April T to March 31

3. Dividend Payment:
The Board of Directors have not proposed any dividend for the financial year ended 31* march 2025.

4. Listing on Stock Exchanges:

BSE Ltd
20th Floor, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400007

The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE)

“Exchange Plaza” Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra(E), Mumbai = 400 051

Annual listing fee for the financial year 2025-26, has been paid by the Company to BSE and NSE.
Annual custodian charges of Depository have also been paid to NSDL and CDSL.

5. ISIN Mo.: INED5J901078

6. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

Big share Services Private Limited

Office Mo, 56-2, 6th floor, Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri East,
Mumbai — 400093, India
Tel No. +91 22 6263 8200
Email: ‘bssdelhi bd@bigshareonline.com
7. Share Transfer System
100% of equity Shares of the Company are in demat mode, therefore transfer of these shares is done through

depositaries with no involvement of the Company.

8. Distribution of Shareholding as on March 31, 2025
a.  Distribution of equity shareholding as on March 317, 2025:

— % of total o
: : Number of S _ % of total
Number of Shares Shareholders share:uldw No. of Shares Shares
1- 200000 16 59.26% _2,??,?68 0.57%
200001 - Abave 11 40,74% 485096388 99.43%
Total 27 100.00 4,87,87,456 100.00
b Categories of equity shareholders as on March 31, 2025




Category No. of % of
shares Share-
held holding

Promoter and Promoter Group (A) 47259688 96.86%

Public Shareholding

Mutual Funds ] 0

Altemate Investment Funds 0 0]

Foreign Portfolio Investor (Corporate) 0 1]

RBI Registered NBFCs 0 o

Individuals 1402768 2.88%

Any Other

- Body Corporate 125000 0.26%

= Trust 0 0

- NRI 0 0

- Resident HUF o ]

- Clearing Member 0 0

- |EPF 0 0

-LLP 0 ]

Total Public Shareholding (B) 1527768

Total Shareholding [(A)}+(B)] 48787456 100

9. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

The shares of the Company fall under the category of compulsery delivery in dematerialized form by all
categories of investars. The Company has signed agreements with both the Depositories i.e. National
Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services Limited,

As on March 31, 2025, the number of shares held in dematerialized and physical mode is as under:

. e % of shares
Category No. of Shares Held holding
Held in Dematerialized form in CDSL 250000 0.57

Held in Dematerialized form in NSDL 48537456 499,449
Physical 0 0

Total 48787456 100

10. Outstanding GDRs / Warrants and Convertible Bonds, Conversion Date and likely impact on Equity

The Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any convertible instruments,




.

12.

13.

14.

Commodity Price Risks or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities
The Company has not issued any commodity,

Plant Locations

Presently, our Company having 4 (Four) manufacturing units / Plants located at the following places:

1. 4, Kanal of Land situated at Industrial Growth Center, SIDCO, Phase-l, samba, Jammu and Kashmir
184121,

2. Khewat no. 425, V.P.0. Nathupur, Sonipat 131 029, Haryana

3. (I} Khewat no: 192, no. 16/22/3, 23/2/2/5,3,27, V.P.0. Nathupur, Sonipat 131 029, Haryana.
(1) Khewat no: 277, Khata no. 350/1, Killa no. 18/10/12, 18/11/1, V.P.0O. NATHUPUR, Sonipat 131
029, Haryana.

4, KHEWAT NO. 23 MIN, KHATA NO.23, MIN, UNDER KILLA NO. 29//16,25/1 SITUATED, IN
The revenue estate, Barwasnl, Sonipat, Haryana, 131001 (partly under construction)

Address for Correspondence
Investors and Shareholders can correspond with the Registered & Corporate Office of the Company at
the following address;

To
The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Indogulf Cropsciences Limited

507, Gopal Heights Plot No = D-9, Metaji Subhash Place, Mew Delhi = 110034, Delhi, India
Tel Mo. +91 11 4004 0400

Fax Mo, +91 17 4004 0444
Ernail - info@groupindogulf.com

Credit Rating
List of all credit ratings obtained by the Company along with any revisions thereto during the relevant

financial year, for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or
proposal of the listed entity involving mobilization of funds, whether in India or abroad:

Mot Applicable.

15. Governance Policies

In line with Company’s philosophy for adhering to ethical and governance standards and ensure
faimess, accountability, responsibility and transparency 1o all its stakeholders, Company's, inter-alia,
has the following policies and codes in place,

All the policies have been uploaded on the website of the Company: -




Name of the Policies Weblink

hitps://investor groupindogulf com/viewile=1756537591001-
DividendPolicy pdf

hittps:/finvestor groupindogulf com/viewHile=1756537575273-
CSRPolicy-IndoguifCropsciencest td pdf

https//investor groupindogulf com/viewHile=1756537641744-
ICL_RiskPolicy pdf
hitps://investor groupindogulf com/view?ile=17565309408747-
Whistle-Blower-Policy-Final_IndegulfCropsciencesLimited pdf

Dividend Distribution Policy

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

Rizk Management Policy

Whistle Blower policy

https//investor groupimdoagulf. com/viewHile=1756537 7267 40-
RPTPolicy pdf

hitps://investor groupindogulf. com/viewHile=1756537696121 -
PolicytoRegulateTradingbyDesignatedPerson pdf

Related Party Transaction Policy

Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading

Momination and Remuneration and Board https;//invesiorgroupindogulf com/view'tfile=175b537652994-
Diversity Policy NRPOLICYINDOGLULF pdf

Code of conduct for BOD and Senior hitps://investor.groupindoguli com/viewHile=1756537489897-
management CodeofConductforB0DandSMPpdf

Policy on Composition of various committees of  |hitps)//investor groupindogulf com,/view?ile=1756538259425-
board of directors; CompositionofCommities.pdf

Criteria of making payments to non- executive hittps;//investor. groupindogulf com/view?ile=1756540043953-
directors PolicyforhlonExecutiveDirectors. pdf

Policy and Procedures for Inquiry in Case of Leak | s /investor groupindogulf.com/view?file=1 756537696121
or Suspected Leak of Unpublished price Sensitive PalicytoRegulateTradingbyDesignatedPerson pdf

Information -

Archival Policy or Policy for Maintenance and https://investor.groupindogulf com/view?file=1756537600628-
Preservation of Documents ) DocumentandArchivalPolicy pdf

Policy for Disclosure of Event or Information and | https.//investor groupindogulf com/view?file=1756537664432-
Determination of Materiality Policyfordeterminingmaterialityfordisclosures. pdf

https://investor groupindoguif com/view?ile=1756537676064-
PolicyoniMatenalSubsidiaries. pdf

Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of hitps://investor groupindogulf com/viewHile=1756537686212-
Women at Workplace Paolicy PolicyonPOSH,.pdf

Policy for Material subsidiaries

IX. ©Other disclosures:

Disclosure on materially significant related party transactions, i.e. the Company's transactions
that are of material nature, with its Promoters, Directors and the management, their relatives or
subsidiaries, among others that may have potential conflict with the Company's interests at large

The details of related party transactions with the Company are given in Note No.45 of Standalone and
Mote Mo.44 of Consolidated financial statement of the Company. Besides this, the Company has no
material transaction with the related parties’ viz. promoters, directors of the Company, management, their
relatives, subsidiaries of promoter Company etc. that may have a potential conflict with the interest of the
Company at large.

The Board has also approved a policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions which also includes
procedure to deal with Related Party Transactions and such Policy has been put up on the Company's
Website. The same can be viewed at: hitps://investor groupindogulf. com/view?file=17565637726740-

RPTPolicy pdf




vl'

vi.

Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by
Stock Exchanges or SEBI, or any other statutory authority, on any matter related to capital
markets during last three years.

There were no instances of Mon-Compliance and no Penalties, Strictures imposed on the Company by
Stock Exchange or SEBI ar any statutory authority, on any matter related to Capital Markets since the
Company was a unlisted public company during the three immediately preceding financial year

Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower) Policy

The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and has put in place a mechanism of
reporting illegal or unethical behavior, The Company has a whistle blower policy wherein the employees
are free to report violations of faws, rules, regulations or unethical conduct to their immediate supervisor or
such other person as may be notified by the management 1o the workgroups. The confidentiality of those
reporting violatiens is maintained and they are not subjected to any diseriminatory practice. No
personnel has been denied the access to the Audit Committee, The said policy is available on the
website of the Company on the following link
https://investor groupindogulf com/view?file=1756539408747-Whistle-Blower-Policy-
Final_IndogulfCropscienceslimited. pdf

Adoption of Mandatory and Non- Mandatory Requirements of SEBI Listing Regulations

The company was an unlisted public company during the financial year under review. Accordingly, the
provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI LODR
Regulations), which are applicable to listed entities, were not mandatory for the company to comply
with during the said period.

However, the company remains committed to upholding high standards of corporate governance. In
line with this commitment, the company has voluntarily adopted several good governance practices
that align with the principles set out under the SEB| LODR Regulations, even though the same were not
legally binding on the company.

Material Subsidiary

The Company has formulated a Policy for the determination 'Material subsidiaries and such Policy has
been disclosed on the company's \Website, the same can be viewed at
htips://investor groupindogulf com/viewile=1756537676064-PolicyoniMatenalSubsidiaries. pdf

During the year under review, the Company has no material subsidiaries.

Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions

The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company's
website at the link: hitps://investor groupindogulf com/view?ile=17565377 26 T40-BPTPolicy. pdf




vii.

viii.

"Il

xil.

uii.

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities
The Company does not deal in commaodities.

Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement
as specified under Regulation 32 (7A).

The Company has not raised funds through preferential allotment or Qualified Institutional Placement during

the year: hence, detall of this clause is not applicable,
Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary

A certificate from the company secretary in practice confirming that none of the directors on the board
of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appeinted or continuing as directors of
companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority, is annexed with
the CG Report at Annexure-A.

Disclosure of recommendations not accepted by the Board as recommended by the Committee which
is mandatorily required

The Board has accepted all the recommendations of the committees given time to time in their
respective course of business.

Total Fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries on consolidated basis to the
Statutory Auditors of the Company and all entities in the network firm/network entities of which the
statutory auditor is a part:

The total fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consaolidated basis, to the
Statutory Auditors of the Company is mentioned at Mote Mo, 38(a) of Standalone and MNote Mo, 37 (a) of
Consolidated financial statement of the notes to accounts of the Company. The Company has not
availed any services from the network firm/network entity of which the Statutory Auditors is a part.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and Redressal of Sexual
harassment at workplace and has duly constituted an Internal Complaints Committee in line with the
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder.

During the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, the Company has received NIL Complaints an
sexual harassment. Also, no complaints have been unresolved or are pending in respect of sexual
harassment before the Company.

Insider Trading Code in Terms of SEBI (Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015
The Board has formulated the Code of Practice for Fair Disclosure of Un-Published Price Sensitive




Xiv.

Xvii,

wvili,

Hix.

Information and the Code of Conduct for regulating, monitoring and reporting of Trading of Shares by
Insiders in terms of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to
time ("Regulation”).

The Board has also formulated and adopted a Policy on Determination of Legitimate Purpose as per the
provisions of the Regulation. The above code lays down guidelines, procedures to be followed and
disclosures to be made while dealing with shares of the Company and cautiening them on consequences
of non-compliances. The copy of the same is available on the website of the Company at

https://investor.groupindogulf com/view?file=1756637696121-PolicytoRegulateTradingbyDesignated
Person.pdf

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Accounting Standards referred
to in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, The significant accounting policies which are consistently
applied are set out in the Notes to the Financial Statements,

MD/CFO Certification

The Managing Director and CFQ of the Company have certified to the Board of Directors, inter alia, the
accuracy of financial statements and adeguacy of internal controls for the financial reporting as reguired
under Regulation 17(8) and Part B of Schedule Il of the Listing Regulations for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025. The MD and the CFO also give quarterly certification on financial results while placing the
financial results before the Board in terms of Regulation 33{2) of the Listing Regulations, The certificate is
attached herewith as Annexure -B.

The Company has complied with the requirements of corporate governance report of sub para (2) to
(10) of the Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

The Company has duly complied with the requirements of corporate governance report of sub para (2) to
(10} of the Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

The company has complied with the Corporate Governance requirements specified in regulation 17 to
27 and clause (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

Mat applicable on the company, as company was an unlisted enlity during year under review,

Disclosures with respect to Demat Suspense Account/ Unclaimed Suspense Account— Not applicable

Compliance Certificate from the Secretarial Auditor




As stipulated in Para E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, the Certificate from the Secretarial
Auditors of the Company regarding compliance of conditions of corporale governance is provided as
Annexure 6 to the Boards report,

A Disclosure of certain type of agreements binding listed entities

During the period, the agreements entered into by the Company fall within the normal course of business
and do not bring about any alterations to the management or control of the company. Additionally,
throughout this period, no agreement have been entered by its shareholders, promeoters, promoter group
entities, related parties, directors, key managerial personnel, employees of the company or subsidiary or
associate company, among themselves or with the listed entity or with a third party, solely or jointly, which,
either directly or indirectly or potentially or whose purpose and effect is to, impact the management or
control of the Company or impose any restriction or create any liability upon the Company.

i, The Company has provided loans to following firms/ companies in which directors are interested.

During the year under review, the company has not provided any loan to any company or firm in which
any of the directors of the company are or were interested.

wxii. Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors has laid down Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management
of the Company. The copies of Code of Conduct as applicable to the Executive Directors (including
Senior Management of the Company) and Independent have been sent to all the Directors and Senior
Management Personnel, The Code of Conduct is available on the Company's website
hitps.//investor.groupindogulf com/view?ile=1766537489897-CodeofConductforBODandSME pdf

All the members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management personnel have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them during the year ended March 317, 2025,
The Annual Report of the Company contains declaration duly signed by the Managing Director.

xiii. Declaration By Managing Director

Declaration signed by Mr. Sanjay Aggarwal, Managing Director of the Company, stating that the Board
of Directors and Senior Management Parsonnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct
of Board of Directors and Senicr Management Persennel is annexed to this Report at Annexure — C.

For and on behalf of the Board

Indogulf Cropsciences Limited
Place: Delhi Sd/- sd/-
(Om Prakash Aggarwal) (Sanjay Aggarwal)
Dated: 29/08/2025 Chairman & WTD Managing Director
DIM- 00732440 DIN- 00763635




Annexure-A

Deepak Rawat C-77, Gali No. 8, Prem Vihar, Karawal Magar,
Company Secretaries Delhi-110094
Mobile: 9953679140
Email ID: deepakrawat1988@gmail.com
PAN: BDEPRS0BGE

CERTIFICATE
[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of the Securities Exchange and
Doard of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015]

To,

The Members,

Indogull Cropsciences Limited

501, Gopal Heights Plot No- D-5;

Metaji Subhash Place, New Delhi-110034

We have examined the relevant disclosures provided by the Directors (as enlisted in Table A); to
Indogulf Cropsciences Limited, bearing CIN: L74B9%DL19%3PLCOS1854; having registered office at
501, Gopal Heighis Plot No - 0-3, Netaji Subhash Place, New Delhi-110034, India (hereinafier referred
to as ‘the Company’) for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3)
read with Schedule V Para C Clause 10 (i) of the Securities and Exchange Deard of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and based on the following:

i. Documents available on the website of the Ministry of Corporaie Affairs ('MCA);

ii, Verification of Directors |dentification Mumber ('DIN') status at the website of the MCA,
iil. Disclosures provided by the Directors {as enlisted in Table A) to the Company, and

iv. Debarment list af BSE Limited and Natlional Stack Exchange of India Limited.

We hereby cerlify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company (as enlisted in Table &) have
been debarred or disgualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the company by the
Securities and Exchange Doard of India, MCA or any such other statutory authority as on March 31,
2025,

Table A
Sr. No. | Name of the Directors (DIN) Date of appointment
T Mr. Om Prakash Agoarwal DIN: DO732440 22/01/1993
2 Mr. Sanjay Aggarwal DIN: 00763635 22/01/1993
3, Mrs. Anshu Aggarwal DIN: 00732690 07/07/2018
4, Mr. Pushap Kumar DIW: 07864033 29/06/2017
5 [ Mr Rahul Gupia DIN: 09192630 31/07/2021
| &, Mr. Sandeep Bhutan| DIN: 09463909 11/07/2022
7. Mr. Sunil Datt* DIM: 10592337 20/05/2024
| & Mrs, Uma Verma DIN; 10197376 03/09/2024
| 8, Mr. Pankaj Vats® DIN: 00842858 19/09/2024
| 10. Ms. Snehal Kashyap# DIN: 09761774 02/12/2024

* Dwring the financial year, Mr. Sunil Dutt and Mr. Pankaj Vats were appointed as Independent Directors
of the Company. However, Mr. Sunil Dutt and Mr. Pankaj Vats resigned from their position as
Independent Director(s) of the Company w.e f August 14, 2024 and December 02, 2024 respectively.




# Ms. Snehal Kashyap was appointed as an Additional Director in the Independent category on December 02,
2024, to hold office until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting

Sd/-

Deepak Rawat

Practicing Company Secretary
Membership No.: A33210

CP No.: 12241

Peer Review No.: 5364/2023
UDIN: AD33210G0010RE8200

Date: 23/08/2025
Place: Delhi




Annexure-B

MD / CFO CERTIFICATION

To,

The Board of Directors

Indogulf Cropsciences Limited
501, Gopal Heights Plot No - D-9
Netaji Subhash Place, New Delhi,
India, 110034

Subject: Compliance Certificate as reguired under Regulation 17(8) read with Regulation 33 (2) (a) of
SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

We, hereby certify that:

1. We have reviewed Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March
31,2025 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

ajthese statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact
or contain statements that might be misleading;

b) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are
in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct;

3. We accepl responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evalvated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting. We have not come across any reportable
deficiencies In the design or operation of internal controls.

4. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committes:

al  that there were no significant changes, in internal control over financial reporting during
the year;

b)  that there were no significant changes, in accounting policies during the year; and

c)  that there were no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware, and
the involvement therein, of the management or any employee having a significant rale
in the company’s internal eentral system over financial reporting.

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Delhi Sanjay Aggarwal Manoj Gupta
Date; 28/08/2025 Manaaging Director CFO
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Annexure- C

Declaration under Clause D of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

|, Sanjay Aggarwal, Managing Director of Indogulf Cropsciences Limited hereby declares that all the
Board Members and Senior Managaerial Personnel have affirmed for the year ended on March 31, 2025
compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company laid down far them.

Sd/-
Place: Delhi {Sanjay Aggarwal)
Date: 29/08/2025 Managing Director

DIN: 00763635




NOTICE OF 33" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT 33" ANNUAL GEMERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF
INDOGULF CROPSCIENCES LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY, 29™ DAY OF SEPTEMBER,
2025 AT 1:00 P.M THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING ("VC")/OTHER AUDIO VISUAL MEANS
("OAVM") TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1) TO RECEIVE, CONSIDER AND ADOPT

A, the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2025, together with the Report of the Board of Direciors and the Auditors
thereon; and

B. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025, together with the report of Auditors thereon:

a) "RESOLVED THAT the audited Standalone financial statement of the Company comprising
of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash
Flow Statement for the financial year ended on that date along with notes thereon
("Financial Statements"), and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon,
as circulated to the members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

b) "RESOLVED THAT the audited consolidated financlal statement of the Company
comprising of the Balance Sheet as at March 37, 2025 the Statement of Prafit and Loss
and Cash Flow Statement for the financial year ended on that date along with notes
thereon (“Financial Statements”), and the reporl of Auditors thereon, as circulated to the
members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

2) Tore-appoint Mrs. Anshu Aggarwal (DIN: 00732690}, who retires by rotation, as a Director and in
this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Anshu Aggarwal (DIN: 00732690), who retires by
rotation at this meeting, being eligible and offer herself for re- appointment, be and is hereby re-
appointed a= a Director of the Company.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3) To ratify the remuneration payable to M/s Jain Sharma & Associates, Cost Auditors of the
Company for the financial year ended on 31* March 2025.

To consider and If thought fit, to pass with or without modification(g) the following resolution as
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provigions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
including any statutory modification{s) or re-enactment(s) therecf, for the time being In force,
members of the Company do hereby ratify the remuneration of Rs. 1,10,000 (Rupees One Lac
Ten Thousand only) plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses incurred in connection
with the cost audit, payable to M/s Jain Sharma & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Regd. No.
000270), Dethi, who have been appeointed by the Board of Directors of the Company as the Cost




4)

5)

Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ended on
March 31,2025."

To approve the appointment of Mrs. Snehal Kashyap (DIN: 09761774) as an Independent,
Professional and Non-Executive Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section- 149, 150 and 152 read with Schedule IV and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder,
Regulation 17{6)(a), 25 (2A) and other applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and/ or any other
applicahle laws (including any statutory amendment(s), modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereot, for the time being in farce),}and pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of Association
of the Company and recommendation of Momination and Remuneration Commitiee of the Board,
Mrs. Snehal Kashyap (DIN: 09761774), who was appointed as Additional Independent Director of
the Company by the Board of Directors in its meeting dated December 02, 2024 and who
possesses relevant expertise and experience and signified her consent to act as independent
director of the Company, and has. submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria for
independence as provided In Section 149(&) of the Act, be and Is hereby appointed as an
independent directar on the board of directors of the Company ("Board”), who shall hold office for
a term of five consecutive years commencing on September 29, 2025, and shall not be liable to
retire by rotation and entitled to receive sitting fees for attending each meeting of the Board as per
the terms of her appointment and as may be determined by the Board from time to time.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company does note the consent letter in Form DIR-2 and the
certificate issued by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, in compliance with Rule 6 of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, received from Mrs. Snehal
Kashyap.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the code for independent directors as stated in Schedule IV of the
Companies Act be and Is hereby placed before the shareholders of the Company for information
and further compliance thereof by Mrs. Snehal Kashyap as Independent Director.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Om Prakash Aggarwal, Chairman and Whole Time Director of the
company be and is hereby severally authorised to file necessary forms with the Registrar of
Companies, Delhi and Haryana at Mew Delhi and to do all the acts, deeds and things which are
necessary for the appointment of Mrs. Snehal Kashyap as an Independent Director of the
Campany.”

To appoint Secretarial Auditor of the Company
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies {Appaintment and Remuneration of Managerial
Parsonnel) Rules, 2074, and Regulation 244 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEB| Listing Regulations™), and any
other applicable provisions of laws, (including any statutory modification(s), amendment({s), or re-
enactment(s} thereof, for the time being in force), and the recommendation of the Board of
Directors of the.Company, Mr. Deepak Rawat, Practicing Company Secretary (Peer review Number
5364/2023), who has offered himself for appointment and have cenfirmed his eligibility to be
appointed as Secretarial Auditor in terms of Regulation 24A(1A) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, be
and are hereby appeointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 (Five)
consecutive years commencing from the financial year 2025-26, to conduct the secretarial audit
and issue the Secretarial Audit Report as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing
Regulations;




RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company and the Audit Committee
thereof, be and are hereby severally authorised to determine and finalise the terms and conditions
of appaointment, including the overall fees of the Secretarial Auditors;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company and the Audit Committee
thereof be and are hereby authorised on behalf of the Company, and can delegate its power to any
Director(s) or Officer(s) of the Company, to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in
its absolute discretion, deem necessary or desirable for such purpose.

By Order of the Board
INDOGULF CROPSCIENCES LIMITED

Sd/-

Sakshi Jain
Company Secretary
Date: 29/08/2025 ACS: 67325
Place: Delhi
Registered Office; 501, Gopal Heights,
MNetaji Subhash Place, Delhi-110034
Website: www.groupindogulf.com
Tel.: 011-40040400
Fax: +91-11-40040444




Notes:

Pursuant to the General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024 read with
Circulars dated May 5, 2020, May 5, 2022 and December 28, 2022, issued by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and circular issued by SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/
CFDPoD-2/ P/ CIR/ 2024/ 133 dated October 3, 2024 ("SEBI Circular") and other applicable
circulars and notifications issued (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in ferce and as amended from time to time, companies are
allowed to hold AGM through Video Conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means
(OAVM), without the physical presence of members at a common venue. In compliance
with the said Circulars, AGM shall be conducted through WC / OAVM,

Pursuant to the Circular No, 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy o attend and cast vote for the members is
not available for this AGM and therefore the Proxy Form, Altendance Slip is not annexed to
thizs Motice. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised
representatives to attend the AGM through VC/0AVM and participate there at and cast
their votes through e-voting.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/0AVM mode 15 minutes before and after the
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure
mentioned in the Notice, The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/0AVM will be
made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include
large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters,
Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit
Committee, Momination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committes, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on
account of first come first served basis.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for
the purpose of reckoning the guorum under Section 103 of the Companles Act, 2013,

Relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102{1) of the Act, in respect of
Special Business as set oul above is annexed hereto and forms part of the Notice of this
meeting. Details of Directars seeking appointment or re-appeointment at the AGM, as
required under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial
Standard on General Meeting (55-2) Issued by the Institute of Company Secretarles of
India, are also annexed and forms part of the Motice of this meeting,

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2073 read with Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) the
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (55-2) issued by the IC5I and Regulation 44 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 {(as amended), and
the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time the Company is
providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be
transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with
Mational Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic
means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote
e-Woting system as well as e-voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13,
2020, the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www groupindogulf.com . The Notice can also be accessed from the websltes of the Stock
Exchanges le. BSE Limited and Naticnal Stock Exchange of India Limited at
www bseindiacom and wwwnseindiacom respectively and the AGM Notice is also
avallahle on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remate e-Voting facility) ie.
www.evoting.nsdl.com

AGM has been convened through VC/08VM in compliance with applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular issued from time to time.




9. The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Mr. Rohit Bhatla, ACS: 67220,
Practicing Company Secretary as the Scrutiniser to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair
and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of e-yoting at the AGM,
first count the votes cast during the AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through
remote e-voting and submit, a consolidated Scrutiniser’s Report of the total number of
yotes cast in favour of or against or invalid, if any, not later than two working days of the
conclusion of the AGM to the Chairman of the Company. The Chairman, or any other
person authorized by the Chairman, shall declare the result of the voting forthwith. The
result, along with the Scrutiniser's Report, will be placed on the Company's website,
www.groupindogulf.com  immediately after the results are declared by the Chairman or
any other person authorsed by the Chairman, and the same shall be communicated to the
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited,
simuitaneously,

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING ANNUAL GEMNERAL
MEETING ARE AS UMDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on September 26, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on September
28, 2025 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting
thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners
as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. September 22, 2025, may cast their vote electronically.
The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share
capltal of the Company as on the cut-off date, being September 22, 2025.

1w tronical ing NSDL e-Voting s m?
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting syslem consists of "Two Steps” which are
mentioned below;

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding

securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts
in order 1o access e-Voting facility,

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in dermat mode is given balow:

Type of shareholders | Login Method

Individual ) l. For OTP based login you can click]
Ehareﬁ_uldgrs holding on https//eservices nedl com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin. jsp. .
securities in demat You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID, 8-digit Client Id, PAN No,

ode with NSDL.
et Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on

registered emall id/mobile number and click on login, After successiull
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein
you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service|
provider l.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of]
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting,

Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Wiz,
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a
maobile, On the e-Services home page click on the "Beneficial Owner”
icon under “"Login” which is available under 'IDeAS’ section , this will

Ir.J




prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password., After
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services
under Value added services, Click on "Access to e-Voting” under e
Yoting services and you will be able to see eVoting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider l.e. NSDL and you will be
re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for easting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
mieeting.

If you are not registered for |DeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https//eservices nsdlcom, Select "Register Online for
IDeAS Portal” of click at
hitps://esenvices.nsdl.com/Secure\Web/|deasDireciReg.jsp

Yisit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
fallowing URL: hitps//www evctingnsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile, Once the home page of e-Voting system ig
taunched, click on the icon “Legin" which is available under
"Shareholder/Member’ section. & new screen will open. You will have to
enter your User 1D {i.e. your sixtesn digit demat account number hold
with NSDL), Password/OTF and a Verification Code as shown on the
screen. After successiul authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-\Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected
to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Sharsholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App "NSDL
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless
voting expernence,

M5DL Mobile App is available on

@ AppStore B Google Play

Individual
Shareholders holding
securities in demal
mode with COSL

\I‘u

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can legin through
their existing vser id and password, Option will be made available o
reach e-Voting page without any further authentication, The users {o
login Easi /Easiesl are reguested (o visit CDSL website
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tah
anc ithen user your existing my easi username & password.

After successful login the Easl / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Vaoting option for eligible companies where the evoling is in progress as
per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option,
ithe user will be able 1o see eVoling page of the eVoling service
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is
alzo links provided to access the system of all eVaoling Service
Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Votlng service providers'
website directly.




3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New
System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option,

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on
www cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user
by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to zee the e-
Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demal account through
Shareholders (holding | your Deposilory Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.
securities in demat upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option,
mode) login through you will be redirected to MWSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
their depository authentication, whereln you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or
participants e-Voting service provider [.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website

of NSDL for casting your vate during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User
1D and Forget Password option avallable at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues
related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.
Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding securities in | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
demat mode with NSDL NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
evoling@nsdl.com or call at D22 - 4886 7000
Individual Shareholders holding securities in Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
dermal mode with CDSL CDSL  helpdesk by sending & request at
helpdesk evoting@cdslindia.com’ or contact at toll free
no. 1800-21-09911




B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Opea web browser by typing ‘the following URL:
https:/fwww evoting.nsdl.com/ either ona Personal Computer or on a mobile:
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available
under ‘Shareholder/Member' section.
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen,
Alternatively, f you are registered for NSDL eservices le. IDEAS you can log-in  at
htips://eservices nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Vating and you can proceed to Step 2 (e Cast your vote
electronically.
4, Your User D detalls are given below ;
Mannar of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL | Your User ID is:
or CDSL) or Physical
a) For Members who hold shares in demat | 8 Character DP |D followed by 8 Digit Client
account with NSDL. 1D
For example if your DP ID iz IN300*** and
Client 1D ig 12*****=* then your user ID is
IN3OD ] 2nsbis,
b) For Members who hold shares indemat | 16 Digit Beneficiary 1D
account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary 1D is
J2ereakakakidis  then your user ID s
‘Izﬁrkﬂﬂkﬁk*ﬂ
¢} For Members holding shares in Physical | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number
Form. registered with the company
For example If follo number s 001%* and
EVEN is 101456 then user 1D s
107456007
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below!

a} If you are already registered for e-Vaoting, then you can user vour existing password to login
and cast your vole.

b} If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial
password’ which was communicated to you Once you retrieve your 'inltlal password', you
need to enter the 'initial password' and the system will force you to change your password,

€) How to retrieve your ‘initial password'?

(i) If your email 10 is registered in your demal account or with the company, vour ‘initial
password' s communicated to you on your email [D. Trace the emall sent to you
from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the emall and open the attachment f.e. a .pdf
file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client D for
NMSOL account, last B digits of client |D for COSL account or folio number for shares
held in physical form. The .pdf file containg your ‘User ID' and your ‘initial password'.

(i} If your email 1D is net registered, please follow sieps mentioned below in process for
ithosa shareholders whose email ids are noi regisiersd.




6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the "Initial password” or have forgotten your
password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?"(If you are holding shares in your demat account with
NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.eveting.nsdl.com.

b} Physical User Reset Password?" (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available
on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name
and your registered address eic.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the
e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. Alter enlering vour password, tick on Agree to "Terms and Cenditiens” by selecting on the check
box,

2. Now, you will have to click on "Login® button,
9. after you click on the "Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join eral Meeting on NSDL e-V stem?
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies "EVEN" in which
you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active staius.

2. Select "EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting
period and casting yvour voie during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, vou
need to click on "VC/0AVM" link placed under "Join Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voling as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate aptions e, assent or dissent, verify/modify the
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also
“Confirm" when prompted,

5. Upon confirmation, the message "Voie cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printoul of the votes ecast by you by clicking on the print option on
the confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will net be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI ete.) are required to send
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Doard Resclution/ Authority letter etc.
with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are avthorized
to vate, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to csrohit2021@gmailcom with a copy marked 1o
evoting@nsdl.com.. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NR| eic.)
can also upload their Goard Resclution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter eic. by
clicking on "Upload Doard Resolution / Authority Letter” displayed under "e-Voting” tab in
their login.

2. It is strongly recommended nol to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event,
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you will need to go through the * Forgot User Details/Password? "or “Physical User Reset Password?”
option avallable on www evoting.nsdl.com 1o reset the password,

3.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section
of www.evoling.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a reguest to Pallavi Mhatre
at evoting@nsdl.com

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set
out in this notice:

:

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder,
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy
of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by emall to
cs{@geoupindoguif.com.

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID
or 16 digit beneficiary 10}, Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account
statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to cs@goupmdogulicom., i you are an Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login
method explained at step 1 (&) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual
meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdlcom for
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to
vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository
Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email 1D
correctly in their demat account in order to access e-\Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1.

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned
abova Tor remote e-voting,

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are

otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system In the
AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM,
Howewver, they will not be eligible to vote atthe AGM,

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the
facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for
Remote e-yaoting.




INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGHVC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/0AVM through the
MNSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for
Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of "WC/0AVM"
placed under "Join meeting” menu against company name, You are requested to click on
VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/0AVM will be available in
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note
that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Vating or have
forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-
Vating instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush,

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better expearience,

Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to
Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or
LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches,

Shareholders who would llke to express their views/have questions may send their
guestions in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email
id, mobile number at cs@goupindogulf.com . The same will be replied by the company
suitably.

Members who would like to express their views or ask guestions during the AGM may
register themselves as a speaker by sending email to the Company at
csi@goupindogulf.com from September 16, 2025 (09:00 a.m. IST) to September 24, 2025
{05:00 p.m IST). Thase Members wha have registered themselves as a speaker will only
be allowed to express their views/ask guestions during the AGM. The Company reserves
the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the
AGM. Please note that, Members questions will be answered only if the shareholder
continues to hold shares of the Company as on the cut-off date,




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO THE PROVISION OF SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEM NO. 2

As required under Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings details in respect of Re-
appointment of Directors at the ensuing AGM — Mrs. Anshu Aggarwal (DIN — 00732690), Director
shall retire by rotation under the provisions of the Act and being eligible, offers herself for re-
appointment. The Nomination & Remuneration Committes and Board of Directors of the Company
have recommended the re-appointment.

The details pertaining to Mrs. Anshu Aggarwal are furnished hereunder:

‘Name of the Director Mrs. Anshu Aggarwal
Date of Birth and Age 17/02/1974 and 57 years
Date of Appointment July 07, 2018
“Nature of Expertise in specific functional areas | Adminisiration & Management
Qualifications Graduate
Relationships with other Directors, Managers | Spouse of Mr, Sanjay Aggarwal and Daughter-in-
and KMP law of Mr. Om Prakash Aggarwal
Directorship held in other companies Mil

Membership / Chairmanship of Committees of | NIL
the Board in other entities

Listed entities from which she has resigned in | NIL
the past 3 (three) years

Number of meetings of the Board attended | 18
during the year

Terms and conditions of Appointment or Re- | Liable to retire by rotation
appointment

Remuneration last Drawn MIL

Remuneration Sought to be paid Being a MNon-Executive Directors, Mrs. Anshu
Aggarwal will not draw any remuneration

Shareholding in Indogulf Cropsciences Limited 84,67.488 equity shares

' Shareholding as beneficial owner MIL

ITEM NO. 3

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder, the Company is required to maintain Cost Audit records and have the same audited by
a Cost Auditor. Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors at
its meeting held on 07/05/2024, appointed M/s Jain Sharma & Assoclates, Cost Accountants
{Firm Regd. No. 000270), Delhi, as Cost Auditar of the Company for conducting the Cost Audit for
the Financial Year ended on 319 March, 2025, al a remuneration of Rs. 1,10,000/- (Rupees One Lac
Ten Thousand only) plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses incurred in connection with
the cost audit,




Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, requires that the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor shall be ratified by the Members.

Member are requested to note that all documents referred to in the accompanying Motice and the
Explanatory Statement, if any, shall be open for inspection at the registered office of the Company
during normal business hours on all working days, upte and including the date of the Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

Mone of the Directors/KMP and/or their relatives is/are concerned or interested In the proposed
resolution of the accompanying notice relating to approval of remuneration payable to Cost
Auditors.

Your Board of Directors recommends the aforesaid resolution Mo, 3 to be passed as Ordinary
Resolution,

ITEM NO. 4

The board of directors on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, in
their meeting held on December 02, 2024 appointed Mrs. Snehal Kashyap (DIMN: 09761774) as an
Additional Director and Independent Mon-Executive Woman Director upte the conclusion of the
ensuing AGM. Further pursuant to the resolution passed by the Board in its meeting held on 29™
August 2025, Mrs. Snehal Kashyap (DIN: 09761774} proposed to be appointed as Independent
Directors of the Company by resolution of the shareholders, in accordance with applicable laws,
including the Companies Act, 2013 as amendead. In this regard, the Board is of the opinion that
Mrz=. Snehal Kashyap fulfil the eriteria for being appointed as independent director, as set out in
the Companies Act, 2013 and that Mre. Snehal Kashyap is independent of the management of the
Company.

The Company has received the consent In writing from Mrs. Snehal Kashyap to act as a Director in
Form DIR-2, intimations to the effect that she is not disqualified to be appointed as a director in
other companies In Form DIR-8 and declarations in writing to the effect thal they meet the criteria
of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board of Directors has recommended the appointment of Mrs. Snehal Kashyap as
Independeant Director for a term of five consecutive years subject to such Directors continuing to
satisfy the criteria of independence in terms of the Companies Act, 2013, the rules notified
thereunder and shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

Mone of the directors and key managerial personnel of the Company and their relatives (as defined
in the Companies Act, 2013} are concerned or interested in the proposed resolution, other than the
proposed appointee Mrs. Snehal Kashyap is concerned or interested inthe proposed resolution

In accordance with Fara 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard - 2 on General Meetings issued hy the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), requisite particulars of the proposed appointees
including thelr profile and specific areas of expertise are mentioned as below:

Brief about Mrs. Snehal Kashyap

Snehal Kashyap, aged 34 years, holds a certificate of practice as a company secretary from the
Institute of Companies Secretarles of India zince September 7, 2017. She s a fellow member of
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India with effect from July 17, 2023.

OTHER DETAILS
Name of the Director Mrs. Snehal Kashyap
Date of Birth and Age 15/06/1990 and 35 years

Date of Appointment Becember 02, 2024




Mature of Expertise In specific functional areas Secretarial Practices and Corporate Governance

Qualifications Company Secretary
Relationships with other Directors, Managers | None

and KMP

Directorship held in other companies 2

Membership / Chairmanship of Committees of
the Board in other entities

Listed entities from which she has resigned in | None
the past 3 (three) years

Mumber of meetings of the Board attended | NA
during the year

Terms and conditions of Appointment or Re- | Mot Liable to retire by rotation
appointment

Remuneration last Drawn MIL

Remuneration Sought to be paid Entitled to sitting fees and remuneration for
attending the meetings of the Board as approved
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and the Board of Directors of the Company, from
time to time, within the overall limits as per the
Companies Act, 2013 and / or as approved by
the shareholders, from time to time

Shareholding in Indogulf Cropsciences Limited MIL

Shareholding as beneficial owner MIL

Member are requested to note that all documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the
Explanatory Statement, if any, shall be open for inspection at the registered office of the Company
during normal business hours on all woerking days, upto and including the date of the Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

MNone of the Directors/KMP and/or their relatives is/are concerned or interested in the proposed
resolution of the appointment of Independent Directors on the board of the company,

Your Board of Directors recommends the aforesaid resolution Mo. 4 to be passed as Ordinary
Resolutions.

ITEM NO. 5

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, and Regulation 244 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations"), every listed company and such ather class of
companies as may be prescribed are required to annex with their Board's Report a Secretarial
Audit Report, issued by a Company Secrelary in practice, in the prescribed form In view of the
Company being classified as a Listed Company and falling within the prescribed class of
companies under the aforesaid provisions, It 1 obligatory to appoint a Secretarial Auditor to carry
out the Secretarial Audit for the financial year ending March 31, 2026 and for subsequent years,
The Audit Committee of the Campany, at its meeting held on August 13, 2025 and the Board of
Directors at its meeting held on August 29, 2025, reviewed profiles of various Practicing Company
Secretaries for this purpose, Based on evaluation of experience, professional track record,
technical capahilities and on the recommendation of the Audit Committes, Board of Directors
approved and recommended the appointment of Mr. Despak Rawat, Practicing Company Secretary




(Peer review Mumber 5364/2023), as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the term of 5
(Five) consecutive years commencing from FY 2025-26 at a proposed fees of Rs. 60,000/- (Rupees
Sixty Thousand only) plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses incurred in connection with
the secretarial audit far the FY 2025-26.

Brief profile of Mr. Deepak Rawat, Practicing Company Secretary

Mr. Deepak Rawat (ACS: 33210 and CP: 12241} Is a practicing company secretary and an
Aszsociate member of Institute of Company Secretaries of India. He is also B.Com (Hens)
graduate. He has a rich knowledge and about ten years of experience in various areas of the
Companies Act, FEMA compliances and other corporate matters. Over the period, he has been
actively involved in providing consultancy and advisory services to businesses in India and
catering to their regular compliances. He has good exposure to compliance audit and compliance
management system, Secretarial due diligence, drafting and vetting of various procedural
Corporate Secretarial documentations,

Further, the Company has received the consent letter and eligibility letter from Mr. Deepak Rawat,
for his appeintment in line with the SEBI Listing Regulations and other applicable laws, Mr. Deepak
Rawat is a peer review professional and not disqualified to act as a Secretarial Auditor and
services that can/ cannot be rendered by him would be in accordance with SEB! Listing
Regulations and as specified by Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The professional fees
payable to the said firm for the financial year 2025-26 shall be mutually decided for the Secretarial
Audit Report, Secretarial Compliance Report and other certifications. The Board of Directors of the
Company in consultation with the Audit Committee may alter and vary the terms and conditions of
appointment, including remuneration payable to the Secretarial Auditors for remalning tenure, in
such manner as may be mutually agreed with the Secretarial Auditors.

Accordingly, the approval of the Members is being sought for the appointment of Mr. Deepak
Rawat, as Secretarial Auditor of the Company, by way of an Ordinary Resolution. The Board of
Directors recommends the resclution as set out at Item Me. 5 of the accompanying Notice for the
approval of the Members,

Mone of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are concerned or interested,
financially or otherwise, in passing of the resolution In ltem No. 5,




STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Indogulf Cropsciences Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Indogull Cropsciences
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ninancial statements, including
summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to o Ythe standalone financiul statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Aet. 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Aect read with the Companics (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles
generally accepled in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the profit and
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the vear ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are ndependent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Instiie of Chartered Accountants of India (1CAL) 1opether with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to owr audit of the Standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the corrent period. Since the Company was not
listed as on March 31, 2025, reporting of Key Audit Matiters as required wunder SA
TN, Communicating Key Awdic Madters in the Independent Auditor s Report, is not applicable for
the yvear,

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board's Report including  Annexures 1o Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and
Sharcholder's Information but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon,




Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In gonnection with our audit ol the standalone {inancial statements, our responsibility is o read the
olher information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone fingncial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 1s o matenal nusstaterment of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report i this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fur view
of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash Hows of the Company in accordance with Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frouds and other imregulanties; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related o
going concem and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to lquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has ne realistic altemative but o do so,

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial statements
as o whole are free from matenal misstatemenl, whether due o frand or eror, and 1o 1ssue an
auditor’s report that ineludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
a puarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or ervor and are considered material
if, individually or in aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions ol users taken on the basis of these standalone [inancial statements,

As part of an awdit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and mamtain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s |dentify and assess the risks of marerial misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the overnde of internal control.




s Obtain an understanding of internal fimancial controls relevant to the audit i order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the cirewmstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act,
wi are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has an adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating eflectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the approprinteness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenmess of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the poing concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainly exisis
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Companyv’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that o material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtamed up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, {ulure
events or conditions may cause the Company 1o cease (0 continue as o going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the standalone financial
stntements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone finuncial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality s the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggrezate, makes it probable that the economice decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and gualitative
factors in (1) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governmance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant aodit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
mternal control that we identify during our audat,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requiremenis regarding independence, and o communicaie with them all relationships and
ofler matiers thal may reasonably be thoughi o bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current perod and
are therefore the key audit matters. We deseribe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that o matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that;

a) We have sought and obtamned all the information and explanations which 1o the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary For the purposes of our audit,




b}

€)

gl

b}

i)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph
2(ipvi) below on reporting under Rule 11ig) of the Companies { Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income.,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevanl books of account.

In our opinton, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specilicd
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies { Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received fFom the directors as on March 31, 20235 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,

With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference 1s
made to our remarks in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act
and paragraph 2(i}vi) below on reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditorsy Rules, 2014,

With respect to the adequacy of the internol financial controls with reference to financial
statement of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Repart in “Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operatng effectiveness of the Company™s internal financial controls with reference o fnancial
statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the vear 15 in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companics ( Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as on March 31, 2025 in
its [nancial position in its standalone finaneial statements. Refer Note 49 o the
standalone lnancial statements,

ii.  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

ili.  There were no amounts which required Lo be transferred to the lovestor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company,

iv, (a) The Management has represented that, w the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which arc material cither individually or in the agpregate) have been advanced
or loaned or mvested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
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sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Bencliciaries.

{b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledpe and belief, no
funds (which are matedal either individually or in the aggrepate) have been received
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding
Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall. whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall’ of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, secority or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

{e) Based on the awdit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11{e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement,

v.  (a) The Company has not proposed final dividend during the previous year.
(b} Mo interim dividend hag been declared and paid by the Company during the year,
{¢) The Company has not proposed linal dividend for the year,

vi.  Based on our examimation which ineluded test checks, the Company, in respect of
linancial year commencing on April 1, 2024, has used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of aceount which has feature of recording audit trail {edit log) and
the same has operated throughout the vear for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software except that the audit trail feature of aforesaid software at the database level
was not enabled during the year, Furiher, during our audit we did not come across any
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with on accounting software where
this feature is enabled,

Additionally, the awdit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory
requirements for recond retention,

For Devesh Parekh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number: 013338N

Sd/-
Devesh Parekh
Partner
Membership number: 092160

Place: Delhi
Date: July 24, 2025
UDRIN: 25092 160BMGIYBS039




ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 1 under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements®
section of our report to the Members of Indogulf Cropsciences Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according 1o the explanations provided to us by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i.  Inrespect of the Company’s property, plant & equipment;

(aj(A) The Company has mamtained proper records showing tull  particulars, including
quantitative details and sitwation of property, plant and equipment and relevant details of
right-of-use assets,

{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b} The property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets have been physically verified
by the management according to the program of periodical verification in phased
manner, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of itg Property, Plant and Equipment. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material diserepancies were noticed on such verification,

() Based on our examination of the property tax receipts and lease agreement for land on
which building is constructed, registered sale deed ! transfer deed | convevance deed
provided to us, we report that, the title in respect of self-constructed buildings and title
deeds of all other immaovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). disclosed in the
standalone financial statements included under Property, Plant and Equipment are held in
the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

td) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including right-
of-use assets) and imangible assets durdng the year,

el Based on the information and explanation provided to uws, no proceedings have been
initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for
helding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1958 (as
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

i, {a) We have been explained by the management that the mventory {other than malerial in
trunsit) has been physically verified at reasonable intervals and the procedures of physical
verification of inventory followed by the management are reasonable in relation 1o the size
of the Company and nature of its business, According 1o information and explanations given
to us, the material discrepancies. if any, noticed on such physical verification of inventory as
compared to book records were properly dealt within the books ol accounts. Discrepancies
of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed.

ib)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits against security of current assets in excess of five crore rupees, in
ageregate, from banks or Anancial instinutions, Based upon the audit procedure performed by
us, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks or financial
institutions are materially in agreement with the books of account of the Company,




iii.

Wil

The Company has granted loans/advances in the nature of loans to its wholly owned subsidiaries
during the vear, the terms and conditions of which are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the
Company’s interest. No schedule of repayment of principal or interest has been stipulated. and
accordingly, we are unable 1o comment on the regularity of reépayments or overdues. The
Company has not renewed or extended loans to seitle existing loans, The details of such loans are
as follows:

{In Millions)

MName Relation Aggregate | Outstanding Related
Amount Balance Party

N (Yes/No)
Abhiprakash Whaolly
Globus Private | Owned 23.45 24 61 Yes
Limited Subsidiary
Indogulf Whally
Cropsciences | Owned 0.73 9.3% Yes
Australioc PTY | Subsidiary i o
Lid.

According lo the mformation, explanations and representations given to us and based upon audil
procedures performed, we are of the opinion that in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and
securities, the Company has complied with the provisions of sections 155 and 186 of the Act

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits or there 15 no amount which has been considered as deemed deposit
within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2004 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company,

We have broadly reviewed the books of accoum mamtained by the Company pursuant 1o the
rules made by Central Government for the maintenance of the cost records under section
148(1) of the Act in respect to the Company’s produets to which said rules are made applicable
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed records have been made and maintained,
We have however not made a detailed examination of the said records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

ia) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has  generally been regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including, provident fund, emplovees' stale nsurance, income fax, goods and
service tax, custom duty, cess and any other material statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities to the extent applicable and further there were no undisputed statutory dues payable for
a period of more than six months from the date they become pavable as at March 31, 2025,

(b} According to the records and information and explanations given Lo us, there are no dues in
respect of income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of excise. duty of custom
and value added tax that have not been deposited on account of any dispute except as given below:




(Rs. In Millions)

s Name of the Nature of Period fo Forum where Gross Amount Net
No. Statute Dues which it Dispute is Liability Deposited Amount
Relates Pending (A) Under Protest (A-B)
(B)
I Custom  Duty, | Custom Duty [ 01.01,2017 Commissioner 3.97 258 0.99
Delhi 5] {Appeal)
31.12.2020 Custom,  New
Delhi
2 Goods and | GST 2021-22 Appellate 3.08 L.04 2.04
Service  Tax 2018-19 Authority - GST
{ Chhattisgarh) 2019-20
3 Goods and | GST 2017-18 Assistant 1.37 - 1.37
Service  Tax Commissioner of
{Delhi) State Tax Ward
4 Zone 4
4 Goods and | GST 2017-1% Excise & 225 1.12 1.13
Serviee Tax Taxation
{Samba, JEK)
3 Goods and | GST 2001718 & | Central Excise, EH O - 367
Service  Tax Assistant
(Odisha) i Commissioner.
& Cioods and | GST 2017-18 & | Appellate 4.49 449 :
Service  Tax 2018-19 Authority - GST
(Punjab)
¥ Central  Sales | CST 2013-14 & | Deputy Comm, 2.21 - 221
Tax F017-18 Of Commercial
{ Ahmedabad, = Tax { Admn,), A
Gujarat)
B. VAT VAT 2007-1% Deputy Comm, 048 - 048
{ Ahmedabad, OF Comimereial
Gujarat) Tax { Admn.), A
o Income  Tax | INCOME 201 5-16 Commissioner of 1697 139 13.58
Act, 1961 TAX ACT Income-tax
1961 {Appeals)
10. | Consumer The 2022-23 The Registrar, .10 (.55 ().55
Dispute Repistrar, Consumer
Redressal Consumer Dispute
Commission Dispute Redressal
{ Ahmedabad) | Redressal Commission,
Commission, Ahmedabad
Ahlmedabad
11, | CCE Jammu Excise NOV 2011 | Custom Excise 86,02 = R6.02
& Service Tax
IR LS Appellate
2014 Tribunal
12, Ex-:isa and | Excise FY 2010-11 C usmn.ﬁ_ Excise 36,08 - 16.08
ustom & Service Tax
Tribunal AND FY | Appellate
Tribunal
213 Chandigargh




S. Name of the Nature of Period to Forum where Gross Amount Net
No. Statule Dues which it Dispute is Liability Deposited Amount
Relates Pending (A) Under Protest (A-B)
(B)
I3, GST Appeal against 49,81 |.25 48,56
Lioods and 2017-18 & | assistant
Service Tax 301%-19 ﬂummissinncr
(| Sonepat) State Tax
; _Sonepat
14, GGST Appeal against 12.06 - | 2.0
Loods and assistani
Service Tax 2020-21 commissioner
(Somepal) State Tax
Sonepil
viii.  There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the vear in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961 ).
iz {a) According 1o the nfonmation and explanation given to us and based on our examination of

records, the Company has net defaulted on repavment of loans and borrowings or in the
pavment of interest thereon to any lender,

(b} According to the information and explanations given 1o us and based on our examination of
records, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
insliiuion or government or any government authority,

{c) In our epinion and according to the information and explanation given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

{d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short term basis have, prima facie, not
been used during the vear for long-term purposes by the Company,

ie) According to the mformation and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, the Company has not talken any funds from any entity or person on account of or o
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us and hased on our examination of
records, the Company has nol rised loans during the yvear on the pledge of secunities held nats
Subsidiaries.

% (a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a)
of the Order is not applicable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given 1o us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has made privale placement ol equity shares during
the year. The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 42 and 62 of the




Xil.

xdif.

xiv.

X,

%yl

Cmnpnnies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable, and the funds raised have heen used for the
purposes for which they were raised.

{a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, no matersal fraud by the Company and no matenal fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the vear,

{b) No report under sub-section (12} of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Compames (Aundit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the vear and upto the date of audit report,

() According o the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the vear.

The Company 1s not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given 1o us and based on our examination of
records. the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(a) Based on informaton and cxplanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our
opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and
the nature of its business.

(b)) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the vear under audir, issued 1o the
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures,

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, during the vear the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
Directors or persons connected with its directors, therefore provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

{a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a) of the Order is not
applicable,

{b) According to the information and explanation given to uz and based on our examination of
records, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activitics. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (b) of the Order is not applicable.

{¢) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (¢} of the Order
is not applicable.

{d) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
records, there are no corg invesiment companies within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016). Accordingly, clause 3xvi)d) of the
Order is not applicable.




xvil.  The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year.

xviil,  There has been no resignation of the stanory auditors of the Company during the year,

xix,  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial asscis
and payment of financial labilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions. nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this 1s-nol an assuranee a3 1o the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project,
Accordingly, elavse 3(xx)a) and 3(xx}b) of the Order are not applicable,

For Devesh Parekh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number: (1 3338N

Sd/-
Devesh Parekh
Partner
Membership number: 092160

Place: Delhi
Date: July 24, 2025
UDIN:25002 1 60BMGIYBR039




ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEFPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
{ Referred to in paragraph 2({g) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of
our report 1o the Members of Indogulf Cropsciences Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act™)

We have audited the mternal financial comrols with reference to financial statements of Indogulf
Cropsciences Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the mternal control with reference to financial statements enteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal finanecial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business., including adherence to respective Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the wmely prepacation of relinble finanecial
information, as required under the Act.

Aunditor®s Responsibility

Our responsibility 15 to express an opinion on the intemal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audil of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidince
Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 1430 10) of the Act, to the extent applicable (o an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit 1o obfain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respecs.

Our audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference 1o financial slatements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dus
1o frand or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements of
the Company,




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed 1o
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporiing and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the asscts of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permil preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generallv accepted accounting principles, and that receipis
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the Company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference o financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to ervor or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial contral with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Compuny has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference 1o
financial statements and such intemal fingncial controls with reference o financial statements were
operating cffectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control with reference 1o financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Devesh Parekh & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 013338N

Sd/-
Devesh Parekh
Partner
Membership number: 092160

Place: Delhi
Drate: July 24, 2025
UDIN: 25092 160BMGIYBRO39




Indogulf Cropsciences Limited

TN TTE991L 1903 FLONS 1854
Stundalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

All concinta ame in TN in Millions. svioept orfermdae siuesd

e Asat - ‘“d
Migrch 31, 2128 Wearch 31, 20
ASZETS
1 Mun-carrent atgeds
Property. plant asd =guizment 3 359 42 103
Capital waik-in-progroes 4 STs0 1121%
Intangibiv sasets 5 36.15 4430
Infanghle aassts under develapment ] 182 1.51
Righieofuse geginy " 4 i 40,75
Financial ssae
(i) Inyestments B i3} 0.2l
15 Orther Anenrisl sesers ] 693 R K]
Cither nogcurrend annsld it 1323 8083
Cutrent (84 Baseis (nat) 11763 108.97
Total nou-current Assees 1,250.45 &.50
2 Current assets )
Invenitouios 12 2611 53 L5209
Finanrial Assa1s
|i3 Trade receivables 13 1364 45 1314 13
(i) Cash and cazh equivalents 14 RENIL 2916
(Lt} Bank balances other tham (i1 abawve - -
[} Lt - -
[iwr) Tithes Arencial asyedd 13 A% 84 6T
Crlver current aseeis 16 4% 36 25021
Curpent fax astets (net) -
Tital curvent agts 353244 4,522,215
3 Asserz Held for Bils .97 797
Ta7 .97
Talal areets & 82048 542472
EQUITY AND LTARTLITIES
Equity
Equiry Share capiral 13 AZ7 8T 13519
Predference Share cagiial 18 - L.2F
Crtser Equury 19 227508 0Rd |k
Total egquity 17ELNS 1,300.56
LIABILITIES
| Mon-enrvent fiabiliries
Fimancial Lisbilifzes
i) Borrawings 20 3519 18556
(i) Lease Lisbilitiea - 4123 3591
fudi} Ciher fisenicial babilifes 2 Th- 2% b5
FProvisions 22 1358 2110
Deaferred tax labilies fnet) px] [24 B3| 122.9%)
Tetal mon-curremt akilites 474,43 183,00
2 Currend llabilitles
Fimaneigh Lighilines
(i Borrowings L) 1.508 82 126006
(i3] Lugss Liabulities . 1842 915
{ixi} Trade Peyables: 13
Micro & Smsl] Enterpeises 1L74z1 7952
Oithers L2497 ELT B4
(1v) Crther finenecal lizboioes 2% 23282 20778
Cument tax Labilibes 27 134 52 111
Cotbser corient labdities 23 1502 19,47
Provigiong 29 575 223
Tutal currens Habilides 3,363,190 LALLIG
Tulal equity and labikiies 22048 5,42d, T2
The acehmpanying woles e an niegral port of the fmaneinl satements
Mlaterial Accounting Policies Tind
Muies to Standalone Financial Sintemenis 3ig 56

Az per pur szparate veport of even dave annexad horewith
For DEVESH PAREKH & CL)

Chersrad Accoynians

Finm's Fegldtration Mumbar 0133389

Sdf-

Devesh Farelh

Partner

Membership Mamber 092140

Tlace: Delhi
Draie: Tuby 24, 2025
UDiMN: 250592 |S0BMG] Y BEIZS

FOR ARND ON BEMALT OF THE BOARD
INDOGULF CROPSCIENCES LINITED

Sdf- 34
Sanjay Aggarwal Om Prakagh Apgarwal
Mamaging Diureector ‘Whole Time Director
P 0763835 L 0733440

Sd- Sdi=
hlamsj Gapia Snkzhi Joim
Chief Fmamcial Offficer Company Secretary
FLA 513135 ALE -AGTITS
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Indogulf Cropsciences Limited
CIN: UT4E99DL 1993 PLCOS1 RS54

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss as at March 31, 2025
All amounds e in INE i billions. meccpt otkerwese stsrad

Note Year ended -~ Yeur ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
Bevenua from operalions A0 582376 553254
Ciiher income 31 43,00 35.8%
Total Income 5.966.T6 5,555.17
Expenses
Cost of fw material dnd components congumed 32 455308 4.024.65
Purchase of Traded Goods 33 L0367 151.81
Changes in inventiories of finished goods, wort-in-progress snd tral 34 {460.07) {231.71)
Coat of service consuimed
Einployee benefits expense 35 446 20 FBE.S0
Finance Cozls kL] [42 3% 129.46
Depreciation and amartization expense 37 10457 10507
Criher expenses 8 636.96 581.98
Total expenses 5,526,584 5 160,16
Profit exceptionnl iteins and before tax 439.92 398.01
Exceptitnal lems 39 1349 (30.65)
Profii belore tnx 453.41 361.35
Tax Expenses 40
= Current Tax 134 58 10817
- Tax of cariicr years na7v (17 #3)
- Defemred Taa (239} (13.61)
Total! Tax Expenses 132.56 7661
Profit for the perind 385 234,74
rther comprehensive ineame
Trerns fat will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Eemeasureraent af ned defined benefit plans 207 L
Income mx refating to these mems (0.52) (0.5
Incorme fax relatng to DBE remeasuiements [0.52) (.20
Criher comprehensive income for the period (net of tax) 1.55 1.70
Total comprehensive ineome for the peciod [net of tax) 31240 286,44
Earnings per cquity share 30
Basic camnings per share 658 1211
Dﬂ.‘utedmiﬂ?pershue 7.16 12 04
The accompanying wotes ave sn invegral part of the financial statenrenis
Marerial Acconnting FPolicies 1to2
Notes to Standalone Financial Starements 3 10 36

As per gur geparate report of even date annexed herewith

For DEVESH PAREKH & 0. FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Charlered Accowtents INDOGULF CROPSCTENCES LIMITED
Firm's Regisiration Mimnber 0 13338N

Sd- &d~ B
Devesh Parekh Samjay Aggarwal Om Prakash Aggarwal
Parlneg Managing Divector whols Time Dirsctor
Membetship Member 092 160 DIM 00763635 DIM 00732440

G- Bd-
Flace: Deli Manoj Gupta Sakshi Jain
Drate: Tuly 24, 2025 Chief Financigl Officer Company Secretary
UDTN- 250921 60BMGTYRANS FCA -513736 ACS -A6T32S




Tndogull Crapsciences Limited
CTN: 74899011999 PLCIS 1554 .
Standalone Stavement of Changes in Equity as at March 31, 2025

All gmagnie gme m IME in Millions. exeept adherwise siared

{0} Equitw share capiial
Eguiiy shares of INR 18 each igmoed, subscribed and Tally poid Muniler of shared Share capital
Agat April 1, 2003 2,33,18,718 23519
Changes m equity share capital during the current yesr - -
Brlnnce as st March 31, 2024 235,148,728 135.19
Chenges m equity share capiml during the current year 352 60708 152 &8
Balanee as st March 31, 2015 48787456 457.87
b. Oiker Equity
Becuritiey Premhim FVTOC
FEIErYE - ERUILY
I grumeniy

Ag At .-\.p.ril 1. 2023 1,704 8% 1563 TT 18 = | Iﬂ"-‘.ﬁ.ﬂ
Profit for the period 28474 - - - 144
Cither comprehensive ineome for the year 170 - - - 1.7
Toial comprekeasive income for the year 18644 - - - 2854
Dundend paid during the year - G - - -
Tax on Dvidend paid = - - = =
Balance as o1 March 31, 2024 1,991.33 15.63 16 - 2,084.12
Agoaf April 102024 LR9L33 15:63 TT1h = 2.084,12
Profic far the period 1035 320.85
Other opmprehansive inepme fior the year 155 1.55
Total comprehensive income for the yeur 23373 1563 .16 = 2 AH0,.52
Diwvigend pasd during the year - = = 2 %
Tax gn Dividend paid - - - - -
Leps: Appeopriations foe isgee of Rormes Shares 23644, = = - (236.44)
Add. Pramiar on igzee oF ghavres - - 144 - 115,00
Lialanes n¢ st March 31, 2025 1077.24 15.63 18216 - 227508
The accompanying nobed are dn intégrul port of the fns  TIIN: 250021 0RMGTYRS0)Y
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Yesr. Yiear mhdl
Mareh 31 2025 March 31, 2024
(A Cash Flaw From Operating Adtvitied
MWl profii before iax 455,41 Jl35
- Depieciation 1487 e REA
- [Profith Loss on 3l of Asters [1345) 3565
- [Profity Loss an Sale of Investment - -
- Miscellaneous Expenses 247 260
- Imferest Income [5.35) (9.52)
- Dhiyidend Thoosme - -
- Interest Expences 137.06 [34.%]
- Interest Expenses an leass liahakity 527 455
|Crperaring Profit Before Working Caplial Changes 68304 62321
Adjustmenss for
= [Incr=pacyDieciease i inventosics [E77.44) [38.72
- [Incrzpse yDiecrease i rede recsivables 150,33 14453 T)
= [Imcrepse ) Deerease in other financial sasets-long tesm [142] {181
- [Increase pDieerease in other finenciel pasets-ghort teom 21.02 fas L)
= [Imcrease )y Deerease in ofher carvend aseefs (26855} 43 T4
- [Imcrease pfDieevease in provigions EXIH] |44
- Increased Decrease) in rade payebles 23503 17092
- Increated Decregse’ in other finencial liabilites-shott teim 45 14 859
- Increasef Decrease) in other finencial Habilities-lang tevm 586 Q.28
- IncregteqDecrense) in other curvent liakilities 4,55 5.7
Cash (used)/generated from operatinns (004 SERTO
Leas: Income fax paid (DL 1 (63,80}
INet Cash Flow from Operalug Acchrities (A) {117.25) 524.9
(B} Cash Flow From Investing Activities
- Addition fo property, plant and equinment and intangible gssats [420 48] {348 31 )|
- Prgeeeds from gale ol property plant 2nd equipment 1830 £85.31
- Interegt received 505 A
Met Cagh Flow nged in toveatfug Aethvides (B) {306,201 151.78)
{C} Cash Flow From Financing Activities
« Proceeds from long term bomowings 170,43 125.54)
= Proceeds’ Pepeyment) from/of short term bormo wings 448 76 312,90}
= Imterest paid r13T 064 [124.51)
- Payment of leass hability [23.%8) 73N
= isgme of shoreg 120000
Wet Cagh Fluw peneruted fromfqused in) Fimancing Activities {C) STR.35 (BT
Wl Imeresde (deprense) in Cagh and Coadh Bouivalenis (A+B+C) 64,91 {762)
pch and Cagh Equivalents a1 the beptnning of the year 2016 34.T8
Caszh snd Cash Equivalents ar the eml of the year ER R 21016
Far the purpoge of the statempnt of cash fows, cagh and cash equivalenis comprise the fnliowing:
Veewr ended Year ended
3. 2025 Mirch 31202
Balarces wath banks
O curremt aogoumts 1.4] 358
Cash on hand .40 1.66
Depamis with remarming marority befween fhree snd raetve months 02 25 3552
Taotal cash and cash equivaleats .0 2306
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Indogulf Cropsciences Limited

CIN: UT4899DL1293PLCOSIR54

Notes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in INR in Millions, except otherwise stated)

1. Corporate Information

Indogulf Cropsciences Limited { the “Company™) was incorporated on January 22, 1993 as an
unlisted public company under under the Companies Act, 1956, wvide registration no.
U74899DL 1993PLCOS 1854, The shares of the Company are not listed in India or abroad on any
Stock Exchange, The registered office of the Company is located at 501, Gopal Heights, Netaji
Subhash Place, New Delhi-1 10034, India. The company is engaged in the manufacturing and trading
activities of Agro chemicals viz, Micro Mutrients, Pesticides, Fertilizers, ete for agriculiure purposes,

The fnancial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
July 24, 2025,

2. Material accounting policies
2.1. Basis of Preparation

The fnancial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20135 notified

under section 133 of the Companies Act 2003 (“the Act™) as amended thereafter and other relevant
provision of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on a hastorical cost basis, exeept for the following assets
and labilities which have been measured at Faor value or revalued amount;

{a) Derivative financial instruments,

{b) Plan assets of defined employee benefit plans, and

(e} Certain financial assets and lobilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments)

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INE) which is also the Company's functional
currency and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs, except when otherwise indicated.

2.2. Summary of material accounting policies

a}l Investment in subsidiaries
A subsidiary 15 an entity that is controlled by another entity,
The Company's investments in its subsidiaries and joint venture are accounted at cost less
impairment,

Impairment of investments

The Company reviews its currying value of investments carried at cost annually, or more
frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss i3 recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss

b) Revenue recognition
Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services, The Company has generally
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Motes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 20235
(Al amounis are in INR in Millions, except otherwise stated)

concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the
goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue i stated exclusive of Goods and Service Tax (GST).

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to
revenue from contracts with customers are provided m Note 43.

The specific recognition criterta described below must also be met before revenue 15 recognised,
Sales of poods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recogmsed at the point in fime when control is transferred to the
customer which is usually on shipment, Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which
is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, rebates, scheme allowances, price concessions,
incentives, and returns, iF any, as specified in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes
taxes collected from customers on behalf of the government. Accruals for discounts/incentives and
relurns are estimated (using the most likely method) based on accumulated experience and
underlyving schemes and agreements with customers. Due to the short nature of credit period given
to ¢ustomers, there is no fnancing component in the contract.

Rendering of services

Revenue from sale of services is recognised over the period of time as per the terms of the contract
with customers based on the stage of completion when the outcome of the transactions involving
rendering of services can be estimated reliably,

Contract balances

Trade receivahles

A receivable s recognised iF an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payvment of the consideration is due), Refor to accounting
policies of financial assets in section (o) linancial instruments.

Contract liabilities

A contract Hability is recognised if a payvment is received or a payment is due (whichever is carlier)
from a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services, Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company perfornis under the contract (Le., transfers control of the
refated poods or services (o the customer).

Other income
Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured either @t amortised cost or far value through other
comprehensive income, interest income 15 recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR 15
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument {for
example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit
losses. Interest income is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in INR in Millions, except otherwise stated)

Dividends

Revenuoe is recognised when the Company s right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

¢} Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment and capital work-in progress are stated at cost, net af
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, The cost comprises
purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization eriteria are met and directly atinbutable cost of
bringing the asset o its working condition for the mtended vse. Any trade discounts and rehates
are deducted inarriving at the purchase price. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of fixed asset is added Lo its book value
only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed
standard of performance. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful
lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as
incurred. In respect of additions to /deletions from the property, plant and equipment. depreciation
is provided on pro-rata basis Le, from (upto) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 15 recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss,

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in the assets under Capital work in progress
net of accumulated impairment loss if any, At the point when an asset is operating at
management’s intended use, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of
property, plant and  equipment and  depreciation commences. Costs assoctated  with  the
commissioning of an asset and present value of any obligatory decommissioning costs are
capitalised in the asset when the recognition criteria for provisions are satisfied. Revenue (net of
cost) generated from production during the trial period is capitalised.

Property, plant and equipment except frechold land held for use in the production, supply or
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated financial statement at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, ifany,

Depreciable amount for assets s the cost of an asset, or other amount substituied for cost, less is
estimated residual value. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other
than freehold land and properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful
lives, using written down value method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the
Companies Act, 2013,

The Company, based on technical assessment made by techmical expert and management
estimate. depreciates certain items of plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are
different from the uvseful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, The
management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation
of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. Depréciation on remaining items of
property, plant & equipment has been provided on Straight Line Method based on useful life of
the assets as preseribed in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013, . Furthermore, the Company




Indogull Cropsciences Limited

CIN: UT4899DLIY93PLCOS1 854

Motes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 20235
(ANl amounts are in INR in Millions, except otherwise stated)

considers climate-reluted matters, including physical and transition risks. Specifically, the
Company determines whether climate-related legislation and regulations might impact either the
useful life or residual values,

Estimated vseful lives of the assets are as follows:

| Nature of Tangible Assets Useful Life (years)
Plant & Equipment 10-15
Building an
Laboratory Equipment 10
Office Equipment 5
Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 1o
Wehicles 8-10
Leasehold Improvements Ower the period of lease or useful life whichever is
lovwver

d) Investment Properties

€)

Investment properties are properties held for rental income, capital appreciation or the purpose of
future use is not yet determined by the management as of the reporting date, Investment properties
are mensured initially at cost, including fransaction costs, Subsequent costs are included in the
asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Company. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognized in Statement of profit and loss as incurred,

Investment propertics are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Though the Company measures investment properties
using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment properties are disclosed in the notes.
Fair values are determined based on the evaluation performed by the management based on the
acceptable valuation method,

Investment properties are de-recognized erther when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrown [rom use and no future cconomic benefit is expected from their disposal.
The difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognized i the Statement of profit and loss in the period of de-recogmtion,

The Company depreciates building component of investment property over 30 years from the date
of original purchase.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment properties only when there is a change in use.
Transfers between investment property, owner-occupied property and inventories do nol change
the carrying amount of the property transferred and they do not change the cost of that property
for measurement or disclosure purposes.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost, Following initial
recogmition, intangible assets with finite life are carried at cost less any neccumulated amortisation
and accumulated impaimment losses. Intermally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised
develapment costs, are not capitalised and the relnted expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in
the period in which the expenditure is incurred,
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Inlangible assels are amortized on a straight- ling basis over the estimated useful cconomie life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
lifie are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period, Changes in the expected useful life
or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation peniod or method, as appropriate, and are treated os
changes in accounting estimates, The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure torms part of carrying
value of another asset.

Grains or losses arsing from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amoun| of the asset and are recognised m the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are
recognised as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate technical and commercial
feasibility of making the asset available for use or sale.

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the
asscl beginsg when development 15 complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over
the period of expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset,

A summary of the palicies applied to the Company's intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible assets Useful Life (vears)
Software 3
Patents and Trademarks &

f) Forelgn currencies
Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded applyving the exchange rate at the date of
transaction.

Muonetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency remaining unsettled ar the end of
the year, are translated at the closing rates prevailing on the Balance Sheet date.

Non-monetary items which are camied in terms of histornical cost denominated in foreign currency
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of initial transaction.

Exclhange differences arising as a result of the above are recognized as income or expenses in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items at
rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in
previous financial statements, are recognised as income or expenses in the year in which they
arise.
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g) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial imstruments, such as, dervatives ond equity investments at fair
value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 1o
sell the nsset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b} In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company,

The fair value of an asset or a hability is measured vwsing the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benelils by using the ssset in its highest and best use or by selling it 1o
another market participant thai would use the asset in its highest and best usc.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the cireumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
mputs and minmmising the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liahilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

a) Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

b) Lewvel 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement 15 directly or indirectly observable.

¢} Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement s unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant w the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or hability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting poliey for fair value, Other fair valee related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

- Dwantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (MNote 46)
- Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (Note 46)
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h} Leases

The Company assesses af contract incepti{}n whether a contract 1s, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

A lease is a contract that contains right 1o control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration,

Company as a lessee

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term and low value leases, The Company recognises lease habilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets,

The Company has lease contracts for various items of office premises and warehouses.
i) Right-of-usc asscis

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (Le., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured al cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease
liabilitics, The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilitics recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payvments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line methed basis over the
lease term, as follows:

Mature of  Right-ol-use | Depreciation period
assets

Factory Godown 30-99 years

Office premises 1-5 years
Warchouses | -5 yeurs

There are renewal terms that can extend the lease term for up to 1-2 years and are included in the
lease term when 1t 1% reasonably certain that the Company will exercise the option. The nght-of-
use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (j)
Imipairment of non-financial assets.

The Right-of-use assets are presented as separate line item in the balance sheet,

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured al the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease. if the lease term reflects the
Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment oceours.

In calculating the present value of lease payiments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate 4l the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicil i the lease 15 not readily
determmnable, Afier the commencement date, the amount of lease habilines 15 increased w reflect

147
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the accretion of inlerest and reduced for the lease payvments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured 1f there 15 a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments.

The lease liabilities are presented as separate line item in the balance sheet under financial
liabilities,

iii) Short-term leases

The Company applics the shod-term lease recognition exemplion 1o its short-term leases of
office premises, and warchouses (e, those leases that have a lease tenn of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option},

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Company a5 a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising 15 accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease termis and is included m other income in the statement of
profit or loss due 1o its operating nature. Initial direct costs ncurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income,

i) Inventories

The items of inventories are measured at cost after providing tor obsolescence. if any, Cost of
inventories comprise of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and appropriale portion of varlable
and fixed proportion overheads and such other costs ncurred in bringing them to their respective
present location and condition. Fixed production overheads are based on normal capacity of
production facilities,

Stores and spares, packing materials and raw materials are valued at lower of cost or net realisable
value. However, the aforesaid ilems are not valued below cost if the finished products in which
they are to be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost,

Semi-finished products, finished products and by-products are valued at lower of cost or net
realisable value.

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and nel realizable value,

Cost of raw material, process chemmcals, stores and spares packing materials, tading and other
products are deternined on weighted average bosis,

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary 10 make the sale,
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i

k)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount, An asset's recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGLUY net selling price and its value in use, The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets, Where the carrying amount of an
assct or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset i considered impaired and 15 writlen
down to its recoverable amount, In assessimg value inouse, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value vsing a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cwrent market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net
selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used,

After impainment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amouni of the asset over ils
remaining useful life.

An assessment s made at each reporting date as to whether thers is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. I such indication
exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit's recoverable amount, A
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change m the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrving amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrving amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior vears. Such reversal is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase:

Provisions, contingent liahilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The expense relating to-a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net
of any reimbursement.

[f the effeet of the time value of money is material, provisions dare discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific o the lability, When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a loance cost,
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates,

Contingent liahilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the vccurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liabality also
arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liabality that cannot be recognized because it cannot
be measured rehiably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements,
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Contingent Assets

A contingent asset 1s not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise. When an inflow ol economic benefits is probable, contingent asseis are
disclosed in the financial statements,

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date,

The expenses related (o scheme/business promotion/various discounts are accounted For on
acceptance basis,

I Retirement and other employee benelits

A,

Short term employee benefits

All employee henefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short<derm emplovee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, allowances, efc., are
recognised as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss of
the year in which the emplovee renders the related service,

Post employment benefits

i

]

Defined contribution plans

The Company’s contribution to provident fund is considered as defined contribution
plans and are charged as an expense as it falls due based on the amount of contribution
required o be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans of gratity determined vsing the Projected Unit Credit Method
with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balunce sheet date, Actuarial gain and
losses are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which they occur, Obligation 15 measured at the present value of estmated future cash
flows using a discounted rate that is determined by reference to market vields at the
Balance Sheet date on Government Securitics as reduced by the fair value of scheme
assels.

Other long-term emplovee benefits

Long-term Compensated Absences and Long Service Awards are provided for on the
basis of an acmarial valuation, using the Projected Unit Credit Method, as at the date of
the Balance Sheet. Actuanal gains / losses comprising of experience adjustments and the
effeets of changes in actuarial asswmptions are immediately recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. The obligation 1s measured at the present value of estimated future
cash flows using a discounted rate that is determined by reference to market yields at the
Balance Sheet date on Government Securities,
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m) Financial instruments

A financial mstrument is any contract that mives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial hahility or equity instrument of another entity,

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All finanecial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset,

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

a)  Debt nstruments at amortised cost

b} Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

¢} Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

d) Equity mnstruments measured at fur value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCT)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met;

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash Tows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPT) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
This category generally applies to trade receivables, security deposits & other receivables.

Debt instrument at FYTOCI
A Cdebt instrument” s classilied as at the FVTOCT if both of the following enteria are met;

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and
by The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL
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Dbt instruments included within the FVYTOCI category are measured initially as well as at cach
reporting date at fair value, Fair value movements arg recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCT)., However, the Company recognizes inferest income, impairment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition
of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity
to Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCT debt instrument is
reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, 1s classified as at FVTPL,

In addition. the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCT criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing =0 reduces or eliminates a measurement or recogmition inconsistency {referred to as
‘peccounting mismatch'). The Company has designated certain debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of lod AS 1Y are measuved at farr value Equity mstruments
which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income
subsequent changes in the fair value, The Company makes such election on an instrumcnt-hy-
instrument basis, The classification 1s made on initial recognition and 15 irrevocable,

It the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends. are recognized in the OCT. There is no recycling
of the amounts frony OCT to profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of 2 company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s consolidated
balance sheet) when:

a} The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash fows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows m full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through” arrangoment; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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When the Company has transferred its nghts to receive cash flows from an asset or has enlered
into a pass-through arrangement. it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Company also recognises an associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated lability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Contipuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
al the lower ol the onginal carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
EXpOSUTE:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments. and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

¢c) Trade receivables or any contractunl right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind A% 115

The company follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
Trade and other receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes m credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its mitial recognition.

n} Financial liabilities

Initial recopnition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatves designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriaic,

All financial liabilities are recogmsed mitally at for value and, o the case of loans and
borrowings and payvables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

The Company's financial labilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including eash credits and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial labilities depends on their classification, as described below:
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a)

Loans and horrowings

After nitial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured al
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss when the liabilitics are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process,

Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an miegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance cosis
in the Statement of Prolit and Loss,

This category zenerally applies to borrowings:
Financial lHabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon mitial recogmition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilitics are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near tern This category also includes derivative financial instruments enterad
inte by the company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109,

Cruins or losses on liahilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Derecognition

A financial lability s derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially dilferent terms, or (he lerms of an existing Hability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Offsctting of linancial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assers and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The company uses derivative financial instruments, such as inferest rate swaps, CUTTENCY swaps.,
options and forward contracts to hedge its interest rate and foreign currency risks. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract 15 entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fur value is
negative,

Any gans or losses ansimg from changes in the fair value of dervatives are taken directly to
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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p) Dividend

The company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company, As
per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the
shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in other equity,

During the year the Company has not declared and paid any Interim Dividend,
q) Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
trom or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or sobstantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the
Company operates and generates taxable income,

Current income tax relating 1o items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or 0 eguity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlving transaction either in OCI or directly i equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with tespect to situations in which
applicable tax repulations are subject (o interpretation and  establishes  provisions  whers
appropriate,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the lability method on temporary differences berween the tax
bases of assets and liabilitics and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred 1ax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary dilferences, excepi:

a)  When the deferred tax liability arses from the initial recognition of goodwill or an assel
or hability in & transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

b} I respect of taxable temporary differences associated with interests in joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary dilfferences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foresecable future

Deferred tux assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets are recogmsed to the extent that
it 15 probable that mxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised
except:

- When the deferred 1ax assetl relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or lLability i a transaction that 15 nol a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profil nor
taxable profit or loss
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r)

5)

The carrying amounl of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax assel 1o be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assels are re-assessed af
each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liahilities are measured ar the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset 15 realised or the liability 15 settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of Profit and Loss is recognised
ouiside Statement ol Profil and Loss (in other comprehensive income), Deferred tax llems are
recognised i correlation to the underlying transaction either in Statement of Profit and Loss or in
OCT

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxahble
entity and the same taxation authority,

Government grants

Government grants, if any, are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received, and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a svstematic basis over the periods that the related
costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates (o an assel, il is
recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the relaled assets.

Climate-related matters

The Company considers climate-related matters in estimates and assumptions, where appropriate.
This assessment includes a wide range of possible impacts on the Company due to both physical
and transition nisks. Even though the Company believes 113 business model and products wall still
be viable afier the wansition to a low-carbon ecconomy, climate-related matters increase the
uncertaimnty in estimates and assumptions underpinning several items in the financial statcments.
Ewven though climale-related risks might not currently have a significani impact on measurement,
the Company is closely monitoring relevant changes and developments; such as new climate-
related legislation,
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Indogulf Cropsciences Limited
CIN: U74899DLIY93IPLCOS1 854
MNotes to Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
All ammounts are i INR in Millions, except otherwise stnted

Lenses

The Company bolds leage contracts for godown, office; and warehouse buildings used in its operntions: The
lease terms typically range from | W 5 vesrs for office and warchouse buldimgs, and from 30 (o 99 years [or
godown buildimgs, The Company has also availed exemptions for certain short-term leases,

Setout below are the comyimg amounts of nght-of-use asseis recopnised and the movements dunng the

period:

Gowdown, Office

and warehouse
building

As at 01 April 2023 53.07
Additions 081
Depreciation expense (13.13)
As at 31 March 2024 40.75
As at 01 April 2024 40,75
Additions 178
[Depreciation expense (19.11)
As ar 31 March 2025 5442

Set oul below are the carmying amounts of lease labilities and the movements durng the peried:

As at Ayt
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Asar 1 April 45.06 57.06
Additions 3249 Q&I
Aceretion of interest 527 4.55
Payments (23 9] (17.37)
As at 31 March S§.85 45,006
As af As i
March 31. 2025  March 31, 2024
Currenl 18,62 315
Mon-current 40.23 5491
SH.B5 45.06
The maturity analys=is of lease liabilities is diselosed in Mot - 46,
The estimuaied interest mte for lease Dabilities s 9.07%,
The following are the amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss:
Year md&d. fnr Enﬁﬂ]
Murch 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Depreciation expenses i respect of right-of-
use assels 1211 13.13
[nterest expense in respect of lease liabilities 527 456
Expenses rulatmy toshort-term fease
tingluded on other expenses) HAl 4.73
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 3309 2244




Indogull Cropsciences Limited
CIN; UT4EDLITIIFLONS 1854
Mates to Standulone Financiol Statements as af March 11, 1025

AR nesnaty are in INR in Millions, exeept otherwise stated

1

12

Financial asscis - non-eurrent

Investments
e Asat As at
Particulors : =
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Investments corried pi Cosi
(i In subsidiary compunics, Unguoted (fully paid)
Indugull Cropselences Austealia Py, Lid,
12tk ordinary shares of Aunstralinn dollar () 1 cach fully pard up
(31 March 2024 120) 0 (1006
Abhiprukash Gilobus Privivte Limited
200,000 Equity Share e, 100 ench fully pid up
(31 March J024: 20,68 430 260
Toinl 21 0.2l
Uither financial assets
Asal Akat
Particulary Miarch 31, 2025 Murch 31, 2024
Measured ai amartised cosi (Unsecured, considered good unless niherwise stated)
Security deposits 6.95 583
Tuotal .93 541
Uther non-current assels
b Asut Azt
Particubirs March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(U nsecared, considered pood unless otherwise stated)
Cupiiel wdvanees 1505 951
Advances 10 supplers 4526 [9.17
Advanee recoverithle in ensh or in Kind .
Advances other than Capital Advances
Halances with government authoriies 54,84 5315
Tiatail 113.23 RO.K
Mun-Current Tux Assets (| Net)
Particulars ok Sk
Advance moome ey (net of TDETCS nmd provisian) 11765 108.a7
Tatal 117.65 10507
Inveninries
Particulirs ) e z
) SLEnE Muarch 31,2023 March .!LELIE
AL the fower of cost wod oet realisalile value
Raw Material T4 S35 K
Packing Material 117.44 99 44
Finizhed Goodds I7RLAT 132311
Trading poods S04 S
Waork contract in progress .
Tistal 631,53 1952400




Indogulf Cropsciences Limited
CAN: UT489900 1 HHPL OIS 1SS
M bo Stundabune Fimnacal Staiements as ol March 31, 2023
All nowunts are in INR In Millions, except atlerwise stated

13 Trade receivables

= Mareh 31,2025 March 31,2024
Teade receivabies RS 6 209,71
Trade recetvables - iehved parties 193,k 24l
Tulal 2.264.458 221412
Break-up for irsde receivables:
Secured, considercad good
Trade Bevenmbles unsedured, constlered good 237824 202738
Teade Bocaivables which have significant incrense in credit eisk s
Tede Recoivables - credil inpaired 413,79} i L3.2h)

226445 L2142

Impairment allowance {ollowanee for bad and doubilal debis)

Teade Receivable wsecured, considered goud -
Trade Recervables which have significant morease i eredit risk -
Tranle Beceivables - credat |n1:|1:|'1i|1..1|

Tutal - .

Trade receivables Ageine Schedule

Asal 31 Maoreh 2025 Clurrent bt Outstandlng far fallowing peclads from due date of poyment Totnl
Lessthan6 6 manths 1-2 years 2-3 years Mure than
Muainths —1 yenr 1 yomrs.

Limbisputes] Trads Recemvible
congidered good I 45091 110.%1 .82 48.91 41 (b 226445

Undisputid Trde Redeivables —
which have significant increase
creshit risk . . . . . -

Unafisputes] Trude receivalile

credit impaired = - - . . =
Ihsputed Trusde recepables -
onsidered good - - = . . .

Dispured Trade recepvables —
wltich have significant increate in
creafit risk - . - - - -
Drisputed Troade receivshbes

credit impained -

Asut 31 March 2024

Unabisputed Trase Roceivables
considered good [ 8663 2560 8,58 30,55 3231 231412
Undisputed Trode Recerobles

which have significant increase in

credit risk - - - - - -
Unafinputed Trde secetvalile -

credhit imipaired - - - - - -
Drispated Trade recenvables -

womsicleres) goo) E . - - - -
Ihsputed Trde recepvables

wltich have sigiileit inerease

credit risk - - - - - -
Disputed Trade recervables.
credit impnired

15065 2t () ELEL] 0,35 KRR 2.214.12




Indogulf Cropsciences Limited
CIN: UT4800D L 1993PLCOS1 854
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
Al prmwnts ore in INR in Millions, exeept otherwise stated

Trde recervables are non-interest bearing and are genermlly on terms of (0o |30 div
* Unbilled receivabies representy recenvsbies where the goods and/or services have been provided tothe customer, however, Company is vei LD ratke
inviiees 1o the customer,

=+ Currenn bur nod due represent receivaldes which aren't due as peronedit tenma agreed with the castomer

14 Cash and cash equivalents

. Asat Al
it Mareh 31,2028 March 31,2024
Halinies with banks
(o curment aocounls [.41 ERH]
Cash om hond ] 1.66
Fized Depouil (beld oziins marsn money) G ¥31.57
Taal .06 20,16
15 (dher financial assets
- As at Asat
oy March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Measured at amortised eost (unsecured, considered good)
TInterest acerued but net due on fised deposits I.1B o.ls
Sewurity deposits - -
Expor incentive recovenshie 095 0.71
Insurance claim recoverable 013 013
{thers AT A0 G AT
Tutal A%.060 Th6T
16 Oiher current asscis
st March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Advance recoverable in eash or in kind - -
Advances o supplicts i1 2 487
=lo relnted parties
=t rthers -
Advances o Employees 0,28 030
Balunces with govermment authoritics 415.00 23745
Prepaid expenses 1285 13.5%
Tistal 492,34 25621




Indogulf Cropsciences Limited
CIN: U74899DL1993PLCO51854

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
All amounts are in INR in Millions, except otherwise stated

17 Assets held for sale

As at As at

March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

Land 4.50 4.50
Building 3.47 3.47
7.97 797

Note:
a) The property under considereation is located at Gurgaon.

b) During the vear 2022-23, the Company has reclassified land and building from Investment Property
to Assets held for sale. This is because of the management’s intention to sell the property and the
active efforts are being made to locate a buyer.

¢) The property meets the criteria for classification as held for sale, such as being available for
immediate sale and being actively marketed.

d) In FY 2023-24, the company has received advance against sale of the above property amounting to
Rs. 23 millions.

¢) On transfer, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of Investment property
measured as earlier and use the carrying value as the deemed cost of Asset held for sale in terms of
IND-AS 105 where lower of carrying value and fair value is tobe considered.

) Fair Value of Asset held for sale
The fair value of asset held for sale has been determined by the management using the prevailing
circle rates applicable to the same location and are considered to be a fair representation at which
such properties can be sold in an active market. The Company has not used the services of a
registered valuer in accordance with rule 2 of Companies ( Registered valuer and valuation) Rules,
2017) for the valuation of the investment property.

Fair Value as at 31st
Description of item of properties March, 2025
Land & Building - Gurgaon 2400




Indogult Cropsciences Limited
CIM: VTS990 PLOC DS 185
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as ar March 31, 2025

All preunts 2 in IR i Milligns, oxoept otheraise stated

18 Share capital

y . Asar Asat
Particulars ‘March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Mumber of shares Amouni Mumber of shares Amaouni
Authorized
Equity shares of Rs: 10 cach 00,00, 00 0000 2,52,00,000 252.00
Mon Cumulative Prefermce Sharcs L S0LTHI0 )50 150,000 1.50
700, 50,0010 T01.50 1,53,50,000 153,50
Issued, subseribed and paid up
Equaty shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up
At the bepmning of the year 235,183,728 23519 235,18, 728 3519
Add: conversion of Preference shares 125,000 I 25
Add: Bonus Issue 2.36,43.724 23644 - -
Add: Private Placement
15,0011 15.00 - s
At the end of the vear 48787456 48787 1,35,18.728 135,19
Note:
| 25 000 Eqguity Shares of Rs, [0/~ each issued a5 conversion of Preference shares at par - 28,05, 20034
2.36.43.728 Equity Shares of Rs. 10V- cach issued a5 Bonuws Shares in ratio of 5:1 Fully paid up in the FY 24-25 - 28.05.2024
L5000, 000 Equity Shares of B 10/ each issied al o premium of B, 70 08 Private Placement in the FY 2425 - 06.06.2024
Issuwed, suhscribed ond paid up
Preference shares of Ra. 10 each fully paid up
At the bepinning of the year I, 25 K0 i.25 I, 250K 1.25
Add: Tzsued during the year - - - -
Less: Converled into Equity {125 M) {1.25) - -
At the end of the vear - - 1.25.000 1.25
Total d.E‘.I'IBTi45b 43'."&1' 1I3§§3ITZE 136.44

- Terms/Rights attached to class of shares

The comprny has one elass of @quity shares having a par valee of RB=, 14 per share: Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vate per

shire with a mght worecvive per share dividend declaced by the company. In the event of hguidation ¢
shares will be entitled 1o recetve remaining assets of the company. The disiribution will be in proporti
by the shareholders,

Details of couity sharcholders bolding more than 2% shares of the Company

of the company,, the holders of eguiry
om 1o the number of equity sharcs held

As al March 31, 2028 As at Mareh 31, 2024
Particulurs Numbwer of shares Y holding Number of shares % holding
Sh, Om Prakash Aggarwal 1.05,42.345 21,61 % S1a4 924 220F
Sh, Sanjay Apzarwal 1287620 I6,23% 63,50 060k 27 (Wi
O, P Agparwal (HLF) - RIS 44,70, 480 1800
Smi. Anshu Agaarwal §d,67 488 17.36% 42,33.744 TR,
Arnay Agparwal B5.97.392 I7.62% - LUHEEE
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Indogulf Cropsciences Limited
CIN: 74990 L 1993 PLOCNS 85
MNaotes to Standalone Finaneial Statements as al March 31, 2025
Al armounds are in INE im0 Millions, except otheroase stted
Amgregaie number of equity shares issued as bonus during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date®*

Asat Asar
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amioumnt

2939 841 equity shares of Re. 10 each were
allonted during the .Y, 2001920 o fully paid
bonus shares by capitalization of free reserves
of the Company in the ratio of 3:1 at par. 29,39 841 24,40 29,39 841 2G40
1,95 98,940 equity shures of Re. 10 each were
allotted during the FY. 2020-21 as fully paid
bonus shares by capimlization of free reserves
of the Company in the ratio of 5:1 at par. | U= G U4 95,949 1,495 98 94 19599
236,43,728 Equity Shargs of Rs. 10/~ cach
issued us Bonus Shares in oratio of 1:0 Fully
paiel wp in the FY 24-75 - 28,05 2024 236,43 TI8 216,44 - -

4.61,82.509 461.83 2,35,34.781 11530

#% Equlty shares of Re. 10 cach were allotted us fully paid bonus shares by capltalization of free reserves of the Company,

Details of preference sharcholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Number of shares e holding Number of shares %Yo holding
Sh. Om Prukash Agearaal - - 76,250 il LCH1%%
Sh. Sanjay Apgarwal - - 48,750 39.001%;




Twtdagall Cropscienees Limited
1N UT4R090L 1M P LC RS 1854
Sofes to Sdandalene Financlal Statcmons as an March 31, 2025
All amonats are an INE in Milleons, -.-s.cn'n.'pl otherd iee siaied

Dretuils of eyuity shares held by I'r ry @5 un March 31, 2025

Mo sl bl e mt O | o during fe | Mooof shares of te | % of Tieal Shares | % chinge during (e
Tromuiler Wi hm al thse | puriad enil ol the period Near

year
3h. O Prakash Appareal 51,1800 £3147 42400 1S40 348 LA 1.0
Sh, Simjoy Aggarwal 1,50, 160 4,447, 260410 127,097,620 1 ] a2
Sl Anshu Agpswal A1 38T 413374440 Hd o7 AHE 1A 100
S Ay Agganwal 4,700 R1,27.392.40 BE.00 302 1742% 1724

16248, 728 1A41.56,110 ERCNTR T HIE2%

Note: As ol Morch 31, 2024, five membecs

OLP. Agpraal (HUFY, Sunjay Aggorwal (HUF), Smi, Rechiis Aggorwal, Smi. Ansmics Aggorwol and Ms, Sanshi

Agrmarail—were reporied under the promoters group, amd their slureholding wos disclosed under the heading “Thewsils of squity shiores held by Promaeters as on Morch 31,
20247 Mowveser, at the time of Hling e DRHEF on Seprember 35, 2024, these were reclnssifivd as members of the proanoters group, Accordimggly, teir shaccholding was not
diselosed umder the hending “Dietnils of equity shares held by Promaters sson March 31, 20257 in the March 2025 fmoncial statements.

Detaily of enaity shaves held by Promoters a5 on March 31, 2024

M, of stures at the | Chanae during the | N, of shores ud the | % of Todal Shares | % chunge dring the
Pramider Mo Begimding af the yar wmlh oty year - Cyear
yesr
Ah, O Prakeah Agparwval h.0E 524 . Shd 24 IO
sk Samey Apgarwal LIRS LIN LT RS0 1R T ey
St Apibu Agmiranl 41,33, 744 42,33, 7dd TR0
0P, Agparval (HLF) A4, 70,480 A4, 10 480 a0ty
Sanjay Aggarwal (HUF) 11, 5a %40 11,568,840 A0
Sl Rachiia Apgzerwnl ERS e SHEXG 2. Ay
Smi. Ammmicn Aggarwal 441 480 L 45480 281
Wl Bl Agparwsl SR AN ] 5,1 00 2.17%
Sh, Army Apggarwal 4, T i &, Tl i AEH
235,04, %44 - 35,040,844 L =
Detuils of preference shores bild by Promders as on March 31, 1015
W, of vhures at the | Change during the | Mo, of sbares ot the | 5% of Trial Shares | % change during the|
Promtr M boglaning of purbod wd of the period year
. yeRr
Sh, Chmy Praknsh Agenrwal TRI50 176, 2500001 L0 Lo
3h. Samjay Apgsrwnl 48,730 (4%, A0 1LHKS, [LELERTA]
1,25,k =1.25, 0@ -

Lhctails of proferenee shorea beld by Promoters as en Mareh 31, 2024

_ o Mo, wl shares ot Use | Change durkng the | Moo of shares ot the | % of Tl Shares | change during dhie]

Pramuter N heginming of the year eod uf the year R
Sh, (rm MPraksh Agpares| Ta1sn Th.2s0 Al iy
Sh. Sunjay Aggsrwal 48,750 48,750 1400

L2500 - 1,215,004




Indogulf Cropsciences Limited
CIN: UT4899DL1993PLCOS RS54
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at Mareh 31, 2025

19 Other equity
o) Reserves and surplus

Asal Asat
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Retomed earmings 207724 2 e
Securities Premium 182,16 7116
Cieneral resceve |5.63 15.63
Tatal 2.175.08 2.084.12
As al As ot
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(i) Retained Earnings
Urpening balance 1,591.33 L7454
Prafit for the vear K5 284.74

Items of other comprehensive imcome recopnised directhy in retamned enmings
Kemeasurements of net defined benefit plans, net of tax 155 1.70
Dividend paid during the vear
Tax on Dividend pasd

Less: Appropriations for ssue of Bonus Shures (236,44)
Closing balance 2.077.29 1,991.33
(i) Securities premium
Opening balance T7.16 TI.lE
Addd: Premiwm on wssue of shires 105 00
Closing balance 152,16 7716
{il) General reserve
Opening balunce |5.63 15.63
Add: Appropriations
Closing balance 15.63 15.63
Total other equity 217508 1.084.12

Mature and purpose of reserves

a) General reserve - General Reserve is created ow of the profits eamned by the Company by way ol transter from surplus in
the statement of profit and loss, The Company can use this reserve for payment of dividend, issue of bonus shares and fully /
partly paid-up equity shares . Mo amount has been transferred to general reserve during the years ended March 31, 2025 and

March 31, 2024,
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Mates to Stamdalono Flanaclal Salements ag a1 March 31, 2035
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Barrowings

e o March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024
Seented
II’!]!.III'I. HI.I.I.H.'L' II.IJI'L EI'“'I'I. hllkﬂ
Term loans d45.0M 23310
Wehiele lonns 1621 b
U msecured
Ly fromm otler poamises 186 -
Tutal AT T5LI3
Lems; Current masunbies of long-term dels imeleded monote 24) 11792 GRAT
Pon-current horrvwings (s pere balinee sheet) 156,09 185.56

Mndure of Secariiy and ferms of repayment for secared bormawing :
Tiedian rupsee term lean

Rs. 2307 million TL-3 i= repavable in 36 monthly instalments staned from Seprember 2021, [ bos oy balopee sgprepating to Ks, NIL (March 31, 2024
s B3 mulleon) as on reporting date and is primanty secoed againss bypathecstion of plam & machinery situated ar Maiknepar | Haryana | m e mame of the
COimxmy,

Ba. 1693 mullion TL-# is repayable m 36 monthly instalments started from Movernber 2021 1t b o/ badance aggregating toe Bs NIL (Murch 11, 2024 ®a.
124 millbar § s on reporting dage and 1a primanly secured against hypothecsiion of plant & machinery sousied af Mathupur ( Haryann ) o the sune of the

COMpany,

Rs, 5738 million TL-5 is repayable in 62 moanshly instalments staned from Aagust 2022, 1rhas o's balenee aggregating o Re. 26.78 million /~ (Morch 2],
)2 Ea 3E 26 millon ) g an reporting date and s primariiy seeured agnmst hypathéoation of plant & muchingry ditoated o Mathopor (Hargana) i the
e of Lhe compary,

Term lonns (i) & (Ei) ore secured seainst poronal giarantes of MeoDm Prakah Aggaowal. Mra, Ansbu Agparoal, Mre Sanjay Aggarwal snd Corporate
Crnnraited | CGTY of O Prakosh Agearws] (HUF),

Laoams have exviusive charge on Plant angd Maghinery purchased out of respective Term Loars and Farst Paniopassy charge on the Siocks & reogivables of
thir cotmpany both present and funee, pand & machivery and other movable Pived Assers of the Company other than the sssets exchisively Nomded by othes
Fenumind anstitutions. 1 alse has first pari-pasau charge on follewing propemics:-

o ndustrial Property situaged st vells Mo JAA2A 3035927 | villege Natthupur | dist @ Sonepat, Haryans beld do the name of Anslu Agrarwal,

b Commenzinl Fropery gitusted ot 301 Gopal Heights, Pl Moo, Netaji Subbash Place. Pitnmpura, Mew Delhi held in the nanse of Sunjay Agganval
IHLIF)

cndusimal Properiy situnted al Tndustriol Growth Cener, Phase [1, Samba, Jommmu, J&ER beld in the mape of Company.

d.Indussrial progety Khewat Moo 200, kible Ne- 180 1202 02,004 Village Nathupur, Sorepst,. Harvani-1 24408 held in the name of Comspany

& Industrink propery sibamted at 5 kmal | marln having khewat mo 425, khita no, 584, part af khasa no, 8 820/2204-35 and. 130 L2018y, village
matbuspuer, sunepat, Harana, Pim code <3313 held i the onme of Cim. Prakash Aggacwal { FILIF)

£ licusirial Propesty sttusted b Land Aren 7 Kanel 5 Marls. Khewar Mo 277, Min Khats Mo 3500, Past of TRO2(0-161, T8111 (A4}, Sonepal, Harvans-
I3 03 in thee negimse of Ansha Agoaraal

i, Residentinl Property situuted at Plot Mo 75, Secior 56, Eiban Esute, Gurgoon, Hargos- 123001 held in the nanse of eompany { Erstachibe-Tai Shres
Foasamn Uidvoy Lid )

T Commencinl Property sitwted of Khosea S 030020, Near Satsamg ko Wil and M0 Hanbrin, Diso Lodhems, Pungale- 140007 inothe maene o Sanjus
Agparwal (HUF)

i Ielmptrial Property simnted st Khaers Mo 23090, 12094, Vilkage & MO Mathupar, Disst. Sonepot, Horgano beld mthe nonme of Company,

B bt milfion TL-7 8 sepayabrde b 62 monshly isstalments saned o Jamey 2023 11hes o balosee agpreganiog o Re. 884 millbon - Masch 58,
204 R 12,04 million ) es on reporting date and is primarily secured agamst hypothecation of hypatheczison of Immavahle property simnted al Barwasni
Somapad { Horvann | o e name of the conpany.

B, 110 millbon TL-# is repanable i 62 mondhly instalments sianied from Movember 2022 It bkas o's bolanee apgregatmg 1o R, 63,38 milllon 5 (March 31,
024 By, 83,74 million | as an reporting dote und (s primagiby sscured agoimst ypothocatsm af Immeahlo praperty sibnted @1 Nashapmr { Hoeeamap in the
mame of the company.

R b0 million TE-# 15 repavalde mi &2 monthly iscslments stamed fiom Oceober 323 I bas ofs balance aggrepanng s By, 7450 millkon - (asch 58,
224 RS0 million ) us on reporiing doie und is primurily secured ugainss bypotheestion of hypothecation of Immovable propsriy siunies ot Bervasni
Ronipad (Harann | an e name of the company.

P B0 malben (HOEE T s repayable it mosthly inanbments stared e September 0024, 1 bas ofs hokbace spgregatng iy Rs, 90400 millinn
[March 2, 2024 Ba NIL ) 25 on repirting daie

Ba. 10 million (HDFCTT ) w repayabie m 80 monthly mstalments ataried from Apeil 2024, T hes o's balance aggregaing o Rs: B4.63 million (March 37,
20M Ba, ML ) as on reporting dale

Fos. B0 mllion (HIDFCTL ) s repl.y:h]u in Gl monthly instalments stared from fnomory 2025 1t has o halnnee sgpeepating o Bs 9734 Odarch 370, 2024
Fla, NIL f s an reparting do
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b)

€l

Veerm loans (v) to in) are alse Colletarally secored ngainst Equitabile mertagate on the following propertics:

alndistnal Property siisted o3 Villa No D223 2320005327 | Villge Natthupur , dist . Sooepat, Horvanoa bebd n e npms of Anshu Aggarwal.

b, Cormmercinl Property sttated at 501, Gopal Hesghts, Plot Mo, Netagi Subhash Place, Pitomgairs, New Delhi held i thie mome of Sangay Aggarval
[HEEY

e dndustrial Property stusted o Industnal Growth Center, Phase 1], Samba, Jommw, J&K leld m the mame of Company,

il Industrial property Khewist Mo, 200, killa Mo LB 22,2029 2000, Villige Nathupur, Sonepel, Himgan,- 124408 beld in the nime of Company

¢, [ndustrial property situated ot § kanal | imarla kivving kbewat no4235, khata no. 514, part of khasea no, (820022043 and 181 120 0(0-18), villnge
nithupur, soncpal, Harvana, Mn code =13 1300 held i the name of ©m Prokash Agzarwnl { HUF)

£ lndustronl Property setnted at Land Ares 7 Kanal § Marls, Khewat No 277, M Khata Ne 35000, Pat of TR/ HY2{0-16), 1811/ {(6-9), Soncpat, Harynna-
E3 13044 a0 the nnme of Ansho Apgorwal,

g. Residentinl Property situated ot Flot Ne 73, Sector 56, Urban Estote, Gurgion, Harvma- 1220010 held -t the name of compony {Erstwhile-dai Shree
Rasavan Uldwog Lid §

b Commercial Propeny sstunted at Khisra No, 120020, Near Satsang Ghar, Vil and PO Hombean, Dest Ludhiano, Punjab-14 1007 m the name of Sanjzy
Agparwnl {HLF)

L. Inchustrial Property simmted nt Khmsm Mo 239900, 124, Village & MO Nathpur, Distt. Soncpat, Flurvane held i the nuome of Company.

1= Cormreren] Propercy="1924, Sun Estate. Opp Ek Hotel. Uinla Curele. Sackhes, Ahmedsbad, Guinmt 382225 hebd i the nome of Ansho Aggareal.

k. Industrin] Extmte-Land Measurng Lond Measuring 04 kanalli- Marls 22 Kanal 11 barb, Land Measoring 20 Kanal 08 Marly Village Barwasni Sonipat
Harvana 131029 in the name of Sanjay Aowarwal.

Finance lease obligutions are secared against hypethecation of respective vehicles.

Finance Lease apmnst non-commercisl vehickes repayable penemlly in &0 monthly insialments of vanous nmounts staned from past few years and having
additions and deleton in value term. 1t has o/s bolonee nggregating 1o Ry, 15.25 millBon (30 March 2024 Rs | E66 million) as on reporting date and is
primarily securcd agins hypathecstion of respective vehicles

Finance Lease againgt commercial vebicles repayshle geserally in 60 roonthiy instalments of vasious amounis stanted from pase few years wud having
nelditions umad deletion vl term, 10 bies o' balinee senegatiog to B8, 126 million (31 Monch 2024 Rs. 247 milliond es on reporting date anid 15
primarly secured agninst hypothecstion of respective velicles

Linserured loans from related parties & others carmy interest (@ 0-4% o § previous vear 0-9% pot These do rol carmy diny specific mihurity date but are
revalving b nabar
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Other Financial Liahilities

Setfoulics March 31,2035 March 31, 2024
Secunty Dieposil= 72K 7342
Totul 79,18 73.42
Lo terinn pioyisions
[ Asat A at
Particulars 4
- March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Employee benefit provisions
For Grrataity 23,58 21,10
For Enmed Leive - -
Total 2358 .10
Drelerred tax Habilities (Ned)
: Asal Asul
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Drefermed tax linbilities (net) {24.45) {22.99)
Tatul {24.85) (22.99)

The Compuny oftsets tax assets and liabiliges (f and ooly if it has a legnlly enforceable right to set off cument thx assets ond current tax linbiites and the
deferred tax assets and deferrad tas [obilities relats to income mxes levied by the same tx authority,

Dreferred tux mavement - Balkinee Sheet

Chargelferodit o
; L e tlier
Eartiyiars Asat  joNutemeniof  comprehensive Asat
Mareh 30, 2024 Profit and Loss incomu Aarch 31, 2025
Propermy, plant and cquipment and nrangible wseets 1021 {6l 3.60
Drerivatives - - -
Right of use nzseis (1010 (144 {1354}
Investmenty = - -
Total deferred tax Eabilitivs 1l {4.05) = 13940
Set-ofT of deferred tax asscts pursuant to set-ofT provisions
Legase lnghiliny 11,34 347 14.81
Security deposit (b, (k1 = o
Invvestimeits - - -
Employee benelit provisions 1.3z iha (0.32) 13,98
Hormowings - - -
CHbbers - - -
Total deferred fax assets 1287 b4 (.52} 18.80
Mot deferved fax assets ( (linbilites) 1394 228 (1L52) 14.85
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Financlal Linliiltes - Current

Burmu']:ugs
; Agal Agut
Farticulary March 31,2028 March 31, 2024
Secured
Working Capital facilitics from Banks
Buver's eredit from bunlk 1948 | 3625
Cash credit from hanks (refer note (i) below) 1,283,977 R
TPocking eredit from bank T1.96 14615
Uther seeused loan from NBFC a9 .
Cairrent mudunty of long ferm borrowing 1172 LR
Tugal 1,808.52 1346006

Cash eredit facility 15 repavable on demaond and cormies mterest linked with base rote. Cash credit feility including its sub-lmits of FCNE, WCDL,
PCLPCF, PSL and Buver's Credit and also loan from Haje) Fimance Limited { MBFC) is sceured agaimst hypothecation of current assets along with
vollimeral securiny of indusirial & commercial properies in the name of company siated in Jsmo and Kashimr (1 & K, Punjab, Harvana, Gujarat and
Delhi. The Directors Mr. Om Prakash Agearwal. Mro Seopoy Aoparwal and Mrs, Ansho Agesrwal hove given personal sunmmtecs agnst ths taeility.
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Trade payubles

' As b Asai

Farticulars.
- Mureh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Trade puyubles
Tradhe prayalsles
(V) Tortanl clanes b evvverm, sl el iz enerprises® 11742 1952
(it} Tornl daes wcreditirs odher thin e enlerpreises and small entgrprises® 1, 28497 81784
Tutnl 1, 23330 119736

*MEME intormation bas been determined to the extent such parties have been identitied on the basis of informution svailable with the Company.

*¥nclwdes ducs Wy Relaled Porses INR 327 millsow'- (31 March 2024: INR 6,79 mililican

Trade paynbles Apving Schedube

Asat 31 March 2025 Nt due

Dnmuﬁrlinr'lﬂ.“_'lq perinds from dug date of Taotal

<1 year

1-2 yeirs 3-3 years = 3 vears

Total outstandimg dues of micoo enferpreses and
sanill enterprises 117.42

Total satstanding dues of erelivoms edher tham

3 e : all emtemrises
i enderprises amd smiall ememns 214,39
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and sl -
enlepTises

Disputed dues of crediiors other than mécro -
v::l'lli.:rrlri::m sl sl unruerisll.-J-

1742

15 1] 1133 P £ 5 1

1,33L.E]

.33 (L2 12 1.33%39

Mok due
As ue 31 March 2024

Outstanding for following persods from due date of Total
’ payment

=1 vear

1-2 veres 20 yoan =3 yodrs

Tatal saitstanding dues oF micre enterprses md

samall enlerprises Fa 52
Total outstandirg ducs of eredibos tdber than

iidern efilerprises atd small eleminses %1700

Disputed dues of micro enterprises and smpli -

enlerprses

Disputed dues of creditors other than mecro -

enterpriscs and small enterprises

ATHER

33 14 0.08 BT84

1,186 6]

53 .14 .08 1LART. 3
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Trade payahlies are nun-atcrest beiring sud dee porminlly seetbed o 30-90 days terms,

6 Whiher finangial Habilivies

As at An ol
Particulars ; TR
) ' Muarch 31, 2025  Muarch 31, 2024
Finamehal labilithes a1 amortised cost
Creditors for cupita] expenditure 24.52 16770
Interest peored on homowings 3.2% 4 48
Ermploves payshles
= i pedaterd padtees L76 145
- o uihers 43 7T 4182
Advioices from customers 123,18 5208
Other poyabic Seh.fuy (T ]
Tatal 152.92 207.78
17T Current tax liabilitics
Py et Asar ~ Asat
Epriicanss Mareh 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Current L labihmes 134,58 10E. 11
Taotal 134.58 108.11
24 Oiher current Liabiliies
Particulars SRR LAt
' Muarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Seatulory dues 2602 19.47
Tartul 2adi2 1947
2% Short Term Provisions
Asal Axat
Particalars
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Employee benclit provisions
For Gratuity .42 B75
For Enmied Leave .33 0.48
Total 4,95 9.23
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30 Revenue from operations

Year ended Year ended

Pariiculars ‘March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Sale

[Domestic Sales 555288 44065 68
Export Sales fax.a]1 75327
A 6, 211.47 5.714.95

Other Operating Revenoe
Government Grants .50 15.44
B 9.50 15.44
Less: Discount on sales L& (F97.21}) (212.05)
Total (A+B+HC+) 502176 5522.34

Reter note 21 for disclosure seganding Revenoe recopnised under contracts.

3 Other Income

Year ended  Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Interest ncome:
Fised l.ll..'p{'r.‘i'i‘lh with banks 3.28 1,22
Interest Others 2.56 264
Interest income on unwinding of security deposit 013 0.07
Rental Ineome 042 042
Income fram Export Incentive- Licence 332 458
Miscellameous Income 3331 20,50
Total other income 43.400 3583

Cost of raw material and components

32 consumed/sold
Year ended Year ended
Particulars Mareh 3, 2025  March 31, 2024
Raw Material

Inventory al the beginning of the year 52588 93290
Add: Purchases (net of returns & sales) 440391 3,332.83
4.929.81 4.265.73
Less: inventory at the end of the vear 127.24 52588
Cost of row material gonsumed 4.202,57 3729 85

Packing Material
Inventory. at the beginning of the year ELR T (kY
Add: Purchases J6E.A3 323137
46T 94 FHG
Less; mventory at the end of the vear 11748 G0 44
Cost of Pocking mulerial consumed 351.51 28650

Total Cost of raw matérial and components consumed 4,553.08 4,026,605
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33

34

35

i6

Details of purchase of traded goods

_ Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Purchase of Troded Goods 103.67 151.81
Fotal 103,67 151.81
(Increase)/Decrease in invenfories
Yeur ended Yeur ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Inventorics at the end of the year
Finished goods 178117 1,323.11
Traded goods 564 1463
1,786.81 1.326.74
Inventorics at the beginning of the yvear
Fimished goods I,323.11 102225
Traded goods 363 T2.78
1,326.74 1.095.03
Total (Inerease)Decrease in inventories (400.07) (231.71)
Employee benelit expenses
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 41310 dal.s2
Contribution to provident and other funds 17.26 158K
Gratuity expense (also refer note 42) 747 5.97
Sinff welfre cxpenses B.67 3.23
Total emplovee benefit expenses 446,20 JEE.90
Finance costs
Year ended Year ended
Particulars Mareh 31, 2025 Ma_hll a1, 2024
Interest and fmance charges on hinancul habalities
not at fair value through profit or loss
Imterest on erm loans 308 7.01
Interest on Vehicle loans 1.75 1.89
Interest on CC Limits, buver's credit and demand loms 120033 1311
Ingerest on Borrowings & Others 355 7.00
Interest on Lease Liobilities 527 4.55
Bank charges and commssion H.35 59
Total finance costs 142.33 129.46
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A7  Depreciation and amortization expense

Year ended Year ended

Particulars Muarech 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1}<:prtuiuti-ﬂn al property, plant and equipment Refer Note 3 TiB4 26,15
Amaortization of intangible pssels Refer Mole 3 872 379
Deepreciation of Right-of-use assels Refer Nole 7 19.11 13.13
Total depreciation and amortization expenses 104,67 103.07

A8 Orher expenses

Year ended Year ended

Particulars: March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Consumption of stores arl spares 16,97 18.05
Power and fuel Expenses 46.61 46.29
Packing & Material Processing Charpes 6718 5357
Freight & Forwarding Expenscs 11570 L1705
Repairs and Maintenonce
Ruildings 4.71 0.87
Plamt & Machmery 1ec17 1190
Chthers 13.37 1345
Pollution Control Expenses 0,39 206
Addvertising and sales promotion 03 125,60
Commumication cxpenses 407 3,90
Vehicle Running & Mamienance Expenses 120000 702
Brokerage and commission 15.25 12.47
I'ravelling and conveyvance 10,31 00,09
[ B8] 475
InsuTance 20r.59 21.44
Printing and Stationery 177 1.5%
Legal and Professional fees 13,00 15.74
[irector Sithing Fees 1l 1)
Paymient to Auditors Refer Note  38(a) - 1.31
Rates and taxes .37 #.03
Security Charges (162 (.64
Corporate Social Responsibility Reter Mote  38(h) i ) 6.55
Crualiny Testing Expenses 14948 1277
Prowision for impairment of trade receivebles (.43 0.44
Fxehange difference (net) 24.27 (10,300
Bad debis written of .43 0,835
Miscellaneous Expenses (4.9} .1}
Total other expenses B3G90 501.99

A8a) Details of pavment to suditors (excloding GST as applicable)

_ ~ Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024

As auditor
Statutory Audit Fees I.20 120
Tax Auwdit Fees
In other capacity

Taxation & Cither Muiters 0.11 011
Total 131 131
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3Hh) Corporate social responsibility

39

4

Details of CSR expenditure

Yearended  Year ended
Particulsrs Muarch 31, 2028 Muareh 31, 2024

a) Gross amount required to be spent during the yeur f.89 652

b} Amount spent during the yvear:
1) Construction/sequisition of any asset
il On purposes other than (i) above 6,90 .55

) Deetoals related to spent / unspent obligations: NA ™A
1) Contnbution to Public Trust
1) Contrihution w Chanmble Trust®
1) Unspent amount i relation to:
- Ongoing project
Oifver than ongoing project

A per Bection 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, 0 OSR commitiee has been formed by the company, The company's
policy covers current gz weell a8 proposed CSR activities 1o be undertaken by the company and examining their
aligrnment with schedule W11 of the Act

The company proposes to implement its USR activities in vanions sectors which include promoting Education, gréen

imetiatives, and facilitics for senior citizens, vocational & entreproneurship skills, medical aid & healthcare, old age
hornes, rursd devefopment projects and others,

Exceptional lems

Year ended Year ended

Particulars. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Gann'i Loss } on sale of properiy, plant and 13,40 (36.65)
cpuipeent | Met) F i
T'atal 13.49 {36.65)

Income tax expense
This note provides an anabysis of the Company's income gy experse, shows how the i expense ix affected by non.
asseszable and non-deduvcrible items,

Yeur ended Year ended

Particulurs March 31, 2025 Mn@',‘!l.ﬂﬂ
{#) Income tax cxpense
Current wx on profits for the yesr | 34.58 [ERE]
Tax of earlier years 0.37 (1789}
{Decresse) increade i deterred tax habilities {2.3%) (13611
Income tax cxpense 132.56 Th.6l

{h) Reconciliation of tax expense and the acconnting prafit muldplicd by the India’s tax rate

Year ended Yeur ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 Muareh 31, 2024
Prafit hefore income tax expense 45341 6135
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 251 7% 11411 Q.94
Tax effger of amwoums which are not deductible m ealeulating taxable meomi 174 1.65
Others 1871 {15.98)
Income bix expense 13156 Th.b1
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41 Revenue Recognised Under Contracts

ajThe disageregation ol revenue carned under contracts as per Ind AS-115 is as follows:

Year ended Year ended|
SHAECEIARES March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Category-wise:
Revenue recognised at the point of time:
-Fertilizer 675.40 41398
-Fertilizer Liguid 85,33 45.26
-Pesticides Liquid 214906 2,080.53
Pesticides Wdp 186 84 1, 27288
-Technical 1,544,115 1,678.34
Sale of Raw Material 110,39 22847
6.211.47 5.719.45
Geography-wise
Within [ndia 5.,552.86 496618
Outside India h58.61 75327
6.211.47 5,719.45
b} Revenue-related receivables and conitract liabilities at the year end:
' ' As at Asat
Particulars M‘lt'ﬂl 31_,'1{125 March 31,2024
Contract linhilities (refer note 26) 12318 5268

¢ Beconcilimg the amount of revenue recognised durimg the yvear in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:

Particulars Asat . Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue as per contracted price 6.210.47 5,719.45
Reduetions towards variable consideration components® 29721 21205
Revenue from contracts with customers 014,26 350741

* The reduction towards varable consideration comprises ol discounts, sales commission, ete,
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42 Emplayvee henefit

{a) Defined contribution plan
Dhuring the yeisr, the Company has recognised the following amounts i ilse Staternent of Profit and Loss (also refer noe 33}

Yearended  Yearended

Murch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employers” Contmibaotion to Emplovee's Provident Fund (including admin charies) b 13 14.63
Emmployers” Contnbulion to Emplovee s State Insumnce 1.13 .26
Tatal 17.26 15,88

() Daefimed benefin plan

(i} Gratuity

The commpany hos g defined benefit for pratonty. Every emploves whio has completed five vears or mare of service gets o profioty on
diepurturne o1 13 davs salary (last drown salary) for cach complated vear of service.

The following tables summanze the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and 1ess wnd the fundesd
statits and emounts recognized n the balance sheet for the respective plins

Set defined benefit obligation are as follows: Asar  Axat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

The principal sssunsptlons wscd o determinbing pratuliy Benefit ehligations for the company s plien ace shown below:

Rate of discoamting

Rate of salary increase

Rage of employee tumover
Mortality mie during employmeni

Clomges in the present vilee of the defined benefit obligation wre as follaws:

400
1 OLO0 %

TALM 201 2-04 ult.

T 100
10.00%

IALM 2002-14 ule

Opemmy detined bene i obhigation 29 RS 2844
Intesast cos 212 2.05
Current service gost 4.4 392
Pasl service e - -
Benelits paid (1.31) {1.%6)
Actunriol {gam} / loss - -
Dhee 10 change in Demogrophae assumptions (.84 o1
[¥ise 10 chanpe in financial assmpiions 2.91) 12,704
D2 10 change in expericnce 330 29.85
Clasing defined benefit abligntion
Chanpes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets are is Al As it
Tolbws: Murch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Fapr walise -;;+'|'|nt1 pasele pd the hu;.urrnm{.[ ol the AT - -
Interest imcome - -
Contributions by the employer - -
Benefits puid - -
Return on plon assets, excloding inberest income - -
Falr Valoe of Flan Assets at the End af the Period - -
As at As ai
Mureh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Reconcilintion of fair value of plan assets and defined benefit abligation:
Present value of defined benefit obligation RERIT 2585
Faor value of plan pssot - -
Pl nsser  Climbilin RERL 2485
Expenses reeopnlsed In peofie and bss Yinr ended Year ended
Murch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Mol sl cost 112 205
Current service cost 442 a2
Fast service eosi - -
Sob eapense .54 597




Expenses recognised in other comprehensive income

Actunnal (gain) ¢ loss on defined benefit obligation
Retwrm on Plan Assets, excluding Interest Income
Total expense recognised in statement of other eomprehensive income

Major categories of plan assets of the Fair valoe of the fotal plan assets

Insurnnee fund
Cash And Cash Equivaients
Tatul

A quantitative sensitivity analvsis for significant assumption is as shown below:
Defined benefit obligation (hasey
Chipgee in discount rate
Imcrease by %
Decrease by 1%
Change in rote of salary increase
Imcrease:by 1%
Decrease by 1%
Chinge in rate of employes wrnover
Increase by 1%
Decrense by 1%

The following payments are expecled contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Weighted avernge duration of the defined benefin plan obligation
Within next 12 months

Between | ond 5 vedrs
Maore than 5 years

ie) Risk exposure

Imterest rate risk: A decrease o the bond mferest rate (discount rateh will incresse the plan labihity,

Yearended  Year ended
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
{2.07} 12.60)
(2.07) (2.60)

33.01 20,85

3183 IR.8E1

3429 3098

4,19 in.E9

31.90 2R:ET
~ Asat As at
March 31. 2025  March 31, 2024

1 vears i vears

9.7z 9.06

16.13 14.94

17.97 16.75

43.52 40.75

Salury Risk: The present value of the defined berefit plan liability is coleulated with the assumption of salury increase e of plan participants in
fisture. Drevantion 1o the rate of increase of salary i future for plan participants foom the rate of increase mselory wsed to determme the present

walug of chligation will have a bearing on the plin's liabiliy

Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan lability is calenlated using a diseount rate determined by reference to Government
Bonds Yigld, IT plan lability is funded and return on plan assets is below this rate, it will create o plan deficil,

Maortality risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan Bubility s eafeolated by reference o the best estimate of the moriskity of plan

participants. For this report wo have used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2002-14) ultimate @bl




Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options - Company as lesses
The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancelluble term of the lease, together with any perids covered by an option to extend the lease if
it 18 reasonably certain to be excreised, or ooy peneds covered by an option 1o terminate the kease. 1010 15 reasomably certain not w be exerelsed.

The Company has several lease contracts thal inclede extension and ferminstion options. The Company applied judgement in evaluting whether it i
vessonably certiin whether oF ot to exercise the ophion to repew of terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic noentive for it 10 exercise either the renews! or tenmination, Alter the commencement date, the Company reasseszes the lease term il there
15 o sigmificant event oc change in circumstances tat 15 withm s contred and affects 18 ability o exercse or not o exercise the oplion W0 renew Or 40
terminate,

Property lease classification — Company a5 lessor

The Company has entered into cammercinl property leases on its investment property portfalio. The Company has determined, hased on an evaluation
of the terme and conditions of the ormangements; such as the lesse ferm not consiituting o mujor part of the cconomic life of the commercind property
and the present value of the minmmum lease payvments not ameunting o substantally all of the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains
substantinlby all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracis a3 operating leases,

Leases - Estimating the ineremental borrowing rate

Where the Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses it ineremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure
lense lisbilibes. The IBR s the rute of intorest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with o siniilar sécurity, the
funds necessiary o obtuimn an asset of o similer value to the right-of-use asset inoa similae cconomic environment. The [BR therefore reflects what the
Company *wonid have 1o pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need o be adjusted 1o retlect the tenms
and conditions of the lease, The Company estimates the IBR wing observable mputs (such as market interest rates ) when available and 15 required to
ke cerloin entity-specilic estimates,

Revenae recognition - Estimating variable consideration for returns and volome rebates

The Company's contricts with customers include promises 1o ransfer goods to the customers. Judgement is required to determing the transaction
price tor the contract. The transaction prce could be cither a fived amount of costomer consideration or varnable consideration with clemenrs such as
rebates, incentives anid cosh discounts ete, The estimated amount of varinble consideration @4 adjusted i the transaction price only to the extent that it
is highly probeble that o significan eeversal i the amount of cumularive revenue recogmised will not oceur and is reassessed at the eml of cach
reporiing period,

The amount of revenue recognised depends on whether the Company act as an agent or as a principal in an arrangement with a customer, The

Company aet ns a principal if the Company controls o promised goeds or service belore the Company transfers the goods or serviee toon castomer and
act a5 an agenl if the Company’s performance ohligation s 10 amange for the provision of poods or service by amother party.
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43 Significant estimates, judgements and assumprions
The preparation of the Company™s fnanciod statements reguires mansgement lo make estumales and sssumptions that alfict the reporied
nmounts of revenes, expenses, sseets and hobilites, accompanying disclosures. and the disclosure of contingent Hobilities, Uneertgnty
about these assumptions and estimates could result mooutcomes that require @ motenal adustment to the comyving amount of assets or
linhilities affected in future periods,

Estimates and assumprions

The key assumptions concemning the future end other kev sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant
nak of cousing o materml  sdpusiment 1o the camrying amounts of assets and babilities within the next financial year, are desenbed
helow. The Company based iS5 assumptions and estimates on purameters aviifuble when the separate financial statements were
preparcd. Existing circumstances and  assuomptions aboul future developments, however, may chingme due w0 market changes or
cireumstinees arsing thit are beyond the control of the Company, Such chinges are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur.

Contingent linbilities

Contingent labilities may anse from the ordimary course of business fn relation 1o elaims against the Company, including legal and
other ¢laims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more unceriain future events ocour o fail to ocewr, The
asgessment of the existence, and potental quontom, of contingencies inberently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the
use of cshimates reganling the omcome of fulure events,

Taxes

There are many transactions and caleulations undertaken during the osdinary course ol bosiness for which the ultimate (ax
determimstion s uncertan, Where the ool tis outcoms of these mstters 15 different from the amaounts moolly recorded, suweh
differences will impact the current and deferred @y provisions in the perod in which the tax determination is made. The assessment of
proBability volves estimation of o number of fretors inelwdimg fomre taxable eoine.

Tmipairment of fimancial assets
The Company assesses impairment based on expeeted credit losses (ECL) model on trade receivables,

The Company uses a provizeon matnx o determime impairment boss allowance oo the portfolie of tade reocwables, The provision
matrix 15 bissed on 1t hastoncally observed defiult rates over the expected Bile of the trinde recetvable and 1= adjusted For forwird looking
estimutes, Al every reporting date, the historical observed defsolt rites are updated aml changes m the forward-looking estimates ane

analyvsed,

Imipairment of non-financial assets

e Company pssesses al each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 1T any indication exisis, or
when appneal smpairment testing for oo asset is reguired, the Company estimares the asset’s recoverable amsount. An dsset’s fecoverable
amount is the higher of an aszet’s fair value Jess costa of disposat and its valoe in use, 1L is determined for an individual assed, unlesa the
asset dovs ot penerate cash inflows that are: largely independent of those from other nssets or group of assets, Where the cammying
amount of an asset exceeds (9 recoverable gmount, the asset 15 considered impaired and 15 written: down to its recoverable amount, In
usgesaing value m use. the estimated [utuee cosh lows nre discounted 1o thedr present value using a pre- tox discoont e thot reflects
current market assessment of the tme value of money and the risk specitic o the asser In determining foir valoe kess cost of disposal,
recen! market franssctions are fuken into sccount, IF no such transachons com be dennfed, an approprote. valuation model 15 used,
These caleulutions e corrobarated by valusiton multiples or other avilable far value mdicatons,

Drefined benelit plans (gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuey plan amd other post-eoplovment besefiis and the present value of the grafwity ohligation are
determined using actuerial valenions. An pctunriel valustion involves making vanows essumptions that may differ from actusl
developments mn the fumure. These welude the determinsnon of the descount rate; funre salury meresses and mortslity rates. Due (o the
camplexities involved in the valuation and s long-term notuee, o defined benefit chligation s sensitive 1o changes in these
asguwimptions. All assimptions e reviewed ol each reporting dite,

The paramcter meost suhject 10 change 18 the discount rate. [n demrmining the approprate discount rfe for phos operated o lodia, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in India,

The mortality rate 15 based on publicly svailable mostatity tables for the specific countries. Those momality tbles tend to change only at
interval in response to demographic changes, Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflotion rates
in Indis, Further detuils ahont gratuity oblipations are grven in Note 42

Fair valwe of financial insiroments

The tiir valug of naneil instrumeants that are not iraded in an active market is detenmined wsing valuation technigques, The Uompany
uses ity judgement o seleet o variety of metheds and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end
of each reporting period.




Determining the lease term of contracts with repewal and termination options — Company as lessee
The Company determines (he lease term as the non-canceliable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option fo extend the lease i
it 15 reasgnably ceriain fo be exercised, orany penods covered by an option to termimate the lease, £ it is reazonably certain ot 1o be exercised,

The Company has severnl bease contracts that melode extension and tfermimation opiions, The Company applies judgement i evalunting whether itis
repspnably cemin whether or not fo exercise the oprion 1© renew or termimaie the lease, That s, it considers all relevant fagors: that creane an
geonomie incentive for it te exercise either the renewal or terminstion, After the commencement date, the Company repssesses the bease tenm il there
15 & significant event o change m cirevmstances that i within its control and affects its ability 10 exercise or nol 1o exercise the option to renew or fo
HerTinate.

Property lease clussification - Company as lessor

The Company has entered into commiercial property leases on i investment propery portiolio. The Company has determined, hazed on an valugtion
of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such a5 the Jease term not constinting & major part of the economie §ife of the commercial property
and the present value of the minimum lease payvments ol amounting 10 substantiallv all of the [@ir value of the commercial property, that it reialns
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these properties and pecounis for the contrmcis 25 operaling leases

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

Where the Company cannot neadily determine the imerest mte mplicit in the beise, therefore, it wes ite merementil borrowing tate (THR) 10 mensure
lease Tabilities, The TBR & the rate of interest that the Company would have oo pay to borrow aver o similar ferm, and with p similar security, the
funds fecessiry o obtain an asset of o similar vitdue o the reht-ofuse ot in o similar eoonomie eavivorment. The TBR therefore reffects what the
Company “would have 10 pay”, which pequites estimation when no obscrvable rates are available of when they seed w be adjusted 1o reflect the termes
and conditions of the lease, The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (sach as murket interest ratesh when avaiiable and 2 required o
miake cortan entity-specific estonates.

Revenue recopnition - Estimating variable consideration for eeturns and volume rebates

The Company’s contencts with cusfomers inchode promises o ransfer goods o the customers. Judgement is vequired 1o determing the Tansaction
price for the contraet, The trnsaction price could be either o fixed amount of customer considerition or varable consideration with elements such as
eebates, incentives and cash discounts ete. The estimated amount of varisble considerition s sdjosted i the ransaction price only o the extent that it
is highly probable that & significant reversal in the amount oF cumualative revenue recognised will not ocewr and is reassessed al the ond of cach
peporting period

The amount of revenve fecognised depends on whether the Company actl g% an ogensd or 05 a principal in an arfangesment with a customer, The
Company act az o prencipal il the Compamny controls a promised goods or service befire the Company transfors the poods or service to 2 customer and
sl a5 an agent i the Company’s performonce obligation 13 to armnge for the provision of goods or service by another party,




Indogulf Cropsciences Limited
CIN: UT4890DLIY93PLCOS 1854

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2025

All amounts are in INR in Millions, except otherwise stated

44 Hatio Analysis and its clements

March 31, March 31, 2024
Curtent rtio Current Assets Cutrent Linbilities 154 times 1.61 times
Diebi- Equity Ratio Total Ded Sharcholder’s Equity (L8 times (64 Lirmes
Dot Service Coverage ratio Met profitaficr taxes +  Interest & Lease 2 times 2.4 times
Mon-cash operating Payments + Principal
XU Repaviments
Return on Equity ratio Met Profits after taxes Average Sharcholder’s 12.62% 13.08%
Eguity
Inventory Turnover ritio Cost of peods sold Averige [nventory 1.83 times 1.95 times
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio  Net eredil sales Average Trade Receivable  2.65 lines 2.7 times
Trade Payable Tumover Ratio Met credit purchase Average Trade Payables 3,71 1imes 3.62 times
Net Capital Tumover Ratio Net sules Current nssets — Current 304 times 3.23 times
liabilities
Net Profit rutio Net Profit Mel sules T.H5% 6.54%,
Return on Capatal Employed Earmings before interest Tangible Met Waorth + 12.09%% 12.70%%
and taxes Total Debt + Deferred
Tax Liability
Fetirn oninvesiment MA MNA NA Ma

Mote

Cormresponding pertod ratio updated as per regrouping am reclassification made inothe previows vear period,

187




Indogull Cropsciences Limited
CIN: UT4899DLI993PLONS 1854
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025

Al amounts are i INR in Millions, except otherwise stated

45 Related party transactions

(iy Mames of related partes and related party refationship:-

a) Individuals owning diveetly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company and
Key Muansgement Personoel (KMP)

P gl B =

Mr. Om Prakash Aggarwal

Mr, Saniay Aggarwal

Mrs. Anshu Agzarwal

Mr. Blupender Kaushik (resigned woe.l31-03-2024}

by Key Management Personnel ( KMP)

1

L

Mr. Pushap Kumar

Mr. Muonoj Gupta - CFO

Mr. Suurabh Abhirnjun - CEO | resigned woed, [3-06-2023)

Mz, Sukshi Jain - Company Seeretiry (resigned woe £ 13052023 and re<appoinied we £ 11-03-2024)
M, Momkiu Sharma - Company Sccretary | appomted woe £ 20006 2023 resigmed woe £ 10-03-2024)

¢f Independent directors

1 Sh. Rahul Gupia
1 Sh Sandeep Bhiitani
3 Smn Snchal Kashyap (appointed w.e.02-12-2024)
4 smt Uma ¥Verma (appoimted we U 008-0%-2024)
i) Relatives of KMPs
I Mg Shriva Kaushik davghter of Mr, Bhopender Kaushik, Divector (ceased 1o be KMPs relative woe £ 31,03, 2024)
2 Mrs: Nisha Kaushik wife of Mr Bhopender Eaushik, Director {eeased to be KMPs rebutive woe £ 31.03,.2024)
3 Mr. Shrey Kaushik son of Mr. Bhopender Kasshik, Director {ceased o be KMPs relative woe £ 31.03.2024)
4 Ms, Sunshi Apearwal dovghier of Mr, Samay Agparwal, Director
5 Mr Amiay Agscwal gon of Mr. Sanjay A pgacwal, Director
6 Mrs. Arunika Gupta wife of Me. Manoj Gupta, CFO
=

Mes. Neclim Abhivanjan wife of M, Suaurabh Abkimngan, CEO ( resigned woe . 13-4006-2023)

¢h Enterprises aver which key munagement personnel and ibelr relatives have conirol ! skgnificant influence:

L b

LA e

Om Prakesh Aggarwal (HLUF)

Inde Orpanics Py, (formerly Steme Cropsciences Py Lud.) .
Max Tndo Private Limited

EYL Ventures LLP (formerly Indogult Pharma LLP)
Abtuprikish Infra Private Limited

samay Agparwal (HUF)

Cilownet Sciences Private Limited

Iy Whally Owned Sihsidiaries

1

i

188

Abhiprakash Globus Private Linited
Indogull Cropsciences Austiala PTY Lud,
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Indugnll Cropsciences Linited
CIN: UT4B99DL IS PLOIS 1H54
Matey te Stamdslene Fiaamcind Statements for the year ended March 81, 2025

Al armnals are i INE in Millions, except allsonise sinled

b Finamclal Insiruments

1 Fair valme medsurenients

&) Finaneial nssets - Non-carrend
Sevariry dlejpsin 4 BAA - - 4nt
I} Fimnncinl assets « Current
Trde receivablen I3 . I 1bd45 - - 1204:12
Cauh sl cush equivalens 14 - - L0 - - 29 16
Disteyet anierued bt sl die o Tixel (1] - - L8 - - Q.18
LuL
Tatnl Maniscind assels - = 6065 - = 1149.24
ch Finanelal lizddiftles - Nan-currest
Howprerwiues 0 . - A6 - - 18556
Lz [intriliey 1 - - F23 - - KR
Savurtly deposils recetved fram bl - - TU - - 3142
RERIoIners
f} Fimancia] Hobilities - Carrent
Tlormowings W = - 1009 | = - | B Ay
L Linhility T - - EE - - B3
Frale payubles 15 - - 1,332 - - | T 36
e mfurities of [onge-lerm henwin b1 - - [1y.92 - - BE.RT
Eumlvee favahles 34 . - 51.4T E - 43,77
Oither Pavahle e . - SE. Al = a fill, | 5
Tatul Reamncial lsbiliges - - A, T4 = 5 2193854

11 The FaBowing metbods snd sssumpifoss swere used (o osfimode Dhe Toir valbes
1. Cash aariad shomt-ierm depusits, e recervabies, o irade payahles, and other curren fimeczal et and Habibines opproximate thelr corying
aminmts lorgely due o the shomsterm maharites of these mstments.

{ily Fakr vnlse hdvragchy

Thist seetaom expliins the judgements nnd estomates nds i devenmindng che fair values of the Tmanelal instramenis et are
)y rocoemised nnd messired ot foir value ned

() mensured o aioctiead aost mml foewliel thir valses are diselosed ioile financisl satements.

T provide an inchesiron about the relashility of the ingrois used in deermimng, far vakue, ihe Compaey has clzssiied tin Annncial mstromenia mio the thres
tevels preseribed unader the peecunting sandind An explanation aof each |evel follows sndernesib the ahle

Theve have been noiransfors Betwern Eevel | aed Level 2 dosing: dhe period

Lol Lewl2  Lewld  Ledl Lo PR

Fimamilal sasety
Security Jepusils . - w93 - - 581

Finnmciad ahilidics
Raourily doposits received from . . THIE . . 7342
CESiOmers

There have been mi imesfers. booween Level | o Level 2 dormg the pericd

Laevel 1t Eevel 1 lsontrehy irefudes Foancial instmamnts medsaned using quitead prices. Thes eiclucdkes [sted oquity mstrunsnts thal have guedisd price, The
Faar vabur af ol equsty instrummenis which ane fraaded o ibe siock exchanges s valoed usany the closing price os 24 the reportinge perad.

Faevgl - Thee fir vnlus of finoncis] st that sre oot tezaded inoon perive marke (fee example, irmdad bonds, over-the couser derivadives) is
aetermuned using valuation teelmsgues whic mas s e use of alservable market datn omd rely as linle us possible on enting-specific sstimmtes. 10all
apztiificamt iputs required o Fade value sn mestromensd are elservalie, e insgriment 5 mclubed kvl 2

Lawel 32 I ome or more of the stomthant mputs o eof hesed oo observabls morker dat, the metrmest 18 chided m beved 3.

Jiid) Volwation lechmigee wsed o deivemineg Twir value
Soecrlic valantion lechmgpees need 1 value fmaneind mstnomens mcbude:

i} khe i valies o tle FYTOCT investrments are denved from gubted marksl posces insotive mnrkels.
b the fier vl of inberest rate swaps s calvilated as the present valug of the estimase] futare cash flows bazed on ebservatde yidls) onrves
) e Gair wubue of Bivwand fonchin eachanpe deitvacts amd principal swap is determimed ssing ferwnnd exchanes raive @ e balance sheet dae
b the dhtr valise of forwon curtemey’ oniion comtracts s deidnmned usins the Black Scholes valimiion momdkel

) thie fuir valuwes of (he aiberes-bearing barrowings o loans ane determined by uaing discmeed cash The metbod wang discount mte that reflects the

izxner’s borrmwing mbe a5 ot the end of the repartang persoil. The osrm noe- performance risk was assessed o be msineficant.

Fy the fer vahoe of the remining, financial instrumesnt is determuned wig discounted cash fow anadyss wing mbes curnenily availalée for deb ok similar

termw, crocit risk onil remeinang met it




lndagulf Cropscicsces Lamboed

CI%r U TSRO0 L WOE LS LRSS

Nides 1o Sisndoline Financlsl Sistomenis for iliv vese embed March 31, 20035
Al s are i i8R i AL inns, excepn b ise sntsld

(v b Faiv wabue of Aaanedal sssets il Tabdites messaired af ansmrtlsed eost

“Papde Luveyley )
e Wi 1
Flomneial assiis
Hecurioy depostis® L nat £85 L ES 5=
Finangial liahilities
= Lot Dokt inciuding custent nansin i) 47411 474,11 I3 254,13
- Recuriny depdrialin recedved fromm cusinimers 2] THAR T35 TIAT W42

*Thae rwimagernenl necsises] thit i values ol gl Beeaocial insiromenis ogyeosimrale the caorrving viloe Soe o ameedeed cost being caleulnned basst on
the e fTeciive irlirusl saiey

The carrying smomte of trnds recoivabloe caeh anl bank hadances: oo odher rossivahdes, short berm borrooings: sscurity deposils reerived, made
paynblies, credditoni for cumital expenidshane md oiber currenl fimmeia asscts and Hobiligios are considered o be thae sammr na fuir valoe doe bo therr shor
berm TsiEities.

¥ Flopnginl rick mannzemes
The Commpanys poocigml fimancial [Esbilibes, cdher than derivabrers, comgrrse boaes aal bormowimgs, esade and obher payobiles. The o puspose of ke
fimnesial labitithe & o fineoce the Compamye™s opeeations. The Company’s principanl funcial assds inclsle b snd other receivablbes, seocurity deposine,
caxhy amd cash equivnbenbs amd lomis that devrve chreekly from its operntioie. The Company abso holds FYTOUT invesdrments and enters. o derivative
rAnsaciions.

The Conpany is expoged o market ke credit rinke and Bgnidity vink that oee summnriwed o= undecss

| Rk Expowprgarisinu from | Mepsarement Mangecent

Cradin rk Cash und cash cquivalonie, oode Apimys anadysis vt ficntion of bank deposim,

receivables. derivative finangial oreslia Fimmive
finmncial gssets menmared ai
Licuiddity fhak, B ings-amd ot Habiliths sl o rssssting Al ity of goeninined et lines
i h:rr:ml,rwﬂw-]llli:b

Markel risk - forcipn oxnchange risk Rorspmsed finnncinl nswss and w Ciush v forocasting il Farwnrd exchange conimscis
liswhilitses nox demsminansd im Tndian I3h Seisivivity analysis ) Foreign curmency. ogriuns
rupe I MKEG o Lirreniny swaps

Murkel rrk - mivrest rate risk Lomp-berm horroavines ot yorishle rates | Seemiivity snadvsis Interest mie swips

Mlarkei risk - securiie prces Invesimeiss in egaity sooEbics Sersitivity analysis Parrrfidns dvversifcaism

Ihe Congamy as ormuloged e sk Manggenent Policy whose objective 16 1© eoaune sastninnble busmiss expuusbon wih stnlully, and 0 peomaos an
upheat agperonch 6 risk munnpemen process by elimdnating riskc 1n oeder o achieve thin key alsjective. this polioy prsvides o preperdd and woell-orgnised
approaeh g mana e dhe coroos vypes of msk ossooibed with daw 1o day sl of the Comparry and mimorire adyverse mpaet an iis busimess ohjestiives
o well as palbeles covening speeific areas, sach s foreim exg banie risk, doddrest sate visk. cnsdin pisk, use of derivative finaneial msmanaesis and noi-
therivalive finncind nstrsmons, und iecmment of coecss Hyudidy:

Al Cruedit rish

Credit sk s the risk chat coungerparty will ool s s obligations mmder 8 Tl instremend or castonsr sommet, lemBing 10a Auancial liss The
Comppany s axpesed to credit sk from it opedmg sctvitips {primarily trade reccivabless ard foom is Gnomcing activities, mehoding doposite wiih banks,
forcipn exchange tran=actioos sndother fmncial meinomsenls

(i Credit risk mamagemend

al Trade receivables

Crmtormer credit rink is managed by each business anit subsjoct to the Compmmyes established policy, procedures and comizal melating o customen crodil vk
mamsgement. (hiksndimg customer récenmbles nreneguiady moniooced, The Company pemndically osaesses the financind refinbility of omtomen, inking
min aceom ohe Anancial condition, cumrent eonmmie frends, acd aoslysas of historicol detn and sgeang of soonmis recesvoble, Individaasl sk lms ane s
aveordingly. Mew custinners are nnalysed individually for credinvenhiness beioee the Company's standacd payneol and delivery termm ane odfered. Sabe
tirmits arc established tor cach customers and rossowed periodicolly.

The Cunmpaiy cemskders the probsabaliy. of defaolt apon imibol recoguston of assel and whather there has been a significant merease o creidin sk anan
onpoing basis throaghout each reparting persod. 1 copaiders avmilahée reaswmable nnd suppontive forward-looking infarmation, Eepecially the following
i ators nre incorporaied:

ab Actunl or oxpecied upmificant sdverse chospes io businese, financisl or econonse condisons that gee sciial

) Skmuflean changes o the gapecisd perionmance and bebsviows of the customer, ocduding clanges motbe praioes sisis of custoner in te conpauy

The brss ey eagoeiims 10 cradEil Hek abising Do iasle reveiiulblen s ahovidsd plnds 13

B} Finamcial instroments gl cosh degasiis

Crwahit iiek Fromnt balances with bamks gk rempged by she Compamy's masapeisnl in ocecordapes withy the poliey of e Cotopany, O oimerparty credil s
i reveewed by the Company’s rmosgemoit oo o msnl basds. The Hones are sol tooomsmiss the oooeentraiion of risks anid thorefore oatigags foanmcind
o= thaaugh counserparty s potentind flure o maks pasaenis,

[he Conpany™s nm=cmwms exposnre b credie imk for ibe components of the bolance abeed ot Surch 30, 2025 and Marcls 33, 2024 & the carryng mmaoonis
an elbustroted in Moie 14,

i) Frevivien e capected oredit losses

Calegary hescription of coleporsy Bawis for recognition af pxpected crodit lows
provisiam
Security depsisits Trade receivables
High quatlity ms=ets. nepligible oradit risk Mseln where the coumier- party bss stromg

engmoity 10 mest the obligaions and whee ithe
risk ot defialt is neghigible or mil

Lstonn epoctod

Dhmlliey sasens, by crodil risk At wher theee in lovwe risk of delauli gl |2ty expoated crodat loss
Lreddl |osses

whany e woumiler-party bes sulficial capaciny
gir mwet the ohligaisye gl where thers s bien
lowe frvguemcy ol defaulis e the pasi




Inddpeslf Cropsciences Limited
CIN: UT4R00DLI99APLCOS TR
Notes to Stundilone Financinl Statoments for the vear ended Mareh 31, 2025
All amounts ang in [NR in Millioos, excopt etherwise stabed

B) Ligubdity risk
Liquidity sk s the risk that the Company will nol be able 10 meet its financial obliztions us they il due. The Company’s appeoach to manosing liquidity
15t ensure; s faras possible, that it wall slways bave sufficient hguishoy omeet itz labalities when dhe, under both norrmal amad stressad conditions,
without imeurmng vmacceptoble fosses or risking domage to the Compony s repuiabion. The Company munages Bguadity tisk by mannenimng sdequais
reserves, by continuonsly moniiosing forecist and actonl cash Dows ind midching the mmteriy profikes of the fmneinl pssets wd labilites

The Conipiny enporys o good repuation for 118 seund francal renagement ammd ability 1o meet o Gnincesd] commmitments,

Indagulf Cropscicnces Limited
CIN: UT4890DL 1993 PLCHS]1 854
Nores to Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended Mareh 31, 2025
All amounts are in INR in Millions, exeept otherwise stated

Contractual maturities of Bnancial liabilities:-

Asat March 31, 2025 Note Within 1 year HBetween 1 More than 5 Total
and 5 vesrs Vil
Long term borrowines {including curvent maturithe 20 1179 A56.149 - 47411
Shaort term borrownes 25 141 5 - = 1.690,91
Lease liabiliry imeleding cuwrrent pormion 7 18.62 14.72 2551 AR5
Trade pavables 25 1,332.39 - - 133239
Security deposits received from customers 21 T9.2R - - T49.2%
Croditors Tor capital expemdilure 20 2432 - - 14.32
Employves pavables 24 5147 - - 5147
Other puyable 21 i - - Sib.6h
Tuotal 336556 3Th.e1 1551 LTl B8
st March 31, 2024 Note Within I year  Between ! More than § Total
. and 8 Vears VieArs

Long term horrowings (nchuding current maturitic 20 6E.67 183.50 - 68,67
Short term borrowines 24 |.291.39 - - 1.291.39
Lease liability including curcent portion 7 915 .49 2612 .15
Trade payables 25 | 097 36 = - 1097, 36
Security deposits received fram customers 2 ET - - 7342
Creditors for copital expendituns 21 [6.70 -

Employes pavaebles 24 4377 = = 4377
{3ther pavable 6 Ml |5 - - 6. 14
Toial 2,062 145.45 102 104391

) Market risk
Maurket risk 15 the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of o finoneial nstrument will fluctuate because of chonges in market prices. Market nisk
comprises three types af sk intercst rate nisk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity nsk. Financial instroments
affected by market nsk include loans and hormowings. deposits, FYTOCT invesmwents and derivative financeial instuoments.

(I} Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the sk that the for value or fiture coash flows of an exposure will fluctuate becnuse of changes in foreizn exchange rates, The
Company's exposure fo the nsk of changes i foreign exchange mies retales primanly (o the Compny s eperating sctivites {when revenue or expense is
denominated in a foreign curremcy).

When o derivative g5 entered into for the purpose of heing a hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of those derivagives to match the terms of the hedged
exposure. This foreien currency risk is hedped by using forvign currency forwarnd contract,




ol O . L baitiad
AN UTANNENL IFPLC DS DRSS
Muies i Riandalone Financial Siateoonis for ihe veor ended Macch 30, 2025

A imoemits are m TNR fin bilfioers, cxoopt itherwise stiginl

Semsiniv iy
e Fisllopwnng tabbos demarisirale B sesalivity up rensenably possible champe o USD exchimge sites, st all ather vamialles beld comsom, The g
4y the Comrpunys profit befing s s due S climgss in e i vadoe of oty ieets aml linkifities,

LISE semsltiviny
Trade receivahles
LEED

RS s Imonesse b 3% (arch 31, 3034: $9) 174 L1LA1)

INHLIRE - devréase by 5% (Morch 31, 2034 550 TAR P51
AED

INEYAED - incrense by 5% (March 31, 2004; 544) LR .

INEAED - devrense by P4 (March 31, 2024, %) LUl =
Adyamces lrem caviomer
&N

THR/LISTY - e by 3% (Minch 31, 2024: 5% 1:26 29

TNRLISE . decierse by 8%, (Mirch 31, 206240 3% {128 JlE ey
AED

THR/AETY - tngrvnse by 5% (March 35, 2004:5%0 F =
INRSAED - deotense by 54% [harch 31, 2024: 540 - N

Trade Fovables
L=
INEALISO - ineneses by 3% {March 31, 2034 3%) g B4 [Ny
IR LIS - deereine By 5% (Mangh 31, 26254 3% 12 2 P17
AED
INFUAED - inercase by 5% (March 31, 2034 5% = =
NECAETY » docroase by 3% (Maorch 370, 2024 59%) .
Avlvamce to Vemlers
LD
TNERAISE < [pereae by 3% {March 31, 3034: 52 = L]
IMELLISEN - decrease by 5% | onch 31, 20245 3% b1 Kiled
AED

TNEAEDY « merense by $% { March 38, 2004; $05) ! &
FRECAEDY - decramne by 200 Mupgh 37, 20348, 40y = .

it} Inferesd rate risk

Interess rmie risk is 1he risk that the fair value or future cash flows of' s finnecind mstroment will fluctunte beoyuse of chonpes in mardeet meeresd mies, The
Uompany is eaposed io interest o nskebocause funds one borroeesd at botls Aaod and Ooating onberess mees. Interest rane risk is nessuned by using the
armEd) b Baikitiviby Jod Olunges o varsbie ioterces eate. The Irowings of e Congein are poncapally degcaspaied i ugess a1 nl.ﬂ.“llf Foles of
inlensl

() Diderest rafe risk exmimure
i exprsise ol the O 'k bairreowvings B imerest e chanmes of the e of ths reporting period ore os fodlows:

Asat March A ar March 31
AN, 2025 T

::1 N
Varinhle mie barmowmgs
Bhunt i Borivdines a0 ] |.2%1,3%
Lo ferm borrowmmigss S lmhing currérd rnmiurities 474,01 25421
Fixed e bormmowings - Long term dinciuding carrent maturities b . -
T tal Iarfawings L1EsA0 160429

Mo the enid of the reporiing period, the Company hud the following bomg term viriabbe role bomowinigs Cimeiodiog oorment b bes | s inlerest mbe
WARHY CIHTIELL Gtnding:

ntevest rates  Bulance  fwoftatal  lmleres Matance i ol totul
Hnnik Evsr i e 478 11 2 T 45408 15, F9%
Mol enpmnry fo coal fow loferesd rade rish AT 01 25423

*  Capiin] mpnagement
Py Bisk mpmapemeni
Cnpital incledes equity atribnble o the eguity holders 10 ensune thad it osininans in efficien saupitnd stroechare nod banlthy cnpleal miblos inocder b
sapport s busitess and maximmise sharehodder yoloe. The Company manages its capiia] stmuctore ond makes adivaimends (o0, in fghl of changes in
st coiitionls o 16 Busiiess Yequireimeits. To masitsis or aujist the capiml srstme, the Conmany may st e dividesdl payvi i
sharglloders, returm-caplial o shareleilders or ke tew shares. The Cimpuny wemilons eapdind ushng o gearing rmtlo, wiiseh s net debn divided v wial
wapital phas net bl For the purpsss of thae Compiuny s cipital mamgememt, oot dobl neludis meness bearmyz loans ond bormgwings, s cosh aanf sash
oiquivalemis. Capainl inclodes issed couity capital. shore premiom ood ol other equty neserves anmibuisble e the oquity bobders

Bote' Asat Murch  As st Slirch 1
Al as 2024
Tatl debe 20, 7. 24 2223840 LAS% 55
(Lash Cash and cash comvalenis (£ [EE R P2 1A
Mot dledet R LR ] 1hdik2a
Pertiil esigiianl FE L] 2. 76205 2AL568
Capliol amd mei debi 4591 78 30%LTE
Cremring ratin 43, 53% 41,70

P e worw trssde i bt objectives, policice or processes Bemamngging capital doring the vear enibed March 310 3025 and March 31, 2024




Indogulf Cropscicnces Limited
CIN: UT4509D L1993 LCDS 1854
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2028

All aenounts are i INR in Millions, except otherwise stated

tn order 10 achieve this overll objective, the Company’s capital munagement, amongst ather things, aima o ensere et it mees Teanciol covenanrs
attached o the interest-bearing loans and boerowings thot define capital strocture requinements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenonts would permit
ihe bank to mumedistely call loens and borrewings. There lave been no breaches in the Gnancial covenants of any mierest-beanng loans and borrowimg in
e current period,

Indogull’ Cropseiences Limited
CIN: UT4599D L 1993 PLOCOS 1854
Motes to Standalone Financial Statements as al Mareh 31, 2025

Adl amounts are in INR in Millions, except otherwise stated

47 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

{a) Mew and amended stundards and interpretstions

(ip Tnd AS 117 Insurance Contracts

{il

ik

The Mintstry of comporate AfTairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insuranee Contracts, vide notifieation dated 12 August 2024, under the Companies (Indiom
Accounting Standardsy Amendment Rules, 2024, which is effectve from annual reporting perieds begmning on or alter | Apnl 2024,

Tndd A5 117 Insuranee Coppracts is o comprehensive new accounting standand for insuranee contrsets covering recognition and measusamnent, presantation snd
disclosure, Ind AS 117 reploces Ind AS 104 lnsurance Contracts. lnd A% 117 applies to-all types of insurance contracts, newardless of the type of eotities that
issue then ox well o8 to ¢enain guarintees opd Mnaaciol instruments with discrotionary participation features; o fow scope exceptions will apply. Ind AS 117 is
hased on o general model, supplemented by

« A speaifie wdaptation for contricts with divect porticipation features {the vanahle fee approach)

« A simplificd spproach (e premiam alloestion approach ) mainly for shor-doaration contems

The application of nd A% 117 hed no mmpact on the- finoncial stitements os the Company has not entered any contracts in the noture of iInswmnces contmcts
coversd under Ind AS 117,

Amendment to Tnd A5 116 Deases — Lease Linhility in a Sale and Leasehack

The MCA notified the Companics {Indien Accounting Stendands) Sccond Amendment Bules, 2024, which amend Ind A% | 16, Legses, with respect 1o Lease
Liability o Sale und Leasehack.

The amendment specifies the requirements tha a seller-leasee uses in measuring the bease liakilicy arising in a sale and leasehack wansaction, to ensure the seller
lessee does not recognse any amount of the goin or boss that relotes 1o the nght of use 1t retaims.

The wendment i effective For annual reporing periods bemnning on or after | Aprl 2024 and must be applied retrospectively to sale and leasehack
transactions entered into after the dote of initial application of Tnd A% 116,

The nmendment does nod have any impact on the financial statements as the Company hns nol entered any contreeiz in the nture of lease lnbelity oo ssle and
leasebick coversd under lod As L6,

Standurds issued bul not ver effective

There are no such sinndards or amendmeni issued which are not effective as on dale.
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
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segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chiel operating
decision maker. The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and distribution of Agro-chemicals
comprising of technical and formulation, hence there 15 one operiting segment.

Entity wide disclosures as applicable to the Company are mentioned below:-

a) Information about geographical areas:

Revenue from external customers Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within Indiz 5.552 86 4965 68
Outside India 65861 753,27
Total revenue 6.211.47 5.T18.95

The hasis for atributing revenues from external customer is based on the country of domicile of the respective

CUSTOITIEES,

b} Revenue from Major Customers: There is no customer having revenue amounting to 10% or more of

Company’s total revenue,

Cqm mitment and Contingent liahilities

Weighted avernge number of shares (Foce value Bs 100 each)

(a) Basic eamings per share (INR)
b} Diluted earnings per share (INR)®

*including dilutive potential equity shares,

4.48.04,394.00

6.58
T.la

Particulars Year ended Asat
. March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining o be executed on 133.73
capital aecount and not provided for (net of advances) E 1204
b Guaraniees wwsued by bank on behalf of Company T.36 .62
¢} Custom Duty demand 3.97 6,82
) Costom & Exeise Duty demand 122,10 -
d) Sales Tax Maiters 270 270
o} Goods & Service tax matters 76.75 B84
fy Imcome tax mathers 16.97 1697
g) Consumer Dispute Redressal Commission | Ahmedabad) 1L.11 111
h) Letter of Credit with banks 238.93 157.35
Total Hill2.62 206.29
Earnings per share

: Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Profit for the vear 320.85 284.74
Weiphted average nomber of shares (Face value Bs 10/- each) 487 87 456.00 235N TIR0N

1.25,000.00

1211
12.04
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51 Additional information pursuant to Ministry of Corporate Affais notification dated March 24,2021 with respect to

amendments in Schedule [T of Companies Act, 2013
{1) There are no proceedings which have been imtiated or pending against the company for holding any Benam
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 98K (45 of 19EE) and rules made thereunder.

{11} The company 15 not a wilful defaulter as declared by any bank or financial Institution or any other lender,

{1i1) The company does not have any ransactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act,

2013 or section 360 of Companies Act, 1956
{1v) There are no charges or Satisfaction yet Lo be registered with Registrar of Companies {ROLC) bevond the statutory

{v) There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the vear in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such us. search or surveyor any

other relevanl provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).
{vi) The company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the vear.

{vii) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall:

{a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on

behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b} Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

{viii) The Company has not received any fund from amy persons or entities, including foreign entities { Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall;

{4} Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on

behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Benefictanes.

{ix) Title deeds of property are held in the company’s own name.

(x) The Company has not invested with number of layers of Companics during FY 2023-24, as prescribed under clause
{#7) of Section 2 of the Act read with the Comipanies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 200 7.
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Information in respect of Micro and Small Enterprises as at 315t March 2024 as required by Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 20404,

o Year ended Asat
Farticuirs March 31,2025 March 31,2024
i) Amaount remaining unpaid toany Supplier:

Principal amount 117.42 279,52
Interest due thereon - -

b Amount of mterest paid by the buyer mtenme of section 16 of MAMED - =
Act alomyg with the amount paid 1o the suppliers bevond the appoimted
day.

¢} Amount of interest due and pavable for the period of delay in making = e
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under the MESMELD Act.

d) Amount of interest acerued and remaiming unpaid - -

¢l Amouni of further interest remaming due and payable even in the - -
succeeding vears, until such date when the interest dues as above are

actually purd 1o the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowanee ns o

deductible expenditure under section 23 of MEMED Act

Audit Trail;

The Mimstey of Corporate Adfairs (MUA) hos prescabed a new requirement fur companies under the provise o Bele 3(1) of
the Companics (CAccountsy Rules, 2014 inserted by Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2021 requiring compamies,
which uses pecouwnimg software for memunmg its. books of geecount, sholl wse only such pecountimg software which hos o
feature of recording audii il of each and every transactlon, ereating and edit log of each change made in the hooks of
nivount along with the dote when such changes were misde and ensuring that the awdit teail conoost be diseblied.

The Company has enabbed the awdin rmbiedit bogs) faciliy of the accountng software osed for miomtenance of afl peeounting
records. However, audic ieail {edit logsp are enabled a1 application fevel and not o dacabase level because enabling this faciling
will severely impacts ERP perfarmunee due to direct impact on space utilisation

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company 83 per the siatatory roquirersents for pecord retentiosn,

Subsequent Event: - Nil

I the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, the current assets loans and advances have the value st least
equaa] o the fgures stated in the Balance Sheet on realisation in the ordinary comrse of husiness excepl donbtful
mature of advinees & loans and/or other w'esand provision for all known lisbilites have been made.

56 Previous vear figures have been re-gouped or re-ammanged, wherever necessary,
For DEVESH PAREKH & (b FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Chartered Accountanis INDOGULF CROPSCIENCES LIMITED

Firm's Registration Mumber O13338N

Sd/- Sdi- S
Devesh Parekh Sanjay Aggarwal Om Prakash Aggarwal
Partmer Managing Director Whale Tome Director
Membership Mumber (K2 160 DN 00763035 DTN 00732440

adi- S~
Plage: Delin Manoj Gupta Sakshi Jain
Drane: Tuly 24, 2023 Chiefl Financial Officer Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Indogulf Cropsciences Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Indogulf Cropsciences
Limited (herein referred to as “the Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries (the Holding company
and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™), which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as on March 31, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows for the vear then ended, and notes 1o the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of the material accounting policies and other explapatory information
{hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
{the “Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 20135, as amended (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of aftairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, the
consolidated profit, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thercunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibalities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAID's Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period, Since the Company was not
listed as on March 31, 2025, reporting of Key Audit Matters as required under SA
T0L, Communicating Key Audit Masters in the Independent Auditor’s Repory, is not applicable for
the year.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other

information, The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Corporate




Governance and Shareholder’s Information; buot does not include the consolidated financial
statements, standalone financial statement, and oor auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated linancial statements does not cover the other information and we do
nol express any form ol assurance or conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated finaneial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materally mmsstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Compuany’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated total
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maimtenance
of the adeguate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other freegularitics: selection and
application of approprigte accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating  effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records.
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been
used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the
Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies
included in the Group are responsible for sssessing the ability of the Group to continue s a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of aceounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative bul 1o do so,

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance sbout whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a pusrantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or eror and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to mfluence the economie
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Az part of an avdit m accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judpment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:




o [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial stptements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
grror, a5 fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant (o the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of aceounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude thal a material unceriamty exisis, we are required to draw atlention in our
auditor's report o the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, it such
disclosures are madequate. o modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the awpdil
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group 1o cease to continue 4s a going Concer,

# Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlving transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

s Obtain sufficient approprigte audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entity or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such enlity and subsidiaries incorporated in India included in the
consolidated financial statements.

Matenality 15 the magniude of misstatements m the consolidated Lnancial statements  that,
mdividually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be mfluenced. We consider quantitative
materality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated
financial statements,

We communicate with these charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated fnancial statements of which we are the independent auditors
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significam audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters thal may reasonably be thought 1o bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or




regulation prectudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benelits of such
COMMmUnicaton,

Other Matters

(a) The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial siatements and other
financial information i respect of a foreign subsidiary which reflect total hiabilines of Rs, 2.81
million as at March 31 2025, and total revenue of Bs. Nil and net cash inflow of Bs. Wil takhs for
the vear ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated financial statements. These
financial statemenis are unaudiled and have been fumished to us by the Board of Directors and
our opinion en the Statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of said subsidiary, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements, In our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us by the Board of Directors, these
financial statements are not material to the Group,

Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Regquirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect 1o
our reliance on the financial statements and other financial information certified by the
Management.

Our conclusion on the statement is not modified in respect of the above matter,

Report on (ther Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order. 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Acl, we give in the “Annexure A a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable,

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we reporl (hat;

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our andit of the atoresaid consolidated
financial statements,

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph 2(i)(vi) below on reporting
under Rule 11{g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

¢} The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprebensive Income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are m agreement with the relevant books of
account and records maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statcments,

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
and subsidiaries incorporated in India as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of
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Directors of the Holding Company and subsidiaries incorporated in India, none of the directors of
the Group incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,

With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is
made 1o our remarks in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act
and paragraph 201)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Aunditors) Rules, 2014,

With respect to the adeguacy of the intemal financial controls with reference 1o Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in
India, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the Company 's internal financial controls with reference to financial statement.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act. as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the remuneration paid by the Holding Company to its directors during the yeur is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
L1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us;

L. The consolidated financial statements disclose impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group Refer note no. 48 to the conselidated financial
statements.

ii. The Group has made provisions, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for matenial foreseeable losses, i any: on long-term contracts mcluding denvative
CoOniracts.

iii. There were no amounts which, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund ("TEPF"} by the Holding Company, Further, there were no amount which
were required to be transferred to the IEPF by the subsidiaries incorpornted in India,

v, (n) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its Subsidiaries. incorporated
within [ndia. have represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the holding company and its subsidiaries 10 or in any
other person or entity, including foreign eatitics (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 1n any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the holding company and its subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guaraniee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianes.

(b) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated
within India, has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Holding Company and its  subsidiaries from any person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded




in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company and its Subsidiaries shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identitied i any manner
whatsoever by or on behall of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behall of the Ultimate Benefliciaries.

{c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us on the Company and its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing
has come to our notice that causes us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i} and (i1} of Rule 11l{e), as provided under (&) and (b} above, contain any material
misstatement,

() The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India have not paid a
final dividend during the previous year,

{b) No inlerim dividend has been declared and paid by the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies during the vear,

{c) The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India have not
proposed & final dividend For the year,

Based on our exomination which included test checks, the Holding Company and s
subsidiary companics, imcorporated in India, in respect of financial year commencing on April
1, 2024, has used an accounting software for maintaining their respective books of account
which have feature of recording audit trail (edit log} and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that the audit trail feature of
aforesaid software at the database level was not enabled during the year. Further, during our
audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail Feature being tampered with on
accounting software where this feature is enabled.

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Holding Company and above referred
subsiliary companies meorporated m India as per the statutory reguirements for record
retention.

For Devesh Parekh & Co,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration number: 013338N

sd/-

Devesh Parekh

Partner

Membership number: 092160

Place: Dell
Date: July 24, 2025
UDIN: 25092 160BMGIY C3086




“Annexure A" to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Finaneial Statements
of Indogulf Cropsciences Limited for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Referred to in paragraph | under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

axi) With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order’ “CARO™) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section
143(L1) of the Act, o be mncluded in the Aunditor’s report, according (o the information and
explanations given to us, and based on the Auditor’s Reports on the financial statements of Company
and its subsidiaries as at and for the wear ended March 31, 2025, included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Group, we report in respect of those companies where audits have been
completed under section 143 of the Act, we have not reported any qualifications or adverse remarks.

For Devesh Parekh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 013338N

Sd/-
Devesh Parckh
Partner
Membership number: 092160

Place: Delhi
Date: July 24, 2025
UDIN:23092 1 60BMGIY C3086




“Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of Indogulf Cropsciences Limited

{Referred 1o in paragraph 2{g) under "Report on Other Legal and Regulalory Requirements” section of
our report o the Members of Indogulf Cropsciences Limited of cven daie)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companics Act, 2013 (*the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the company as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of Indogulf Cropsciences Limited (‘the Holding Company') and its subsidiaries, which
are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management™s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are companics
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining intemnal financial controls with
reference fo financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Owver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT). These
responsibilitics include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal fimancral
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence o the respective company's policies. the safeguarding of s assets. the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors. the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's, Subsidiarics, which arc
incorporated in India, intemal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by the ICAL and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable 1o an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Finanvial Controls and. both issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India, Those
Standards and the Guidanee Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference Lo financial slalements and their operating effectiveness, Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
anditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement ol the Ninancial
statements, whether due to frawd or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sulficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal lnancial controls with reference to conselidated
financial statements,




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference 1o financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statemenis for external purposes in accordance with penerally accepied accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements
mcludes those: policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance thal transactions are recorded as necessary o permil
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference 1o consolidated
financial statements may become inadequate becavuse of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, hive maintained, in all matenial respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at Murch 31, 2025, based on the
internal control with reference to financial statements eriteria established by the company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

For Devesh Parekh & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: (01 3338N

Sd/-
Devesh Parekh
Partner
Membership number: 092160

Place: Delhi
Date: July 24, 2025
UDIN:2Z5092160BMGTY C3056




Indogull Cropsclenees Limited
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Consdidated Balanee Sheof s a1 March 31, 2025
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As per our separnie report of even date smmesed herewith
Far TEVESH PARERH & €08, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARB
Chartensd Accountints INDOGULF CROPSCIENCES LIMITED
Firm's Registration Mumboer 31 33318N
S~ Sl bt A
Devesh Poreld Samjay Aggarwul ibm Frokash Apparwal
Fartoaer Munagzing [Niewiod Whils 'Tmes Drlrecion
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Indogrulf Cropsciences Limited

CIN: UT4809D L1903 PLCOS 1854

Consalidated Statement of Profit and Loss as at March 31, 2025
All amounts afe in INR in Millions, except otherwise stated

Note Vearended  Vear ended
Mareh 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Income
Revene from operarions 17 3004, 21 3.520.34
Uther neome 18 40,54 3553
Total Incame 504475 555787
Expenses
Cost of raw material und components consumed 1% 4.553.08 402665
Purchase of Traded Cioods &0 21,54 3181
Changes in inventories of finished poods, work-in-progresse 21 (528,300 (23172}
Cost of service consamed
Employer bemefits expense 22 4057 d5R.090
Finanee Cosis a2 143,20 129,45
Depreciotion and omortization expenss 14 L (45,96 LO3.07
Other expenses x5 65449 9261
Total expenses 5,512.54 S 1608l
Profit exceptional items and before fax 432.21 3707
Exceptional ltems 24 13.49 136.65)
Profit before tax 445.70 RS B
Tax Expenses a7
= Current Tax | 34,55 (LA
- Tax of earlicr years 0,37 {1789}
- Deeferred Tax (397 {1214}
Total Tax Expenses 130.98% 78.09
Prafit for the period 4.7 133

(ther comprehonsive income
ltems that will ned be reclassafied fo profit or loss

Remensurement of net defined benefil plans 207 2.60
Incoame tax relating to these stems {152) (.98
[neome @x relating o DEPF remeasurements {0.52) (10.1303)
Oither comprehensive income for the period (net of fax) 1.55 1.7
Ttal comprehensive incoie foe the period (aet of tay) 3a27 184,03
Earmings per equity share AT
Basic carningd per shore &45 1200k
Dibuted enrings per share T.02 11.94

The aceompanying notes are an integral part of the (inancial staiements
Material Aveounting Policies 1tod
Motes to Conseliduted Finnncial Stulemenis 3t 56

As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith

For DEVESH PAREKH & Ci, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Chartered Accountanls INDOGULF CROPSCIENCES LIMITED
Firm's Registration Mumber 07333488

- Sdi- Sl
Devesh Parckh 15:63 zarwal Om Prakash Aggarwal
Partmer Monaging Director Whaole Time Darector
Memibership Muriber 2 160 DIMN (0763635 DM GOT32440
Sdi- Sl
Plage: Delhi 15.63 Gupta Snkshi Jain
Date; July 24, 2025 Chief Finnnciml Cfficer Company Sccretary
LDk 250492 160BMOGIY C3086 FCA - 513136 ACS -AGTSIA




Indogulfl Cropsciences Limited

CUAN: UTHRO9DL 1ML COS1BSY

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity a5 st March 31, 2025
All nmounts are in INE in Millions, except otherwise stated

(a) Equity share caplial

Equity shares of INK 10 each lssued, sulseribed and Tally pakd Manitber of shares Share capltal
Asat April 1, 2023 LS 18718 13510
Chonges m equiry share capiml during the curment year - -
Balance ns ot Maorch 31, 2024 1,35, 1K728 235.1%
Changes meguity share capital dureng the cement year A2 al. TR pras 0 11,8
Balance as ul Mureh 31, 2025 -Ig‘.‘.ﬂ?..-i!oﬁ JH-F?.:L
bi. Cithei Egiity
Other Reserve | Total
» ) Securities Promlim Yo
instruments:
Axat April 1, 2023 1, 7325 15,63 7716 - 1, 7904
Prafit for the peeioml 28233 - - - 28233
Other comprehensive meoms for the veor 1.70 - = - 1.7
Tl comprebensive inenme for ihe vear T4 - - . 3400
Dvihensd paad durmg the vear . L
Tux on Dividend paid - - - -
Balnnce as at March 31, 2024 167,28 15.63 TT.14 - 28007
Asal April 1, 2024 108728 1563 TG - TAH00T
Piofit for the period 31472 - - - 314.72
Other somprebensive income for the yeor L35 1,55
Tutal comprebenslve lneume for the vear 1627 - - - 316,27
Trvicensd puid doring she year . . . -
Tax om Dividend paid - - - - -
Less: Appropriations for issoe of Bonos Shares (20644 - - (236.44)
Add: Premium on issue of shares - - 10E.00 - 10F5.4Hb
Bulnmee ws ar March 31, 2025 L7010 15.63 18216 - 2,265
The accompanying notes are sn integral part of the Mnancial statements
Materin] Aceounting Policies Il
Motes o Consolidated Finnnedal Stateme mis X i B6
As per our separate report of even date annexed herewith
For DEVESH FPAREKH & C0. FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Chariered Accountanls INDOGULF CROPSCIENCES LIMITEDR
Firm's Replatraton Mumber (H 3338N
Edi- - Sd-
Devesh Parelh Sanfay Aggarwal Om Prakash Aggarwal
Partner Munoging Thrector ‘Whole Time Thrégtor
Memberslup Number D2 16d DTN DT 3655 DM QT 3244040
Sab- il
Place: Delhi Mano] Gupia Sakshd Jain
Dt July 24, 2025 Chief Financinl (ficer Compamy Secretary
LTI 250402 | OBMOIY CI08S FOA - 5131340 ALK -ARTI2S



Iaiebogall Crapaciences Limited

CING UT4RPIDLIY93PLUDS 1H54

Consedbdated Sttement of Cash Flows as af March 31, 2025
All pmoungs are in INR in Millions, except oifierwize sated

Year ended Vear ended
March 31, 2028 March M, 2624
{A) Cashi Flow From Operating Activities
et profit before ax 48T Aal,42
Maljustment on pecount of
- Deprezintion 105 96 1s.07
{Profity Loss on Sale of Assels hEA kT
= LProfitl Loy on Sele of Invesimen - -
= Mfincellnneois li_ﬂpcns.;:u 207 =0
= Dnderest nconne 1485 (%592
- Interest Expenses 134.AH 124.93
- Inierest Expenses on lease labilicy 3.52 .35
Urpernting Profit Before Waorking Capital Chonges nRISS o622 3k
Mdjustments for
~(Inerease) Decreus: i inveningies (T4 7.0 138,72
- idncremsel Decrense [ trnde receivables [RLRLY [ES Y
- tIcrease Y Decresse th other lignncinl ngsets-long term {171 3.7%
= [ Incrgase vV Decrease m other finangial asset==shor term 06 {6512
= { Inemease b Decrense v other Ccurmeni pssels (2RTOT) 44 03
= {Increasey Decrense in provisions 3z 144
= Incpeasie’] Devrease) bn teade poyaliles 24560 279,01
= Inerepse’ Decrease) i othor mancial labilites-shoat temm 5260 2.9
= Inmeraised Didcrodse) i odhwer fnaneind Habilimas-long tenm 11,94 LHR
= Im'mu-':cﬂ'lkun;-.]'h:-l i vlher curreni liabiliiies T34 565
Cash (usedppenernied from operutions (30.01) s97.a2
Lt Dncat e Lax paid LT e 1A A
Mt Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) 14757 53342
(B} Cash Flow From lavesting Activitics
= Aqllatiasn Wy progaermy, pland s cqudganaend and ingangihle assers 42179 {248.51)
Prowveeds frmom sale of propecy plant wnd eguripmend LB 30 I8 31
= Interest received 4.8% R
= Progeeds= from sale of mvestmeni = =
Met Cosh Flow nsed in Investing Activilios (B) R0E Gl {52 2H)
() Cash Flow From Financing Activitles
- Proceeds fron long tenn borrowings 17136 [RERH
- Procecds Repayvment) fromiof short term bormow ings 4ET7.39 {FI2.5HH)
= Tndwreit pasd LI0AE (12493
Payment of lensy linhility (2515 41ETAT
= 1zsne of sheres BN
Met Cash Flow generated fromdiused inp Financing Activities (C) 1 3.Ri (ABH.HF)
Met inerease’ {decrease) in Cash and Cash Egoivalents {A+R-+HC) L] {_'_.",'_."I‘}
Cash and Cash Eyuivalents af the beginning of e vear 2006 Jed7
Cash pavil Cash Fagudvalents ar fhe end of the year Wa.ES 1916

For the porpose of the statement of cash flows, cosh and cosh eqnivalents comprise the following:

15,63
Woenr crded Vear ended
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Balimees with banks
O current peooUnes 416 3K
{ash oo hanel 044 1.&7
Dicposiiy with remaiming maturity between three and owelve months ] 2551
Takal cash aod cash equivalonts 15,63 WL E5 .16
The avcompanyving nefes are an inlegeil part of the Anaoscial sttoments
Mimterinl Accounting Folivies (I 11
Mates to Consolidated Fingncial Statements 3 1o 50
As por our separiie repart of even date annexed berewith
For DEVESH PAREKI & 0, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Chartered Avcouwrants INDOGULF CROPSCIENCES LIMITED
Firm's Begisteathon Mumber 0133385
. Sl Bl
Devesh Farekiy Sanjuy Agparwal  Ohm Prakush Apparwal
Parfig Manspging Difccror Wisode Tinwe Dinsesor
Membwership Mutnber 092 A0 DI O0761635 D BOT32440
Sl -
Mime: el Mana] Gupta Sakshi Jain
Db July 34, 2035 Cliiel Finaneial Officer Campany Seerelary
LA 2509 2 160E MO Y O30 R FCA - 513136 ACSE -ABTI1S




Indogull Cropsciences Limited

CIN: UT4890DL1%IPLCOSTIRSS

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in INK in Millions, except otherwise stated)

2.

Corporate Information

Indogull Cropsciences Limited { the “Company™ or the “Parent Company” or the “Holding Company) was
incorporited on January 22, 1993 a5 an unlisted public company under under the Compames Act, 1956, vide
registration. no. UT4899DL1993PLCO51854. The Holding Company and its: Wholly owned  subsidiaries
(eolleetively reformed 1o as the “Groop™) are majorly engaged in the mamlfacoring and wading activities of
Agro chemicals viz, Micro Nutrients, Pesticides. Fertilizers, ete for agriculiure purposes. The Group caters to
both domestic and imtemational markets. The registered office of the Parent Company i located at 501, Gopal
Heighis, Netayi Subhash Place, New Delhi-1 10034, Ingia,

The Consolidated fingneial Stwement of the Group meludes the finoncial statement of the Holding Company
amd its undermentioned subsidiary companies:

i) Abhiprakash Globus Private Limited, Wholly owned subsidiary since incorporation.
b} Indogull Cropscicnces Australia PTY Limited, Wholly owned subsidiary since imcorporation,

The Group's financial statements were authorised for issoe in accordance with-a reselution of the directors on
July 24, 2025

Material ageounting policies
2.1. Basis of preparation

The hinancial sttements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Tnd
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2003 (“the Ac)as amended thereafler and other relevant provision of the Act.

The finsncinl statements have been prepared om o histoneal cost basis, except for the following assets and
linhilities which have been measured at fair valoe or revalued amouant;

8] Dervative financial mstruments

by Plan assets of defined employee benefit plans, and

¢)  Certain finuncial assets and labilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments)

The finaneisl statements are presented in Indinn Rupees (INR) which is also the Group's functionnl curency,
arud all values are rounded o the nearest [acs, except when otherwise indicated.

2.2, Basis of consolidation
Subsidiary

{a) The results of subsidisries scquired, or sold, during the year are consolidated from the effective date of
acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

{t} The Consolidated financial statements are prepared wsing vniform accounting policies consistently for
like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible, in
the same manner as the Group’s Standalone Financial Statements excepl olherwise stated, When
necessary, adjustments are made 1o the Anancial slatements of subsidiaries o bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group's Significant Accounting Paolicies.

{c] The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are degwn up o same
reporting date as that of the parent company, ie., vear ended on 31 March. When the end of the
reporting period of the parent 15 different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for
consolidation purposes, additional fimancial information as of the same date as the fimaneial statements
of the parent W enable the parent o consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is

217




Indogull Cropsciences Limited

CIN: UT4890DL1%IPLCOSTIRSS

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in INK in Millions, except otherwise stated)

2.3.
{a}

(k)

unpracticable o do so. In mny case, the difference berween the date of the subsidiary's financial
statements trom parent, the difference shall not be more than three months.

{d) Combine the financial statements of parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together iems like
assels, nbilities, equity, income, expenses. Intercompany ransactions, balances and unrealized gains
on trunsuctions between Group companies are eliminatéd. Unrealized losses are also elimingted unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary,
adjustinents are made 1 the financial statements of subsidiaries w bring their accounting policies in
line with Group's accounling policies For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are
based on the amounts of the assets and Habilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at
the acquisition date,

{g) Changes in the Group’s equity interest in o subsidiory that do not result in g loss of control are
accounied for as eguity transactions,

{f) Offset (climinate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in cach subsidiary and the parent’s
portion of equity of each subsidisry,

{g) Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCT) are atiributed o the eguity
holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests (it any ). even if this results in the
nan-controlling interests having a deficil balance.

Business combinations arsing from transfers of interests in entities that are under the commaon control are
accounted at historical cosis. The difference batween any consideration given and the aggregale historical
carrying amount of nssets and linhilities of the acquired entity are recorded in sharcholders” equity.

Summary of material accounting policies

Investment in subsidiaries

A subsidiary 15 an enlity that 18 controlled by another entity,

The Group's investments in its subsidiaries are accounted at cost less impairment
Impairment of investments

The Group reviews its carrving volue of investments corried at cost annually, or more frequently when there
is indication for mpairment, 1T the recoverable amount 1s less than its carrving amount, the impairment loss
is recorded in the Statement of Profii and Loss,

Revenue recognition
Revenue Meom Contracts with Customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transterred
o the customer al an amount that rellects the consideration 1o which the Group expects to be entitled m
exchange for those goods or services. The Group has genmerally concluded that it is the principal in its
revenus amangements, because it typieally controls the goods or services before mansterring them 1o the
CUSEOMET,

Revenue (s stated exclusive of Goods and Service Tax (GST).

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and nssumptions relating o revenue from
contracts with customers are provided in Note 33,

The specific recognition critersa desoribed below must also be met before revenue is recognised,




Indogull Cropsciences Limited

CIN: UT4899DL1993PLCOS1854

Motes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in INK in Millions. except otherwise stated)

{c)

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of poods is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred (o the
customer which is usunlly on shipment. Revenue 18 measured boased on the transaction price, which is the
consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, rebates, scheme allowances, price concessions, incentives,
and retumns, 1f any, as specified in the contructs with the customers, Revenue excludes tixes collected from
custormers on behalf of the government. Acerusls for discountsincentives and retums are estimated (dsmy
the most likely method) based on accumulated experience and underlying schemes and agreements with
customers, Duee 1o the shoere namee of credit peried given © customers, there 15 no finoneing component in
the contract,

Rendering of services

Revenue from sale of services s recognised over the period of time us per the 1erms of the contract with
customers based on the stage of completion when the cutcome of the transactions invelving rendering of
services cun be estimated relinbly.

Contract balances
Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised it an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.c.. only the passage of time
15 required before payment of the consideration 15 due), Befer to accounting policies of financial assels in
section (o) financial mstruments,

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a pavment 19 received or a payment is due (whichever i earlier) from o
customer before the Group transfers the relsted goods or services, Contract liahilities nre recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the comteact (i.e,, tansters control of the related goods or services
to the customer).

Other income
Interest Income

For all {inancial instruments measured cither al amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest ineome is recorded using the eftfective interest rate (EER). EIR is the rate thar exactly
discounts the estimated [uture cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, where appropriate, o the gross carrying amount of the [inancial asset. When caleulating
the effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contraciual
terms of the Grancial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similae options) but does not
consider the expected credit Tosses. Interest income is included in other income n the Statement of Profit
and Loss,

Dividends

Revenue is recognised when the Group's right to receive the payment i established, which is penerally
when shareholders approve the dividend,

Property, plant and equipment

Ttems of property, plant and equipment and capital work-in progress are stated at cost. net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impainment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing
costs 1F capitalization eriterin are mel and diveetly attrbutable cost of bringing the assel o its working
condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving ar the purchase
price. Such ¢ost ingludes the cost of replacing part of the plant and eguipment and borrowing costs for long-
term construction projects if the recognition criterin are met, Subsequemt expenditure reluted w un item of
tixed asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond




Indogull Cropsciences Limited

CIN: UT4899DL1993PLCOS1854

Motes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in INK in Millions. except otherwise stated)

its previously assessed standard of performunce, When significant paits of plant and equipment are reguired
to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their speeific useful lives. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. Tn respect of
addilicns to /deletions from the property, plant and equipment. depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis
with referenve to the dite of addition’ deletion of the asssts,

An ttem of property, plant and equipment is derecognmised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefils are expected to arise from the continued use of the assei. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset and is recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss;

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in the assets under Capital work in progress
net of accumulaled impoirment loss if any. At the point when an asset 15 operating al
management’s intended use, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment and depreciation comunences. Costs associated  with  the
comimissioning of an asset and present value of any obligatory decommissioning costs are
capitalised in the asset when the recognition criteria for provisions are satisfied. Revenue (net of
cost) generated from production during the trial period is capitalised,

Property. plant and equipment except frechold land held for use in the production, supply or
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated Mnancial statement gl cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, i any,

Depreciable amount for assets 1s the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted Tor cost, less its
estimated residual value. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other
than frechold land and propertics under construction) less their residual values over their useful
lives, using writlen down value method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1T 1o the
Companies Act, 2013,

The Group, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate,
depreciates certain items of plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are different
from the useful life prescribed in Schedule T to the Companics Act. 2013, The management
believes that these estimated useful Tives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period
over which the assels are likely 1o be used. Depreciation on remaining items ol property, plant &
equipment has been provided on Straight Line Method based on useful life of the assets as
prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 20013, Furthermore, the Group considers climate-
related matters, including physical and transition risks. Specifically, the Group determines
whether climate-related legislation and regulations might mpact either the useful life or residual
values.

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Nature of Tangible Assets Lseful Life (vears)

Plant & Egquipment 10-15

Building 30

Laboratory Equipment Lo

Office Equipment v

Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 10

Vehicles 2-10

Leasehold Improvements Owver the perind of lease or useful life whichever is
lowwer
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(d) Invesiment Properties

(e)

lnvestment properties are properiies held for rental income, capital appreciation or the purpose of
Future use is not yet determimed by the manggement as of the reporting date, Investmen! propertics
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs, Subsequent costs are meluded in the
asset’s carrving amount or recognized as a separale assel, as appropriale, only when it is probable
that future economic benelits associnted with the asset will flow to the Group. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in Statement of profit and loss as inewrred,

Investment properties are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accurulated impoinment losses, if any. Though the Group measures investment propertics using
cost-bused measurement, the fair value of investment properties are disclosed in the notes, Fair
values are determined based on the evaluation performed by the management based on the
acceptable valuation method.

Investmenl propertics are de-recognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal.
The difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognized in the Statement of profit and loss in the period of de-recognition.

The Group depreciates building compaonent of investment property aver 30 years from the date of
original purchase,

Transfers are made to {or from) investment properties only when there i5 a change in use.
Transfers between invesiment property, owner-occupied property and inventories do not change
the camying amount of the property transferred and they do not change the cost of that property
for measurement or disclosuare purposes.

Intangible assets

Intangible asseis acquired separntely nre measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets with finite life are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised
development costs, are nol capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected i profit or loss in
the period in which the expenditure is meurred,

Intangible assets are amortized on a striught- line basis over the estimated useful ccononue life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life
or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered 1o modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treared as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recogniged in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying
value of another asset.

Guins or losses ansing from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the assel 1s derecognised,

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are
recognised as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate technical and commencial
Feasibility of making the asset available for use or sale.
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(1)

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment lossés. Amortisation of the
asset beging when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over
the period of expected future benefit. Amortisation expense is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrving value of another asset

A summary of the policies applied 1o the Group’s intangible assets 15 as follows:

Intangible asseis Useful Life (years)
Software 5
|_Patents and Trademarks 6

Foreign currencies
Transactions and Balances

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded applying the exchange rate at the date of
transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency remaining unsettled at the end of
the year, are translated at the closing rates prevailing on the Balance Sheet date.

Mon-monetary ilems which are carred in lerms of historical cost denominated in foreign currency
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of mitial transaction,

Exchange differences arising as a result of the above are recognized ag income or expenses in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items at
rates different [rom those al which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in
previcus financial statements, are recognised as income or expenses in the year in which they
arise,

(g} Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, dervatives and equily investments at fair
value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid 1o (ransfer a liability in an orderly iransaction beiween markel participants ai the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability lakes place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset or lubility, or
b) In the absence of a procipal market, m the most advantageous market for the asset or
liahility
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group,
The fair value of an asset or a liability 15 measured vusing the assumptions thal markel participants
would use when pricing the asset ar hability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.

A fair value megsurement of a non-financial asser takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobhservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value herarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that 15 significant 1o the fair value measurement as a whole;

a) Level | Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

b) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that 1s significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable,

¢} Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurming basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that s significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 44)
- Financial instruments (including those carried at amontised cost) (Note 46)
{h) Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether & contract 1s, or comtains, a lease. That s, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration,

A lease is a contract that contains right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term and low value leases. The Group recognises lease liabilides to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underbying assets,

The Group has lease contracts for various items of office premises and warehouses.
i} Right-of-use assels

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date ol the lease (i.e., the dale the
underlying asset is available for use), Right-of-use assets arc measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease
liabilitics. The cost of right-of~use assets includes the amount of Lease liabilitics recognised, mitial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made al or before the commencemenl date less any lease
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incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line method basis over the
lease term, as fullows:

Nature of  Right-of-use | Depreciation period
dssets

Factory Godown | 30-99 years

Office premises 1-5 years
Warehouses 1-5 years

There are renewal terms that can extend the lease term for up to 1-2 years and are mcluded in the
lease term when il is reasonably certain that the Group will exercise the option. The right-of-use
assels are dlso subject to impairment. Reler to the accouniing policies in section (j) Impairment
of non-financial assets.

The Right-of-use assets are presented as separate line item in the balance sheet.

i) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease linbilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments {including in-substance fxed payments) less any lease incentives. The lease payments
alsoinclude the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penallies for terminating the lease, il the lease term reflecis the Group
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payinent occurs,

I caleulating the present value of lease puynsents, the Group uses 1ts mcremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease 15 not readily
determinable, After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities 1s increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made, In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is o modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments,

The lease liahilitics are presented as separate line item in the balance sheet under financial
liabilities.

iii) Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognibion exemplion (o its short-lerm leases of office

premises, and warehouses (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-termi leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the
fease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 1o
ownership of an assel are classified as operating leases. Renlal income arising is sccounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in other income in the statement of profit
or loss due to ils operaling nature, Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
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(i)

(i)

operating lease are added 1o the carrving amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income.

Inventories

The items of inventories are measured at cost after providing for obsolescence, if any. Cost of
inventories comprise of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and appropriate portion of variable
and fixed proportion overheads and such other costs incurred in bringing them to their respective
present location and condition. Fixed production overheads are based on normal capacity of
production facthities,

Stores and spares, packing materials and raw materials are valued at lower of cost or net realisable
value, However, the atoresaid items are not valued below cost if the fimished products in which
they are to be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Semi-finished products, finished products and by-products are valued at lower of cost or net
realisable value,

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value,

Cost of raw material, process chemicals, stores and spares packing materials, irading and other
products are determined on weighted average basis,

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses al each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGLY net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
excecds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is writien down (o its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash Mows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
timne value of money and the risks specifie to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent
market transactions are taken mto account, 1" available, It no such wansactions can be identified,
an appropriate valuation model 15 used,

Adter impairment, deprectation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life,

An assessment is made at gach reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased, If such indication
exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed only i there bas been a change in the assumptions used o
determime the asset’s recoverable amount sinee the last impairment loss was recognized, The
reversal is limited so that the carrving amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior vears. Such reversal is recognized in the
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Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

(k) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

(b

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it 1s probable that an outflow of resources embodying cconomic benelits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation, The expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net
of any reimbursement,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate. the risks specific to the liability. When disvounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of fime is recognised as a finance cost,
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent labilities

A contingent liability 15 a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, A contingent liahility also arises
in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably, The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
i the financial staterents.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are
disclosed in the financial statements,

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Retirement and other employee benefits

A, Short term employee benefils
All emplovee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classificd as short-term employee benelits. Benefits such as salaries, allowances, ete., are
recognised as an expense al the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss of
the year in which the employee renders the related service,

B. Posi employment benelits
i} Delined contribution plans
The Group's contribution o provident fund is considered as defined contribution plans
und are chorged as an expense as it fulls due based on the amount of contribution
requited to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

ii} Defined benefit plans
For defined benefit plans of gratuny determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method
with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gain and
losses are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which they oceur. Obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash
flows using a discounted rate that is determined by reference to market vields at the
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Balance Sheet date on Government Securities as reduced by the fair value of scheme
assets,

i) Other long-term emplovee benefits

Long-term Compensated Absences and Long Service Awards are provided for on the
basis of an actuanal valuation, using the Projected Unit Credit Method, as at the date of
the Balanee Sheet. Actuarial gains / losses comprising of experience adjustunents and the
effects of changes in actuarial assumptions are mmediately recognised n the Statement
of Profit and Loss. The obligation is measured st the present value of estimated future
cash flows using a discounted rate that is determined by reference to market yields at the
Balance Sheet date on Government Securities,

{m} Financial instruments

A fnancial mstrument is any contract that gives rise o 4 financial asset ol one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable o the
acquisition of the financial asset,

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, linancial assets are classified in four catepories:

a)  Debt instriments at amortised cost

b) Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

g) Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

d) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amaortised cost
A “debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met;

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b Contractual terms of the assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and mterest (SPPI on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured al amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into
account any discount or premium on-acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation 15 included in other income in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
This category generally applics to trade receivables, security deposits & other receivables.
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Debt instrument at FYTOCI
A tdebt instrument” is classified as at the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and
b) The asset's contractual cash Mows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCT category ave measured mitially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCT), However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals
and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the
asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCT is reclassified from the equity to
Statemnent of Profit and Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCT debt instrument is reported
as interest income using the E1IR method.

Debt instrument at FYTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCL, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition. the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
faccounting mismateh®). The Group hag designated certam debt instrument as at FVTPL,

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL, For all other equity instruments, the Group
may make an irrevocable election 1o present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes
in the fair value. The Group makes such clection on an instrument-by-instnument basis. The
classification 1s made on initial recognition and is irevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes
on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCIL, There is no recycling of the
amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial assel {or, where applicable, a part ol a financial assel or part of a Group of similar
financial assets) 15 primarily derecognised (e, removed from the Group’s consolidated balance
sheet) when:

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired. or
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b) The Group has teansferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
abligation to pay the received cash Aows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement: and cither () the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has ransferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights 1o recetve cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through armangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership, When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group confinues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing invelvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability, The wansferred asset and the associated liahility are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained

Continuing myvoelvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carying amount of the asset and the maximum amounl of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In sccordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applics expected credit loss (ECL) maodel for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
EAPOSIre;

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and ave measured at amortised cost ¢.g.. loans, debi
securities, deposits, trade recervables and bank balance

b} Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOC]

¢) Trade reccivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

The Group follows “simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
and other receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,
right fram its initial recognition,

(n) Financial liahilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial labilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. loans and borrowings, payables. or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial labilitics are recopnised initially at fair value and. in the case of loans and
borrowings and pavables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
cash crediis and derivative {inancial instruments.
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(o)

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as deseribed below:

Loans and borrowings

After inital recognition, interest-bearimg loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss when the liabilities are derceognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings,
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial hiabilities at fair value through prolit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon mitial recogmition as at fuir value through profit or loss,
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designaled as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by Ind AS 1049,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Derecognition

A Nmancial liabality is derecognised when the obligation under the liability s discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing Anancial liability i replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms. or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carmryving amounts is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there s a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there 15 an
mtention to setile on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group wses derivative financial instruments, such as interest rale swaps, Currency swaps,
options and forward contracts o hedge its mterest rate and foreign currency nsks: Such dervative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value, Derivatives are carmed as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is
negative.




Indogull Cropsciences Limited

CIN: UT4890DLIWIPLCOSTESS

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(Al amounts are in INK in Millions, except otherwise stated)

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are 1aken directly to
Statement of Profit and Loss.

{p) Dividend

The Group recognises a hability 1o make cash distnibutions to equity holders when the distribution
15 authorised and the distnbution is no longer at the discretion of the Group, As per the corporate
laws in India, a distribotion 1s authorised when it is approved by the sharcholders. A
eorresponding amount is recognised direetly in other cquity,

During the wear the Group has not declared and paid any Interim Dividend,
(g) Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and labilities are measured at the amount expected o be recovered
from or pand to the axaton authorities. The tax rates and 1ax laws used o compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted, o1 the reporting date in the countries where the
Giroup operates and generates taxable imeome,

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equily). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the wnderlying transaction either in OC] or directly in equity. Management
perindically evaluates positions taken in the tax retwns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 15 provided using the liability method on temporary ditferences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilitics and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset
or liability 1n & transaction that i3 not o business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the camry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised
exeepl:

- When the deferred tax asset relanng to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the mitial recognition ol an assel or liabiliy in a (ransaction that s not 4 business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss
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(r)

(s)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be gvailable to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at
each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply 10 the
year when the asset 15 realised or the ligbility 15 settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of Profit and Loss is recognised
outside Statement of Profit and Loss (in other comprehensive income). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in Statement of Profit and Loss or in
OCL

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to sel
of [ current tax assets against current tax labilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authonty.

Government grants

Government grants, i’ any, are recognised where there 15 reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received, and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the prant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related
costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is
recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related assets.

Climate-related matters

The Group considers climate-related matters in estimates and assumptions, where appropridte.
This assessment includes a wide range of possible impacts on the Group due to both physical and
transition risks, Even though the Group believes its business model and products will still be
viable after the transition {o a low-carbon economy, climate-related mallers increase Lhe
uncertainty in estimates and assumptions underpinning several items in the financial statements.
Even though climate-related risks might not currently have a significant impact on measurement,
the Group is closely monitoring relevant changes and developments, such as new climate-related
legislation.
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Indogull Cropsciences Limited

CIN: UT4899D 1. 1993P1LC051854

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
All amounts are in INH in Millions, except otherwise stated

T Leases

The Company holds lease contraces tor podown, office, and warchouse buildings
used in its operations, The lepse terms typieally range from | to 3 years for office
and warchouse buildings, and from 30 to 99 years for godown buildings. The
Company his also availed exemptions for certnin short-term leases,

Set out below are the carryving amounts of right-of-use assers necogmised and the
movements during the period:

Gowdown, Office
and warchoose
building

As at April 1, 2023 3307
Additions 0.8l
Dleprevinbion expense {13.13)
As ar March 31, 2024 40.75
A at April 1, 2024 40,73
Additions 37.54
Depreciation expense (20.15)
As at March 31, 2025 58.13

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilites and the movements during

the periosd:

As at As at
Muareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

As at 1 April 45.06 S57.06
Additions 37.21 0.81
Accration of interest 5.52 4.55
Pavinenis {25.15) (1737
As at 31 March 626 45.06
As at Asg at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Current 12,92 915

Mon-current 42 72 15491

62.64 45.06

The maturity analysis of lease ligbilities is disclosed in Note - 45,
The estimated interest rate tor lease liabilities i 9.07%,
The following are the amount trecognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Particulurs Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

[epreciation expenses in respect of

rght-of-use nssets 2015 13,13
Interest expense in respectol lease

liablines 5.52 4.55
Expenses relating to short-term lease

(included on other expenses) a3 4,75

Totnl amount recognised in prolil and
loss 34.50 22144




Indogulf Cropsciences Limited

CIM: 74899011993 PLONS 1 BS54

Notey to Consolldated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
Al amounts are fn INE i MElllons, except otherwise stated

Financinl assets - non-current

ther financial avsels

Partienlars A i As nf
Measured ai amoriised cost {Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise siated)
Security deposits T.21 581
Total 7.21 5.43
(dher non-currend assels
Particulars As at Asat
Murch 31, 2025 Murch 31, 2024
(Unseeured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Capital advanees 13.08 051
Advances to supplizrs 3428 1024
Advances other than Capital Advances
Balances with government suthomties 54, 52.29
Prepaid expenses -
Tatal 11226 72.09
Mon-Current Tax Asseis (Ned)
Particulars - Asat As it
March 30, 2025 March 31, 2024
Addvamee income tax (net of TDSTCS and provision) 11765 | (R
Total 117.65 108.97
Inventories
Particulars Asat As at
' March 31, 2035 March 31, 2024
At the lower of cost and et realisable value
How Materinl 727,24 52588
Packing Matzrial 11748 L 46
Frmished Goods 178117 1,323.11
Trading goods T3 HE 364
Tuotal 2.690.77 1.4952.019
Trade receivables
Particulars _ Asat . M__.f
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Trade receivables 203301 2,000 30
Trade recervables - related parties 195,80 2041
Taotal 2,129.73 2,213.71
Break-up for trade receivabiles:
Secured, considered vood
Trude Becervables unseeured, comsidered pood 2,243,352 2,226.%0
Trade Recervebles which have significunt inerease in credil nsk -
Trade Receivables - oredit impared {13.79) {11.26)
1221073 2213871

ITmpairment altowance {allowance for bad and doubiful debas)
Trade Receivable unsecured, conziderad good

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit nsk
Trade Receivables - credit impaired

Total




Indogulf Cropsciences Limited

CIN: UT4899DLI993PLCOS1854

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
All amaunts sre in INR in Millions, except otherwise stated

Trade receivahles Ageing Schedule

Asat 31 March 2025 Tatal

Loss than 6 months  1-2years  2-3 years More than
6 Months 1 year ' 3 vears

Lindimputed Trade Heceivables —
considered good I,845.00 400 b 82 4%.91 A49.(M) 2. 22073

Undisputed Trade Heceivables —
which have significant inoresse
in credit risk 2 Z : : i

Lrndisputed Trade receivable —

credil impaired - = v - =
Disputed Trade receivables -

considered good - - B - -

Drisputed Trde recervables -
which have significant increase
ineredit risk - = - - -

Disputed Trade receivables —
credit mmpaired

1.845.00 192,00 94,82 45.91 1.229.73

Current but not due** - NTL

Agatil L'I:_g'i:l;.mil Outstanding for following perivds from due dute of poyment Tuotal
Less than 6 months  1-2 vears 2-3 years More than
6 Maonths  —1 year : 3 years

Undisputed Trade Receivables -

considered good 1,80, 25 266000 58358 51,55 3235 221371

Lindisputed Trade Receivahles —

which have significant increase

in_eredit risk - - - = - z

Undisputed Trade receivablo —

credit impatred - - - - - -

Disputed Trade receivables -

considered good - - - - - -

Disputed Trade receivables

which have significant increase

in credit risk - = - - - -

Disputed Trade receivables

credit impaired - B
1. 506 2, AN

50,55 2.213.71

Current hat not due** - NIL




Indogull Cropsciences Limited
CIN: UTA599DLI993PLCOS1854

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025

All amounts @are in INR in Millions, except otherwise stated

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of (1 1o 150 days.

* Unhilledd recewvables represents receivables where the poods andfor services have been provaded 1o the customer, however,

Company is vel o raise inveices 1o the customer,

** Current but not due represent receivables which aren't due as per credit terms agreed with the customer,

13 Cash and cash eguivalents

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024

Balances with banks

On current accounts 4.16 oM

Cash on hand 0.44 1.67

Fixed Deposit (held against nmargin money) 92:25 23.51

Tuotal 0. 85 29.16

14 Other financial assets

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Measured at amortised cost (unsecured, considered good)

Interest accroed but not due on fixed deposits 1% 16

Export incentive recoverable 0,95 0.

Insurance claim recoverable 013 013

Oithers 4747 a3.71

Tuotal 49.73 70,71

15  Other current assets

Particulars Asat As ot
Mareh 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024

{Unsecured. considered good unless otherwise stated)

Advances to supplicrs 67.73 427

-to redated parties

-t others -

Advances to Emplovees 0.73 030

Balances with govemment authorities 424.50 237.52

Prepaid expenses 13.06 13.59

I're operational expense 7148 -

Total 513.20 156,28




Tadogull Cropscicaces Linited

CING UT4R000L 1903 P LOOS18SS
Motes to Consolidated Financial Statemsents as at March 30, 2025
Al ansonings are bi INR ln Millions, cxeept otlierwdse stated

Finaneial Hahilities - Non Carrent

1% Borrowings
Secured
Tnufinn Rupes bean from banks
Termy lonms da45 54 XAl
Vehicle loans I17.18 21.14
Unsecured
Loans lrom oibice parties 1186
Tatal 47478 28433
Less: Curremt maturities of long-erm debt (inclyded in noge 25} LT RE.ET
Mon-carrent borrowings (s per bulanes sheet) J5h b TRS.Sh

Mutwre of Security and termms of repayment o secured borrowing ©
gl lmfinn repee terim ban
Ba, 2307 mallion TL-3 &5 repayable ln 36 monthly instalments starbed trom Sepacmbes 2020 [ has ovs balance agorepating to s,
(71 BIL (Magcly 31, 2024 B384 million) s on reporting date and is prumacly secured spzinst hypotbecanon of plunt & mochisery
sltuited i Mothupuar (Haryani b in the nane of the company,
Fa, 1693 mallion TL-4 i repayable in 36 monthly instalmenis stiaried from Nevensher 20210 0 has s balonee nggregming 1o #s
ﬁi] ML Manch 21, 2024 Bs, 329 million 1 as on reporting dade gnd = [l'rll'npri Iy soured agningt hypothecaion ol |1n|n|1| & machimery
situed nt Nuthmpor | Hargana ) in the unme of the conmpany
Bs 57,38 oullion TL=5 1w |'|.'F1r|3.'ah||.: m 62 manthly instalmeenis staded from Avgost 2022, Tt bhos o's helanse upgn:g.ul.ing e B
LEi ] 26 TH milfion f= (March 31, 2024 Bs. 3826 mullion b bs on reparting dote anal is primaridy sevured againsk hwﬁﬂ'ln,‘-‘:ﬂtl:lﬂ of plant
& machmery situated st N'.llhupl.rr { Haryana) i the nome ©f the company,

Term loans {i} b (i) are secured agamst perenal goaranies of Mr.Cm Prakash Aggarwal, Mo, Ansha Aggarwal, M Sangay
Agpgarwil and Corporate Gauranges | OOT) of Om Prekash Ageacwu] (HLF)

Loaa have exclusive charge on Plant amd Maclinery purchased out of respective Term Loore uad First Pari-possu eharge on the
Stechs & receivables of the comgany bodb present ond future,  plant & mochinery amd other movable Fived Avsets of the Comgany
other than the assets exelosively fanded by other finoocial institutions 1t also kos firet pari-passn charge on following properties:-

u.Tidustriol Property situnced of Villa Mo 16223 2372205327 Villnge Natthwipar  dist . Senepat, Harsaoe beld in the nomie of
Anshue Apgaraal,

b Cgemmeriiad Froperty sitsated ot 50, Ciopal Iﬂ:l;ght:l. P W&, Metigr Subhash Plase, Prlamipora, New Delhn held in the mome
ol Sanjay Apgarwal |HLIF)

clndusmal Propesty simsaced at Industnnd Cirowth Center, Phase 11, Samba, Janna, JEE bebd in fhe nanse of Company
dlndustrial property Khewat Mo, 290, killa Ra-1801 1222002002000, Willoge Nutbwpue, Sonepal, Haryass,-1 24408 held n ihe
e of Company

. Imbustrial property siteated ot 5 knnol | magl having Khewat oo, 423, Khata we, 514, pore ol Khasm o, TR2020204-31 and
PRATI/2OH0-1 8, village nathupur, sonepat, Tiarvams, Tin eede -E31300 held in ghe nome of Om Prakassh Aggurwal | HLIT)

1. Inchasirinl Property situated ot Lond Aren 7 Kanal 5 Marlo, Khewat No 277, Min Khats No 35000, Por of 1810/ 200.16), TR
164, Stnepat. Haryne-130HM in tle nadoe of Ansho Aggarwal.

. Joesdlential Property sinaated ot Plot Mo, T8, Sector $6, Urban Estate, Gurgoon, Hyona-133001 beld i the norme of company

[ Erstwhile-Bai Sheree Kasayan Lidvog Lid §

s, Commserciul Propemy situaicd ot Khasra Mo, 14020, Mear Saisunge Ghar, Vill und PO Hombrun, Dist Lodhioos, Puogab-1 41007
im the name of Sanjay Aggarwal (HUE)

i Imchmstranl Property situated ot Elsasra Mo 230700, 124, Villoge & PO Nothupur, Tristi, Sonepat, Harvans bebd in the aome of
Compnny.

Ba 1608 million TL-7 15 repayahle im 42 monthly instabments stariod from fanancy 2023 1 bas o's balanee aggrégotiog o Bs,
§.824 million /- (March 3, 2024 Bs, | 206 million ) s an reporting date and 15 primanily secured agnigst hypothecosion of
bypothecation of ITmmavable property situefed st Borwasni Soniped (Horvann ) in the nome of the company

[iwh

o Bs, 110 miklien TL-G is repayable in £2 menthly instalments staned from Movember 2022 10 hos o/s balanee aggrepgating o Ba,
63,38 milllkon /- (Masel 31, 2024 Bs. 83,74 million §os on reporting Jage and is primoedily secured ogaimst bypothecatioa of
Irmmavable property sitanted ot Noghogar {Haryann g in the name of the company

B 100 mulftan TL-# ks tepavable in 62 sonthly instalmends sianed fom October 2023 10 kas o balines ngeregating 1o Be.
Ta S0 mildinn /= (Mascl 31, 20204 Bs90.90 miltion ) as on reporting date and 15 primacily secured againgt kypothecation of
lyypatheention of Wsrsrvalibe propeily iaated st Banvasn Sonipad § Harvara) o te mare of the commgany

) B 000 miltion (HITFC T1Vis repayable i ofF monthly inssulments starmed from Seprember 2024, 1 bas o's balance aggregating s
R S48 million (Ausch 31, 2624 Ry, WIL jason eperting dage

tviis) B 00 million (IDECTL) 35 repayable in 8l monthly instalments started from Apnl 2024, ¢ has o'a balnce augregating o Ra.
B4.63 million (March 71, 2024 Rs, WIL jason reporting date




Indogull Cropsciences Limited

CIN: U748 DL PLCIS 1854

Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
All amounts ave in INK in Millions, except stherwise stated

{ix) R 100 million (HDFCTL) is repayable in 60 monthly instaliments started from January 2025, It has o/s balance ageregating to Rs.

b

cl

97.34 (March 31,2024 Rs NIL ) as on reporting date

Term loans (v) to ix) are also Colletarally secured against Equitable mortagate on the Tollowing properties:

a.Industrial Property situated at Villa Mo 16/22/3 , 23/22/5/327 , Villuge Natthupur | dist . Sonepat. Haryana held in the name of
Anzhu Aggarwal,

b, Commercial Property situated at 301, Gopal Heighes, Plot Mo %, Metaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, New Delhi held in the name
of Sanjay Aggarwal (HLEF)

¢ Industrial Property sitwated at Industri] Growith Center, Phase 1L Somba, Jomm, J&E beld mthe nome of Company,

. Industrial property Khewat Mo, 291, kills No-18/0 10202, 200201,2000, Village Nathupor, Sonepat, Tarvama,- 1244908 held m the
name of Company

e. Indusirial property situated al § kanal | marla having khewnt no. 425, khatn no, 514, part of khasea no, 1820022043 and
1811271 (0-1 83, village nathupur, sonepal, Harvano, Pincode -131300 held in the name of Om Prakash Aggarwal { HUT)

0 Industrizl Property situated at Lond Area 7 Kanal 5 Marda, Khewat No 277, Min Khata Mo 35000, Part of [S00200-100, 18/ 01/1
(-9}, Sonepat, Horyana-13 1304 m the name of Anshu Agearwal,

g, Residential Property situated at Plot No. 73, Seetor 56, Urban Estate, Gurgaon, Haryana- 1220010 held in the nome of company
{ Erstwhile-lai Shree Rasavan Udyop Lid )

h. Commercial Properly situated ot Khasea No. 130020, Nedr Satsung Ghar, Vill and PO Hambran, Distt Ludbisno, Punjab-141007
in the name of Sanjay Aggarwal (TIUTF)

i Industrial Property situated at Khasra No23/9/1, 12/4, Village & PO Nathupur, Distt. Sonepat, Haryana held in the name of
Company,

J. Comnrercial Property="19%/20, Sun Estate, Opp Ekta Hotel, Ulala Circle, Sarkhej. Ahmedabad, Gujarat 382225 held in the name
of Anshu Aggarwal,

k. Industrial Estate-Land Meagorng Land Messurimg 04 kanal00 Marda 22 Kanal 11 Marla, Land Measarimg 20 Kanal 08 Marla
Village . Barwasni Sonipat Haryana 121029 in the name of Sanjay Agearwal,

Finance lease abligations are secured against hypothecation of respective velicles,

Finance Lease against non-commercial vehicles repayable generally in 60 monthly instalments of various amounts started from
past few years and having additons and defetion in valve terms It has ofs balance sgeregating to R 1525 milllion (31 March
2024 Rs. 1867 million) as on reporting date and 15 primanly secured against hypothecation of respective vehicles,

Finanee Lease against commercial vehicles repavable generally in 60 monthly insuilments of variows amounts started from past
few vears and hoving additions ond deletion in vidue term. It hos ofs balance agpgregatmyg o Rs 126 miflion (31 March 2024 Rs.
247 mmlliony a5 om reporting date and 5 primanly secured agamnst hypothecation ol respoective viehicles.

The Company has avarled a secoured loan of INE 7,5 1,000 from HOFC Bank Lid., secured agwinst a vehicle purchased in the name
of the Company. The loan is repavable in monthly instalments aver a tenure of 4 vears and carmies an interest rate of 9,65% per
anmum. The said vehicle has been hvpothecated 1o the lender as collateral. As on 3181 March 20,25, the autstanding loan balance is
INR 6,772,135, of which INE 1,609,566 15 classified ns short term borrowings (repayable within one vear).

Linseeured loans from related parties & others ¢army interest (@ (0 -9% pa. ( previous year 0-9% poa) These do not carmy any
speci fie maturity date but are revalving in nature,
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Criher Finencial Liabilitivs

Particulars Asoaf Asab
Mareh 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Security Dhepaosits H3 36 T3.42
Tutal K536 T3.42
Lavig fersmn proyisiom
Particibars A Asal
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employee benefit provisions
For Gratuity 237 2100
For Earmed Leave - -
Tutal 2371 21.10
Dieferrud tax labilivies (Met)
Particulurs Mat aw
March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
Meferred 1ax labiites (net) 124.96) {21.51)
‘Tatal {24.96) (21.51})

The f‘nmpnn:.' oftsets tnx asseis and habilites of amd nlrly it il hasn h:gu.lly enforcenhle ntﬂﬁ o =t Off corment tex esscks amd
current tma lmbalities nnd the defired tax pssets nnal defismed tx linhilities relate o mesme ey levied by the same tax puthorty

Deferred o movement - Balince Sheet

Particulars

Clharged erelity
As 4t Clrgelicredin ey
Mareh 30, o Stotement of  comprehensive As nl

DR 1 radin ndd Laas biscima Murch 31, 2025
Property, plant am] eguipment wnd intangible psseis 10.21 (61D 5,60
Dierivatives - - =
Rasrht of use asseis Lot (43T (14,47
| v esEEn s . =
Tavtml cheferred tax inhilitics il (4 %K) = (KT
Set-olT of deferred fux assets pursannt to sel-off provisions
Leage liaghilivy 1134 443 15:77
Security deposit - L] [ RiH]
Investments (14T 1.47 -
FEmployves benelil provizsons 11.53 ER 0523 14,07
|.'!¢’:-r.r|.|1.\'|:||gh =
Oithers - - .
Total deferred tay asscls 2140 K05 {1152} 29531
MNet deferved tax assets / (Habllitles) 11.51 .07 (U.52) Td. %0
Particulars Chargeiiereding

C AS B Chargeforedin. tiruther
March 31, o Stut it ol camprrehensive As an

2023 Profit o Loas incinme March 31, 2024
Property, plant and egquepnnent and imtangible assets 1Ay 1391 10._2[
Right of use assets [13.20) 3,10 {10, 10y
lvesEriienis .
Tutal deferred fux linhilities { 16580 17151 - 11
Set-off of delerred tax assets pursuand te sel-ofT provisions
Lense hiathiliry 14 36 1302 11,344
Becurity deposit na3 {145 [1.47)
Imvestments - -
Employes banelit provisions 12.79 (D.35) (090 11.53
Borrowings - -
Others - -
Tutal delferred fax assets 7.7 (4.57) {180y 21.41
Mol delerved Lok mesels / (linbilithes) 10.27 1204 (R 2151
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Financial Liabilitics - Current

Basrrow ks
Particulirs AN Al
: Miarch 31, 2028 Mirch 31, 204

Secured

Working Capital facilitbes from Banks
Payer's enedit from bank 1948 136:2%
Cash-credit from banlis (refer e (1) below) 1.322.410 (]
Packing eredit from bank 174 14415
Cither secwred fonn from MBEC REE .
Current mnfurity of long loem hnm!-wml: 117492 BH AT

Tinal 1.B47.46 1. 364106

Miete (i) Cash eredat feiliy i3 repayable on demond and cartbes interest Hoked with base mle. Cash eredit Baciliny meluding fs
sul-lmts of FUNR, WODL, PCLPCF, PSL aod Buver's Ceedit and alzo Joan from Bajey Flnonee Limited § NBFC) s secured
apuinst hypothecation of current sssers plong with collaternl sevurity of industrin]l & commereial propertics m the name of
company sthwited in Jummi and Kashmdr (0 & K3 Ponjab, Harvam, Gujarae and Defhic The Directors Mr, Om Prakesh Aggareal,
Mr, Sanpay Aggrarval and M, Anchy Apgsewal have piven persanl miarantees agans this By,

Trae payables
.l'll‘ﬂﬂkli: el ST
March 31, 425 March 31, 2024

Trade payables
Trade payables

(o Todal choes o cmicoo, smell and mediom cnterprises™ | Bk i 2TH52
Lt Ly oredilars ot thi T ente = d 11 et g

Linl Totel dues b credstors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises | 540 H19 84

Tutal 1,34 2.07 1,007.38

*MEME informatien has been determined 1o the extent such paries have been Identitied on the bogss of intermotion availeble

with the Company,
==Includes dues b Related Partes INE 2494 mullioos (31 Degember 2023: 1105 malbions, 21 March 2024: .79 mullion, 31
Maieh 2023 INR 389 ] milllion 1 Apeil 2022 INR 26,93 mallion §

Truee pavables Ageing Schedule
Asut 31 Murch 2025 ' Ortstunding for fallowing periods Mhdmﬂml Total
osde el peios S SR Sy

Total puistmding dues ol e enterprises
and snall enterpeises 11793 L1793
Tutnl entstanding dues of crediurs ather
than maero enterprises and small snterprites 274,46 n.as oo 0,22 122505
Desputed caes of miere enterprises and small - - -
Enterprises
Ensputed claes of ereditom other thun micie - - -
enterprises and small enterprises

1.342.38 038 .0 .22 1.343.97
At M Murch 2024 Duatstanding for following perieds feom dee date of peyment Tuotal
_ =lyear 1-Zyeary  2-3 yenrs =3 years
Tomul cuestanding dues of micre enterprises
and small -.-:nll.:q'lrlucs; a0 52 - - - 27952
Totnl outstand ing does of credisors ofher
than mecrn ente MPriseEs rnd mmall -..-nrr.-rpris..-u ST 0.53 G4 0.08 H1T.R4
Dispured clues of micee enterprises ad sinnll - - - -
entETPrises
l:ll.-\.rlur.unl dues of creditors other than micro - = = -
enterprses and semll enterpriges
(REE 0.53 0.14 008 147 36

Trade paynhles are nom-mterest bearmg and are normally gettled on 30090 days eerm
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
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25 (Mher financial liahilities
Particulars. Asat As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024

Fimancial liahilities at amortised cost

Crediters for capital expenditure 24.32 1670
Interest acerued on borrowings A9 445

Emplovee pavables

- to related parties 176 1.95
<10 others F3.60 41.82
Advances from customers 25,19 H2.68
Orther payable 5256 (49
Tutal 26i.72 208.12

26 Current tax liahilities

Particulars As ol As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Current twx habilities 13458 s 11

Total 134,58 108,11

27 (Mhber curcent Liabilities

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Sttty dues 2675 1947

Tutal 16.75 19.47

28 Short Term Provisions

Particulars As at Asat
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Emplovee henefit provisions

For Ceatuity 442 a.75
Funt B Leive 032 [ 3
Total 0,74 .23
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
Allamounts are in INR in Millions, except otherwise stated

19 Hevenue from operations
Particulars Year eoded Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Sale®
Domestic Sales 5.530.20 4965 68
Export Sales Gil 56 753.27
A 1,199,776 5,718.95
Other Operating Revenue
Govermment Grants ** G50 1544
B .50 15.44
Less: Discount on sales C 305.05) (212.05)
Total (A+B+C) 5,904.21 5522.3

“Refer note 40 for disclosure regarding Revenue recoised under contraces,
#% Includes GST Refund under Budgetery Support Schemae

30 Other Income
Particulars Yenr ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Sale of Discarded Sparces -
Triterest Tngome;

Fixed deposits with hanks 3.26 1.22
Interest Others 1.50 g.0d
Interest income on unwinding of security deposic 013 0.07
Rental Income .12 0.2
Income from Export Incentive- Licence 332 408
Miscellaneous [neome 32.21 200,500
Total other income 40.54 15.53

Cost of raw material and components

3 consumed/sold
Partienlars Year ended Year ended
Muareh 31,2025 Muarch 31, 2024
Raw Material
Inventory ot the begmnimy of the year 51588 93290
Add: Purchases inet of returns & soles) 4,403 93 3331283
492981 4.265.73
Less: inventory at the end of the vear 727.24 52548
Costof raw material consumed 4,202.587 3, 73945
Packing Material
Tnventory ot the beginning of the year 99,46 2,49
Add: Purchases 36453 32337
407,99 38620
Less: inventory at the end of the vear [17.4% 9946
Cost of Packmg matenal consurmed I50.51 286,80
Total Cost of raw material and components consumed 4,551.08 4.026.65
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
All amounts are in INR in Millions, except otherwise stated

32 Details of purchase of traded goods

Particulars

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

Purchase of Traded Goods 121,54 151.81

Total 121.54 151.81
33 (Inerease)/Decrease in invenlories

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Inventories at the end of the yvear

Fimished goods LTRIAT 132311

Traded poods TAHR 364
LES5.05 1.326.75

Inventories at the beginning of the vear

Finighed goods 1,323.11 1.022.25

Traded poods 3.64 7278
1.326.75 1,095.03

Total (Increase)/Decrease in inventories (528,309 (231.72)

34 Emplovee benefit expenses

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries. wages and bonus 426.74 161.82
Cenlribution to provident and other funds 17.74 15,88
Ciratuity expense (also refer note 41) T.300 597
Staff welfare expenses 879 5.23
Total emplovee benefit expenses 460.57 JRH. %

Sk
L

Finance costs

Particulars

Year ended Year ended
March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024

Interest and finance charges on financial habilities
not at far value through profit or loss

Interest on term loans 308 7.01
Interest on Vehicle loans .78 L.E9
Interest on OC Limits, buver's credit and demand loans 120,33 103,10
Interest on Borrowings & Others 520 7.00
Interest on Lease Liabilities 5.52 4.55
Bank charges and commission 9.29 5.93
Total finance costs 145.20 129.48

247
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
All amounts are in INK in Millions, gxeept otherwise stated

36 Depreciation and amortization expense
Particulars Yearended  Year ended

Deprecintion of property, plant and equipment Refir Kote 3 T6.08 K615
Amortization of intangible assets Refer MNote 5 .73 379
Deprecintion of Right-ol-use assets Refer Mote T 20,15 13,13
Total depreciation and amartization expenses HI5.96 103.07

37 Other expenses
Particulars Yearended  Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Consumption of stores and spares 6T 18,03
Power and luel Expenses 46.62 46,20
Packing & Muatenal Processing Charges 67,31 53,57
Freight & Forwarding Expenses 1872 117,08
Repairs and Maintenance

Buildings 4.77 0.87

Plant & Machinery 1617 11.90

Orhers 1344 13.45
Pallution Controf Expenses (3% 2.06
Advertisimg and sales promotion PILNT 12960
Communication cxpenses 417 380
Vehicle Running & Maintenance Expenses 12008 TH2
Brokernge and commiission 19,01 18.47
Travelling and conveyanece 113.34 LR R
Rt B.H3 4.75
Insurance 20,98 21,44
Printing and Stationery 1.95 150
Leznl and Professionnl Fees 12.10 1502
Director Sitting Fees 0.6l 002
Payment to Awditors Refer Mote  37(a) .43 1.33
Rates nnd taxes Gy 8.4
Sccurity Charges 0.62 (6%
Corporate Social Responsibility Refer Mote  37(h) .90 655
Quality Testing Expenses 1948 12.73
Provision for impeirment of made recervables 0,53 0.4
Exchange difference (net) 2358 {1300
Had debts written off 6.43 0.85
Miseellancous Expenses {0.040) 6.21
Total other expenses 654,49 592.62

3T(a) Details of payment to auditors (excluding GST as applicable)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

As anditor
Statntory Audit Fecs 132 1.20
Tax Audit Fees
Im other capacity

Faxation & Other Matiers (.11 011
Total 1.43 1.31
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3Ty Corporate social responsibility
Details of C5R expenditure
Particulars Year ended Year ended
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

i} Grods wmownl reguied 1o be spent dunng the vear 6,89 652

b} Amount spent during the yvear:
i Constroction/sequisition of any asset
i1y On purpases other than (i) abave 6490 .55

o} Details related to spent / unspent obligations: MNA NA
i) Contisbution to Public Tist
i Cortribution o Charitahle Trust®
11y Unspent amount i eelation o
- Omgoing project
- ' Other than ongoing projec

Mot

1 A per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2003, o CSK comumittes has been formed by the company. The
compemy s policy covers eurtent a5 well as proposed CSRsctivaties 10 be undertaken by the company amd
exnmunizng thear alignment with Schedule VIL of the Act,

4 The compamy proposes to implement its CSR activities in various sectors which inelude promoting Education.
preen initiatives, and facilities for scomor citizens, vocational & entreprencurshup skills, medical aid & healtheare,
old wpe homes, rural development projects amd others,

38  Exceptional Items
Particulirs Yearended  Vear ended
Mﬂ-ﬂi 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Cioen om sabe of property, plant and cguipment 1140 (36.65)
(Mt - M0
Taotal 1349 136,65)

39 Income (ny expense
Thiz note provides an analveis of the Company's income tax edpense, shows bow the to expense s affected by
ron-agsessiahle and non-deductible ifems.

Yearended  Vear ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(o) LineGiie tax expense

Currenl x on profils for the year 134,58 108,11
Tow of earlier years 0,37 {1 7.84%)
{ Drevreasc) increase m deferred faix Habiliies {3.47) {12.14)
Ineame tX cxpense 130.95 TH.09

{b) Reconciliation of tas expense and the sccounting profit multiplicd by the India’s tax rafe
Yearended  Year ended
Mureh 31, 2025 Mureh 31, 2024

Profit before income tax expense 44570 And 42
Tox ar the Indum tox e of 251 7% 1217 2071
Tax effect of amounts which are nol deductible in caleulating taxable incc .74 L.63
Oehers 17.07 {14.27)

locome tx expense 130.9% 78.09
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Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
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40 Revenue Recognised Under Contracts

a)The disaggregation of revenue earned under contracts as per Ind AS-115 is as follows:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Category-wise:
Revenue recognised at the point of time:
-Fertilizer 663 .81 413.98
-Fertilizer Liquid 93,69 45.26
-Pesticides Liquid 2,127.87 2,080.53
-Pesticides Wdp 1,182.41 1,272 88
-Techmical 1,544.15 1.678.34
Saleé of Raw Material 110,34 227.97
Others 477.44 -
6,199.76 5.718.95
Geography-wise
Within India 5.530.20 4.965.68
Outside India (69,56 T53.27
6,199.76 5,718.95 |
b) Revenue-related receivables and contract liabilities at the vear end:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025| March 31, 2024
Trade receivables (refer note 12) 2,229.73 2.213.71
Contract liabilities (refer note 25) 125.19 82.68

¢} Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised during the year in the statement of profit and loss wi

price:

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025| March 31, 2024
Revenue as per contracted price 6,199.76 5,718.95
Reductions towards varable consideration components® 305.05 212.05
Revenue from contracts with customers 5,804.7] 5,506.9]

* The reduction towards variable consideration comprises of discounts, sales commission, etc.
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41 Employes benelli

(a) Delined cantribuiion plan
Erarding the year, the Company hies recognised the following imounts in the Statement of Profit and Lass
{abso peber mobe 34 )

_ Yearemded Year ended

Muarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employers” Conbibation o Employes’s Provident Fund {mclm 1ot ld i
Employess” Clontribation o Employes's St Insurance 1.13 [
Total 17,74 15.88

) Defined henefit plan

(L Giratuiry

The company has o defined benefit for gramity. Fvery employee who has compleded Gyve sears or moee of
service gets o gratity on depacture it 13 days salary (last deawn salary) for each completed yenr of

LT R (RN

Ihe following mhles summarize the components of net benefit expense recoanizod in the sutement of
preodin amd Loss and the Tunded status and smomsts tecopndeed b e baliiee alees for tha pespective plans,

Mot defined bencfit obligation are as fullsws: Asoar Asal
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

The principal gssarmptions wsed in determining gramity benefin obligations for the company™s plie are

sharwm Brelinw:

ate of discounting Ll T T 0%

lage sof’ milary Incrense B e, [ENRNTI

Fente off omipldyess lamover - -

Montnhey mie durmg employment FALRM 200 214 wie  TALM 201314 wali.

Clinges in the present value of the defined beelin chligation are as fallows:

Uk defined Bene il oblipsihon J0.RS5 k.44
Intirest cost Z.02 205
Clurrend service cost 4.55 392
gl gerviee ol . .
$ene Rt paid (AR ] i1.96)
MActuaril {gain} |/ loss - -
ez i change In Demographic asaampiions O.Bd (]
Dhuse b change in fimsiscinl ssamteons (220 {2708
D o change in exporicnoe =
Clasing defined bemefli obliputbon 333 25 RE

Chonges in the Fair Yaloe of Plan Asyelts wre as
Fisllevys g

Fuir vitlue of plan pssetsat the beginning of the vear - -
|ETET e WIS TR TR P - -
Contributions by the emaployer - -
Hene tiis paidd - -
Reerurm om pln asaeis, vRalidmg mieresl muamme . .
Fair ¥Valoe of Flan Asseis gt the End of {he Porioad - -

Heconciliation of fair valoe af plon asseis and Aot : . Awat
delined benefin oblgation: Mareh &1 8 March 31, 2034
Privsemt voher of dofined benefil obligation 3303 2R.ES
Pairvalse of plan nsseis . .
1Mlany amset (i liateiliby) Ara% 24 R%
Expenses recognised o prioflt snd fisss Noar vindded Yoear ended
Mt interest Gosa P PRIE]
LT servics gost 4.535 392
*nst service cost . .

el ey pense 667 597
Expenses recojnived In ather comprehensive ~ Yearemded Yenr ended
Inzami March 31 _ March 31, 2024

Atuarin] {ysaing ¢ loss o deiieead enein obligotion (207 TR ]
Ferarn on Plan Assedn. exchoding Inférast Income
Votal expense recopnised in stntement of atlher
eomprebeisive lnconw {207 {2}

Muajor eategorics of plan gssets of the falr valoe of the tomal plan assers

Insinimace fand - -
Caxly Al Cash Bguvnbonts - -
Voial
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
All amounts are in INR in Millions, except otherwise stated

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for sienificant assumption ks as shown below;

Defined benefit abligation (base) 3313 19.85
Chunge in discount e

Increase by 1% 31.83 2881

Decrease by 1'% 34.29 30.9%
Change i rate of salary increase

Inurease by 1% 34.19 3089

Decrease by 1% 3190 2H.87
Change in rate of employee turnover

Increase by |% - -

Decrease by 1% - -
The following pavments are expected Asat : gj..s-ut
contributions to the defined benefit plan in March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
future vears:
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation B vears B years
Within next 12 months 9.72 0.06
Between | and 5 years 1616 14.94
Maore than § vears 18,16 16,75

44.04 40.75

{e) Risk exposure

Imterest rate risk: A decrease in the bond interest rate (discount rate) will imeresse the plan lishility.

Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan lability is caleulated with the assumption of salary
inerease rate of plan participants in future. Devintion in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants
from the rate of increase in salary used 1o determine the pregent value of abligation will have a bearing on the plan's
liability.

Investment Risk: The present value of the defined benefil plan liability is caleulaled vsing a discount rate
determined by refercnce to Government Bonds Yield. If plan hability is funded and return on plan assets is below
this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Mortality risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan lishility is calealated by reference 1o the best estimate
of the morality of plan participants, For this report we have used Indian Assured Lives Maortalite (201 2-14) ultimate
tahle,
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47 Significant extimates, juidzements and assumptions
The preparation of the Company’s financial saiements requires imanagement 1o make estimues and assumpiions that affect the reporiad
amounts of Tevenoss, expenses, wssets and liabiities. accompanying disclosures, und the disclsure of contingent labilities, Uncertaingy
abour these assumptions amd estimvtes conld result in outcomes thae require o materinl adfestment o the camying amount o nssets or
lisbilities affected b habe persods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concering the fiiure ond other key sources of estimation uncertainly ot the nepomting dote, that have o sipniticont
risk of causiog o material adjustment to the carrving amounts of assets and labihites within the next Anancial year, are deseribed
below. The {'I.‘,II'I',T_IIJIl_"' braged it4 aﬁumplimﬁ ani estimales on pisriTiclers avimlable when the fepardte fiancial Stutements: Wese
prepored. Bxasting ciroumstances wmd assumptions abour future. deselopments, howeves, may change due o mocket chonges or
eireumstances arising that are beyvond the control of the Company. Such chunpges ave reflected in e pssumptions when they ocour.

Contingent liabilitics

Connngent linki htes may anise from e ordinary course of busingss inrelation o clams aguinsg te Comspony, includmg legal and
wther clumme, By their muoure, contingencics will ba resolved only when one or mese uneerinin Aoure events gcear or &il o ocewr. The
assessment of the existence,-and potentiab guomum, of contingencies inherently imvelves the exercise of sipmificant judgement ond the
wse of estimates rogarding the oufeome of futre events,

Taxes

There are many transuctions and caloukations undertaken during the enfinary course of business for which the wltimote
dbetermination is uncertaim. Where the final tax outoome of these motters 1= different from the wmeunts imesally recorded, such
drfferences will nmpact the carrent snd dilermed s provisions 10 the perod tnowhish the tix detenmimation ts maske, The assessment of
probabilivy invelves estimation of a nuimiber of etoes including futuze taxable ineome.

Imprrmment of financial asseis
The Company assessos impamment hesdéd on expected eredit losses {ECL) maodel on trndde reoeivables

The Compiny usad o provisin matrx o dolernioe inpairment loas sllowancs on the portfolio of trade fecervables. The peovizion
matrix i based oo its hestoncally observed defialn roses over the expected 1ifie of the tade receivalbie and 15 adjusted for forwand leoking
estimates. AL every reporting date, the historicul observed default mtes are upditesd undd chunges in the forwanl-looking estimutes ure
nnolysed,

Impairment of non-financial pssels

The Company ussesses at cach reporting date whether there is an indication that an gssct moy be impeired. If any indication exists, or
whest aomuaal impairment testing for an asset s requred, the Company estimoles the psset’s recoverable amount, An asset's recoverable
armewmnt ix the bigber of an assot's e value loss costs of disposal and 15 value noose, s determmed for an odevidual assel, anless e
agsel does nol generae cash inflows that ane largely independent of those from other assais or graup of assels Where the carrying
amount of an @sset excesds i reeoveralle smount, the assetis considered impaired und i written down o ite-recoverable smount. In
pasessing voloe inouse, the cstimoted future cash flows mne discounted to their present valoe wsing o pre- tox discount rate that reflects
current marked assessment of the dme value of money und the Ask spocific W the ossel In delermining e value less ot of “disposal,
resenl markel fransochons are taken nto acceunt, U ne such masscnons van be sdentifisd, o approposte valustion model 15 ased,
These caleulations are corroborated by valuation muhiples or other available B value indicators,

Defined benelii plans (gratuity )

The cogy of the defined benafit gratty plin and other post-employmient benelie and the pregest value of the growity ohligation are
determined wsing oetuirial vilostions, An setueriol velustion iovolves msking varboes ssumptions that may differ omo octual
developments in the fumre. These include the determunotion of the discount mee, futre salary mereases and mmality reoes. Due o the
eomplexitics mvolved fn the salustion ond & long-term noture, a defined benefit obligntion i sensitive 1o changes o these
sssumpiions, Al assumptions are reviewsd of each reporimyg date,

The palamoter ot seljoct o chunge & the discount mte In déteeruning the apgroprato discout wuee for plins operated in ndia, the
manigement considers the interest mtes of government bonds in Indin,

The monnlity mie & based on publcly avalable moraliy tbles for (he specific countries, Those mortality tabies lend o change only ot
trterval i response o demographe changes, Futung saliry imereases and ity sneressses are basesd on expected future infiition rates
b lniekia. Fuerther etails about gratuing oblgetions ane given m Nate 42,

Fair value of finnncinl insiroments

The-fair value of financial insiruments that are nod traded inoan octive marked is detormined wsing valuation techniques. The Comipany
wees e judgement 10 select a variety of methods and make gssumptions that are maoinky besed on market conditlons existing ot the end
of euoh reporting pemod.




Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination option — Company as lessee
The Company determines the lease term as the non-canceltoblbe term of the lease, together with any penods covered by an ogition fo extend the lease if
it i reamonnbly certain tw be exerosed, or my penods covered by an aption to ferminage the léase, 1 1 i reasonably certain not i be exercsed

The Compuny bas seveml kease contracts that melude extension and tenmnation opticns. The Compony epplies mdgement m evaluaong whether 1t 15
reasonably certain whether or not 0 exercise the option o renew or tenminate the lease, That ks, it consbders all rebevint factors that ereite an
econamie incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement dinte. the Compony reassesses the lonse term of there
i5-a stgmificant event or change n cireumaances that 15 within its control ond affects s abiliny 10 exercise or nod 10 exercese the opnion 0 renew or Tk
T

Property lease classification — Company as lessor

The Company has entered into commerginl property lebses on s investment propety porifolio, The Company his defermined, based on an évaluation
of the terms und conditions of the amangements, such &5 the lease term not constiteting a mujor pert of the economic life of the commercial property
and the present value of the mimamum lease payiments not ameunting o substantally all of the fr volee of the commercial property, that it retains
substantiaily all the nsks and rewards incideninl 16 awnerihip of these propertics and accounts (or the contracts as operating leases,

Leases - Estimating the incremental horrowing rate

Where the Company conmot readily determine the mierest rate unphcit m the lease; therelore, nowses s meremensal borrowing rate (IBR) 1o messure
lease linbilitics. The IBH i the mie of imeres that the Company would have 1o pay te borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, (e
funds necessary 10 oblain in nssel of o similar vilue 1o the nght-of-use asset 0o soiler economic envivonment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Company *would bave o pay”, which requires catimation when no observable rates ane available or when they need 1o be adjusied 1w reflect the 1erms
and conditions of the legse, The Company estimates the [BR using observable imputs {such as market interest mtes) when available and is required to
ke cenmin entity-specific estimates,

Revenoe recognition - Estimating variable consideration for retorns and volume rebates

The Compary™s contracts with customers Inelude promizes to transfer goods to the costomers, Judgement is requited 1o detorming the transaction
price for the contrect. The transaction poce coold be either o fixed wmount of customer consrderation or vamable consderation with clements such as
rebites, imeentivis and cash diseeunt: e, The estirmated amount of sariable consideration 5= adiusted i the tansaction e only te the extent thatic
i5 hizhly probable that a siznificant reversal mthe amount of cumudlative revenue necogused will oot occur and &5 reassessed at the end of cich
Tepoting poriod

The wmwunt of revene recopnised depends on whether the Company aet as an agent o a5 a principal 0 an anansemenl with o customss, The
Company act as a priscipal if the Company controls a promised goods or service before the Company trunsfers the goods or service to a custimer and
act as an agent iF the Company s performance obhgation s to armange Tor the provizion of goods or servce by anather party,




Indogulf Cropsciences Limited
CIN: UT4RMDL IMAPLCOS NS

Motes o Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
All amounts are in INI in Millions; except otherwise stamed

43 Ratin Analysis and its elements

March 31,2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Currenl matio Curenl Assels Current Liabalities 153 times L1 teres -4 540,
Dhebt- Equity Ratio Total Debt Sharcholder’s Equity (LB2 limes (L&Y times 19.93%0
Diebt Serace Coverage matio Netprofit after wxes +  Inlerest & Lease 1.9 tmes 239 nmes -1783%
Non-cash operating Payments + Principal
Expenses Repayments
Feturn on Eguity ratio Net Profits after taxes  Average Shareholder's 1242 1 2.9 -4.37%
Eauity
Inventory Turnover atio Cost of poods sald Avempe lnventory 1.7% times 195 timey -3 700
Trade Revenvable Tumover Ratio Net eredin sales Averge Trade 2A6 times 278 tirnes -4 Re
Receivable
Trade Payable Tumeover Batio Met eredit purchase Avemnge Trade 3.7 tirmes J6d tumes 1.495%,
Payables
Wet Capibld Tumover Hutio MNet snbes Ciorent ussets 103 nmes 3,23 times - 14
Current linhilities
Mat Profit ratio Met Prodin Met sales 7559 6530 15,665,
Return on Capital Employed Enmings hefore mierest Tongible Net Worth 4 L1920, L2680 -6,03%,
mned tnxies Tostul Dbt + Dieferred
Tox Lty
Rerurn on imvestment A NA MNa MA -

Maote :

Comvespunding penod catio updasad as per regroupomg ond reclasgification madem the previeus vear poeriod.




Indogulf Cropsciences Limited

CIN; UT4599DL 1993 PLCOS 1854

Motes 1o Consolidiated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
All amounts ore in INE in Millions, except otherwise stuted

44 Related party transactions

(i) MNames of related parties snd related party relationship:-

u) Individuals owning dircetly or indireetly, an interest in the voting power of the Company that gives them siznificant infloence ever the Company and
Key Maonazement Personnel (KMEP)

I Mr Om Prkash Aggreal

2 Mr. Sanjay Aggarwal

3 M. Anshu Ayparwal

4 Mr. Bhupender Kaushik { resigned w.e.£31,03.2024)

b} Key Management Personnel (KMP)
| Mr. Pushap Koamar
Mr. Manaoj Gupia - CEO
Mr. Saurabh Abhiranjon - CEO ( resizned woe.f F3=-06-2023)
Mz, Sakshi Jain - Company Sceretary (resigned woe,l 13052023 and re-appointed wee.f, 11-03-2024)
M Monika Sharma - Company Secretary ( appoimted woe, T 20,06,2023 restgned woef, 10-03-2024)

A e led B

o} Independent directars
I 5h. Rohul Gupta
Sh. Bandeep Bhutani
Smt. Snehal Kashvap (appomted woe FO2-12-2024)
smi, Lima Verma (appointed we £ 03-00-2024)

= oo

dj Relatives of KNIPs

M=, Shrive Kavshik davghter of Mr. Bhopender Kavshik, Direceor (ceased to be KMPS refarive woed 3103 20247
Mrs, Nishn Kanshik wife of Mr. Bhopender Kaoshik, Director {ceased 1o be KMP%S relative woef 31.03,2024)
Mr. Shrey Kaushik son of Mr, Bhupender Koushik, Dirccior {ceased o be KMPs relative w_e [ 31,03, 2024)

Mz, Sanshi Aggarwn] daughter of Mr, Sanjoy Aggarwal, Dircetor

Mr. Amav Aggarwal gon of Mr. Sanjay Agmrwal, Director

Mrs, Aruniks wite of Mr. Mano] Gupa, CFO

Mirs. Meelam Ahhimnjan wifeof Mr. Saurabh Ahhiranjan, CEO ( resigned wee f) 13-06-2023)

=t 3 U ke L b —

&) Enterprises over which kiy management personnel and their relotives have control [ significont influenee:
1 O Prakash Aggarwal (HUT)

Indo Organies Pvt, Lid. (formerly Siemre Cropsciences P, Lid.)

Mas Inde Prvate Limited

EY L Wentures LLP { formerly Tndogulf Pharma LLPY

Abhiprakash Infra Privisie Limited

Sanjay Agparwal (HUEF)

Glownet Sciences Private Limited

-] 3 L e L BJ
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bl Cropciences Limited

TN UT4R9001 100371 COS RS

Murles to Consplidated Finnnclal Stniements ax af March 31, 2025
All uarenmis are im [MR in Milliens, excepe otherwese smied

45 Fimnncial Instroments

L Fair valee measurements
ir G : At March 31, 2085 As af March 31,
() Finmocial strunsents by cuivgory — Note  PVIPL  FVIOCI  Amorsedeost  FVIFL  FVIOCT  Amorised cost

31} Finanelal issets - Nop-current

Security deposits B - - T.21 - - 6 5t
b Financinl assefs - Carrent
Trobe reeeivables 12 - - 2429073 - . 241371
Cakh ool cush digquivalents 13 - - 9685 - - 2006
ber bank bolonocs - - - - - - -
Loars 10 releed paiises - ! - - .
Imigrest meerued but ot dug om Hxesd |4 E - 1,18 . B i
depasits
Secunty deposits 14 - - - - - -
Tatal Eunnckal seseis - - 233497 - - LI4R. B
¢} Financial liabilities - Non-current
Borrowines % . . BRI - . 15350
Lizsrss Habahiy i) a - 4202 - - 154
Sevnrty deposits reverved foom 0 . . B3.36 v . 7147
wuslmers

i} Fimameiad lahiliges - Corvent

Borowings 23 . - 1724954 . . 1, 460,06
Lezase laleitity 7 - - 19.92 - - b5
Trade pavaliles L . . 1542 67 . B 10T by
Corremt matirities of lom-term bormwin ] 17792 -
Creditors for capital expenditure 25 - - - -
Imerest peerued on homowings 5 - - 1,25 - - 442
nleresn secro bul nol paid T reboted 5 - - -
Tty
Emmpdoyine payvables 25 - - 546 - - 4377
hher Pavable 25 . - 5150 - . fili, 44
Tutal financial Habilities - - A M6 4% - - 287021

(1) 'Vise folbowhieg methods and assamption were meil (o estimabe tie lair values
I, Canl st short-term deposits, sade recsivablis, loans, trade payables; aod other corrent finaocaal pgscts aod labilnes approxamate thels canying
mmmwsints Sty e 1o the Shor-lerm moferties of these marimeis.

(0} Fair value hiermrchy
This aeetbon explains the julseownts and estimsehs nasde in determening the e values of e fineial istronenss i are
(a ) revopnised migd measanad s e vl and
{hj mensired al ameriised cost and for wideh (e valoes are disclosed in the financial satermenis

Tor provvadie am inglication bt the relishiliny of the inpats used n determaning fair valfine, the Company hos clissified i Arancial instramerts info the
three levels preseribed wxler the sceounting standand, An explanation of each level lollows undernegih tlse mble.




Indozull Cropseiences Limited

CUN: UT4RR90 L 1A PLCBS 1§54

Motes to Consefidated Finaneial Statements as st March 31, 2025
Al wmonrts are an [N m Millions, except otberwise statad

Iwe heave besn o trinsfers between Level | ond Level I during the period,

Asat March 31, 2025 AvoiMarch3L e

mieasiured sl amortised cost for which : B : -
nir vulues are disclosed
Financinl assets
Security deposits . - 7.2 . . %83
Bepusitg having naturity of e than - - - - - -

twehve mioiths

Flinanciul Halllites

Long term borroowings (including current . - - . - -
mairitles)
Security deposits teceived from - - 8534 - - Ti42
USRS

Thiere have b no trnnafers between Level 1 and Level 7 during the period.

Lewvel 1: Level T hicrarcly includes financial instruments messnred nsing quoted prices. Thin inclusles Tisted equity imstromenty that have quoted price.
The fair valwe of all equity instnuments which are traded in the stock exchunges is valued using thie closing price as ot the reporting period.

Lewel 23 The fair value of Guanciel istrunsents that are sot treded inoan actoos market {for example, tradod bonds, ovorsthe colmter derivatives)
ditermined] uzing valiston techmigues which maxirnise the use of odeervable market dota and rely as hittle as possable on entity-specific estirretes. 11 all
slip_nirﬂ:anl |n|'|||‘|sl n;;qulrp:i o faer '.'.ﬂ]l.ll; il erslrorrasiil e |:||1m.wk':|h'||,:. |i|l.: 'il:l::rn.ln’r;:nl i i|||:||.l.|J|.1|| (11} !m-ﬂ F o

Level 3:-0F one or more of the sienificant inpuis 13 not based on observable market dos, che insirumens is included in level 3,

(i) Valuation technigue used to determine faie valse
Speeific voluation technigues used to value finnneial instrements include:
a} the fuir values of the FYTOCT investments are derived from guoted market prices n acbive murkeds,
Iy} thee fair valoe of mterest rate swips s caleulated as the gresent value of the cstimated future cash flows Based on observable vield oarves
) the Fair yulwe of forword fo eign exchanpe contrmts aml reineipal swap b determimed asimg forwend exchiange rutes at the batlanee sheet date
by the fair value of forcion curreney option contrects is determined vsing the Bluck Scholes viluation model
e} the faw values of the interest-beanng borrowings and loans are determined by wsmg discounmed cash tlow method vsing discount rae thar refleess the
issters boarrowing rate as uf the emld of the reporting period. The own too-performance risk was assessed W be ingigifonst
) the fivir value of the remaming finumcial instruinents is determined vsing discounded cash Mow anolysis usmg rates currently oviailable for debt on
similur tenms; credil risk and remgining malurities.

fiv) Fair ml:uu.: af financial anseis n_ml ﬂalllm_h:_a m:m_‘yn;il ut _umnrll?:d civsl

o it Mareh 31, 2025 Ax ut March 31, 2024
Nite. Carrying Faie valoe ‘Carrying Fair value
AT isianinl

Financial assets
-Security deposits® & 7.21 721 543 .43
Financial labllites
- Lomg term borrowings | mcluding curnem imsturit 1@ 474.TH 47478 25423 254.23
- Security deposits neceived from customers 20 336 8336 7142 7342

*The mans gement wssessed it Wir valees of above Anancial imstnuments ppproximate their carrying value due fo aowrtised cost bemg caleulated based
ol the effvctive interest rales,

Phe earrving smeunts of ik receivables, cash and bank badances, loans, other recervabies, shor term borrowimgs, secunty deposats receved, wade
pavables, credibors for capital expenditsire and sther current Ananeial wssets and licbilibes are consibered 0 be e some ws B value due to thear shott




Indogull Cropsciences Limited
CIN: UT4R99D L1 1AM CO5 1854
Motes to Consilisdated Financial Stitemends as o March 31, 2015

Al st aee b INR 5 Millicae, st otheiwis statad

2 Finungiol rigk manazement
Db € vnprminy s principul Anancial labalies, sy deon deelvaiavies, comgrlse ke and borrww g, raibe 2ol other peables. The madn purpese of thise
fmancinl linlsikities s s finanes the Congaey"s operations, The Companys prircipal finnoein] sssets inelude trade snd other receivalibes, secuarity
ilepasits, cash ol cash -dq'nlw|=n1.1. el B e derive ihrecily from its operabem. The Compeny also bolids FY TOCT imvestmenis and eniess min
derivailve tmisactions

The Company 1 exposed 1o market rek credit nsk and boguidity risk thoe pee sammarsed o5 wider-

| sk Expovury wrisiog from | Measurement ] Musgement

Credit ruk Cash and cash equivaliots, tride Aging neblyss Diversificsion ol bank doposits,
receivahles, derivative financaal credit linmis
instmumnenis, fimameial sswsy measured 1

Liguisliay risk Barrowanps spil ofbser linbilioes Cazh flow ferecasiing Avuvilabilay of commaited gredit

Hirwes and horrowiin fcel e

Marker risk - foreign exchange nsk Raeogrused fnanem] assas amd a1 Cash flow forecasing ) Forwnrd exchange vonimgss
lintilktves net denominabed tn Tndizn mpeeh] Sensitnaly onalysa b Fareign currency optians
(IME]} el Curniey ewaps

durket rish - inierest iz risk Lonjr-verm borronings ol varinble mies | Sensitivity anslvsis Imeres mie dwaps

il risik « s | lmvestments i equity securities Sensitivity anafysin Tortfulio diversificazion

The Company has formualased she Risk Managemem Policy wiose objective |s b onsure sstainnble business expansion wih stabillty, and bo promnte an
bzt ;||1p|'|.‘|ll.'|'l. i risk nonEgemeng pricess by lmmnating risk; In oeder ti scheeve this key abjectve, s r\:||||."_'.l pnwides H rnq:l.ln:d anid well-argrmized
ippiriesch T ranagie e varss trped Al rek gesctatod with day o by bisimes ol the Company and snemize adverse anpmel on s basness obpecives
ug well ns policies covering specific aness. tuch = foreign exclange risk, imersst rate sk, credin gk, use of derivative linneial mstruments and non-
erivative fimnncial imstrements, ond imvestment of excess iquidin:

A) Credit risk

Credif risk is the risk thai doumearparty will sot meet oy oblipations milér o financinl mstriament or cosiomer aostroet, leading to o financial loss. The
Crmpany 15 expsed o credit sk fram i2e operatmg schvities (pamanily frmde recesvables) and from it finascing acoivinies, meluding deposiss with
Inanibisi. fine i ﬂ!l.'|n||p: trangactaons amd uther Mnamanl instrmenis

(I Crodit risk msnapoment

up Trade receivaliles

Custonnier credit risk is maniged by sach business wiit subject w the Company’s estabbished policy, provedures amd contsol relating 1o costomer oredi pisk
manageinent. Oistanding customer receivables are regularfy monitored. The Company pesiedically assesses the fnancinl relinhiliy of castomers, taking
imeruceond the Hnanciad condition, corrent ecinomic trénds, and anslysn of histonica] daa and apsing of seommiby reesivabhe Individual rsk ol ase
st wecurdingly. New cussvaners ure waibysed sdividuslly for coeditwenbiess before the Cempeny’ s smedund payment sl delivery tenms are offenad.
Sale limics are essablished o cuch pustomess amb reviewed peridically

Ihe Comgwsity corsiders the probabality of defautt upon imitial recognison of a9se and wissther thbere has been a sipnificant merease m eredic nsk on-en
vnpuing basis throaghoit each repenting perised. N comsiders available iensomable and suppetive forward-looking infonmation. Especially the Gllowing
il cnbors are meorponaied:

b Acctainl v expectied siprifleant aidversae chanses n busiiéss, lnaneal or eeonvnme comdikioe tat wee silusl

b Significent chonges in the expecied performance ond bebaviomr of the costomer, inchiding changes i the poymest stanas of customer in the conpany:

The masimmm expesure o credir risk ansmg from wade mecervahles s |1rm.'|d¢il e 12

) Flianelal Instrmmenis and cash depasdts

Creadit nisk From balances with banks s munaged by the Compaey’s munsgement in sccordonee with the policy of the Campany, Coumterparty credit limits
are reviewed by 1he Company’ s managemcent on am anmiol basis The Himits are sl jo minsmse the comedntratiee ol vk aod therefone mingsie finomcial

lixsa throwgh coumterparty’s porential fuklurs b make payments,

The Company's maxmam exposare bo credit vk for the components of the balance sheer ot Mazch 31, 2025 and March 31, 2004 5 the canyimg amsouts
o5 ilhusrneed m Mole 14

ik} Provision For expected ¢rodil losses

Catepary Deseription of codegary Busis for recopnition of expected oredit loss
pravision

socurity depaosin Trade receivables

Hhigh guatity assen, nepigible credin risk Asmets whoere the counter-pary has sbrdng copaity
iy et ihe ohligations snd where the nsk of defauh
ie negligible oenil

1 2-edwths-oxpoered credal | Lifetime oxpocted

Urunlity assgts, bw credil nsk Azmets where there in low nisk of defiuls ond where -
lirin credin lusses

thir courler- party s suflicient capacity lo oot
obligatinns ami where there has beer Iow Trequenay
ul defanlts in the past




Indogulf Cropscicoces Limited
CIN: UT48909D0, 1993 PLCDSIRS4
Motes to Consolidated Financisl Seatements as at Mareh 31, 2025

All amgunts are in IR in billions, except otherw ise statiad

B) Linuidity risk

Liguadity risk is the raske thist (e Compony-will not be able toomeet it finamcial oblipstions s they Bl dwe. The Company's approgch (o micniging
Tigpuiadity is oo enesure, as far as possible, that it wall always have swfficient Diguidity 1o meer s liabilities when due, wader both nosmal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unaccepinble losses or risking damage o the Company s repatation, The Campany manages lguidity risk by mamiamng
wdequinte reserves, by continaously oo forecast and aciuol cosh ows wnd motchimg the matuty profiles of e Gnoncel ossets and Rubalibes,

The Company enjoys o geod reputation for its sound financial management and ability to meet in financinl commitments.

Contraciual maturithes of Gnamcial Habilities: -

As al March 31, 2025 Note Within | year  Between | More than  Total
und 5 vears S years
Loster termy borrowings {ineloding curment maturrtie 19 11792 356.86 - 47478
Short term borrowings 23 |.Ta4.54 . - 1.724%.54
Lease liability including curmenst portion T 19592 1721 2551 0264
Trude pavables 24 1, 342,97 - - 134297
Secority depesils received [rom customers A B350 85,36
Interest nocrued but not due on horrowings 25 329 3.29
Creditors for capiial expendrione 25 - - - -
Employves poyobles 23 5536 - 5536
Ulmpandd dividend account 25 = =
Drerrvative lisbilites 25 - -
Chlser pavahle 25 5256 - 5156
Tatal 340691 A74.07 25,51 3. Biko.A4%
As at March 31, 2024 Nite Within | vear Between 1 Maore than Tutal
aml 5 years S years

Long term borrowines {meluding current maturitie 19 hEaT 18556 - 25423
Short term borroaines 23 1,291 39 - - 1.291.39
Lease linbilivy including current postion T 9.15 9.89 26,02 45.06
Trade payables T4 | 007 .36 - - 1,047 36
Security deposits recerved from castomems 2 7342 - - 7342
Imterest decrued but mol due-on borrowings 23 ; - -
Credhitors o capital expenditure 15 .
Employes poyables 25 4377 = = 4377
Chher pavahie 25 ol 44 - 6,49
Taial Libwdd, 2 195.45 2602 1.865.73
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Indogulfl Cropscicnces Limited

CUN: LT L1 993 PLCDS 1854

Motes to Consolidnted Finmneial Statements ss ) Mareh 31, 2025
All amoumds are in TR i Milllons, except otherwase staked

C) Murket risk

Market rigk ip the risk that the faar vidue of futuee cash flows oF a fnancil nstroment will floctuate beeause of changes i onorket prices, Markit nrk
comprises theee tvpes of gisk: nterese mte rsk, carrency gk and other peiee rigk, such as oquity girice sk and commaodity pisk. Finsteial etrunmenits
affecred by ket visk chsde loans and borsowings,; deposics, PV TOCT investments asd derivative financial instramsms.

11 Foreign eorrency risk

Forezan curreney nsk 15 the risk that the faer volue or fiture cash flows of an exposuare will fluctoote because of changes i foreagn exchongee rates, The
Compamy's éxposure Lo the risk of chanpes 10 foreipn exchange miles relales primanky w ihe Compony’s uperating setrvithes (when revenue or gxpense 15
denominated in o forenem currency).

When a deciviative 16 enlered il for the merpise of being o bedge, the Company negotiates: the terms of those derbvatives o mitch the tetmis of e hedied
expusure, This feregn cumeney tisk 35 hodped by wang foreign currency forward confract.

Indogulf Cropsclences Limdted

CIN: LUT4EMDL 99 PLCDS 1854

Motes to Consolidated Finnneial Statements as at March 31, 2025
Al arrinmits are in AN 0 Millons, eroept otherwise stated

Sensirivity
The follewing mbles demonstnte the sepsitivity o 2 seassably possible change in USD exchange e, with all other varables held constant. Tl imgac
on the Company”s profit before tx s due to chamges in the fair valoe of menctary assets ol Habilitic.

Iempact om profit before tax

‘Mareh 31, 2025 Miarch 31, 2024

LS I sensitivity
Trade receivables
LIS
INR/LISD - dnercase by 5% (March 31, 2024 5% 74K {11.51)
INRATSIY = decrease by 5% (Murch 31, 2024: 5%) {T4K) 1151
AED
INEAAED - increase by 3% (March 31, 2024 3%) 0,7 .
INRAALD - decrease by 5% (March 31, 2024 5%) (0,73 -

INRULISD - increase by 5% March 31, 2024 3% 1.26 0,.2%

INRLISE - dectense by $% {Mirch 11, 2024: 5%) 11261 {0,.23)
CHNY

INHRLISTY = inerepse by 5% (March 31, 2024: 5%, . -

INRLISEY - Jserense by S% (March 31 2004: 5%5) - -
AED

INRAAED - inerepse by 5% March 31, 2024 5% -

IMRAAEDY - decrease by 5% (March 31, 2024 5%) -

Trade Pavables
15D
ENRATSDY - tneremss by 5% (March 31, 2024; 5%%) 21.20 1157
INE/USD - decrease by 5% (March 31, 20240 5% ) (202N {1157
CNY
INRATSD - incremss by 3% i March 31, 2024; 5%) - -
INEISD - clciaae by 3% (March 31, 20240 3%) - -

INRAAED - increase by 5% (March 31, 2024: 5%) -
INRAAED - devrisise by 3% (Mareh 31, 2024; 5%

ELR
INRATSD - incrense by 3%, (March 31, 2024; 3% -
INRALISD - discnease by 5% {March 31, 2024: 5%) -

Advance to Vendors
Lisry
[NE/USIY = anereise by 5% 0 March 31, 2024 5% . FLUAFRY]
[NIISD = disdrense by $4%% (dhirch 21, 2024 5%) . IR
AED
INRALISTY - inerease by B ( March 31, 2i24; 5%) . .
INRLISEY - dleenense by 5% (Ml 30, 2024 3%5) - -




Indogall Cropscicoces Limited

CIN: UT4R99DL I3 FLCIG 1554

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as ai March 31, 2025

All amounts are in TNR in Millions. excepl stherwize stated
{il} Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the rsk that the fair value o future cosh flows of w finaecial nstroment will flectuate because of clanges m market inberest s, The
Compamy 15 exposed to mierest rate risk becsuse funds ane borrowed ot both fixed aod foating mterest rates. Interest mete ik 15 measured by using thi:
cash flow sensitiviny for changes in variabbe interest rate, The bormowines of the Company are principally denorminated in ropees at Mlaating rates of

{2} Interest rale risk exposure
The exposure ol the Campany's borrowings to interest rate changees at the end of the reporiing peniod are as follows:

As b March 31, As at March 31,
2018 4
Vuriohld mite borrowings
Shurt tern bormowines 1, 729,54 1.251.3%9
Long term borrowings (ineluding courment maturitics) 47478 25423
Fixed rate borrowings - Long term (inelwding curranl maturilies) - -
Total horrowings 2.204.32 1.545.62

As at the end of the reporting period. the Company had the following kong term variable eate borrowines {including corrent maturities) and interest rate aw

As at Mareh 31, 2025 As at Mareh 31, 2024
Interest rates Balance W of total Imuem Batance %% of total
; ; : :
Banh borrowings 474,78 21.54% 234,23 |65.45%
Met expasure to cosh few interest 47478 25423

rufle risk

3 Caplial management

{a) Risk management

Claptal mcludes equity attributable s the equity holders to ensune that i maintaies an efficient capital stroeiure and healthy capital agios moonder
support its business und makimisz shareholder valee. The Compony manages its copital structore snd mokes sdjustments to it in light of changes m
eeonomie conditions o is business requirements, Tomunintain or adjust the capital strecture, the Conmpany iy adjost the Sividend pavment o
shareholders, return capital 1o shareholders or issue new shares. The Compony moenitors capitol using o peanng rabn, which 15 net debt divided by ool
capital phas net debt, For the parpese of the Company®s capial mampement, et debt includos inferest bearing loans pnd borrowings, liss cash and cash
cguivnlends. Capital includes ssued cquity capital, share premium and all other equity rescrves otinbuiatle 1o the equity holders

Note As at March 31, As at March 31,
025 2024
Totul debi X2 & Db 220028 15510011
{Lessy: Cash and cash eguivalents 13 [, B5) {249, 16)
Net debt 217240 152094
Total capital I8 & 19 2T5LTT 231051
Capital and et debt 4.926.16 1B3T 45
Learing ratin 44.11% 63

Mo changes were mudz in the objectives, policies or processes. for managing capital during the vear endled Murch 31, 20625 amd Murch 31, 2024,

In order 10 achizve this overall objective, the Company s capital management, amongst eiher things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants
attached fo the interest-bearing loans and borrewings that define capinl structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the finaneal covenmmts would permil
the bank to immmedianedy call L and bosrowings. Thene Tave been o breaches in the financial covemnts of any internesBearing lens ool borrowing in
the current peried.




Indogull Cropsciences Limited

CIN: UT4899DLI1993PLCO51854

Maotes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
All amounts are in INR in Millions, except otherwise staned

46 Changes in aceounting policies and disclosures
(n} New and amended standards and interpretations

(i) Ind AS 117 Insurnnce Coniracis
The Munistry of corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Conlracts, vide notification dated 12 Aupus 2024, under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Stndards) Amendinent Bules, 2024, which bs effective from annual reporting penods beginning on o aftér | Apeil 2024,
Ind A% 117 Insusance Contracts is & comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance coniraets covering recopnition and measurerment, presentalion and
disclosure, Ind A5 117 replaces Ind A5 104 Insurgnce Contracts, Ind AS 177 applics foall types of insurance contraets, regandbess of thee tvpe of entities thar
wsane them as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features; & few scope exceptions will apply. Ind AS 117 15
based om o general model, supplemented by;
« A specific adaptation for contracts with direet participation fentures (the variable fee approach )
« A& pumphified spproach (the premium wllocation approsch ) mainly for shori-dueation contracts
The applicaticn of Ind AS 117 had oo mpact on the Goancial statements ag the Company hies not gitered any contracts m the natire of insurnce contricts
covarald wnder Ind AS 117,

{iiy Amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
The MCA netified the Companies { ndian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules. 2024, which amend Ind AS 116, Leses, with respeet fo Lense
Linhality i o Sake und Leaseback.
The amendiment specifies the sequirements that o sefler-lessee uses in measuring e lease lability arsing i a sale and leaseback transaction, o esire the seller
Jessee does nol recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates 1o the right of wse it retains.
The amendiment 1= etfective for amnual reporting periods begmning on or after 1 April 2024 and must beapplied remospectively 1 sale and leasehack
transactions entered info after the date of initinl application of Ind A5 [16,
The amendment does not have any impact on the finaneial smtements as the Company has not entered any contracts o the namre of lease lability i a sale and
lenseback covered under [nd A% |16,

(b} Standards issued bot nof vet effective

There are no such standards or amendment issued which are not effective gs on dare,
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Indwrulfl Cropsciences Limited

CIN: UT4R99DL 1993 P LCBEIRSS

Nates to Consolidated Financial Ststements as ot March 31, 2028
Al wwaunts e dn TNR in Millions, excepl oifierwiss dted

47 Sepmsent informatin
Uiperating segmunts ane reported b manier gensagent with the intemal reporting providid to the el sperating decision maker, The
Compony is engaged in the busingss of mamsfcfermg and distnbetion of Agro-chemicals coemprizing o1 tevhnizal and formulation,
henes there 15 one aperating sepment,

Entity wide disclosures as applicable ta the Company are nwationed below:-

a) lnforomtion alkout geographien] aress:

Revenue from external customers Vear ended  Yeur ended
2025 arel 31,
Within India 5533020 486568
Olutzdde L Gt 36 18127
Tutal revenoe b ThH 5.T1K95

Tl ba=is for mitribating revenucs fom extemal custiomies 08 hased g e cownnry of domiile o the respective dusioners

b Revenae from Mujor Customers: There b no cwsiomer having revenue ameoanting o 1% or mere of Company’ s total revenoe,

a8 Commitnsend and Contingent Babilities

Particalurs Asab Asut
uy Estimnted amownt of contructs remaining te e executsd on 13373

capital account whd not provided for (ret of adviisces) i 1209
b Gusmniees Bsued by bank on behall of Company 136 06l
) Custom Dty demand 347 ]
o} Sales Tax Mallemns 12211 .70
ey Gioods & Service s matiers 2T A4
17 Eneomme by maiters 7675 1697
gl Corsumer Dispute Redressul Commission | Almediabad) 1647 L.
hi Letter of Credin with banks 111 15715

kil Bk
Tatal Gl Ard 106,20
4% Earnimgs per shire
Yenr sufied. - Year emded
March 31,2

Teudin for the e AT 28233
Weighizd avernge mumber of shares | Face valoe Bs 105 euch) L BT ETASHM) RS IRIIRO0
Weighted uvernge mumber of shares (Face value Rs 10V~ eoch) o B0, 34k ) 125 G on
(&) Basic eamings per share (INR) hdd LXon
(b} Dridistieal waenimgs peer chare (ENR P TR 11.94

*including dilutive pobeéntind equily shares,

50 Adidinoos] informateen poesaant o Minstry of Corpornbe Affale notificadsen dated March 24,200 | with respect to amendments in
Sahedule I of Companies Act, 2011

d

Thert are mi pmﬁcudinpﬂ which hove Been mibaded or [lu;m‘lmﬂ ngminsi ik company far h\:ﬂllmg amy Henarin |'||'|1p¢rh_p' unider the Benoml
Trumsaesions (Profabition} Aet, 1988 (45 of 1988} ond nubzs made thereunder,

() The vonipaiy is ool o eakil defaulier as declored by sy bunk o Pooocial lostinmsen or ooy odher lendes.

it The company does nol lave ooy rarsactions with the compandes struck off under seetion 248 of Compantes Act, 2013 Or sedtion S60
of Clompanies Act, 1556

fivl Therd are no charges or Satis fsction vet 1o be registered wids Regisirar of Companies (ROC Y bayond the satulony period

v} There are re iransaciions which are not recorded m the books of sccoumnds thal has-been surrendened or disclosed s income during the
wenr in ihe wx assesements under the locome Tox Act, 5% (such s, search or survesor noy other relevamt provisiens of the Income
Tax Act. 11}

{vil The company has not traded or irvested in Crypts Cureney ar Virtual Coreney durimg the year

(vii} The compary has not advimeed o loaned o invested funds 10 any other persons o entities, meluding feekm coiiies (Intenmedisncs)
wilh ihe understnding taat the mtermwdiary sholl:
() Drarectly or idirecely bened or myvest moother pecsons o entities wennificd in sy mammer whatwever by or on behalf ol the conpany
{1k irmle Beneficianssy or
(b} Prosvide amy gunraniee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimade Beneficiories.




Indogull Cropsciences Limited

CIN: U480 L1 90APLO0S 1854

Motes to Consolidated Financlal Statcments as ot March 3, 2025
All arnounis acd in TNR in Mallions, excepl othersdss soted

Twbbly The Company s oot recelved any Dosd frony mny persons o eotities, nelisding freign eoites (Fundng Farry ) with the poderstanding
iwhether recorded in writing or otherwise ) thiot the Compioy shall:
ta ) Direvily o indirectly bend or vest i other pesonsor entitics aentifad by any mdaner whstsocver by or on behalf of the Funding
Purty (Ultimete Beneficieres) or
ih Provvidhe any ganmondes, seeority or the like on behalt of the Lilimete Beneficiaries

Lix) Tithe dissds of property ar beld in the compuiy’s owin nims

10 The Compainy s pob fevested wlth mber of byers of Companies durimg Y 2020234, as presebed under elsuse (37 of Section 2 of
the Act read with the Companies { estriction on number of Lavers) Roles, 2007,

51 Information In respect of Migre and Small Enterprises as af 315t March 1024 as réquired by Micreo, Small and Medlum
Enterprises Developmaent Act, 2.

T Awat As b
SRS March 38, 2025 Mareh 35, 2024
W) Arount rerainng unpald o any Supplier

Prncipal amoont LI7 a2 Fark: Bl

Inferest due thereon - -

by Amaount of interest paid by the buver in ietms of section 16 = =
el MEMED Act nlong with the sivsunt pand 1o the supplion
beyonaf the appodnied day.

) Armbunt of inlerest duee and payalle for e perfod of deluy - -
in making payment {(which have boen paid bart bovond the

wpporited dayt during the yeary Bat wishoan adding ihe imenest

specilicd under the MEMED Act.

Wl Amount of infensst necrued and renmiring, unpaid -

@) Aamiount of funber inrerest remamimg due amd payvable oven - -
in the succeeding _',\'_;u.ru. uniil such dnie when the interest dues
ms ghove are ectunlly pasd 1o the small enterprse, for the
purpioue of disallow anee 8k a deductible sxpenditure under
septon 23 of MEMED At

52 Amdin Tradl:
The Mmestry of Corpormte Affurs (MMOCAS has prescrilssd 8 new rogurement for compomies ander the proviee to Bole 301 of the Componies
PAceointsp Rules, 2004 msered by Cianpanics | Aecoans | Amenshnens Bules, 202 requirmg companies, wiech iscs accounming sofiware for
i s boakes of et shall vse ondy such sccounting sodbwoare whinch has a feanend of recondmgz agcic iaal of i mml AVETY TG hion,
ireatme oml edit log of cacl change made m the boks of secmmt okmp with the date when such changes were mode and ensumne that the oudit trad
enrmat e skl
The Company bins enobled the pudit frodh edit kags) fuclny of the sceounting: aoftwane used for manvenooee of all scsounbing records. Himsoover, uadit
mrail (el lons) mre cnnbled sl spplication level and nor st daisbese leved becnuse enabling this foility will severcly impncts ERP perfirmnnes diso t
abiFeey Dt i S uiilisssa,
Aulcdstwmally, thee sucdst tmil his been preserved by the Company as per the stniusery requiremenis for recond notenison.

51 Subseguent Event: - M)

B4 In the opinion of the Board of Disectors of the Compamy, the cament assets, loans and advinces bave the valug af léas equal to the
Fignares stntead in the Bulance Sheet on realisation in the ordinary counie of business except doubilal nature of advances & loons aml'or
othver pics and provislon for all known linkilites hove been masde.

5 Provious year figures have been re-gnuped or re-grmanged, wherever necessaty
For DEVESH PARFKI & CO, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Chiartersd Aciountants INTHOGULF CROPSCIENCES LINITEDR

Firnt's Begiamation Hutmbeér 01333388

Pl - Sdi- Sallis
Dhevesh Farckh sonpjay Agzarwal  Om Prakash Aggarwal
Pariner Managing [Mreotor Whale Thine Divector
Membrership Mumber (822 160 DN OT6IAAS I3 (73T 440
bt Sall'-
Plawwe: Dielhi Manaj Cugia Sakshi Jain
Pimte: July 24, 2025 Chiel Finnncinl { ificer Company Sccretary
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CIN: U748 DL 1HMAPLCOS 1854
Notes o Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025
Al ampunis are in INK in Millions, except otherwise stufed

6 Statutery Group Information

A ont March 11, 10322

Consalblated Mel Assets, e, Totul | Share in Ceopelidaied Frofld and Share lm Comsolldated Orher Share in Consaligduted Tobsl
Assets mipms Toinl Liokiligles Toans Camprehiensive ncome LCamprehiensive income
Mame of the eality in lhr_Grrlq'r Smune As Ve of Amint A el Amaoumi An el g g Yool O omsoll daeed
i unsalblaied § anudldnfed il ldned € iber Tl Comiprehensive
Nt Asacks Pradit and Lins Cumprelsensfve Inecnme
lim i
| Paranl
Enifogull Cripsciences Limsed 278 LT ERILES TIEEL 154 IR ERERE [TREEL
| Tnibiam swlrsidiarics
Abbapeakash Gilobis Provate Eimiled (743 Ak 20 (B3 -2 5% . Qe [5:3:3) 217
Amstralinm auld oy
Indogudl ©rpscienges Al FTY L LLE L L) | XA 1 LN [H-T%) X3
Tatal 1,751.99 RIS & 155 EIE R
Adsustmens ot ol cumselilibun a2 05 LLAT) AT 1 tLiNF, LLATY “IhAnte
Total eduity IJSLTT 314724 L.55 MGIT
Anoat March X1, 2024
Commsolidated Mei Assets, fe. Tofal | Share tn Canvedidaded Preofil and Share im Cossolidaied Oiler Share in Consalidoded Tolal
Assels minms Totnl Linbilities Laoss Camprehensive Income Camprehensive income
N i the mmlity im i e Girosgy Amonmi A Yeoof \manmi s Ya ol Amoumi w e ol Amng Ar Vel Comiolidated
Consalidated Cansolidnted Convtidnted Other Tl Comprehensive
Mt Assels Urudit aned Lass Cumnpre bemsive Incims
Parent
Indagull Crupseiences Tl 2330440 TN EL 144,74 LM e (K (TEARTTEE 44 [T LM
| DBz smilisldbiibes
Abbipeubash Dlobus Privpie Limitsd (L2 0 (0.56) ALLY% . [ART 136 AEEN
Amirraling sahsidiar
Fnbgubl ppeciencus Awaralin FIY L1 [RERTA] LiFs {054 E i) . IR [ ARy ik Mt
Tatal IAILIR IHAH] L.30 2E5.50
Aidrusgimaent g of covsudidaton &7 LTERL L7 334, ] SR 147 1434y
Tural exiry 131651 14233 130 254,02
T aecompiriying wobes ane an miegral pan ol thi fivarssnl aaiemaei
Matcrial Acommimyr Policies 1.2
Misies b Cansalidnied Fimancial Satements 3 b 56

A per nar separste regort of even date anmeved herewith

For DEVESH PARFKH & (0. FOR AND (N BEIALF OF THE BOARD
Chartered Acoownbamy NEGULF CROPSCTENCES LIMITEDR
Firm's Reghirntien Somber 8113238%

S Sulfs S

Dievesh Farekh Samjay Aggurwal s Prakash Aggarsal

Fartner Manmyging Director Wisale Tlme Dlrecier

Membership Nomber 092 1ol DI a0Tesels THN OHTA 2440
S Sl

Mneer Delhd Mlwni) Longits Sibonhd Julm

Dmte: July 24, L0245 Ot Finuneial Oy Cnmpnny Seoretany
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Statutory Auditors to our Company

M/s Devesh Parekh & Co, Chartered
Accountants

675, Aggarwal Cyber Plaza-ll,

Netaji Subhash Place Delhi — 110034,
Delhi, India.

Internal Auditors

M/s PricewaterhouseCoopers Services LLP
Building No. 8, 8th Floor, Tower B,

DLF Cyber City, Gurugram, Haryana-122002,
India.

Secretarial Auditors
Deepak Rawat
C-77, Prem Vihar Karawal Nagar, Delhi-110094

Registrar to the Company

Bigshare Services Private Limited
Office No. 56-2, 6th floor, Pinnacle
Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre,
Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri East,
Mumbai — 400093, India

Bankers to the Company

HDFC Bank Limited

ICICI Bank Limited

HSBC Limited

Standard Chartered Bank

Listing
BSE Limited

National Stock Exchange of India Limited




Annexure-2

INDOGULF

CROPSCIENCES LTD.
INDOGULF CROPSCIENCES LIMITED

CIN: L74899DL1993PLC051854
Registered Office: 501, Gopal Heights Plot No - D-9 Netaji Subhash Place, New Delhi, India, 110034
Email: cs@groupindogulf.com; Website: www.groupindogulf.com
Tel No.: +91-11-40040400 (99 Line)

Date: 5™ September, 2025

Dear Shareholder,

Sub: Notice convening the 33" Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Indogulf
Cropsciences Limited and Integrated Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25

We are pleased to inform you that the 33rd Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of Indogulf Cropsciences
Limited ("the Company") is scheduled to be held on Monday, 29" September 2025 at 1:00 P.M. IST
through video conference (VC"/other audio visual means ("OAVM") to transact the business as set out
in the Notice of the 33rd AGM dated 5% September 2025, in compliance with all the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules issued thereunder and General Circular No. 09/2024
dated 19" September 2024 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") and Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated 3™ October 2024 issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India ("SEBI), along with other applicable Circulars issued in this regard by the
MCA and SEBL

In compliance with the aforementioned Circulars read with Regulation 36(1)(a) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("the Listing Regulations"), electronic
copies of the Notice of the AGM and Integrated Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 are being
sent to all the shareholders whose email addresses are registered with the Company/Depository
Participant(s) (*DP"). Based on the records available with the Company and/or its Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent ("RTA"), your email address is not registered against your demat
account/folio number. Accordingly, we are unable to send the copy of the Notice of the AGM along
with Integrated Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 to you electronically. This is to
inform you that the Notice of the AGM and Integrated Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25
can be accessed through following weblink and QR code:

Weblink: https://investor.groupindogulf.com/?c=Annual%20Return

QR Code:

The Notice of the AGM and Integrated Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 is also made
available on the Company's website at www.groupindogulf.com, and on the website of Stock Exchanges
where the equity Shares of the Company are listed, BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com, National Stock
Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com and on the website of National Securities Depository
Limited ("NSDL") at www.evoting.nsdl.com.
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In case you wish to register the email address, please approach your respective DP in case you hold
shares in form or write to the RTA of the Company in case you hold shares in physical form at the below
address:

Bigshare Services Private Limited

Office No. S6-2, 6th floor, Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre

Mabhakali Caves Road, Andheri East, Mumbai — 400093, India

Telephone: +91 22 6263 8200

Email: investor@bigshareonline.com

Website: https://www.bigshareonline.com/Contact.aspx

Alternatively, you may register your email address with RTA on a temporary basis to ensure the receipt
of Notice of the AGM and Integrated Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 by visiting the link:
https://www.bigshareonline.com/for_investers.aspx on or before 5.00 p.m. 1ST on Tuesday, 16®
September, 2025.

Any member desiring a physical copy of the Integrated Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25
may send request via email at cs@groupindogulf.com or raise a service request on the website of RTA
at https://www.bigshareonline.com/for_investers.aspx.

Thanking you,

Yours truly,
For Indogulf Cropsciences Limited

Sd/-

Sakshi Jain
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
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